If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial adviser.

The Directors of the Company, whose names appear under the heading "Management and Administration" are the persons responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus and accept responsibility accordingly. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of the information.

Lazard Global Investment Funds Public Limited Company

(An open-ended investment company with variable capital structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between Funds incorporated with limited liability in Ireland under registration number 467074)

PROSPECTUS

MANAGER Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited

This Prospectus replaces the Prospectus dated 1 December 2022.

The date of this Prospectus is 22 March 2024.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Prospectus comprises information relating to Lazard Global Investment Funds Public Limited Company (the "Company"), an open-ended investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability between its sub-funds organised under the laws of Ireland. It qualifies and is authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland (the "Central Bank") as a UCITS for the purposes of the Regulations. The Company is structured as an umbrella fund in that the share capital of the Company may be divided into different classes of shares ("Shares") with one or more classes representing a separate sub-fund (each, a "Fund") of the Company. The creation of further Funds and/or Share classes, in addition to those which exist as of the date of this Prospectus will be effected in accordance with Central Bank Requirements and will be subject to the Central Bank's prior approval.

This Prospectus may only be issued with one or more Supplements, each containing information relating to a separate Fund. If there are different classes of Shares constituting a Fund, details relating to the separate classes may be dealt with in a single Supplement or in separate Supplements for each class. This Prospectus and the relevant Supplement should be read and constituted as one document. To the extent that there is any inconsistency between this Prospectus and the relevant Supplement, the relevant Supplement shall prevail.

Applications for Shares will only be considered on the basis of this Prospectus (and any relevant Supplement) and the latest published audited annual report and accounts and, if published after such report, a copy of the latest unaudited semi-annual report. These reports will form part of this Prospectus.

The Company is both authorised and supervised by the Central Bank. The authorisation of the Company is not an endorsement or guarantee of the Company by the Central Bank and the Central Bank is not responsible for the contents of this Prospectus. The authorisation of the Company by the Central Bank does not constitute a warranty by the Central Bank as to the performance of the Company and the Central Bank shall not be liable for the performance or default of the Company.

Statements made in this Prospectus are, except where otherwise stated, based on the law and practice currently in force in Ireland, which may be subject to change.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation in connection with the offering or placing of Shares other than those contained in this Prospectus, any Supplement and the reports referred to above and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Company. The delivery of this Prospectus (whether or not accompanied by the reports) or any issue of Shares shall not, under any circumstances, create any implication that the affairs of the Company have not changed since the date of this Prospectus or the relevant Supplement.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering and placing of Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted and, accordingly, persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes are required by the Company to inform themselves about and to observe such restrictions.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation to anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation, in particular attention is drawn to the selling restrictions applicable in respect of the following jurisdictions:

(i) People's Republic of China (PRC)

Neither Lazard Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited nor any other entities involved in the Lazard Asset Management Limited business maintain any licenses, authorisations or registrations in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") nor are any of the Funds of the Company registered in the PRC.

(ii) Hong Kong

This Prospectus has not been reviewed by any regulatory authority in Hong Kong. Shares may not be publicly offered or sold in Hong Kong by means of this Prospectus or any other document other than in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public for the purposes of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance or any other applicable legislation in Hong Kong.

(iii) Dubai International Financial Centre (DIFC)

This Prospectus relates to a Company which is not subject to any form of regulation or approval by the Dubai Financial Services Authority (the "DFSA"). The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any Prospectus or other documents in connection with this Company, accordingly, the DFSA has not approved this Prospectus or any other associated documents nor taken any steps to verify the information set out in this Prospectus. Prospective investors in the DIFC should conduct their own due diligence on the Shares of the Company.

(iv) United Arab Emirates (UAE) (excluding DIFC)

This Prospectus does not constitute, and is not intended to constitute, a public offer of securities in the UAE and accordingly should not be construed as such. This Prospectus has not been approved by or filed with the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates or the Securities and Commodities Authority or any other relevant licensing authorities or governmental agencies in the UAE.

(v) Taiwan

The Funds have not been registered with the Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial Supervisory Commission of Taiwan pursuant to relevant securities laws and regulations and are therefore not capable of being sold or publicly offered in Taiwan. Lazard Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and its affiliates do not maintain any licenses, authorisations or registrations in Taiwan. The offering, distribution and resale of interests in the Funds have not been approved by or registered with the Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission and therefore cannot be offered, distributed, privately placed or resold in Taiwan.

In addition to the above and on a general basis, potential investors should inform themselves as to:

- (a) the legal requirements within the countries of their nationality, citizenship, residence, ordinary residence or domicile for the acquisition of Shares;
- (b) any foreign exchange restrictions or exchange control requirements which they might encounter on the acquisition or sale of Shares; and
- (c) the income tax and other taxation consequences which might be relevant to the acquisition, holding, redemption, conversion or disposal of Shares.

The Company is a recognised collective investment scheme for the purposes of Part 17 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "FSMA") because it meets the requirements of section 63 of The Collective Investment Schemes (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. Shares in the Company may be promoted to the public in the United Kingdom by persons authorised to carry on regulated activity in the United Kingdom and will not be subject to the restrictions contained in Section 238 of the FSMA.

The business of the Company in the United Kingdom is subject to limited protection under the UK regulatory system. In particular, investors are unlikely to have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service and may also not benefit from rights under the Financial Services Compensation Scheme. Shareholders should obtain independent professional advice if in doubt about eligibility.

Certain of the Funds have been registered in Austria, Belgium, Chile, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Italy, Lichtenstein, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Singapore, Spain,

Sweden, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. It is intended that application will be made in other jurisdictions to enable the Shares of the Company to be marketed in those jurisdictions. In the event that such registrations take place the Company may appoint or be required to appoint paying agents (who may be required to maintain accounts through which subscription/redemption monies may be paid), representatives, distributors or other agents in the relevant jurisdictions. The fees and expenses of any such agent will be charged at normal commercial rates and discharged out of the assets of the Company.

The Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the 1933 Act (see "Definitions") or the securities laws of any of the states of the United States and the Shares may not be offered or sold directly or indirectly in the United States or to or for the account or benefit of any US Person(see "Definitions"), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to the regulatory requirements of, the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws. Any re-offer or resale of any of the Shares in the United States or to US Persons may constitute a violation of US law. The Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the SEC (see "Definitions") or any state securities commission or other regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Prospectus (or any applicable Supplement). Any representation to the contrary is unlawful. In the absence of such exemption or transaction, each applicant for Shares will be required to certify that it is not a US Person or making its investment decision from within the United States.

The Shares of one or more classes of one or more Funds may from time to time, with the consent of the Directors, be offered to, and be purchased by, Qualified US Persons. Any such offer and sale will be made only pursuant to a Supplement specifically for that purpose. This Prospectus by itself, without any such Supplement, does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy Shares to any US Person or any other person making an investment decision in the United States.

Where the Company becomes aware that any Shares are directly or beneficially owned by any person in breach of the above restrictions, the Company may direct the Shareholder to transfer his Shares to a person qualified to own such Shares or to request the Company to redeem Shares, in default of which, the Shareholder shall, on the expiration of 30 days from the giving of such notice, be deemed to have given a request in writing for the redemption of the Shares.

Information on Russian and Belarusian investors

In accordance with the provisions of EU Regulation No. 833/2014 (as amended) the subscription for shares in the Company by (i) any Russian national or natural person residing in Russia or (ii) any legal person, entity or body established in Russia is prohibited. Nationals and residents of member states of the EEA and Switzerland are excluded from the scope of this prohibition.

In accordance with the provisions of EU Regulation No. 765/2006 (as amended) the subscription for shares in the Company by (i) any Belarussian national or natural person residing in Belarus or (ii) any legal person, entity or body established in Belarus is prohibited. Nationals and residents of member states of the European Union are excluded from the scope of this prohibition.

These prohibitions (and any amendments thereto) shall remain in effect for as long as the above Regulations (as may be amended) are in force.

This Prospectus, any Supplement and any KIID/KID may also be translated into other languages. Any such translation shall only contain the same information and have the same meaning as the English language Prospectus/Supplement/KIID/KID. To the extent that there is any inconsistency between the English language Prospectus/Supplement/KIID/KID and the Prospectus/Supplement/KIID/KID in another language, the English language Prospectus/Supplement/KIID/KID will prevail, except to the extent (but only to the extent) required by the law of any jurisdiction where the Shares are sold, that in an action based upon disclosure in a prospectus/supplement/ key investor information document in a language other than English, the language of a prospectus/supplement/ key investor information document on which such action is based shall prevail.

All disputes as to the terms of this Prospectus, any Supplement and any KIID/KID regardless of the language in which they are translated, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Ireland.

The value of Investments and the income derived therefrom may fall as well as rise and investors may not recoup the original amount invested in a Fund. The difference at any one time between the price at which Shares are subscribed for and the price at which Shares are redeemed means that any investment should be viewed as medium to long term.

An investment in the Company should not constitute a substantial portion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors. Investors should read and consider the risk discussion under "Risk Factors" before investing in the Company.

The Directors may in their absolute discretion charge a redemption fee of up to 2% of the Net Asset Value of any Shares that are to be redeemed in respect of any class of Shares in the Fund. This fee may only be charged if the Directors, in their absolute discretion, believe that any Shareholder is engaged in short term trading in a manner which is considered inappropriate and/or not in the best interests of the Shareholders or if the Directors, in their absolute discretion, believe that any Shareholder seeking redemption is attempting any form of arbitrage on the yield of the Shares.

This Prospectus, the applicable Supplement(s) and any relevant KIID/KID(s) should be read in their entirety before making an application for Shares.

CONTENTS

IMPORTANT INFORMATION	2
DEFINITIONS	8
DIRECTORY	13
LAZARD GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY	15
INTRODUCTION	15
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICY	15
INVESTMENT IN FDI	
EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT / DIRECT INVESTMENT	
INVESTMENT AND BORROWING RESTRICTIONS	
TAXONOMY REGULATION-RELATED DISCLOSURES	
BENCHMARK INDICES	
DIVIDEND POLICY	18
RISK FACTORS	18
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION	41
THE PROMOTER	
THE MANAGER	
THE INVESTMENT MANAGERS THE ADMINISTRATOR, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT	
THE DEPOSITARY	
THE DISTRIBUTORS	
Secretary	47
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	
MEETINGS	
ACCOUNTS AND INFORMATION	
VALUATION, SUBSCRIPTIONS AND REDEMPTIONS	50
CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	50
OPERATION OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AND REDEMPTION COLLECTION ACCOUNT/S	
SUBSCRIPTION	
REDEMPTION	
FRACTIONSSUBSCRIPTIONS/REDEMPTIONS IN SPECIE	
CURRENCY OF PAYMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS	
COMPULSORY REDEMPTION	
TOTAL REDEMPTION	
SWITCHING BETWEEN SHARE CLASSES AND FUNDS	
Anti-Money Laundering	
TRANSFER OF SHARES	
FEES AND EXPENSES	57
ALLOCATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES	60
TAXATION	61
GENERAL	61
IRISH TAXATION	
SHAREHOLDERS	
CAPITAL ACQUISITIONS TAXFOREIGN ACCOUNT TAX COMPLIANCE ACT ("FATCA")	
THE COMMON REPORTING STANDARDS ("CRS")	
UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION	
GERMAN TAXATION	
STATUTORY AND GENERAL INFORMATION	77
APPENDIX I	88
STOCK EXCHANGES AND REGULATED MARKETS	88
APPENDIX II	93
EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES AND INSTRUMENTS	92

	AND	92
	THE USE OF FDI FOR DIRECT INVESTMENT PURPOSES	92
APPENDI	X III	99
	INVESTMENT AND BORROWING RESTRICTIONS	99
APPENDI	X IV	104
	LIST OF ENTITIES TO WHOM SAFEKEEPING DUTIES OF THE DEPOSITARY MAY BE DELEGATED OR SUBDELEGATED	104
APPENDI	ΚV	109
	INDEX DISCLAIMERS	109

DEFINITIONS

- "Act", the Companies Act 2014, as same may be amended from time to time.
- "Administration Agreement", the administration agreement dated 22 October 2010, between the Company, the Manager and the Administrator, as amended by supplemental administration agreement dated 7 December 2010, second supplemental administration agreement dated 26 September 2016 and addendum dated 29 May 2018, as same may be amended from time to time.
- "Administrator", State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and/or such other person as may be appointed, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, to provide administration services to the Company.
- "AIFs", Alternative Investment Funds.
- "Application Form", such application form for Shares as is prescribed by the Directors in relation to a Fund.
- "Articles", the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to time.
- "Auditors", PricewaterhouseCoopers, Chartered Accountants, Dublin.
- "Australian Dollars" and "AUS\$", the lawful currency of Australia.
- **"Benchmarks Regulation"**, Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds and amending Directives 2008/48/EC and 2014/17/EU and Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 as same may be amended, supplemented or reenacted from time to time.
- "Business Day", in relation to a Fund, such day or days as the Directors may from time to time determine with approval of the Administrator (see relevant Supplement).
- "Central Bank", the Central Bank of Ireland, or any successor thereof.
- "Central Bank Requirements", the requirements of the Central Bank pursuant to the Regulations, the Central Bank UCITS Regulations and any guidance applicable to UCITS as may be issued by the Central Bank from time to time.
- "Central Bank UCITS Regulations", the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 as same may be amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time.
- "Constitution", the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
- "Company", Lazard Global Investment Funds Public Limited Company.
- "Currency Management Agreements", the currency management agreement dated 7 December 2010, between the Company, Lazard Asset Management LLC and State Street Bank Europe Limited, as novated to State Street Bank and Trust Company, London Branch, by a novation and amendment agreement dated 28 October 2019, as same may be amended from time to time and the currency management agreement dated 18 April 2019, between the Company, Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH and State Street Europe Limited as novated to State Street Bank International GmbH by a novation and amendment agreement dated 28 October 2019, as same may be amended from time to time.
- "Currency Manager(s)", State Street Bank and Trust Company, London Branch and State Street Bank International GmbH and/or such other person as may be appointed, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, to provide currency management services to the Funds or any of them.

"Dealing Day", such Business Day as the Directors may from time to time determine (with the approval of the Depositary) for dealings in a Fund, provided always that there shall be at least one Dealing Day in every fortnight (see relevant Supplement).

"Depositary", State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited or such other person as may be appointed, with the prior approval of the Central Bank, to act as depositary to the Company.

"Depositary Agreement", the depositary agreement dated 20 May 2016, between the Company and the Depositary, as amended by addendum dated 29 May 2018, as same may be amended from time to time.

"Directive", Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 July 2009 on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS) as applicable and as may be amended and supplemented from time to time.

"Directors", the directors of the Company or any duly authorised committee thereof.

"Distributor", Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH, Lazard Asset Management Limited, Lazard Asset Management Schweiz AG, Lazard Asset Management LLC, Lazard Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Lazard Frères Gestion, Lazard Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited, the Manager, through its branches in Spain, Belgium and the Netherlands, Lazard Gulf Limited and/or such other person(s) as may be appointed in accordance with Central Bank Requirements to act as a distributor to the Company.

"Duties and Charges", in relation to any Fund, all stamp and other duties, taxes, governmental charges, brokerage, bank charges, foreign exchange spreads, interest, transfer fees, registration fees and other duties and charges whether in connection with the original acquisition or increase of the assets of the relevant Fund or the creation, issue, sale, conversion or repurchase of Shares or the purchase or sale of Investments or in respect of certificates or otherwise which may have become or may be payable in respect of or prior to or in connection with or arising out of or upon the occasion of the transaction or dealing in respect of which such duties and charges are payable, which may include, when calculating the Share Price, any provision for spreads (to take into account the difference between the price at which assets were valued for the purpose of calculating the Net Asset Value and the price at which such assets were bought as a result of a subscription and sold as a result of a redemption), but shall not include any commission payable to agents on sales and purchases of Shares or any commission, taxes, charges or costs which may have been taken into account in ascertaining the Net Asset Value of Shares in the relevant Fund.

"EEA", the European Economic Area.

"EU", the European Union.

"Euro", "EUR" and "€", the single European currency unit referred to in Council Regulation (EC) No. 974/98 of 3 May 1998 on the introduction of the Euro.

"FDI", financial derivative instrument(s).

"Fund", a fund of assets established (with the prior approval of the Central Bank) for one or more classes of Shares which is invested in accordance with the investment objective applicable to such fund.

"Fund Schedule Supplement", a supplement to this Prospectus containing a list of the Funds established by the Company.

"Hong Kong Dollar", "HK\$", "HKD", the lawful currency of Hong Kong.

"Investment(s)", any investment(s) authorised by the Memorandum and which is permitted by the Regulations and the Articles.

"Investment Manager(s)", Lazard Asset Management Limited, Lazard Asset Management LLC and Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH and/or such other person as may be appointed, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, to provide investment management services to the Funds or any of them.

"Japanese Yen", "JPY", "Yen" and "\frac{1}{2}", the lawful currency of Japan.

"KID(s)", PRIIPs Key Information Document(s) prepared in accordance with the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/653.

"KIID(s)", Key Investor Information Document(s).

"Lazard Deutschland IMA", the investment management agreement dated 18 December 2017 between the Company, the Manager and Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH, as amended by side letters dated 18 December 2018, 17 July 2020, 17 December 2020, 24 February 2021 and 29 August 2022, as same may be amended from time to time.

"Lazard Group", Lazard Inc and its subsidiaries.

"Lazard UK IMA", the investment management agreement dated 25 January 2022, between the Company, the Manager and Lazard Asset Management Limited.

"Lazard US IMA", the investment management agreement dated 26 February 2009, between the Company, the Manager and Lazard Asset Management LLC, as amended by side letters dated 26 October 2010, 15 November 2011, 7 August 2012, 21 November 2012, 2 September 2013, 31 October 2013, 16 September 2015, 9 November 2015, 20 November 2015, 4 December 2015, 19 December 2017, 26 March 2018, 5 April 2018, 31 July 2020, 17 December 2020, 23 March 2021, 26 March 2021, 27 September 2021, 21 December 2021 and 25 May 2022, as same may be amended from time to time.

"Management Agreement", the management agreement dated 17 July 2020, between the Company and the Manager, as same may be amended from time to time.

"Manager", Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, or such other person as may be appointed, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, to act as manager to the Company.

"Member State", a member state of the European Union.

"Memorandum", the Memorandum of Association of the Company, as amended from time to time.

"Minimum Holding", a holding of Shares of any class having an aggregate value of such minimum amount as set out in the relevant Supplement, or as may be determined from time to time by the Directors.

"Minimum Redemption", a minimum redemption (whether initial or subsequent) for Shares of any class as set out in the relevant Supplement or as may be determined from time to time by the Directors.

"Minimum Subscription", a minimum subscription (whether initial or subsequent) for Shares of any class as set out in the relevant Supplement or as may be determined from time to time by the Directors.

"Money Market Funds Regulation", Regulation (EU) 2017/1131 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on money market funds as same may be amended, supplemented or reenacted from time to time;

"Net Asset Value", the net asset value of a Fund or, where applicable, of a class of Shares, determined in accordance with the Articles.

- "Net Asset Value per Share", the Net Asset Value divided by the number of Shares of the relevant Fund subject to such adjustment, if any, as may be required where there is more than one class of Shares in the Fund.
- "PRIIPs", packaged retail and insurance-based investment products provided for under Regulation (EU) No.1286/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 November 2014 on PRIIPs.
- "Promoter and Distributor Agreement", the promoter and distributor agreement dated 26 February 2009, between the Company, the Manager and Lazard Asset Management Limited, as amended by side letters dated 26 October 2010 and 10 March 2016, as same may be amended from time to time.
- "Prospectus", this document as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with Central Bank Requirements together with, where the context requires or implies, any Supplement or addendum.
- "Qualified Holder", any person, corporation or entity other than (i) a US person which is not a Qualified US Person; (ii) any person, corporation or entity which cannot acquire or hold Shares without violating laws or regulations applicable to it or who might expose the Company to adverse tax or regulatory consequences (iii) a custodian, nominee, or trustee for any person, corporation or entity described in (i) and (ii) above.
- "Qualified US Person", a US Person who has acquired Shares with the consent of the Directors provided that the number of Qualified US Persons shall not exceed such number as the Directors shall determine from time to time with a view to precluding the Company from being required to register as an investment company under the 1940 Act or with a view to precluding the Company from becoming subject to reporting obligations or registrations obligations under the 1934 Act.
- "Regulated Markets", the stock exchanges and/or regulated markets listed in Appendix I.
- "Regulations", the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (S.I. No. 352 of 2011), as may be amended, supplemented and/or replaced from time to time.
- "SEC", the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
- "Secretary", Wilton Secretarial Limited and/or such other person as may be appointed to act as secretary to the Company.
- "Securities Financing Transaction", "SFT", means (a) a repurchase transaction; (b) securities or commodities lending and securities or commodities borrowing; (c) a buy-sell back transaction or sell-buy back transaction; and/or (d) a margin lending transaction, each as defined in accordance with SFTR.
- "**SFDR**", Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector, as amended and as may be further amended.
- **"SFTR"**, Regulation (EU) 2015/2365 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on transparency of securities financing transactions and of reuse and amending Regulation (EU) No. 648/2012, as may be amended, supplemented and/or replaced from time to time.
- "Share(s)", a share or shares of no par value in the Company designated as a "Participating Share" or "Participating Shares" in the Articles.
- "Share Price", the price per Share as determined in accordance with the Articles and as set out in the relevant Supplement.
- "Shareholder", the registered holder of a Share.

- "Subscriber Shares", shares of Stg £1 each in the capital of the Company designated as "Subscriber Shares" in the Articles and issued for the purposes of incorporating the Company.
- "Supplement", any document issued by the Company, including the Fund Schedule Supplement, expressed to be a supplement to this Prospectus.
- "Sustainability Factors", as defined in the SFDR, means environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters.
- "Sustainability Risk", as defined in the SFDR, means an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause a negative material impact on the value of an Investment.
- "Sterling". "GBP" and "Stg£", the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
- "Stock Connect", the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and/or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect.
- "Swiss Franc" and "CHF", the lawful currency of Switzerland.
- "Taxonomy Regulation", Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 June 2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment, and amending Regulation (EU) 2019/2088, as may be amended.
- "UCITS", an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities established pursuant to the Directive, as amended.
- "United Kingdom" or "UK", the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
- "United States" and "US", the United States of America or any of its territories, possessions or other areas subject to its jurisdiction including the states and the Federal District of Columbia.
- "United States Dollar", "the US Dollar", "US Dollars" and "US\$" the lawful currency of the United States.
- "US Person", subject to such applicable law and to such changes as the Directors shall notify to applicants for or transferees of Shares; a national or resident of the United States, (including any corporation, partnership or other entity created or organised in, or under the laws, of the United States or any political subdivision thereof), or any estate or trust, other than an estate or trust the income of which from sources outside the United States (which is not effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business within the United States) is not included in gross income for the purpose of computing United States federal income tax, provided, however, that the term "US Person" shall not include a branch or agency of a United States bank or insurance company that is operating outside the United States as a locally regulated branch or agency engaged in the banking or insurance business and not solely for the purpose of investing in securities under the 1933 Act.
- "Valuation Point", such time and day as the Directors may from time to time determine, with the approval of the Administrator, in relation to the valuation of the assets and liabilities of a Fund (see relevant Supplement).
- "1933 Act", the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
- "1934 Act", the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- "1940 Act", the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

DIRECTORY

Directors

The Directors of the Company, whose business address is at 6th Floor 2 Grand Canal Square Dublin 2 D02 A342 Ireland

are as follows:

Denis Faller **Deirdre Gormley** Andreas Hübner Samantha McConnell Jeremy Taylor

Registered Office

6th Floor 2 Grand Canal Square Dublin 2 D02 A342 Ireland

Manager

Registered Office Address: Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited 6th Floor 2 Grand Canal Square Dublin 2 D02 A342 Ireland

Head Office Address: Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited Fourth Floor Lumen **Baggot Street Upper** Dublin 4 Ireland

Depositary

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay Dublin 2 D02 HD32 Ireland

Investment Managers

Lazard Asset Management Limited 50 Stratton Street London W1J 8LL

Lazard Asset Management LLC 30 Rockefeller Plaza New York NY 10112-6300 **USA**

Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH Neue Mainzer Strasse 75 60311 Frankfurt am Main Germany

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers One Spencer Dock North Wall Quav Dublin 1 D01 X9R7 Ireland

United Kingdom

Administrator, Registrar and **Transfer Agent**

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay Dublin 2 D02 HD32 Ireland

Secretary

Wilton Secretarial Limited 6th Floor 2 Grand Canal Square Dublin 2 D02 A342 Ireland

Currency Managers

State Street Bank and Trust Company London Branch 20 Churchill Place London E14 5HJ **United Kingdom**

State Street Bank International GmbH Solmsstraße 83, 60486 Frankfurt am Main Germany

Promoter

Lazard Asset Management Limited 50 Stratton Street London W1J 8LL **United Kingdom**

Legal Advisers to the Company

as to Irish law

William Fry LLP Solicitors 2 Grand Canal Square Dublin 2 D02 A342 Ireland

as to English law:

CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro
Olswang LLP
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street
London
EC4N 6AF
United Kingdom

Distributors

Lazard Asset Management Limited 50 Stratton Street London W1J 8LL United Kingdom Lazard Frères Gestion 25 rue de Courcelles 75008 Paris France Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland)
Limited, Belgian Branch
Avenue Louise 326
1050 Brussels
Belgium

Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH Neue Mainzer Strasse 75 60311 Frankfurt am Main Germany Lazard Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 1 Raffles Place, #25-01 One Raffles Place Tower 1 Singapore 048616 Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, Dutch Branch The Office Operators Mondriaan Tower Amstelplein 54 1096 BC Amsterdam

Lazard Asset Management LLC 30 Rockefeller Plaza New York NY 10112-6300 USA Lazard Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited Level 20 1 Harbour View Street Central Hong Kong Lazard Gulf Limited
Gate Village 1
Level 2, Office 206
Dubai International Financial Centre
Dubai
P.O. Box 506644
United Arab Emirates

Lazard Asset Management Schweiz AG Uraniastrasse 12 Zürich CH-8001 Switzerland Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, Spanish Branch Paseo De La Castellana 140 Piso 10 28046 Madrid Spain

LAZARD GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

INTRODUCTION

Lazard Global Investment Funds Public Limited Company was incorporated under the laws of Ireland on 3 February 2009 and is an open-ended investment company with variable capital. The Company has been authorised by the Central Bank as a UCITS within the meaning of the Regulations and Lazard Asset Management Limited is the current promoter of the Company.

The Company is structured as an umbrella fund in that different Funds thereof may be established with the prior approval of the Central Bank. In addition, each Fund may have more than one Share class allocated to it, details of which will be set out in the relevant Supplement. The Shares of each class allocated to a Fund will rank pari passu with each other in all respects except as to all or any of the following:

- currency of denomination of the class;
- dividend policy;
- the level of fees and expenses to be charged; and
- the Minimum Subscription, Minimum Holding and Minimum Redemption applicable.

The assets of each Fund are separate from one another and are invested in accordance with the investment objective and policy applicable to each such Fund.

The base currency of each Fund will be determined by the Directors and will be set out in the relevant Supplement.

A list of the Funds currently established by the Company is contained in the Fund Schedule Supplement.

On the establishment of any Fund or the creation of a new class of Shares in an existing Fund, a Supplement and relevant KIID/KID(s) will be issued in respect thereof. In addition, details of all Funds and their Share classes will be set out in the annual and semi annual reports of the Company.

Investment Objective and Policy

General

The specific investment objective and policy for each Fund will be formulated by the Directors at the time of the creation of that Fund and set out in the relevant Supplement.

The stock exchanges and markets in which any Fund may invest are set out in Appendix I. These stock exchanges and markets are listed in accordance with the regulatory criteria as defined in the Central Bank UCITS Regulations, it being noted that the Central Bank does not issue a list of approved exchanges or markets. A Fund may invest in other collective investment schemes, including other Funds of the Company. A Fund may invest in FDI for direct investment purposes only where such intention is disclosed in the Fund's investment policy.

Any alteration to the investment objective or material alteration to the investment policy of any Fund at any time will be subject to the prior approval in writing of all of the Shareholders of the relevant Fund, or, if a general meeting of the Shareholders of such Fund is convened, by a majority of the votes cast at such meeting. Shareholders will be given reasonable advance notice of the implementation of any alteration to the investment objective or policy of a Fund which has been approved by Shareholders at a general meeting on the basis of a majority of votes cast so as to enable them to redeem their Shares prior to such implementation.

Investment in FDI Efficient Portfolio Management / Direct Investment

The Company may, on behalf of any Fund and subject to the Regulations and conditions imposed by the Central Bank, employ techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities and money market instruments, including investment in FDI. Such techniques and instruments may be used for efficient portfolio management purposes, or for hedging purposes or for direct investment purposes, where applicable. Such techniques and instruments are set out in Appendix II and may include: (i) investments in exchange-traded or over-the-counter ("OTC") FDI, such as futures, forwards, options, swaps, credit-default swap indices, swaptions, credit-linked notes, convertible securities, warrants and (ii) repurchase transactions (which may be used for efficient portfolio management purposes only). Further information in relation to the types, underlying reference assets and commercial purpose of the FDI in which a Fund may invest will be set out in the Supplement for the relevant Fund. Efficient portfolio management means instruments and investment techniques involving transactions that are entered into for one or more of the following specific aims: the reduction of risk, the reduction of cost, or the generation of additional capital or income for a Fund. New techniques and instruments may be developed which may be suitable for use by the Company and the Company may (subject to the conditions imposed the Central Bank) employ such techniques and instruments subject to the Supplement for the relevant Fund being updated and Shareholders being notified in advance. Where the Company intends to use these instruments for direct investment purposes, full details will be disclosed in the relevant Fund's investment policy. Where a Fund intends to engage in transactions involving FDI under any circumstances, the Company shall employ a risk management process in accordance with Central Bank Requirements to enable it to monitor, measure and manage, on a continuous basis, the risk to all open derivative positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of the Fund. Only such FDI as are provided for in the current risk management process for the Company approved by the Central Bank may be used by the Company.

Investment and Borrowing Restrictions

Investment of the assets of each Fund must comply with the Regulations. A detailed statement of the general investment and borrowing restrictions applicable to all Funds is set out in Appendix III. The Directors may impose further restrictions in respect of any Fund. Details will be set out in the relevant Supplement.

The Directors may also from time to time impose such further investment restrictions as may be compatible with or be in the interests of the Shareholders in order to comply with the laws and regulations of the countries where Shareholders of the Company are located or the Shares are marketed.

The Company will not take legal or management control of any of the entities in which its underlying investments are made.

It is intended that the Company should, subject to the prior approval of the Central Bank, have power to avail itself of any change in the investment restrictions laid down in the Regulations which would permit investment by the Company in securities, derivative instruments or in any other form of investment which, as at the date of this Prospectus, is restricted or prohibited under the Regulations. The Company will give Shareholders at least two weeks' prior written notice of its intention to avail itself of any such change which is material in nature.

SFDR-related Disclosures

Assessment of Principal Adverse Impacts of Investment Decisions on Sustainability Factors

Principal adverse sustainability impacts of the Company

The Manager, being a company, which has less than 500 employees and which is not a parent undertaking of a group with 500 or more employees, is not, in accordance with the SFDR, currently required to consider the principal adverse impacts of investment decisions of the Company on Sustainability Factors in the manner prescribed under Article 4(1)(a) of the SFDR. The Manager takes account of Sustainability Risks in the investment decision-making process applied to the

Company's Investments in the manner described in the Supplements, but has determined, for the time being, not to consider (in the manner specifically contemplated by Article 4(1)(a) of the SFDR) the principal adverse impacts of investment decisions of the Company on Sustainability Factors.

This decision has been made on the basis that, in the Manager's opinion, it is not currently possible to access or acquire the data necessary to conduct this assessment in accordance with the requirements of the SFDR. The Manager will continue to monitor and, through on-going investee company engagement, encourage greater disclosures and transparency and if, once these uncertainties have been addressed, the Manager is satisfied that such an assessment can be properly conducted and that to do so would be in the best interests of Shareholders, it may look at that stage to consider the adverse impacts of Company investment decisions on Sustainability Factors in the manner contemplated under Article 4(1)(a) of the SFDR.

Principal adverse sustainability impacts of the Funds

The Manager considers the principal adverse impacts on Sustainability Factors of its investment decisions in respect of those Funds which, as set out in the Fund Schedule Supplement, are subject to the disclosure rules under Articles 8 or 9 of the SFDR. The manner in which the Manager considers such principal adverse impacts will be set out in an appendix to the Supplement for the relevant Fund detailing the environment and/or social characteristics or sustainable investment objectives of that Fund.

Taxonomy Regulation-related Disclosures

The investments underlying the Lazard Coherence Credit Alternative Fund and the Lazard Commodities Fund do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Benchmark Indices

The performance of a Fund may be measured against a specific index and/or a Fund may use an index as a benchmark in accordance with how the Benchmarks Regulation define 'use of a benchmark' (in either case a "Benchmark Index").

The Company has in place and maintains written plans setting out the actions that may be taken in the event that an index used by a Fund as a benchmark in accordance with the Benchmarks Regulation is materially changed or ceases to be provided. These plans include, where appropriate, details of alternative indices that might potentially be used by a Fund where an index it uses as a benchmark has to be substituted.

These plans reserve to the Directors the right, if they consider it in the interests of the Company or any Fund to do so and with the consent of the Depositary, to substitute another index for a relevant Benchmark Index if:

- (a) the particular Benchmark Index or index series ceases to be provided or to exist or is materially changed:
- (b) a new index becomes available which supersedes the existing Benchmark Index;
- (c) a new index becomes available which is regarded as the market standard for investors in the particular market and/or would be regarded as of greater benefit to the Shareholders than the existing Benchmark Index;
- (d) it becomes difficult to invest in stocks comprised within the particular Benchmark Index;
- (e) the Benchmark Index provider increases its charges to a level which the Directors consider too high;

- (f) the quality (including accuracy and availability of data) of a particular Benchmark Index has, in the opinion of the Directors, deteriorated; or
- (g) a liquid futures market in which a particular Fund is investing ceases to be available.

The Directors may change the name of a Fund, particularly if its Benchmark Index is changed.

Any change in a Benchmark Index and/or to the name of a Fund will be notified to the Central Bank and the Shareholders of the relevant Fund and will be noted in the annual and semi-annual reports of the relevant Fund issued after any such change takes place.

Dividend Policy

The Directors are empowered to declare and pay dividends on any class of Shares in the Company.

Dividends, if declared, will only be paid out of a Fund's net investment income return (i.e. income from dividends, interest or otherwise, less that Fund's accrued expenses to be certified for the accounting period). The timing of dividend payments in respect of any Fund will be set out in the relevant Supplement. Any dividend payment that is not claimed will not earn interest and, if not claimed within six years of its declaration, shall be forfeited and shall be escheated for the benefit of the relevant Fund.

Dividends payable to Shareholders of distributing classes of Shares will be reinvested immediately after such dividends are paid by subscription for further Shares, unless Shareholders specifically request that dividends be remitted to them. A Shareholder who elects to have dividends remitted in cash will be deemed to have made a similar election in respect of any further dividends due to the Shareholder until the Shareholder revokes the election. In circumstances where a Shareholder has elected to have dividends remitted in cash but the expense involved in remitting the dividend payment exceeds the amount of the dividend to be paid, the Directors may in their absolute discretion reinvest the dividend amount in the relevant Fund immediately after such dividends are paid by subscription for further Shares. Reinvestment of dividends will be made on the dividend payment date. If a Shareholder's dividends are reinvested, there is no preliminary fee payable on the reinvestment.

The Company intends to operate an equalisation account in respect of each of the Funds in order that dividends may be paid to all Shareholders in a Fund at an undiluted rate. If Shares are acquired when the equalisation account is in operation, otherwise than at the beginning of an account period, the first distribution or accumulation after acquisition will include a refund of capital, referred to as an equalisation payment, which is not subject to tax in the UK as income. The amount of the equalisation payment must be deducted from the original purchase cost of the relevant Shares in computing the allowable cost of these Shares for UK capital gains purposes.

Dividends will not be paid in respect of any class of Shares which is an accumulating class. Income and profits, if any, attributable to an accumulating Share class will be accumulated in the relevant Fund on behalf of the Shareholders of that class and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value of the relevant accumulating Share class.

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors do not purport to be a complete description or explanation of all risk factors which should be considered when investing in the Company. Investors should also read and consider any additional risk factors which may be set out in the relevant Supplement(s).

1. Market Fluctuations

A prospective investor should be aware that Investments are subject to normal market fluctuations and other risks inherent in investing in securities. There is no assurance that any appreciation in the value of Investments will occur or that the investment objective of any Fund will actually be achieved. The value of Investments and the income derived therefrom may fall as well as rise and investors may not recoup the original amount invested in a Fund. The difference at any one time between the price at which Shares are subscribed and the price at

which Shares are redeemed means that any investment should be viewed as medium to long term. An investment should only be made by those persons who are able to sustain a loss on their investment.

2. Suspensions

Prospective investors are reminded that in certain circumstances their right to redeem Shares may be suspended (see under the heading "Temporary Suspensions" in this Prospectus).

3. Taxation

The attention of potential investors is drawn to the taxation risks associated with investing in the Company. Please see the section of this Prospectus headed "Taxation".

4. Segregated Liability

The Company is structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between its Funds. As a matter of Irish law, the assets of one Fund will not be available to meet the liabilities of another. However, the Company is a single legal entity that may operate or have assets held on its behalf or be subject to claims in other jurisdictions that may not necessarily recognise such segregation.

5. Foreign Exchange Risk

Because a Fund's assets and liabilities may be denominated in currencies different to a Fund's base currency, a Fund may be affected favourably or unfavourably by exchange control regulations or changes in the exchange rates between the base currency and other currencies. Changes in currency exchange rates may influence the value of a Fund's Shares, the dividends or interest earned and the gains and losses realised. Exchange rates between currencies are determined by supply and demand in the currency exchange markets, the international balance of payments, governmental intervention, speculation and other economic and political conditions.

Depending on an investor's currency of reference, currency fluctuations between an investor's currency of reference and the base currency of the relevant Fund may adversely affect the value of an investment in one or more Funds.

If the currency in which a security is denominated appreciates against the base currency, the value of the security will increase. Conversely, a decline in the exchange rate of the currency would adversely affect the value of the security.

A Fund may engage in foreign currency transactions in order to hedge against currency exchange risk, however there is no guarantee that hedging or protection will be achieved. This strategy may also limit a Fund from benefiting from the performance of its securities if the currency in which the securities held by a Fund are denominated rises against the Fund's base currency. In the case of a hedged class this risk applies systematically.

6. Payments via Intermediaries

Potential investors who choose or are obliged under local regulations to pay or receive subscription or redemption monies via an intermediary entity (e.g. a paying agent) bear a credit risk against that intermediary entity with respect to:

- (a) subscription monies for so long as such monies are held in an account with or in the name of such intermediary entity; and
- (b) redemption monies paid by the Company to such intermediary entity and payable to the relevant investor.

7. Dependence on Key Personnel

The Company and the Funds rely on the services of the relevant Investment Manager whose performance is dependent on the services of its investment team. There can be no assurance that the relevant Investment Manager will be able to retain its current investment team. The departure or incapacity of any such individuals could have a material adverse effect on a Fund.

8. Valuation Risk

The Net Asset Value of a Fund will be calculated by the Administrator based, to the extent possible, on prices obtained from independent third-party sources including exchanges. The fair market value of those assets of a Fund for which a third-party price is not available will be valued based on other sources deemed reliable by the Directors, in consultation with the Administrator. Investors should note that there is a risk that a Shareholder who redeems their Shares while a Fund holds particular assets may be paid an amount less or more than it would otherwise be paid if the actual value of such assets is higher or lower than the value provided to the Administrator. In addition, there is a risk that a subscription for Shares could dilute the underlying value of such assets for the other Shareholders if the actual value of such assets is higher than the value provided to the Administrator. There is also a risk that greater investment management fees and performance fees (to the extent that performance fees are payable by a Fund) may be paid by a Fund in respect of certain assets or liabilities of the Fund than would have been paid if the actual value of such assets or liabilities is lower or higher than the value determined for the purposes of calculating those fees and allocations. None of the Directors, the Investment Managers or the Administrator are under any liability (including any obligation to remit excess investment management fees or performance fees to a Fund or any of the Shareholders) if a price reasonably believed to be an accurate valuation of a particular asset of the Fund is found not to be such.

9. Credit Risk and Counterparty Risk

A Fund will be exposed to the credit risk of the counterparties or the brokers and dealers and exchanges through which it deals, and with whom it places margin or collateral in respect of transactions whether it engages in exchange or off-exchange traded transactions. A Fund may be subject to risk of losses in the event of a broker's bankruptcy or fraud, the bankruptcy or fraud of any clearing broker through which the broker executes and clears transactions on behalf of a Fund, or the bankruptcy or fraud of an exchange clearing house. While measures such as receiving collateral may be taken by a Fund to reduce counterparty credit risk, there can be no assurance that a counterparty will not default resulting in losses, or the increase of costs, to a Fund.

10. Counterparty Risk to the Depositary and other depositaries

The Company will be exposed to the credit risk of the Depositary or any depositary used by the Depositary where cash or other assets are held by the Depositary or other depositaries. Cash held by the Depositary and other depositaries will not be segregated in practice but will be a debt owing from the Depositary or other depositaries to the Company as a depositor. Such cash will be co-mingled with cash belonging to other clients of the Depositary and/or other depositaries. In the event of the insolvency of the Depositary or other depositaries, the Company will be treated as a general unsecured creditor of the Depositary or other depositaries in relation to cash holdings of the Funds. The Company may face difficulties and/or encounter delays in recovering such debt, or may not be able to recover it in full or at all, in which case the Fund will lose some or all of its cash. The Funds' securities are however maintained by the Depositary and sub-custodians used by the Depositary in segregated accounts and should be protected in the event of insolvency of the Depositary or sub-custodians.

11. Market Disruption Risk

A Fund may incur significant losses in the event of disrupted markets and other extraordinary events which may affect markets in a way that is not consistent with historical pricing relationships. The risk of loss from a disconnect from historical prices is compounded by the

fact that in disrupted markets many positions become illiquid, making it difficult or impossible to close out positions against which the markets are moving. In 1994, in 1998 and again in the so-called "credit crunch" of 2007-2008 a sudden restriction of credit by the dealer community resulted in forced liquidations and major losses for a number of investment vehicles. The "credit crunch" of 2007-2008 particularly affected investment vehicles focused on credit-related investments. However, because market disruptions and losses in one sector can cause ripple effects in other sectors, during the "credit crunch" of 2007-2008 many investment vehicles suffered heavy losses even though they were not necessarily heavily invested in credit-related investments. In addition, market disruptions caused by unexpected political, military and terrorist events may from time to time cause dramatic losses for a Fund and such events can result in otherwise historically low-risk strategies performing with unprecedented volatility and risk. A financial exchange may from time to time suspend or limit trading. Such a suspension could render it difficult or impossible for a Fund to liquidate affected positions and thereby expose it to losses. There is also no assurance that off-exchange markets will remain liquid enough for an affected Fund to close out positions.

12. Inflation Risk

A rising rate of inflation will have the effect of reducing, by an equivalent amount, the relative value of any gain achieved by a Fund.

13. Active Management Risk

The Funds are all actively managed. The Investment Manager of each Fund identifies securities to invest in according to the particular investment strategy or investment objective being pursued and actively selects stocks on that basis. A Fund may underperform other investments and products given the style of investing and the longer-term view of the relevant Investment Manager of an underlying Investment's intrinsic value.

14. Liquidity Risk

Certain securities held by a Fund may be difficult (or impossible) to sell at the time and at the price the relevant Investment Manager would like. A Fund may have to hold these securities longer than it would like and may forego other investment opportunities. There is the possibility that a Fund may lose money or be prevented from earning capital gains if it cannot sell a security at the time and price that is most beneficial to that Fund. Funds that invest in privately-placed securities, certain small company securities, high-yield bonds, mortgage-backed securities or foreign or emerging market securities, which have all experienced periods of illiquidity, are subject to liquidity risks.

15. Concentration Risk

Where the portfolio of a Fund is concentrated (in terms of the number of different securities comprising the portfolio), the level of risk is expected to be higher than that associated with a broader based, more diversified portfolio. For example, the performance of a single stock within such a portfolio may have a greater effect on the relevant Fund's Net Asset Value per Share. Certain Funds may have portfolios comprising between 20 and 40 different securities and will therefore be exposed to concentration risk. In addition, some Funds may be concentrated in individual countries or sectors. If one of these components underperforms, it would have a greater effect than would be the case in a more diversified portfolio where the risk is more widely spread.

16. Systems Risks

The Company and the Funds depend on the relevant Investment Manager and other third party service providers to develop and implement appropriate systems for the Funds' activities. The operational infrastructure around the Company and the Funds relies extensively on computer programs and systems (and may rely on new systems and technology in the future) for various purposes including, without limitation, trading, clearing and settling transactions, evaluating certain financial instruments, monitoring its portfolio and net capital, and generating risk

management and other reports that are critical to oversight of the Funds' activities. Certain of a Fund's and the Company's delegates' operations interface will be dependent upon systems operated by third parties, the Depositary, the Administrator, market counterparties and their sub-custodians and other service providers, and the relevant Investment Manager may not be in a position to verify the risk or reliability of such third-party systems. These programs or systems may be subject to certain limitations, including, but not limited to, those caused by computer viruses and power failures. All operations are highly dependent on each of these systems and the successful operation of such systems is often out of the Fund's or the relevant delegate's control. The failure of one or more systems or the inability of such systems to satisfy the Fund's growing businesses could have a material adverse effect on the Funds. For example, systems failures could cause settlement of trades to fail, lead to inaccurate accounting, recording or processing of trades, and cause inaccurate reports, which may affect the ability of a Fund to monitor its investment portfolio and risks.

17. Cyber Security Risk

The Company and its service providers are susceptible to operational and information security risk and related risks relating to cyber security incidents. In general, cyber security incidents can be the result of deliberate attacks or unintentional events. Cyber security attacks include, but are not limited to: gaining unauthorised access to digital systems (e.g. through "hacking" or malicious software coding) for purposes of misappropriating assets or sensitive information; and corrupting data or causing operational disruption. Cyber attacks may also be carried out in a manner that does not require gaining unauthorised access, such as causing denial of service attacks on websites (i.e. efforts to make services unavailable to intended users). Cyber security incidents affecting the Investment Managers, Administrator, Depositary or other service providers have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses, including by interfering with the ability to calculate the Net Asset Value of a Fund, impeding trading of a Fund's portfolios, preventing Shareholders from transacting business with the Company, violating applicable privacy, data security or other laws, (and thereby subjecting the Company to regulatory fines and penalties, reputational damage, obligations to pay reimbursement or other compensation or remediation costs, legal fees, or additional compliance costs). Similar adverse consequences could result from cyber security incidents affecting issuers of securities in which a Fund invests, counterparties with which the Company engages in transactions, governmental and other regulatory authorities, exchange and other financial market operations, banks, brokers, dealers, insurance companies and other financial institutions and other parties. While information risk management systems and business continuity plans have been developed which are designed to reduce the risks associated with cyber security, there are inherent limitations in any cyber security risk management system or business continuity plan, including the possibility that certain risks have not been identified.

18. Risks relating to the European General Data Protection Regulation

The EU General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR") came into effect on 25 May 2018 in all Member States and applies where a controller's processing activities relate to the provision of services to individuals in the EU. GDPR introduced significant new obligations on controllers, including requirements around accountability and transparency, formalising the processing operations of their delegates, responding to additional data subjects' rights requests within shorter timelines, reporting of personal data breaches to data protection authorities or data subjects, consideration of data protection as any new services are developed and limitation of the amount of personal data collected, processed and stored.

GDPR also introduced a substantially more comprehensive regulatory regime, of which one of the main features is that administrative fines for breaches of GDPR can reach as high as €20m or 4% of an undertaking's (or group of undertakings') annual turnover (whichever amount is greater).

The implementation of GDPR required significant changes to the policies and procedures of the Company in relation to data protection. These changes may increase the operational and compliance costs borne by the Company and in the event of failure to comply with the requirements of GDPR, the Company could face significant administrative and monetary

sanctions as well as reputational damage which may have a material adverse effect on its operations, financial condition and prospects. These risks may apply equally to certain entities in which the Funds may invest.

19. Political Risk

A Fund may invest in currencies and in securities traded in various markets throughout the world, including in emerging or developing markets, some of which are highly controlled by governmental authorities. Such Investments require consideration of certain risks typically not associated with investing in currencies or in securities of developed markets. Such risks include, among other things, trade balances and imbalances and related economic policies, unfavourable currency exchange rate fluctuations, imposition of exchange control regulation by governments, withholding taxes, limitations on the removal of funds or other assets, policies of governments with respect to possible nationalisation of their industries, political difficulties, including expropriation of assets, confiscatory taxation and social, economic or political instability in foreign nations. These factors may affect the level and volatility of securities prices and the liquidity of Investments made in such regions. Unexpected volatility or illiquidity could impair a Fund's profitability or result in losses.

The economies of the countries in which a Fund may invest differ in such respects as growth of gross domestic product, rate of inflation, currency depreciation, asset reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency and balance of payments position. Further, certain economies are heavily dependent upon international trade and, accordingly, have been and may continue to be adversely affected by trade barriers, exchange controls, managed adjustments in relative currency values and other protectionist measures imposed or negotiated by the countries with which they trade. The economies of certain countries in which a Fund may invest may be based, predominantly, on only a few industries and may be vulnerable to changes in trade conditions and may have higher levels of debt or inflation.

20. Emerging Markets Risk Factors

Funds which invest directly in, or otherwise have exposure to emerging market securities may be subject to the following additional risk factors:

Political and Economic Factors

There is, in some emerging market countries, a higher than usual risk of nationalisation, expropriation or confiscatory taxation, any of which might have an adverse effect on the value of Investments in those countries. Emerging market countries may also be subject to higher than usual risks of political changes, government regulation, social instability or diplomatic developments (including war) which could adversely affect the economies of the relevant countries and thus the value of investments in those countries.

The economies of many emerging market countries can be heavily dependent on international trade and accordingly have been and may continue to be adversely affected by trade barriers, managed adjustments in relative currency values, other protectionist measures imposed or negotiated by the countries with which they trade and international economic developments generally.

In this regard, investments in emerging countries may involve risks of restrictive currency control regulations and currency conversion rates may be artificial to actual market values. Currency exchange rates in emerging markets may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time.

Counterparty Risk and Liquidity Factors

There can be no assurance that there will be any market for any Investments acquired by a Fund or, if there is such a local market, that there will exist a secure method of delivery against payment which would, in the event of a sale or purchase by or on behalf of a Fund, avoid exposure to counterparty risk on the buyer or the seller. It is possible that, even if a market

exists for such Investment, that market may be highly illiquid. Such lack of liquidity may adversely affect the value or ease of disposal of such Investments. There is a risk that counterparties may not perform their obligations and that settlement of transactions may not occur.

Legal Factors

The legislative framework in emerging market countries for the purchase and sale of investments and in relation to beneficial interests in those investments may be relatively new and untested and there can be no assurance regarding how the courts or agencies of emerging market countries will react to questions arising from a Fund's investment in such countries and arrangements contemplated in relation thereto.

There is no guarantee that any arrangements made, or agreement entered into, between the Depositary and any correspondent (i.e. an agent, sub-custodian or delegate) will be upheld by a court of any emerging market country, or that any judgement obtained by the Depositary or the Company against any such correspondent in a court of any jurisdiction will be enforced by a court of any emerging market country.

Companies in emerging markets may not be subject to the same level of government supervision and stock exchanges to the same level of regulation as may be expected in countries with more advanced securities markets. Accordingly, certain emerging markets may not afford the same level of investor protection as would apply in more developed jurisdictions. There may be restrictions on foreign investment in certain securities by certain Funds and, as a result, limited investment opportunities for a Fund. Substantial government involvement in, and influence on, the economy may affect the value of securities in certain emerging markets.

Reporting and Valuation Factors

There can be no guarantee of the accuracy of information available in emerging market countries in relation to Investments which may adversely affect the accuracy of the value of Shares in a Fund. Accounting practices are in many respects less rigorous than those applicable in more developed markets. Similarly, the amount and quality of information required for reporting by companies in emerging market countries is generally of a relatively lower degree than in more developed markets.

Exchange Control and Repatriation Factors

It may not be possible for a Fund to repatriate capital, dividends, interest and other income from emerging market countries, or it may require government consents to do so. A Fund could be adversely affected by the introduction of, or delays in, or refusal to grant any such consent for the repatriation of funds or by any official intervention affecting the process of settlement of transactions. Economic or political conditions could lead to the revocation or variation of consent granted prior to investment being made in any particular country or to the imposition of new restrictions.

Settlement Factors

There can be no guarantee of the operation or performance of settlement, clearing and registration of transactions in emerging market countries nor can there be any guarantee of the solvency of any securities system or that such securities system will properly maintain the registration of the Depositary or the Company as the holder of securities. Where organised securities markets and banking and telecommunications systems are underdeveloped, concerns inevitably arise in relation to settlement, clearing and registration of transactions in securities where these are acquired other than as direct investments. Furthermore, due to the local postal and banking systems in many emerging market countries, no guarantee can be given that all entitlements attaching to quoted and over-the-counter traded securities acquired by a Fund, including those related to dividends, can be realised.

Some emerging markets currently dictate that monies for settlement be received by a local broker a number of days in advance of settlement, and that assets are not transferred until a number of days after settlement. This exposes the assets in question to risks arising from acts, omissions and solvency of the broker and counterparty risk for that period of time.

The reliability of trading and settlement systems in some emerging markets may not be equal to that available in more developed markets, which may result in delays in realising Investments.

Currency factors

The economies of emerging countries generally are heavily dependent upon international trade and, accordingly, have been and may continue to be adversely affected by trade barriers, exchange controls, managed adjustments in relative currency values and other protectionist measures imposed or negotiated by the countries with which they trade. The economies of certain countries in which a Fund may invest may be based, predominantly, on only a few industries and may be vulnerable to changes in trade conditions and may have higher levels of debt or inflation.

Custody Factors

Local custody services remain underdeveloped in many emerging market countries and there is a transaction and custody risk involved in dealing in such markets. In certain circumstances a Fund may not be able to recover some of its assets. Such circumstances may include any acts or omissions or the liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency of a sub-custodian, retroactive application of legislation and fraud or improper registration of title. The costs borne by a Fund in investing and holding Investments in such markets will generally be higher than in organised securities markets.

Default Risk

A Fund's Investments may include securities issued by corporate or other non-sovereign entities located or doing business in emerging market countries and sovereign obligations of emerging market countries. There is a risk that the issuing entity will default or reschedule its obligation to repay the principal and interest, and a Fund may have limited recourse against the issuer.

Emerging Market Corporate Debt Securities

A Fund may invest in fixed income securities issued by corporate issuers, which may or may not be denominated in the local currency of the issuer. The market values of these securities are sensitive to individual corporate developments and changes in economic conditions. Emerging markets issuers may be highly leveraged and may not have more traditional methods of financing available to them. Therefore, their ability to service their debt obligations during an economic downturn or during sustained periods of rising interest rates may be impaired, resulting in a higher risk of default.

Emerging Market Sovereign Debt Securities

A Fund may invest in sovereign debt securities, denominated in the local currency of the issuer. Investing in sovereign debt securities will expose the relevant Fund to the direct or indirect consequences of political, social or economic changes in the emerging market countries that issue the securities. The ability and willingness of sovereign issuers in emerging market countries or the governmental authorities that control repayment of their debt to pay principal and interest on such debt when due may depend on general economic and political conditions within the relevant country. Countries in which a Fund intends to invest have historically experienced, and may continue to experience, high rates of inflation, high interest rates, exchange rate fluctuations, trade difficulties and extreme poverty and unemployment. Many of these countries are also characterised by political uncertainty or instability.

As a result of the foregoing, a governmental issuer may default on its obligations. If such a default occurs, the relevant Fund may have limited legal recourse against the issuer and/or guarantor. Remedies may, in some cases, be pursued in the courts of the defaulting party itself, and the ability of the holder of foreign sovereign debt securities to obtain recourse may be subject to the political climate in the relevant country.

Sovereign issuers in emerging market countries have been among the world's largest debtors to commercial banks, other governments, international financial organisations and other financial institutions. These issuers have in the past experienced substantial difficulties in servicing their external debt obligations, which have led to defaults on certain obligations and the restructuring of certain indebtedness. Holders of certain foreign sovereign debt securities may be requested to participate in the restructuring of such obligations and to extend further loans to their issuers.

21. Risks associated with investment in Russia

Where a Fund invests in Russia, investors should be aware that the laws relating to securities investment and regulation in Russia have been created on an ad-hoc basis and do not tend to keep pace with market developments. This may lead to ambiguities in interpretation and inconsistent and arbitrary application of such regulation. In addition, investors should note that the process of monitoring and enforcement of applicable regulations is rudimentary.

Equity securities in Russia are dematerialised and the only legal evidence of ownership is entry of the shareholder's name on the share register of the issuer. The concept of fiduciary duty is not well established and so shareholders may suffer dilution or loss of investment due to the actions of management without satisfactory legal remedy.

Rules regulating corporate governance either do not exist or are undeveloped and offer little protection to minority shareholders.

22. MENA Risk

In addition to the general risks associated with emerging markets, trading in the Middle East and North Africa ("MENA") region is subject to particular risks.

The economies and financial markets of the MENA region can be interdependent and may all decline at the same time. Accordingly, Funds with significant exposure to the MENA region might generally be exposed to more risk than funds which are more geographically diversified.

Instability in MENA countries may result from factors such as government or military intervention in decision making, terrorism, civil unrest, extremism or hostilities between neighbouring countries. An outbreak of hostilities could result in substantial losses to a Fund with significant exposure to MENA. In certain countries traditionally held views may be opposed to foreign investment. If such views gain strength in a country they could have a destabilising effect on the investment activities of a Fund.

The quality, timing and reliability of official data published by the government and government agencies of some MENA countries may not always be equivalent to that of more developed countries.

In MENA countries, markets may observe holidays for several days during which no subscriptions and/or redemptions will be processed. Moreover, exact dates of market closures may be known only a very short time in advance. In such circumstances, it may become necessary to temporarily suspend dealing in a Fund with significant MENA exposure and the calculation of any such Fund's Net Asset Value in accordance with the terms of the Prospectus until such time as the relevant markets re-open.

In certain MENA countries, the marketability of quoted shares is limited due to the restricted opening hours of stock exchanges, a narrow range of investors and a relatively high portion of market value being concentrated in the hands of a relatively small number of shareholders. Trading volume is generally lower than on more developed stock markets and equities are

generally less liquid. The infrastructure for clearing, settlement, registration and depositary services on the primary and secondary markets of MENA countries is in some cases less developed than in certain other markets and under certain circumstances this may result in experiencing delays in settling and/or registering transactions in the markets in which it invests particularly if the growth of foreign and domestic investment in MENA countries places an undue burden on such investment infrastructure.

MENA countries may have less developed corporate laws in relation to fiduciary duties of officers and directors and the protection of investors.

A Fund may invest in companies that are domiciled in MENA countries which practice share blocking. Share blocking requires investors who vote at general meetings of such companies, to surrender the right to dispose of their shares for a defined period of time. Investments in such companies may limit a Fund's ability to liquidate or acquire assets during such a defined period of time to the detriment of investors or restrict a Fund's Investment Manager from exercising voting rights on behalf of a Fund. Countries which practice share blocking include Egypt, Morocco, Oman and Qatar.

The fraudulent acts of brokers, as well as any delays and errors in settlement, regardless of the instructing party, may have negative consequences for a Fund that invests in the MENA region including, without limitation, the imposition of penalties and fines that may result in a reduction in the value of a Fund.

23. Risks linked with dealing in securities in China via Stock Connect

Certain Funds may invest and have direct access to certain eligible China A-Shares via the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and/or the Shenzhen Hong Kong Stock Connect (together "Stock Connect"). Stock Connect is a securities trading and clearing linked programme developed by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Shanghai Stock Exchange, Shenzhen Stock Exchange and China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, with an aim to achieve mutual stock market access between the People's Republic of China and Hong Kong. Investing in the People's Republic of China via Stock Connect bypasses the requirement to obtain RQFII status, which is required for direct access to either of the Shanghai Stock Exchange or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Under Stock Connect, overseas investors (including the Funds which invest in China A-Shares) may be allowed, subject to rules and regulations issued/amended from time to time, to trade certain China A-Shares listed on either the Shanghai Stock Exchange or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Stock Connect is subject to quota limitations measuring total purchases and sales of securities via Stock Connect. Buy orders and sell orders offset each other for the purposes of the quota. For example, if the daily quota is exceeded, buy orders will be rejected until the next trading day. The quota is not particular to a Fund or Investment Manager, it is applied to the market as a whole and this may restrict a Fund's ability to deal via Stock Connect on a timely basis and may impact on that Fund's ability to implement its investment strategy effectively.

Investors should also note that a security may be recalled from the scope of Stock Connect. This may adversely affect a Fund's ability to meet its investment objective, e.g. when it wishes to purchase a security which is recalled from the scope of Stock Connect. In addition, should a security be recalled from the scope of Stock Connect, there is a risk that a Fund may lose some or all of the value of the security, if there are insufficient funds to pay all participants in Stock Connect.

The precise nature and rights of a Fund as the beneficial owner of China A Shares through the Stock Connect programme is not well defined and enforcement of rights under Chinese law therefore is uncertain.

Under Stock Connect, China A Shares listed companies and trading of China A Shares are subject to the market rules and disclosure requirements of the China A Shares market. Any

changes in laws, regulations and policies of the China A Shares market or rules in relation to Stock Connect may affect share prices. Foreign shareholding restrictions and disclosure obligations are also applicable to China A Shares.

To facilitate investors, whose China A Shares are listed on either the Shanghai or Shenzhen Stock Exchanges and are maintained with custodians, to sell those securities without having to pre-deliver them from their custodians to their executing brokers, an enhanced pre-trade checking model (or "SPSA Model") was introduced.

Under the SPSA Model, an investor, whose China A shares are maintained with a custodian that is registered and admitted to participate in the Central Clearing and Settlement System operated by Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("CCASS"), can request such custodian to open a special segregated account ("SPSA") in CCASS to maintain its holdings in such securities. Each SPSA will be assigned a unique investor identification number by CCASS. The investor may designate up to 20 executing brokers to use its unique identification number to execute orders in those securities on its behalf. The SPSA Model allows pre-trade checking to be completed without the investor transferring its China A shares from its custodian to its executing broker before the market opens on the day of selling. Under the SPSA Model, an investor will only need to transfer its China A shares from its SPSA to its executing broker's account after execution and not before placing the sell order.

If the SPSA Model ceases to be available to a Fund for any reason at any time, this may adversely affect a Fund's ability to meet its investment objective and to buy or sell China A Shares in a timely manner.

24. Risks linked with investment in the China Interbank Bond Market through Bond Connect

The People's Bank of China ("PBoC") and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA") have approved the China Foreign Exchange Trade System & National Interbank Funding Centre ("CFETS"), China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd ("CCDC"), Shanghai Clearing House ("SHCH"), together with Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Central Moneymarkets Unit ("CMU") to launch Bond Connect, a mutual bond market access programme between mainland China and Hong Kong. It is currently only operational in respect of investment through Hong Kong into mainland China ("Northbound" trading). Bond Connect allows investors to trade electronically between the mainland China and Hong Kong bond markets without quota restrictions and requirements to identify the ultimate investment amount. Investment through Bond Connect may expose the relevant Fund to certain risks, including but not limited to the following:

Suspension Risk

It is contemplated that the mainland Chinese authorities will reserve the right to suspend trading of Bond Connect if necessary for ensuring an orderly and fair market and that risks are managed prudently. Where a suspension in the trading through Bond Connect is effected, the relevant Fund's ability to access the People's Republic of China bond market to achieve their investment objectives will be adversely affected.

Differences in Trading Day

Trading through Bond Connect can be undertaken on days upon which the China Interbank Bond Market is open to trade, regardless of whether it is a public holiday in Hong Kong. Accordingly, it is possible that bonds traded through Bond Connect may be subject to fluctuation at times where the relevant Fund is unable to buy or sell bonds, as its Hong Kong or globally-based intermediaries are not available to assist with trades. Accordingly, this may cause the relevant Fund to be unable to realise gains, avoid losses or to benefit from an opportunity to invest in mainland Chinese bonds at an attractive price.

Operational Risk

Bond Connect provides a channel for investors from Hong Kong and overseas to access mainland China bond markets directly.

The "connectivity" in Bond Connect requires routing of orders across the border, requiring development of new trading platforms and operational systems. There is no assurance that these platforms and systems will function properly or will continue to be adapted to changes and developments in both markets. In the event that the relevant systems fail to function properly, trading through Bond Connect may be disrupted. The relevant Fund's ability to trade through Bond Connect to pursue its investment strategy may therefore be adversely affected.

For investments via Bond Connect, the relevant filings, registration with PBoC and account opening must be carried out via offshore custody agent, registration agent or other third parties (as the case may be). As such, the relevant Fund's investments via Bond Connect are subject to the risk of default or errors on the part of such third parties.

RMB Currency Risk

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency and is subject to exchange controls and restrictions. A Fund's investments via Bond Connect may be adversely affected by movements of exchange rates between RMB and other currencies. There can be no assurance that the RMB exchange rate will not fluctuate widely against the US Dollar or any other currency in the future. Any depreciation of the RMB will decrease the value of RMB denominated assets, which may have a detrimental impact on the performance of a Fund.

The RMB is traded in both the onshore and offshore markets. While both offshore RMB ("CNH") and onshore RMB ("CNY") represent the same currency, they are traded in different and separate markets which operate independently. Therefore, CNY and CNH do not necessarily have the same exchange rate and their movement may not be in the same direction. When calculating the Net Asset Value per Share of a non-RMB denominated Class, the Administrator will apply the exchange rate for the offshore RMB market in Hong Kong, i.e. the CNH exchange rate, which may be at a premium or discount to the exchange rate for the onshore RMB market in the People's Republic of China, i.e. the CNY exchange rate.

Regulatory Risk

Bond Connect is novel in nature and will be subject to regulations promulgated by regulatory authorities and implementation rules made by regulators in mainland China and Hong Kong. It should be noted that the regulations are untested and there is no certainty as to how they will be applied. Moreover, the current regulations are subject to change which may have retrospective effect. There can be no assurance that Bond Connect will not be abolished. Accordingly, the relevant Fund's investments in the mainland China markets through Bond Connect may be adversely affected as a result of regulatory changes.

Taxation Risk

There is no specific guidance by the mainland China tax authorities on the treatment of income tax and other tax categories payable in respect of trading in the China Interbank Bond Market by foreign institutional investors via Bond Connect. Upon any future resolution of the aforementioned uncertainty or future changes to the tax law or policies, the Company will, as soon as practicable, make relevant adjustments to the amount of tax provision (if any), where necessary. Such uncertainties may operate to the advantage or disadvantage of Shareholders in the relevant Fund and may result in an increase or decrease in the total value of the relevant Fund.

Political Risk

Ability to invest and trade the bonds could be constrained, curtailed or suspended by changes in government policies related to the trade war between US and China or as part of US government potential sanctions against political suppression in Hong Kong or similar events.

25. Equity Market Risk

Equity securities fluctuate in value in response to many factors, including the activities, results of operations and financial condition of individual issuers, the business market in which individual companies compete, industry market conditions, interest rates and general economic environments (GDP, inflation, fiscal and monetary policy). In addition, events such as domestic and international political instability, terrorism and natural disasters may be unforeseeable and contribute to market volatility in ways that may adversely affect equity and equity-related investments made by a Fund.

26. Equity Style Risk

This is the risk that can arise from an investment manager's tendency to favour companies that have certain style characteristics (e.g. Growth, Value, Quality, Defensive). Periods can exist where any such style can become particularly favoured (or disliked) by other market participants, and this can influence performance. During any period when the style that is the focus of a Fund's investment strategy ceases to be in favour, there is a higher chance that the particular Fund's performance might be negatively impacted.

27. Risks associated with Debt and Other Fixed Income Securities

Credit Risk

The actual or perceived reduction in the creditworthiness of debt issuers generally will have adverse effects on the values of their debt securities. Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or guarantor of a debt security or counterparty to a Fund's investments will be unable or unwilling to make timely principal and/or interest payments, or otherwise will be unable or unwilling to honour its financial obligations. A Fund may be subject to credit risk to the extent that it invests in debt securities or engages in transactions, such as securities loans or repurchase agreements, which involve a promise by a third party to honour an obligation to that Fund. Credit risk is particularly significant in the event that a Fund invests a material portion of its assets in "junk bonds" or lower-rated securities.

Interest Rate Risk

The price of a bond or a fixed income security is dependent upon interest rates. Therefore, the share price and total return of a Fund investing a significant portion of its assets in bonds or fixed income securities will vary in response to changes in interest rates. A rise in interest rates causes the value of a bond to decrease, and vice-versa. There is the possibility that the value of a Fund's investment in bonds or fixed income securities may fall because bonds or fixed income securities generally fall in value when interest rates rise. The longer the term of a bond or fixed income instrument, the more sensitive it will be to fluctuations in value from interest rate changes. Changes in interest rates may have a significant effect on a Fund.

Reinvestment Risk

It may not be possible to re-invest cash flows from fixed-income securities (coupons, return of principal) at a yield comparable to the current rate of return of the overall Fund which holds such securities or of individual security itself. This may reduce the potential return available to Shareholders in a Fund.

Downgrading and Lower Rated Securities Risk

Certain Funds may invest in below investment grade fixed income securities or bonds. Investment in fixed income securities or bonds are subject to the risk of an issuer's default or

inability to repay the principal and interest. Where a rating agent, such as S&P or Moody's, downgrades a bond to sub-investment grade or below investment grade after the date such security was first purchased by a Fund, such Fund may continue to hold the downgraded security in order to avoid a distressed sale where not prohibited from doing so according to the terms of such Fund's investment policy. Below investment grade bonds are more likely to react to developments affecting market and credit risk than more highly rated bonds. Where the Funds hold sub-investment grade bonds, the risk of default on repayments increases, which can impact the capital value of such a Fund.

Bonds rated below investment grade are speculative in nature, involve greater risk of default by the issuing entity and may be subject to greater market fluctuations than higher rated fixed income securities. They are usually issued by companies without long track records of sales and earnings, or by those companies with questionable credit strength. The retail secondary market for these below investment grade bonds or "junk bonds" may be less liquid than that of higher rated securities and adverse conditions could make it difficult at times to sell certain securities or could result in lower prices than those used in calculating a Fund's Net Asset Value. A Fund investing in "junk bonds" may also be subject to greater credit risk because it may invest in debt securities issued in connection with corporate restructuring by highly leveraged issuers or in debt securities not current in the payment of interest or principal or in default. "junk bonds" may contain redemption or call provisions. If an issuer exercises these provisions in a declining interest rate market, a Fund would have to replace the security with a lower yielding security, resulting in a decreased return. Conversely, a junk bond's value will decrease in a rising interest rate market, as will the value of the relevant Fund's assets. If a Fund experiences unexpected net redemptions, this may force it to sell its junk bonds, without regard to their investment merits, thereby decreasing the asset base upon which a Fund's expenses can be spread and possibly reducing a Fund's rate of return.

Asset-Backed Securities Risk

Asset-backed securities represent interests in pools of consumer loans such as credit card receivables, automobile loans and leases, leases on equipment such as computers, and other financial instruments and are subject to certain additional risks. Rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of asset-backed securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, a Fund may exhibit additional volatility. The risk of default by borrowers is greater during periods of rising interest rates and/or unemployment rates. In addition, the principal on asset-backed securities may be prepaid at any time, which will reduce the yield and market value. When interest rates are declining, there are usually more prepayments of loans as borrowers are motivated to pay off debt and refinance at new lower rates, which will shorten the life of these securities. The reinvestment of cash received from prepayments will, therefore, usually be at a lower interest rate than the original investment, lowering a Fund's yield. Prepayments also vary based on, among other factors, general economic conditions and other demographic conditions.

If a Fund purchases asset-backed securities that are "subordinated" to other interests in the same pool of assets, that Fund, as a holder of those securities, may only receive payments after the pool's obligations to other investors have been satisfied. In addition, instability in the markets for asset-backed securities may affect the liquidity of such securities, which means that the Fund may be unable to sell such securities at an advantageous time and price. As a result, the value of such securities may decrease and the Fund may incur greater losses on the sale of such securities than under more stable market conditions. Furthermore, instability and illiquidity in the market for lower-rated asset-backed securities may affect the overall market for such securities, thereby impacting the liquidity and value of higher-rated securities.

Mortgage Backed Securities Risk

The principal on mortgage-backed securities may be prepaid at any time, which will reduce the yield and market value. If interest rates fall, the rate of prepayments tends to increase as borrowers are motivated to pay off debt and refinance at new lower rates. Rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of mortgage-backed securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, a Fund that holds mortgage-backed securities may exhibit additional volatility. This is known as extension risk. In

addition, the risk of default by borrowers is greater during periods of rising interest rates and/or unemployment rates. The early retirement of particular classes or series of a collateralised mortgage obligation held by a Fund would have the same effect as the prepayment of mortgages underlying other mortgage-backed securities.

If a Fund purchases mortgage-backed securities that are "subordinated" to other interests in the same mortgage pool, that Fund, as a holder of those securities, may only receive payments after the pool's obligations to other investors have been satisfied. For example, an unexpectedly high rate of defaults on the mortgages held by a mortgage pool may limit substantially the pool's ability to make payments of principal or interest to the Fund as a holder of such subordinated securities, reducing the values of those securities or in some cases rendering them worthless. Certain mortgage-backed securities may include securities backed by pools of mortgage loans made to "subprime" borrowers or borrowers with blemished credit histories; the risk of defaults is generally higher in the case of mortgage pools that include such subprime mortgages. The underwriting standards for subprime loans are more flexible than the standards generally used by banks for borrowers with non-blemished credit histories with regard to the borrower's credit standing and repayment ability. Borrowers who qualify generally have impaired credit histories, which may include a record of major derogatory credit items such as outstanding judgments or prior bankruptcies. In addition, they may not have the documentation required to qualify for a standard mortgage loan. As a result, the mortgage loans in the mortgage pool are likely to experience rates of delinquency, foreclosure, and bankruptcy that are higher, and that may be substantially higher, than those experienced by mortgage loans underwritten in a more traditional manner. In addition, changes in the values of the mortgaged properties, as well as changes in interest rates, may have a greater effect on the delinquency, foreclosure, bankruptcy, and loss experience of the mortgage loans in the mortgage pool than on mortgage loans originated in a more traditional manner. Moreover, instability in the markets for mortgage-backed securities may affect the liquidity of such securities, which means that a Fund may be unable to sell such securities at an advantageous time and price. As a result, the value of such securities may decrease and a Fund may incur greater losses on the sale of such securities than under more stable market conditions. Furthermore, instability and illiquidity in the market for lower-rated mortgage-backed securities may affect the overall market for such securities, thereby impacting the liquidity and value of higher-rated securities.

Corporate Debt Securities

A Fund may invest in fixed income securities issued by corporate issuers, which may or may not be denominated in the local currency of the issuer. The market values of these securities are sensitive to individual corporate developments and changes in economic conditions. The ability of corporations to service their debt obligations during an economic downturn or during sustained periods of rising interest rates may be impaired, resulting in a higher risk of default.

Sovereign Debt Securities

Investing in sovereign debt securities will expose a Fund to the direct or indirect consequences of political, social or economic changes in the countries that issue the securities. The ability and willingness of sovereign issuers or the governmental authorities that control repayment of their debt to pay principal and interest on such debt when due may depend on general economic and political conditions within the relevant country.

As a result of the foregoing, a government issuer may default on its obligations. If such a default occurs, a Fund holding securities of such government issuer may have limited legal recourse against the issuer and/or guarantor. Remedies may, in some cases, be pursued in the courts of the jurisdiction of the defaulting party itself, and the ability of the holder of foreign sovereign debt securities to obtain recourse may be subject to the political climate in the relevant country.

28. Convertible Securities Risk

Convertible securities include corporate bonds, notes, preferred stocks or debt-securities of issuers that can be converted into (that is, exchanged for) common stocks or other equity securities at a stated price or rate. Convertible securities also include other securities, such as

warrants, that provide an opportunity for equity participation. Because convertible securities can be converted into equity securities, their value will normally vary in some proportion with those of the underlying equity securities. Due to the conversion feature, convertible securities generally yield less than non-convertible fixed income securities of similar credit quality and maturity. A Fund's investment in convertible securities may at times include securities that have a mandatory conversion feature, pursuant to which the securities convert automatically into common stock at a specified date and conversion ratio, or that are convertible at the option of the issuer. When conversion is not at the option of the holder, a Fund may be required to convert the security into the underlying common stock even at times when the value of the underlying common stock has declined substantially.

29. FDI Risk Factors

General

A Fund may use FDI subject to the limits and conditions set out in Appendix II. These derivative positions may be executed either on an organised exchange or over-the-counter ("OTC"). FDI tend to have a greater volatility than the securities to which they relate and, correspondingly, they bear a greater degree of risk. The primary risks associated with the use of FDI are (i) failure to predict accurately the direction of the market movements, (ii) market risks, for example, lack of liquidity or lack of correlation between the change in the value of the underlying asset and that of the value of a Fund's derivatives and (iii) operational risk, for example, the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes, people and systems or from external events. These techniques may not always be possible or effective in enhancing returns or mitigating risk. A Fund's investment in OTC derivatives is subject to the risk of counterparty default. In addition, a Fund may have to transact with counterparties on standard terms which it may not be able to negotiate and may bear the risk of loss because a counterparty does not have the legal capacity to enter into a transaction, or because the transaction becomes unenforceable due to relevant legislation and regulation. To the extent that a Fund invests in FDI, it may take a credit risk with regard to parties with whom it trades and may also bear the risk of settlement default. Any use of FDI will be in accordance with Central Bank Requirements and the Company's risk management process.

OTC Transaction Risk

In general, there is less governmental regulation and supervision of transactions in the OTC markets (in which currencies, forward, spot and option contracts, credit default swaps, total return swaps and certain options on currencies are generally traded) than of transactions entered into on organised exchanges. In addition, many of the protections afforded to participants on some organised exchanges, such as the performance guarantee of an exchange clearing house, may not be available in connection with OTC financial derivative transactions. Therefore, a Fund entering into OTC transactions will be subject to the risk that its direct counterparty will not perform its obligations under the transaction and that it will sustain losses. The Company will only enter into transactions with counterparties which it believes to be creditworthy and may reduce the exposure incurred in connection with such transactions through the receipt of letters of credit or collateral from certain counterparties. However, regardless of the measures the Company may seek to implement to reduce counterparty credit risk there can be no assurance that a counterparty will not default or that a Fund will not sustain losses as a result, which may ultimately impact the performance of a Fund and potential returns to investors.

From time to time, the counterparties with which the Company effects transactions might cease making markets or quoting prices in certain of the instruments. In such instances, the Company might be unable to enter into a desired transaction in currencies, credit default swaps or total return swaps or to enter into an offsetting transaction with respect to an open position, which might adversely affect its performance. Further, in contrast to exchange traded instruments, forward, spot and option contracts on currencies do not provide the Investment Managers with the possibility to offset the Company's obligations through an equal and opposite transaction. For this reason, in entering into forward, spot or options contracts, the Company may be required, and must be able, to perform its obligations under the contracts.

Forward Commitments

A Fund may make contracts to purchase currencies for a fixed price at a future date beyond customary settlement time ("forward commitments") because new issues of securities are frequently offered to investors, such as one of the Funds, on that basis. Forward commitments involve a risk of loss if the value of the security to be purchased declines prior to the settlement date. This risk is in addition to the risk of decline in value of a Fund's other assets. Although a Fund will enter into such contracts with the intention of acquiring the securities, a Fund may dispose of a forward commitment prior to a settlement date if the relevant Investment Manager deems it appropriate to do so. A Fund may realise short-term profits or losses upon the sale of forward commitments.

Forward Trading

Forward currency contracts and options thereon, unlike futures contracts, are not traded on exchanges and are not standardised; rather, banks and dealers act as principals in these markets, negotiating each transaction on an individual basis. Forward and "cash" trading is substantially unregulated; there is no limitation on daily price movements and speculative position limits are not applicable. For example, there are no requirements with respect to record-keeping, financial responsibility or segregation of customer funds or positions. contrast to exchange-traded futures contracts, interbank traded instruments rely on the dealer or counterparty being contracted with to fulfil its contract. As a result, trading in interbank foreign exchange contracts may be subject to more risks than futures or options trading on regulated exchanges, including, but not limited to, the risk of default due to the failure of a counterparty with which a Fund has a forward currency contract. Although all Funds seek to trade with responsible counterparties, failure by a counterparty to fulfil its contractual obligation could expose the relevant Fund to unanticipated losses. The principals who deal in the forward markets are not required to continue to make markets in the currencies or commodities they trade and these markets can experience periods of illiquidity, sometimes of significant duration. There have been periods during which certain participants in these markets have guoted prices with an unusually wide spread between the price at which they were prepared to buy and that at which they were prepared to sell. Disruptions can occur in any currency market traded by a Fund due to unusually high or low trading volumes, political intervention or other factors. The imposition of controls by governmental authorities might also limit such forward trading to less than that which the relevant Investment Manager would otherwise experience, to the possible detriment of a Fund. Market illiquidity or disruption could result in major losses to a Fund.

Swap Agreements

A Fund may enter into swap agreements and options on swap agreements ("swaptions"). These agreements can be individually negotiated and structured to include exposure to a variety of different types of investments, asset classes or market factors. A Fund, for instance, may enter into swap agreements with respect to interest rates, credit defaults, currencies, securities, indexes of securities and other assets or other measures of risk or return. Depending on their structure, swap agreements may increase or decrease a Fund's exposure to, for example, equity securities, long-term or short-term interest rates, foreign currency values, credit spreads or other factors. Swap agreements can take many different forms and are known by a variety of names. A Fund is not limited to any particular form of swap agreement if consistent with that Fund's investment objective.

Whether a Fund's use of swap agreements or swaptions is successful depends on the Investment Manager's ability to select appropriate transactions for that Fund. Moreover, a Fund bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap agreement in the event of the default or insolvency of its counterparty. A Fund will also bear the risk of loss related to swap agreements, for example, for breaches of such agreements or the failure of a Fund to post or maintain required collateral. Many swap markets are relatively new and still developing. It is possible that developments in the swap markets, including potential government regulation, could adversely affect a Fund's ability to terminate existing swap transactions or to realise amounts to be received under such transactions.

Unfunded Swaps

The inability of the Investment Manager(s) to enter into an unfunded swap on terms which are of commercial benefit to a Fund or the early termination of an unfunded swap that may already be in place could result in a Fund being unable to pursue its investment objective and/or policy which in turn, would likely lead to the suspension and/or winding up of a Fund.

Call Options

A Fund may incur risks associated with the sale and purchase of call options. The seller (writer) of a call option which is covered (i.e. the writer holds the underlying security) assumes the risk of a decline in the market price of the underlying security below the purchase price of the underlying security less the premium received, and gives up the opportunity for gain on the underlying security above the exercise price of the option. The seller of an uncovered call option assumes the risk of a theoretically unlimited increase in the market price of the underlying security above the exercise price of the option. The securities necessary to satisfy the exercise of an uncovered call option may be unavailable for purchase, except at much higher prices, thereby reducing or eliminating the value of the premium. Purchasing securities to cover the exercise of an uncovered call option can cause the price of the securities to increase, thereby exacerbating the loss. The buyer of a call option assumes the risk of losing its entire premium investment in the call option.

Put Options

A Fund may incur risks associated with the sale and purchase of put options. The seller (writer) of a put option which is covered (i.e., the writer has a short position in the underlying security) assumes the risk of an increase in the market price of the underlying security above the sales price (in establishing the short position) of the underlying security plus the premium received, and gives up the opportunity for gain on the underlying security if the market price falls below the exercise price of the option. The seller of an uncovered put option assumes the risk of a decline in the market price of the underlying security below the exercise price of the option. The buyer of a put option assumes the risk of losing its entire investment in the put option.

Warrants

Warrants are similar to options in that they give the holder the right but not the obligation to buy or sell stock at a set price in the future. A warrant guarantees the holder the right to buy (or sell) a specific number of shares at a specific price (the strike price) for a defined period of time. Unlike options on equity securities that are listed and trade on exchanges, warrants are usually issued by corporations through private transactions and typically trade over-the-counter. The general movement in the stock markets, prevailing and anticipated economic and general economic conditions, interest rate movements, strike level, time remaining to expiry could affect the value of a warrant. The buyer of a warrant assumes the risk of losing its entire investment in such warrant.

Participatory Notes ("P-Notes")

Investment in P-Notes may involve an OTC transaction with a third party. Investing in P-Notes may expose a Fund not only to movements in the value of the underlying equity but also to the risk of counterparty default, which may in the event of counterparty default result in the loss of the full market value of the equity.

Futures

Transactions in futures involve the obligation to make, or to take, delivery of the underlying asset of the contract at a future date, or in some cases to settle the position with cash. They carry a high degree of risk. The low margins normally required in futures trading permit a very high degree of leverage. As a result, a relatively small movement in the price of a futures

contract may result in a profit or loss which is high in proportion to the amount of funds actually placed as margin and may result in unquantifiable further loss exceeding any margin deposited. Futures trading in many contracts on futures exchanges (although generally not in currencies) is subject to daily price fluctuation restrictions, commonly referred to as "daily limits", which prohibit the execution of futures trades on any given day outside a prescribed price range based on the previous day's closing prices. Daily limits do not limit ultimate losses but may make it costly or impossible for the relevant Investment Manager to liquidate a futures position against which the market is moving. A series of "limit moves", in which the market price moves the "daily limit" with little or no trading taking place, could subject a Fund to major losses.

Other Instruments

A Fund may take advantage of opportunities with respect to certain other instruments that are not at the date of this Prospectus contemplated for use or that are currently not available, but that may be developed, to the extent such opportunities are both consistent with the investment policy of a Fund and the Company's risk management process and are otherwise legally permissible. Special risks may apply to instruments that are invested in by a Fund in the future that cannot be determined at this time or until such instruments are developed or invested in by a Fund.

30. Risks associated with investment in exchange-traded funds ("ETFs")

A Fund may invest in ETFs and in FDI which provide exposure to ETFs. ETFs seek to track the performance and dividend yield of specific indices or companies in related industries. These indices may be either broad-based, sector, or international. ETF shareholders are generally subject to the same risk as holders of the underlying securities they are designed to track. ETFs are also subject to certain additional risks, including, without limitation, the risk that their prices may not correlate perfectly with changes in the prices of the underlying securities they are designed to track, and the risk of trading in an ETF halting due to market conditions or other reasons, based on the policies of the exchange upon which the ETF trades. In addition, a Fund may bear, along with other direct holders of an ETF, its pro rata portion of the ETF's expenses, including management fees.

31. Leverage Risk

When a Fund borrows money or otherwise leverages its holdings, for example, where it utilises FDI, the value of an investment in that Fund will be more volatile and all other risks will tend to be compounded.

32. Volatility Risk

A Fund's investment program may involve the purchase and sale of relatively volatile instruments such as FDI which are frequently valued based on the implied volatilities of such FDI compared to the historical volatility of the underlying financial instruments. Fluctuations or prolonged changes in the volatility of such instruments can adversely affect the value of investments held by the Fund. In addition, many financial markets in which the Funds may invest or trade are not as developed or as efficient as, for example, the U.S. financial markets and, as a result, the price volatility of such Funds' investments traded in such markets may be high.

33. Investment in a Fund not equivalent to a Deposit

A Fund may invest a significant amount of its Net Asset Value in deposits and/or money market instruments but an investment in such a Fund should not be considered by investors as an alternative to investing in a regular deposit account. Investors should note that a holding in a Fund is subject to the risks associated with investing in a collective investment undertaking, in particular the fact that the principal sum invested is capable of fluctuation as the Net Asset Value of such Fund fluctuates.

34. Commodity Risk

Investment(s) by a Fund in commodity-related FDI and in the equity securities of commodity-related companies may subject such a Fund to greater volatility than Investment(s) in traditional securities. The commodities markets may fluctuate widely based on a variety of factors. Movement in the prices of equity securities of commodity-related companies and of commodity-related FDI are outside of a Fund's control and may not be anticipated by the relevant Investment Managers. The commodities markets have experienced periods of extreme volatility. The value of commodity-related FDI and of the equity securities of commodity-related companies may be affected by changes in overall market movements, commodity index volatility, changes in interest rates, or factors affecting a particular industry or commodity, such as changes in climate conditions, drought, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs and international economic, political and regulatory developments.

35. Infrastructure Company Risk

Certain of the Funds may invest on a global basis in listed equities and equity-related instruments of infrastructure companies. Such Funds may be less diversified than other Funds investing in a broader range of industries. Securities and instruments of infrastructure companies may be more susceptible to adverse economic, political or regulatory occurrences affecting their industries. Infrastructure companies may be subject to a variety of factors that may adversely affect their business or operations, including structural disaster, additional costs, competition, regulatory implications and certain other factors.

36. Investment in Smaller Companies Risk

Investing in smaller companies can involve more risk than investing in larger companies because there is a more limited market for the shares of such companies and the prices of such shares may rise or fall more sharply and exhibit lower liquidity than the share prices of larger companies.

37. Quantitative Model Risk

The success of a Fund's investment strategy may depend upon the effectiveness of an Investment Manager's quantitative model. A quantitative model, such as the risk and other models used by the Investment Manager(s) requires adherence to a systematic, disciplined process. The Investment Managers' ability to monitor and, if necessary, adjust their quantitative models could be adversely affected by various factors including incorrect or outdated market and other data inputs. Factors that affect the value of securities can change over time, and these changes may not be reflected in a quantitative model used in respect of a Fund that invests in such securities. In addition, factors used in quantitative analysis and the weight placed on those factors may not be predictive of a security's value.

38. Risks relating to Hedging Transactions

Where permitted to do so in accordance with its investment policy, a Fund may utilise financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, currency options, stock index futures and options and interest rate swaps, caps and floors both for investment purposes and to seek to hedge against fluctuations in the relative value of securities or positions held within such Fund's portfolio as a result of changes in currency exchange rates, market interest rates and security prices. Hedging against a decline in the value of a portfolio position does not eliminate fluctuations in the value of portfolio positions or prevent losses if the value of such positions decline, but establishes other positions designed to gain from those same developments, thus moderating the decline in the portfolio positions' value. Such hedging transactions also limit the opportunity for gain if the value of the portfolio position should increase. Moreover, it may not be possible for a Fund to hedge against an exchange rate, interest rate or equity price fluctuation that is generally anticipated by the market such that a Fund is not able to enter into a hedging transaction at a price sufficient to protect a Fund from the decline in value of the portfolio position anticipated as a result of such a fluctuation.

Although the intent of hedging is to reduce fluctuations in the value of a portfolio as a whole, in certain circumstances, particularly when markets are subject to extreme events, hedging activity may add to the volatility of a portfolio. This may occur when previously observed correlations in the markets break down. Moreover, for a variety of reasons, the relevant Investment Manager may not seek to establish a perfect correlation between such hedging instruments and the portfolio holdings being hedged. Such imperfect correlation may prevent a Fund from achieving the intended hedge or expose a Fund to risk of loss. Furthermore, an Investment Manager may not hedge against certain risks as part of its investment strategy or because it fails to anticipate the occurrence of such risk or believes that the occurrence is too unlikely to justify the cost of the hedge. The successful utilisation of hedging and risk management transactions requires skills complementary to those needed in the selection of a Fund's portfolio holdings.

39. Short Sales

The Funds are not permitted to enter into "physical short sales". A Fund may however take short positions through derivatives in respect of underlying assets in pursuit of its investment objective and in accordance with Regulations where this is specifically provided for and disclosed in the relevant Fund's investment policy. In general, short selling involves selling securities the seller does not own in anticipation of a decline in their market value and borrowing the same securities for delivery to the purchaser, with an obligation to redeliver securities equivalent to the borrowed securities at a later date. Short selling allows the investor to profit from a decline in market price of securities to the extent such decline exceeds the transaction costs and the costs of borrowing the securities. A short sale creates the risk of an unlimited loss, in that the price of the underlying securities could theoretically increase without limit, thus increasing the cost to a Fund of buying those securities to cover the short position.

There can be no assurance that the securities necessary to cover a short position will be available for purchase. Purchasing securities to close out a short position can itself cause the price of the securities to rise further, thereby exacerbating the loss.

In taking short positions through derivatives, a Fund will be seeking the same financial reward, and will be exposed to the same market risks, as if it were entering into physical short sales. Taking short positions through derivatives involves trading on margin and, accordingly, the leverage provided through margined positions involves greater risk than investments based on physical short sales.

Due to legislative or regulatory action taken by regulators and governments around the world, taking short positions on certain assets has been restricted. The levels of restriction vary across different jurisdictions and are subject to change in the short to medium term. These restrictions have made it difficult and in some cases impossible for certain market participants to either continue to implement their investment strategies or to control the risk of their open positions. Accordingly, an Investment Manager may not be in a position to trade in a way to fully benefit from its negative views in relation to certain assets, companies or sectors, and the ability of such an Investment Manager to fulfil the investment objective of a Fund may therefore be constrained.

40. Repurchase Transactions/Repo Risk

A Fund's investment return on repurchase transactions, apart from interest paid, will depend on the counterparty's ability to perform its obligations under the repurchase transaction. Counterparty risk is mitigated by the transfer or pledge of collateral in favour of a Fund, this may be over-collateralised in some cases to further protect a Fund. If a Fund's counterparty should default on its obligations and a Fund is delayed or prevented from recovering the collateral or if the face value of the collateral has changed for any reason, a Fund may realise a loss. If the agreement underpinning the repurchase transaction has a duration of greater than 1 day, there may be an additional liquidity risk present to a Fund due to contractual obligations of the relevant agreement.

41. Collateral Management Risks

Where an OTC financial derivative and/or efficient portfolio management technique is entered into on behalf a Fund, collateral may be used to reduce counterparty risk exposure. Collateral will be treated in accordance with the Company's collateral policy as set out in Appendix II. The exchange of collateral involves certain risks, including operational risk related to the actual exchange, transfer and booking of collateral. The collateral can be held by a third party custodian which is subject to prudential supervision, and which is unrelated to the provider of the collateral. The use of such third party custodians may involve additional operational, clearing and settlement risk. Collateral received will consist of either cash or transferable securities that meet the criteria set out in the Company's collateral policy. Transferable securities received as collateral are subject to market risk. In adverse market circumstances, the market for certain types of transferable securities may be subject to reduced liquidity. Any non-cash collateral therefore involves a certain degree of liquidity and credit risk. In addition, a Fund may bear the risk of loss because a counterparty does not have the legal capacity to enter into a transaction, or because the transaction becomes unenforceable due to relevant legislation and regulation.

42. Large Redemption of Shares Risk

Large redemptions of Shares in a Fund might result in a Fund being forced to sell assets at a time and price at which the relevant Investment Manager would normally prefer not to dispose of those assets possibly leading to a lower price being realised for such assets. This may limit the ability of the Investment Manager to successfully implement the investment strategy of the Fund and could negatively impact the value of the Shares being redeemed and the value of Shares that remain outstanding. In addition, following receipt of a redemption request, a Fund may be required to liquidate assets in advance of the applicable Dealing Day, which may result in a Fund holding cash or highly liquid investments pending such Dealing Day. During any such period, the ability of a Fund's Investment Manager to successfully implement the investment strategy of a Fund may be impaired and a Fund's returns may be adversely affected as a result.

43. Risks relating to Operation of Collection Accounts

A collection account has been established at umbrella level in the name of the Company in each of the currencies in which the share classes of the Funds are denominated (the "Umbrella Cash Collection Account").

Subscription monies received in respect of a Fund in advance of the issue of Shares will be held in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account. Investors will be unsecured creditors of such Fund with respect to any cash amount subscribed and held by the Company in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account until such time as the Shares subscribed are issued, and will not benefit from any appreciation in the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund in respect of which the subscription request was made or any other shareholder rights (including dividend entitlement) until such time as the relevant Shares are issued. In the event of the insolvency of the Fund in respect of which the subscription request was made, or the Company, there is no guarantee that the Fund or Company will have sufficient funds to pay unsecured creditors in full.

Payment by a Fund of redemption proceeds and dividends is subject to receipt by the Administrator of original subscription documents and compliance with all anti-money laundering procedures. Payment of redemption proceeds or dividends to the Shareholders entitled to such amounts may accordingly be blocked pending compliance with the foregoing requirements to the satisfaction of the Administrator. Redemption and dividend amounts, including blocked redemption or dividend amounts, will, pending payment to the relevant investor or Shareholder, be held in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account. For as long as such amounts are held in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account, the investors/Shareholders entitled to such payments from a Fund will be unsecured creditors of the Company with respect to those amounts and, with respect to and to the extent of their interest in such amounts, will not benefit from any appreciation in the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund or any other shareholder rights

(including further dividend entitlement). Redeeming Shareholders will cease to be Shareholders with regard to the redeemed Shares as and from the relevant redemption date. In the event of the insolvency of the relevant Fund or the Company, there is no guarantee that the Fund or the Company will have sufficient funds to pay unsecured creditors in full. Redeeming Shareholders and Shareholders entitled to dividends should therefore ensure that any outstanding documentation and/or information required in order for them to receive such payments to their own account is provided to the Administrator promptly. Failure to do so is at such Shareholder's own risk.

In the event of the insolvency of a Fund, recovery of any amounts to which other Funds are entitled, but which may have transferred to the insolvent Fund as a result of the operation of the Umbrella Cash Collection Account, will be subject to the principles of Irish insolvency and trust law and the terms of the operational procedures for the Umbrella Cash Collection Account. There may be delays in effecting and/or disputes as to the recovery of such amounts, and the insolvent Fund may have insufficient funds to repay amounts due to other Funds. Accordingly, there is no guarantee that any of the other Funds or the Company will recover such amounts, or that in such circumstances such other Funds or the Company would have sufficient funds to repay any unsecured creditors.

44. Co-Movement Risk

The level of correlation between the assets of a Fund and the constituents of its Benchmark Index will typically vary over time and will often be higher during periods of market stress. During periods of market stress a higher degree of co-movement between the portfolio of a Fund and the constituents of its Benchmark Index may be anticipated.

45. Eurozone Risk

As a result of the 2008 credit crisis in Europe, the European Commission created the European Financial Stability Facility (the "EFSF") and the European Financial Stability Mechanism (the "EFSM") to provide funding to Eurozone countries in financial difficulties that seek such support. In March 2011, the European Council agreed on the need for Eurozone countries to establish a permanent stability mechanism, the European Stability Mechanism (the "ESM"), which was activated by mutual agreement, to assume the role of the EFSF and the EFSM in providing external financial assistance to Eurozone countries from June 2013 onwards. Despite these measures, concerns persist regarding the growing risk that certain Eurozone countries could be subject to an increase in borrowing costs and could face an economic crisis, together with the risk that some countries could leave the Eurozone (either voluntarily or involuntarily). Ongoing concerns regarding the sovereign debt risk of certain countries within the Eurozone could lead to a Fund's investments in the region being subject to higher volatility, liquidity, currency and default risks. Any adverse events, such as credit downgrade of a sovereign or exit of EU members from the Eurozone could have a severe impact on Europe and the global financial system which could have a negative impact on the market and the value of a Fund.

46. Pandemic Risk

Events such as the outbreak of COVID-19 and other health pandemics or outbreaks of disease may lead to increased short-term market volatility and may have adverse long-term effects on world economies and markets generally.

The outbreak of such epidemics, together with any resulting restrictions on travel or quarantines, could have a negative impact on the economy and business activity in the countries in which a Fund may invest and on global commercial activity generally and thereby adversely affect the performance of a Fund's investments. Pandemics and similar events could also have an acute effect on individual issuers or related groups of issuers and could adversely affect securities markets, interest rates, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, credit risk, inflation, deflation and other factors relating to a Fund's investments or the relevant Investment Manager's operations and the operations of the relevant Investment Manager's and Fund's service providers.

Additionally, risks are heightened due to uncertainty as to whether a pandemic or its consequences would qualify as a force majeure event. If a force majeure event is determined to have occurred, a counterparty to a Fund or a portfolio investment may be relieved of its obligations under certain contracts to which it is a party, or, if it has not, a Fund and its investments may be required to meet their contractual obligations, despite potential constraints on their operations and/or financial stability. Either outcome could adversely impact investments and a Fund's performance.

MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

The Directors control the affairs of the Company and are responsible for the overall investment policy, which will be determined by them and given to the Manager from time to time. The Manager has delegated certain of its duties to the Investment Managers and the Administrator.

The Directors

The Company shall be managed and its affairs supervised by the Directors, whose details are set out below. The Directors are all non-executive directors of the Company.

Mr Denis Faller (French). Mr Faller was Managing Partner of Lazard Frères Gestion and is Managing Director and CEO of Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited. Mr Faller was Chief Operating Officer of Lazard Frères Gestion since 2015 until December 2021. Mr Faller began his financial career in 1987 at Banque de Gestion Privée SIB before moving on to Banque Worms in 1991. He joined Rothschild & Cie Banque in 1994 as Head of Institutional Investment Management and in 2000 was appointed Chief Operating Officer at Rothschild & Cie Gestion, in charge of multi-management and

support functions. In 2011, he became a Managing Partner. Mr Faller graduated from Télécom ParisTech Institute, France.

Ms Deirdre Gormley (Irish). Ms Gormley is an independent investment fund director with over 30 years' experience in the asset management and investment funds industry, having held senior executive and board positions in large international organisations. In her previous executive roles, Ms Gormley was responsible for a wide range of investment management, business development, governance and regulatory activities. She was involved in product management for Irish, Luxembourg and Dutch domiciled investment products. Ms Gormley was the former CEO/Head of Management Company for Northern Trust Asset Management in Dublin Ireland. In this role, she was responsible for the management of UCITS and IPM business which included money market, equity, fixed income and ETF products. She was responsible for the Northern Trust Fund Managers Ireland branches in Europe and the oversight of delegated service providers. Prior to this role, Ms Gormley spent 12 years with Pioneer Investment Limited (now Amundi Ireland Limited) as Head of Product and Marketing Services. Prior to joining Pioneer Investment Limited, Ms Gormley held various senior management posts with JP Morgan both in Dublin and New York covering a range of operational and client relationship roles. Ms Gormley has a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance from Marist College in Poughkeepsie, New York.

Mr Andreas Hübner (German). Mr Hübner is a Senior Managing Director of Lazard Asset Management group and Chief Executive Officer of Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH, Frankfurt am Main. He is also Chairman of Lazard Asset Management Schweiz AG and responsible for the offices in Geneva, Hamburg, Milan, Zurich and Vienna. He joined Lazard in 1999 from Schröder Münchmeyer Hengst & Co where he was a Member of the Executive Board and a personally liable partner. In addition, Mr Hübner held several senior positions in affiliated companies of Schröder Münchmeyer Hengst & Co. Prior to this Mr Hübner was working at DG Bank in New York and Frankfurt am Main. Mr Hübner is based in Frankfurt am Main, Germany.

Ms Samantha McConnell (Irish). Ms. McConnell has over 30 years' experience in the investment and pensions industry covering administration, investment services, change and integration management. She now acts as a full time independent, non-executive director (INED) on a wide range of Boards including fund, MIFID, AIFIM and SuperManco entities both in Ireland and Europe. She is the chair of a number of entities including a Super Manco and a MIFID entity. Ms. McConnell was previously a non-executive director for CFA Ireland and was also executive director of Willis Human Capital & Benefits (Willis Towers Watson's MIFID regulated entity in Ireland). Ms. McConnell holds a first class honours degree in commerce from University College Dublin and graduated first in Ireland in the ACCA exams. She is a CFA Charterholder, a holder of the Institute of Directors Diploma in Company Direction where she graduated first in UK & Ireland and was awarded the Graduate of Merit award from the Institute of Directors as well as the LIA's Pension Trustee Practitioner Gold Medal.

Mr Jeremy Taylor (British). Mr Taylor is a Managing Director and CEO of Lazard Asset Management Limited and oversees business activities in the UK, Ireland, Benelux, Nordic and Middle East regions. Mr Taylor is a member of Lazard's Executive Leadership Team and co-Chairs the Sales & Marketing Management Group. Prior to becoming CEO, Mr Taylor was the Co-Director of Research and also served as a Research Analyst primarily covering the Telecommunications sector. He began working in the investment field in 1996. Prior to joining Lazard in 2003, Mr Taylor was a Director and research analyst with UBS Warburg. He has an MSc in Engineering, Economics and Management from St. Peter's College, Oxford University.

The Promoter

Lazard Asset Management Limited is the promoter of the Company.

Lazard Asset Management Limited was incorporated in England and Wales on 12 October 1953 and is authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority to carry on regulated activities in the UK. Mr Jeremy Taylor, who is a director of the Company, is also a director of the Promoter. Lazard Asset Management Limited is the London-based investment, client servicing and marketing arm of Lazard Asset Management group and caters for institutional, third party distribution and private clients in the UK, Northern Europe and the Middle East.

The Manager

The Company has appointed Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited as its manager pursuant to the Management Agreement. Under the terms of the Management Agreement the Manager has responsibility for the management and administration of the Company's affairs and the distribution of the Shares, subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors.

The Manager has delegated the performance of the investment management functions in respect of the Funds to the Investment Managers and administrative functions to the Administrator. The Manager, through its branches in Spain, Belgium and the Netherlands, and several of the Manager's delegates carry out distribution activities on behalf of the Funds.

The Manager is a private company limited by shares and was incorporated in Ireland on 1 February 1996. It is part of the Lazard Group and an indirect subsidiary of Lazard Inc. The Manager's main business is the provision of fund management and administration services, together with the provision of distribution services through its Spanish, Belgian and Dutch branches, to collective investment schemes such as the Company. The Directors of the Company are also directors of the Manager. There are two additional directors of the Manager, who are not also Directors of the Company – they are Mr Andrew Finucane and Mr Nathan Paul whose details are set out below.

Mr Andrew Finucane (Irish). Mr Finucane is an Executive Director and Head of Operations for Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited. He also fulfils the role as Chief Risk Officer (PCF-14) and as Designated Person for Operational Risk Management (PCF-39B). Mr Finucane began working in the investment field in 1995. Prior to joining Lazard in February 2014, Mr Finucane held the position of Managing Director within BNY Mellon. He is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr Nathan A. Paul (American). Mr Paul is Vice Chair and Chief Operating Officer ("COO") of Lazard's Asset Management business and a member of the firm's Executive Leadership Team and Strategic Growth Management Group. As COO, he oversees the day-to-day management of the firm's business activities globally and works with the firm's Management Groups to ensure they are globally coordinated and aligned around priorities for the firm. In addition, Mr Paul is actively involved in product development and leading various strategic initiatives across the firm. He serves as President and Director of The Lazard Funds, Inc. and is a member of other key firm-level committees. Prior to his current role as the COO, Mr Paul served as the Chief Business Officer for over 5 years, where he was responsible for leading business development initiatives globally. In addition, Mr Paul also served as General Counsel of Lazard Asset Management LLC for over 15 years. He began working in the investment field in 2000, upon joining Lazard. Previously, Mr Paul was an associate with Schulte Roth and Zabel LLP working in their investment management practice. He has a JD from Cardozo Law School and a BA from Yeshiva University. Mr Paul is a member of the New York and New Jersey State Bars

The Secretary is also the secretary of the Manager. The Manager is also manager of another Irish domiciled investment company sponsored by the Lazard Group, namely Lazard Global Active Funds plc, in addition to being the manager of Lazard Global Investment Management CCF an Irish authorised and regulated common contractual fund.

The Manager has approved and adopted a remuneration policy (the "Remuneration Policy") which reflects the remuneration practices of the Lazard Asset Management group of companies. The Remuneration Policy aligns the interests of staff with the long-term interests of clients, the business, shareholders, and other stakeholders. It focuses on performance-related pay, together with an emphasis on ensuring that performance is not achieved by taking risks which fall outside the Manager's risk appetite. In the Manager's opinion, the Remuneration Policy is proportionate and consistent with sound and effective risk management in accordance with applicable UCITS requirements. Details of the Manager's up-to-date Remuneration Policy, including a description of how remuneration and benefits are calculated and the identities of the persons responsible for awarding such remuneration/benefits, can be accessed from the following website: www.lazardassetmanagement.com. A paper copy of these policy details is also available free of charge from the Manager upon request.

The Investment Managers

The Manager has delegated its responsibility for the investment and re-investment of the Company's assets (other than for Lazard Scandinavian High Quality Bond Fund, Lazard Nordic High Yield Bond Fund and Lazard Global Quality Growth Fund) to Lazard Asset Management LLC.

Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH has been appointed as Investment Manager in respect of the Lazard Scandinavian High Quality Bond Fund and Lazard Nordic High Yield Bond Fund.

Lazard Asset Management Limited has been appointed as Investment Manager in respect of the Lazard Global Quality Growth Fund.

Lazard Asset Management LLC is an indirect subsidiary of Lazard Inc, the ultimate holding company within the Lazard Group. Lazard Asset Management LLC is registered as an investment adviser with the SEC under the United States Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

Lazard Asset Management LLC was incorporated in Delaware, United States, on 20 August 2002. Lazard Asset Management LLC provides investment management and advisory services to institutional clients, financial intermediaries, private clients, and investment vehicles around the world. Such clients include: institutional (corporations, labor unions, public pension funds, insurance companies and banks; and through sub-advisory relationships, mutual fund sponsors, broker-dealers and registered advisors) and individual clients (principally family offices and high-net worth individuals).

Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH is a limited liability company incorporated in Germany on 12 March 1999 and has its registered office at Neue Mainzer Strasse 75 60311 Frankfurt am Main Germany.

Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Lazard Inc, the ultimate holding company of the Lazard Group. Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH is regulated by the German Federal Financial Services Authority and is subject to its requirements.

Lazard Asset Management Limited is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Lazard Inc, the ultimate holding company of the Lazard Group. It was incorporated in England and Wales on 12 October 1953 and has its registered office at 50 Stratton Street, London, W1J 8LL, United Kingdom and is authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority to carry on regulated activities in the UK. Lazard Asset Management Limited is currently promoter of the Company.

The Investment Managers are responsible for managing the assets and investments of the relevant Funds of the Company in accordance with the investment objective, policy and strategies described in the relevant Supplement, subject always to the supervision and direction of the Directors and the Manager.

The activities of each of the Investment Managers are covered by the Lazard Group professional liability insurance policy maintained by Lazard Asset Management LLC. Lazard Asset Management LLC's professional liability insurance policy covers errors and omissions in respect of fund management mandates entered into by its subsidiaries (including each of the Investment Managers).

The Investment Managers may delegate to sub-investment managers/advisers or other delegates and details of such entities, where appointed, will be provided to Shareholders on request and will be published in the periodic reports. The fees and expenses of any sub-investment manager/adviser or other delegate will be discharged by the relevant Investment Manager out of the fee it receives from the Manager or may be paid directly out of the assets of the relevant Fund where agreed with the Company and set out in the Prospectus and/or relevant Supplement.

Mr Jeremy Taylor, who is a director of the Company, is also a director of Lazard Asset Management Limited.

Mr Nathan Paul, who is a director of the Manager, is also director of Lazard Asset Management Limited and Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH and is also the secretary of Lazard Asset Management LLC.

Mr Andreas Hübner, who is a director of the Company, is also Chief Executive Officer of Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH.

Mr Denis Faller, who is a director of both the Company and the Manager is also CEO of the Manager.

Currency Managers

Lazard Asset Management LLC has appointed State Street Bank and Trust Company, London Branch to provide non-discretionary currency hedging services to Lazard Asset Management LLC in respect of certain Funds of the Company to which Lazard Asset Management LLC has been appointed as investment manager.

State Street Bank and Trust Company is a limited liability trust company incorporated under the laws of Massachusetts, United States of America, with its head office at One Lincoln Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02111. State Street Bank and Trust Company, London Branch is registered in England under the company number FC010828 and branch number BR0002099 and is authorised and regulated by the Federal Reserve Board. State Street Bank and Trust Company is subject to limited regulation by the Financial Conduct Authority and limited regulation by the Prudential Regulation Authority.

Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH has appointed State Street Bank International GmbH to provide non-discretionary currency hedging services to Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH in respect of certain Funds of the Company to which Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) has been appointed as investment manager.

State Street Bank International GmbH is a limited liability corporation incorporated under the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany with principal office in Boston. It is registered with the district court ("Amtsgericht") in Munich under number HRB 42872.

The Administrator, Registrar and Transfer Agent

The Manager has delegated its responsibilities as administrator, registrar and transfer agent to State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator") pursuant to the Administration Agreement. The Administrator will have the responsibility for administering the day to day operations and business of the Company including processing subscriptions, redemptions, computing net asset values, maintaining books and records, disbursing payments, establishing and maintaining accounts on behalf of the Company and any other matters usually performed for the administration of a fund subject to the overall supervision of the Manager and the Directors. The Administrator will keep the accounts of the Company in accordance with international accounting standards. The Administrator will also maintain the shareholders register.

The Administrator is a limited liability company incorporated in Ireland on 23 March 1992 and is ultimately a wholly-owned subsidiary of the State Street Corporation. The authorised share capital of the Administrator is Stg£5,000,000 with an issued and paid up capital of Stg£350,000.

State Street Corporation is a leading world-wide specialist in providing sophisticated global investors with investment servicing and investment management. State Street Corporation is headquartered in Boston, Massachusetts, U.S., and trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "STT".

The Depositary

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited has been appointed to act as Depositary of the Company. The principal activity of the Depositary is to act as depositary and trustee of the assets of collective investment schemes. The Depositary is regulated by the Central Bank.

The Depositary is a private limited liability company incorporated in Ireland on 22 May 1991. The Depositary is ultimately owned by State Street Corporation. Its authorised share capital is Stg£5,000,000 and its issued and paid up capital is Stg£200,000 State Street Corporation is a leading world-wide specialist in providing sophisticated global investors with investment servicing and investment management. State Street is headquartered in Boston, Massachusetts, USA, and trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "STT".

Pursuant to the Depositary Agreement, the Depositary will provide safekeeping for the Company's assets in accordance with applicable UCITS requirements. In addition, the Depositary has the following main duties, which may not be delegated:

- it must ensure that the sale, issue, repurchase, redemption and cancellation of Shares is carried out in accordance with the Regulations and the Articles;
- it must ensure that the value of the Shares is calculated in accordance with the Regulations and the Articles;
- it must carry out the instructions of the Manager unless such instructions conflict with the Regulations or the Articles;
- it must ensure that in transactions involving the Company's assets or the assets of any Fund that any payment in respect of same is remitted to the relevant Fund(s) within the usual time limits;
- it must ensure that the income of the Company or of any Fund(s) is applied in accordance with the Regulations and the Articles;
- it must enquire into the conduct of the Company and the Manager (acting on behalf of the Company) in each accounting period and report thereon to Shareholders; and
- it must ensure that the Company's cash flows are properly monitored in accordance with the Regulations.

In accordance with applicable UCITS requirements, the Depositary shall be liable to the Company and the Shareholders (i) in respect of a loss of a financial instrument held in its custody (or in the custody of any third party to whom the Depositary's safekeeping functions have been delegated) unless the Depositary can prove that the loss has arisen as a result of an external event beyond its reasonable control, the consequences of which would have been unavoidable despite all reasonable efforts to the contrary and (ii) in respect of all other losses arising as a result of the Depositary's negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfil its obligations pursuant to the Directive.

Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of interest may arise for the Depositary and/or its delegates from time to time, including without limitation where the Depositary and/or any of its delegates:

- is likely either to make a financial gain or avoid a financial loss at the expense of the Company or its Shareholders;
- has an interest in the outcome of a service or an activity provided to the Company or of a transaction carried out on behalf of the Company which is distinct from the Company's interest:
- has a financial or other incentive to give priority to the interest of another client or group of clients over the interests of the Company;
- carries on the same activities for the Company and for other clients that adversely affect the Company; or
- is in receipt of inducement in the form of monies, good or services other than the standard commission or fee for that service.

In accordance with the Directive, the Depositary must not carry out activities with regard to the Company or with regard to the Manager acting on behalf of the Company that may create conflicts of

interest between itself and (i) the Company, (ii) the Shareholders and/or (iii) the Manager unless it has separated the performance of its depositary tasks from its other potentially conflicting tasks in accordance with the Directive and the potential conflicts are identified, managed, monitored and disclosed to Shareholders. Please also refer to the section of this Prospectus entitled 'Conflicts of Interest'.

Delegation

The Depositary may delegate its safekeeping duties only in accordance with the Regulations and provided that: (i) the services are not delegated with the intention of avoiding the requirements of the Regulations; (ii) the Depositary can demonstrate that there is an objective reason for the delegation; and (iii) the Depositary has exercised all due, skill, care and diligence in the selection and appointment of any third party to whom it has delegated its safekeeping duties either wholly or in part and continues to exercise all due skill, care and diligence in the periodic review and ongoing monitoring of any such third party and of the arrangements of such third party in respect of the matters delegated to it. Any third party to whom the Depositary delegates its safekeeping functions in accordance with the Regulations may, in turn, sub-delegate those functions subject to the same requirements as apply to any delegation effected directly by the Depositary. The liability of the Depositary will not be affected by any delegation of its safekeeping functions.

The Depositary may delegate safekeeping of the Company's assets to State Street Bank and Trust Company ("SSBTC"), its global sub-custodian, through which it has access to SSBTC's global network of sub-custodians (the "Global Custody Network"). SSBTC's Global Custody Network covers more than 100 markets worldwide. The entities to whom safekeeping of the Company's assets may be sub-delegated are set out at Appendix IV of this Prospectus.

Up-to-date information regarding the duties of the Depositary, any conflicts of interest that may arise and the Depositary's delegation arrangements will be made available to investors by the Company on request.

Please refer to the section of this Prospectus entitled "Material Contracts" for further details of the Depositary Agreement.

The Distributors

The Manager has appointed Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH as the Company's Distributor in Germany, Austria and Italy, Lazard Asset Management Schweiz AG as the Company's Distributor in Switzerland, Lazard Asset Management LLC as the Company's Distributor in the United States, Lazard Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. as a Distributor of the Company's Shares in Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Brunei, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Macau and the Philippines, Lazard Frères Gestion as the Company's Distributor in France, Lazard Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited as a Distributor of the Company's Shares in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Macau and Brunei and Lazard Gulf Limited as the Company's Distributor in the United Arab Emirates. Other Distributors may be appointed from time to time.

In addition, the Manager itself provides distribution services to certain Funds through its branches located in Spain, Belgium and the Netherlands.

The Distributors will be responsible for the distribution and marketing of the Shares of the Company. The Distributors may also appoint sales agents and sub-agents provided that the Distributors shall remain liable for the acts and omissions of such sales agents and sub-agents.

Secretary

Each of the Company and the Manager has appointed Wilton Secretarial Limited as its secretary.

Conflicts of Interest

The Manager, the Investment Managers and other members of the Lazard Group and their affiliates, officers and shareholders (collectively the "Parties" and each a "Party") are or may be involved in

other financial investment and professional activities which may on occasion cause conflicts of interest with the management of the Company. These include management of other funds, purchases and sales of securities, investment and management counselling, brokerage services and serving as directors, officers, advisers or agents of other funds or other companies, including companies in which the Company may invest. In particular it is envisaged that the Manager and the Investment Managers may be involved in advising other investment funds which may have similar or overlapping investment objectives to or with the Company. Each of the Parties will respectively ensure that the performance of their respective duties will not be impaired by any such involvement that they may have and that any conflicts which may arise will be resolved fairly. In the event that any of the assets of the Company would be invested in any such investment funds, the Party involved in providing such management or other advisory services will waive the preliminary or initial charges which it may otherwise be entitled to charge for its own account. In relation to such investment of the Company's assets, if any commission or fees are or would be received by such Lazard Group member by virtue of an investment of the assets of the Company in such investment fund, such commission will be paid to the Company for its own account.

In addition, due to the widespread operations undertaken by the Manager, the Depositary, any delegates or sub-delegates of the Manager or of the Depositary (excluding any non-group company sub-custodians appointed by the Depositary) and any associated or group company of the foregoing, including their respective holding companies, subsidiaries and affiliates (each a "Connected Person") conflicts of interest may arise. A Connected Person may acquire or dispose of any Investment notwithstanding that the same or similar Investments may be owned by or for the account of or otherwise connected with the Company. Furthermore, a Connected Person may acquire, hold or dispose of Investments notwithstanding that such Investments had been acquired or disposed of by or on behalf of the Company by virtue of a transaction effected by the Company in which the Connected Person was concerned provided that the acquisition by the Connected Person of such Investments is conducted at arms' length and in the best interests of Shareholders. A Connected Person may from time to time deal, as principal or agent, with the Company provided that such dealings are in the best interests of Shareholders (as at the date of the transaction) and are conducted at arm's length such that:

- (i) the value of the transaction is certified by a person approved by the Depositary (or by the Company in the case of a transaction involving the Depositary or an affiliate of the Depositary) as being independent and competent; or
- (ii) execution is on best terms on an organised investment exchange under the rules of the relevant exchange; or
- (iii) where (i) or (ii) are not practical, execution is on terms which the Depositary (or the Company in the case of a transaction involving the Depositary or an affiliate of the Depositary), is satisfied conforms to the requirement that such transactions be conducted at arm's length and in the best interests of Shareholders at the date of the transaction.

In the case of each transaction entered into with a Connected Person for or on behalf of the Company or any Fund(s), the Depositary (or the Company in the case of a transaction involving the Depositary or an affiliate of the Depositary), shall document the manner in which the transaction has complied with the principles set out at (i) to (iii) above and where a transaction with a Connected Party is conducted in accordance with (iii) above, the Depositary (or the Company in the case of a transaction involving the Depositary or an affiliate of the Depositary) shall document its/their rationale for being satisfied that the transaction conformed to the requirement that such transactions be conducted at arm's length and in the best interests of Shareholders as at the date of the transaction.

In the event that a conflict of interest does arise, the Directors will endeavour, in so far as they are reasonably able, to ensure that it is resolved fairly.

The Investment Managers may receive a Performance Fee in respect of any Fund based on the appreciation in the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Fund. Such a compensation arrangement may create an incentive to make investments that are riskier or more speculative than would be the case in the absence of such a fee arrangement.

One or more of the Investment Managers and/or Manager may have responsibility for setting the fair value price of assets for which no price is ascertainable or in respect of which the available price is unrepresentative. This may result in a potential conflict of interest as the fees payable may increase as the Net Asset Value of a Fund increases.

Where any conflict of interest arises, the Investment Manager and/or the Manager will at all times have regard to their obligations to act in the best interests of the Company and the Manager will endeavour, in so far as it is reasonably able, to ensure that any such conflict is resolved fairly.

Meetings

Shareholders in the Company will be entitled to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company. The annual general meeting of the Company will normally be held in Ireland within six months of the end of each financial year. Notices convening each annual general meeting will be sent to Shareholders and the annual accounts and reports will be made available to Shareholders not less than twenty-one days before the date fixed for the meeting.

Accounts and Information

The Company's accounting period ends on 31 March in each year.

The Company prepares an annual report and audited financial statements which are published within four months of the end of the financial period to which they relate. The Company also prepares a semi-annual report and unaudited half-yearly financial statements (relating to the semi-annual period ending 30 September of each year) which are published within two months of the end of the half-year period to which they relate. Both of these reports will be made available to Shareholders on www.lazardassetmanagement.com.

Copies of this Prospectus, the Supplements and the annual and half-yearly reports of the Company may be obtained from the Administrator at the address given under "Directory".

VALUATION, SUBSCRIPTIONS AND REDEMPTIONS

Calculation of Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value of each Fund is expressed in its base currency. The calculation of the Net Asset Value of each Fund and of each class thereof will be carried out by the Administrator in accordance with the requirements of the Articles, and details are set out under the heading "Statutory and General Information" below. Except when the determination of the Net Asset Value of any Fund has been suspended or postponed in the circumstances set out under the heading "Temporary Suspensions" below, the calculation of the Net Asset Value of each Fund, the Net Asset Value per Share (and, where there is more than one Share class in a Fund, the Net Asset Value attributable to each class and the Net Asset Value per Share per class) will be prepared in respect of each Valuation Point and will be available to Shareholders on request. The Net Asset Value per Share shall also be made public at the offices of the Promoter and the Administrator during normal business hours and will be published on the Promoter's website at www.lazardassetmanagement.com (which must be kept up-to-date).

The Net Asset Value attributable to any class of Shares within a Fund will be determined by deducting the share of liabilities of that class from its share of the assets of the Fund. The Net Asset Value of each Share of each class will be determined by dividing the Net Asset Value attributable to the class by the number of Shares of that class and rounding the resulting amount to such number of decimal places as the Directors may determine.

The costs and liabilities/benefits arising from instruments entered into for the purposes of hedging the currency exposure for the benefit of any particular class of a Fund shall be attributable exclusively to that class. Where there are different classes of Shares in a Fund, the relevant Supplement shall state whether or not this hedging policy is being adopted in respect of any class of such Fund and shall contain further details in relation thereto.

Operation of the Subscription and Redemption Collection Account/s

A collection account has been established at umbrella level in the name of the Company in each of the currencies in which the share classes of the Funds are denominated (the "Umbrella Cash Collection Account"). All subscriptions into and redemptions and dividends due from the Funds will be paid into the Umbrella Cash Collection Account.

Pending issue of the Shares and / or payment of subscription proceeds to an account in the name of the relevant Fund, and pending payment of redemption proceeds or dividends, the relevant investor will be an unsecured creditor of the relevant Fund in respect of amounts paid by or due to it.

All subscriptions (including subscriptions received in advance of the issue of Shares) attributable to, and all redemptions payable from, a Fund will be channelled and managed through the Umbrella Cash Collection Account. Subscription amounts paid into the Umbrella Cash Collection Account will be paid into an account in the name of the relevant Fund on the contractual settlement date. Where subscription monies are received in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account without sufficient documentation to identify the investor or the relevant Fund, such monies shall be returned to the relevant investor to the account from which they were received within five (5) business days and as specified in the operating procedure maintained in respect of the Umbrella Cash Collection Account.

Redemptions, including blocked redemptions, will be held in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account until payment due date (or such later date as blocked payments are permitted to be paid), and will then be paid to the relevant or redeeming Shareholder/investor.

Failure to provide the necessary complete and accurate documentation in respect of subscriptions, redemptions or dividends, and / or to make payment into the Umbrella Cash Collection Account or the correct Umbrella Cash Collection Account, as appropriate, is at the investor's risk.

The Depositary will be responsible for oversight of all monies held in the Umbrella Cash Collection Account in accordance with its obligations pursuant to the Directive.

The Manager and the Depositary have agreed an operating procedure in respect of the Umbrella Cash Collection Account which identifies the procedures and protocols to be followed in order to transfer monies from the Umbrella Cash Collection Accounts, the daily reconciliation processes, and the procedures to be followed where there are shortfalls in respect of a Fund due to late payment of subscriptions, and / or transfers to a Fund of monies attributable to another Fund due to timing differences.

Subscription

The Directors may issue Shares of any class of any Fund on such terms as they may from time to time determine. The terms and conditions applicable to the issue of Shares of any class including details as to the price at which Shares will be issued together with subscription and settlement details and procedures will be set out in the relevant Supplement. Shares shall be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share plus any charges as specified in the relevant Supplement. All Shares will be registered in inscribed form and evidenced by entry on the Company's register of Shareholders. Share certificates will not be issued. Each Shareholder will be sent a written trade confirmation confirming ownership of the relevant Shares.

Under the Articles, the Directors are given authority to effect the issue of Shares and have absolute discretion to accept or reject in whole or in part any application for Shares without assigning any reason therefor. The Directors have the power to impose such restrictions as they think necessary to ensure that no Shares are acquired by any person which might result in the legal and/or beneficial ownership of Shares by persons who are not Qualified Holders or expose the Company to adverse tax or regulatory consequences.

If an application is rejected, any monies received will be returned to the applicant (minus any handling charge incurred) as soon as possible by telegraphic transfer (but without interest, costs or compensation).

No Shares of any class will be issued or allotted during a period when the determination of the Net Asset Value of that class is suspended.

Redemption

Shareholders may redeem their Shares on any Dealing Day in accordance with the procedures and at the price set out in the relevant Supplement.

Share Price

Shares are issued and redeemed at a single price, being the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class, which may be adjusted in the manner set out immediately below in the section entitled 'Dilution and Swing Pricing'.

Dilution and Swing Pricing

Certain costs are customarily incurred when a Fund has to buy or sell portfolio assets in order to satisfy or give effect to requests for subscription or redemption of its Shares. The incurring of such dealing costs by a Fund can result in a Fund's value being diminished or 'diluted' over time and can therefore have a disadvantageous effect on Shareholders' interests in a Fund if counteracting steps are not taken. With a view to offsetting the effects of dilution to the extent deemed appropriate in the interests of Shareholders, the Directors may determine at their discretion, to adjust ("swing") the Net Asset Value per Share when calculating the Share Price on any particular Dealing Day.

Swing pricing, where applied, aims to ensure that the burden of the costs associated with dealing in a Fund's Shares are borne by the investors that actually request those Share deals on a particular Dealing Day, and not by the Shareholders in a Fund who are not trading in the Shares on the relevant Dealing Day. In this way swing pricing aims to mitigate the adverse effects of dilution on Fund assets and to preserve and protect the value of shareholdings.

Fractions

Subscription monies representing less than the Share Price will not be returned to the applicant. Fractions of Shares will be issued where any part of the subscription monies for Shares represents less than the Share Price for one Share, provided however, that fractions shall not be less than 0.001 of a Share.

Subscription monies representing less than 0.001 of a Share will not be returned to the applicant but will be retained by the Company in order to defray administration costs.

Apart from circumstances in which a Shareholder is redeeming his entire holding of Shares in a Fund:

- (a) fractions of Shares will be issued where any part of the redemption monies for Shares represents less than the Share Price for one Share, provided however that fractions shall not be less than 0.001 of a Share:
- (b) redemption monies representing less than 0.001 of a Share will not be returned to a Shareholder but will be retained by the Fund in order to defray administration costs.

Subscriptions/Redemptions in Specie

Subscription in Specie

The Directors may issue Shares of any Fund by way of exchange for Investments provided that:

- (a) in the case of a person who is not an existing Shareholder no Shares shall be issued until the person concerned shall have completed and delivered to the Administrator an Application Form as required under this Prospectus (or otherwise) and/or otherwise satisfied all the requirements of the Directors and Manager as to such person's application;
- (b) the nature of the investments transferred into the Fund are such as would qualify as Investments of such Fund in accordance with the investment objective, policy and restrictions of such Fund;
- (c) no Shares shall be issued until the Investments shall have been vested in the Depositary or any sub-custodian to the Depositary's satisfaction and the Depositary shall be satisfied that the terms of such settlement will not be such as are likely to result in any prejudice to the existing Shareholders of the Fund; and
- (d) any exchange shall be effected upon the terms (including provision for paying any expenses of exchange and any preliminary charge as would have been payable for Shares issued for cash) that the number of Shares issued shall not exceed the number which would have been issued for cash against payment of a sum equal to the value of the Investments concerned calculated in accordance with the procedures for the valuation of the assets of the Company. Such sum may be increased by such amount as the Directors may consider represents an appropriate provision for Duties and Charges which would have been incurred by the Fund in the acquisition of the Investments by purchase for cash or decreased by such amount as the Directors may consider represents any Duties or Charges to be paid to the Fund as a result of the direct acquisition by the Fund of the Investments.

Redemption in Specie

(a) The Manager may, provided that it is satisfied that the terms of any exchange would not be such as would be likely to result in any prejudice to the remaining Shareholders and with the agreement of a Shareholder seeking the realisation of Shares in any Fund, elect that instead of the Shares being redeemed in cash, the redemption shall be satisfied in specie by the transfer to the Shareholder of Investments provided that the value thereof shall not exceed the amount which otherwise would have been payable on a cash redemption. The shortfall (if any) between the value of the Investments transferred on a redemption in specie and the

redemption proceeds which would have been payable on a cash redemption shall be satisfied in cash.

- (b) If the discretion conferred upon the Manager by paragraph (a) is exercised, the Manager shall notify the Depositary and shall supply to the Depositary particulars of the Investments to be transferred and the amount of cash to be paid to the Shareholder. The allocation of Investments in satisfaction of an in specie redemption request shall be subject to the approval of the Depositary. All stamp duties, transfer and registration fees in respect of such transfers shall be payable by the Shareholder.
- (c) If a redeeming Shareholder requests redemption of a number of Shares that represent 5% or more of the Net Asset Value of a Fund the Manager may in its sole discretion redeem the Shares by way of exchange for Investments and in such circumstances the Manager will, if requested by the redeeming Shareholder, sell the Investments on behalf of the Shareholder. The cost of such sale may be charged to the Shareholder.

Currency of Payment and Foreign Exchange Transactions

Dealing and settlement will only take place in the currency of denomination of the relevant Share class. In exceptional circumstances payments in respect of the purchase or redemption of Shares may be tendered or requested in a currency other than the currency of denomination of the relevant Share class. In such circumstances, any necessary foreign exchange transactions will be arranged, subject to the agreement of the Manager, by the Administrator for the account of and at the risk and expense of the relevant investor on the basis of the exchange rate applicable as at the relevant Dealing Day where available.

Dividend payments will only be made in the currency of the denomination of the relevant Share class.

Compulsory Redemption

The Manager shall have the right to redeem compulsorily any Share at the Share Price or to require the transfer of any Share to a Qualified Holder if in its opinion (i) such Share is held by a person other than a Qualified Holder; or (ii) the redemption or transfer (as the case may be) would eliminate or reduce the exposure of the Company or the Shareholders to adverse tax or regulatory consequences.

Total Redemption

All the Shares of the Company or of any Fund may be redeemed:

- (a) at the discretion of the Directors, by giving not less than 30 days' notice in writing to the relevant Shareholders; or
- (b) if the Shareholders of the Company or of the relevant Fund so approve by way of special resolution.

Switching Between Share Classes and Funds

Shareholders of a class within a Fund may switch to other classes within such Fund or other Funds at the Directors' discretion in accordance with the provisions set out below.

The holders of Shares of each class of any Fund may switch to a corresponding class of Shares (if any) in that Fund or in any of the other Funds. On the establishment of any new Fund (or class thereof) the Directors shall specify the switching rights relating to such Fund (or class thereof), where such rights are different to those set out in this section.

Switching may be effected by application to the Administrator on such switching form as may be prescribed by the Directors.

If a switch from one Share class of a Fund (the "Original Class") to another Share class of the same Fund or of another Fund (the "New Class") would result in a Shareholder holding a number of Shares

in the Original Class with a value of less than the Minimum Holding, the Company (or the Administrator on its behalf) may, at its discretion, convert the whole of the applicant's holding of Shares in the Original Class so as not to conflict with the applicable Minimum Holding threshold (where possible) or may refuse to effect any switch whatsoever. No conversions will be made during any period in which the rights of Shareholders to require the redemption of their Shares are suspended. The general provisions on procedures for redemptions (including provisions relating to the redemption fee) will apply equally to conversion.

The number of Shares in any New Class to be issued will be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = \underbrace{Bx(CxDxF)}_{E}$$

Where:

- A = the number of Shares of the New Class to be allotted;
- B = the number of Shares of the Original Class to be converted;
- C = the Net Asset Value per Share of the Original Class in respect of the Valuation Point on the relevant Dealing Day;
- D = the currency conversion factor determined by the Administrator as representing the effective rate of exchange of settlement on the relevant Dealing Day applicable to the switch between the relevant Share classes (where the currencies in which the relevant Share classes are denominated are different). Where the currencies of denomination of the relevant Share classes are the same, D=1;
- E = the Net Asset Value per Share of the New Class in respect of the Valuation Point on the relevant Dealing Day plus the current switching fee (of up to 1% of the Net Asset Value of the Shares in the Original Class); and
- F = the switching factor to be applied to switching between Share classes with different settlement dates. This factor will be determined by the Administrator as being derived from the borrowing rate of interest (which may be retail or business depending on the volume of switching) where the settlement date for Shares in the New Class is earlier than the settlement date for Shares in the Original Class. In such circumstances, this factor shall operate to compensate the New Class for late settlement. In all other cases, including where the settlement dates of the relevant Share classes are the same, F=1.

Anti-Money Laundering

Measures aimed towards the prevention of money laundering may require a detailed verification of the identity of existing Shareholders, applicants for and potential transferees of Shares. Depending on the circumstances of each case, a detailed verification might not be required where (i) the applicant makes the payment from an account held in the applicant's name at a recognised financial institution or (ii) the application is made through a recognised intermediary. These exceptions will only apply if the financial institution or intermediary referred to above is within a country recognised in Ireland as having equivalent anti-money laundering regulations.

By way of example, an individual may be required to produce a copy of a passport or identification card duly certified by an appropriate official as outlined within the Application Form, together with evidence of his/her address (either in the form of (a) two different utility bills or (b) a utility bill and a bank statement; such documentation to be either originals or certified copies and no more than 3 months old) and date of birth. In the case of corporate applicants this may require production of a certified copy of the certificate of incorporation (and any change of name), memorandum and articles of association (or equivalent), the names, occupations, dates of birth and residential and business addresses of all directors of such corporate applicant, financial statements and beneficial ownership.

The Manager and the Administrator reserve the right to request such information as is necessary to verify the identity of an applicant. In the event of delay or failure by the applicant to produce any information required for verification purposes the Manager may take such action as it sees fit,

including refusing to accept the application and all subscription monies or, if Shares have been issued, compulsorily redeeming such Shares. It may also withhold redemption proceeds and approval of transfer of Shares, as the circumstances warrant.

Each applicant for Shares acknowledges that the Company, the Manager, the relevant Investment Manager and the Administrator shall be indemnified and held harmless against any loss arising as a result of failure to process his application form, or request for the redemption of, Shares if such information and documentation as has been properly requested by the Company, the Manager, the Administrator or relevant Investment Manager has not been provided by the applicant. In addition, if an application is refused, subscription monies will only be returned if such return is permissible under Irish anti-money laundering laws.

Transfer of Shares

Shares are (save as hereinafter specified and subject to such other conditions as may be set out in the relevant Supplement) freely transferable and may be transferred in writing in a form approved by the Directors. Prior to the registration of any transfer, transferees must complete an Application Form and provide such other information (e.g. as to identity) as the Company or its delegates may reasonably require. The Directors may decline to register any transfer of a Share:

- (a) where they are aware or believe that such transfer would result in the legal or beneficial ownership of such Share by a person who is not a Qualified Holder or expose the Company to adverse tax or regulatory consequences; or
- (b) to a person who is not already a Shareholder if, as a result of such transfer, the proposed transferee would not be the holder of a Minimum Holding.

Temporary Suspensions

The Company may temporarily suspend the determination of the Net Asset Value of any Fund and the issue and redemption of Shares of any class of any Fund:

- (a) during the whole or any part of any period when any of the principal markets on which any significant portion of the Investments of the relevant Fund from time to time are quoted, listed, traded or dealt in is closed (otherwise than for customary weekend or ordinary holidays) or during which dealings therein are restricted or suspended or trading on any relevant futures exchange or market is restricted or suspended;
- (b) during the whole or any part of any period when, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any other circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the Directors, any disposal or valuation of Investments of the relevant Fund is not, in the opinion of the Directors, reasonably practicable without this being prejudicial to, or detrimental to the interests of, owners of Shares in general or the owners of Shares of the relevant Fund or if, in the opinion of the Directors, the Net Asset Value cannot fairly be calculated;
- (c) during the whole or any part of any period during which any breakdown occurs in the means of communication normally employed in determining the value of any of the Investments of the Company or when for any other reason the value of any of the Investments or other assets of the relevant Fund cannot reasonably or fairly be ascertained;
- (d) during the whole or any part of any period when the Company is unable to repatriate funds required for the purpose of making redemption payments or when such payments cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be effected at normal prices or normal rates of exchange or during which there are difficulties or it is envisaged that there will be difficulties, in the transfer of monies or assets required for subscriptions, redemptions or trading;
- (e) upon the publication of a notice convening a general meeting of Shareholders for the purpose of resolving to wind up the Company; or

(f) during any period when the Manager or Directors believe it is in the best interests of the Shareholders to suspend dealings in the relevant Fund or Share class.

The Company, where possible, will take all necessary steps to bring any period of suspension to an end as soon as possible.

If total requests for redemption and/or switching on any Dealing Day for any Fund exceed 10% of the Net Asset Value of that Fund, each redemption or switching request in respect of Shares in such Fund may, at the discretion of the Directors, be reduced pro rata so that the total number of Shares of such Fund for redemption or switching on that Dealing Day shall not exceed in value 10% of the Net Asset Value of that Fund or such higher percentage value as the Directors may determine. Any redemption or switching request so reduced shall be carried forward to the next Dealing Day and effected in accordance with the Articles on the following (and, if necessary, subsequent) Dealing Day(s) until all Shares to which the original request related have been redeemed or switched as relevant. If redemption or switching requests are so carried forward, the Company shall procure that the Shareholders whose dealings are affected thereby are promptly informed.

In the event of any suspension as set out above, the Company shall immediately (without delay) notify the Central Bank of such suspension and shall also notify without delay any other competent authority in the states in which the shares are marketed. Impacted shareholders shall also be notified of such suspension no later than the Business Day next following such suspension being declared and in such manner as the Directors determine.

The Company shall also notify the Central Bank immediately upon the lifting of any temporary suspension and, in circumstances where a temporary suspension has not been lifted within 21 working days of its application, upon the expiration of that 21 working day period and upon the expiration of each subsequent 21 working day period during which the suspension continues to apply, shall provide the Central Bank with an update as to the status of the suspension.

FEES AND EXPENSES

General

Certain Funds are priced in accordance with a swing pricing mechanism as set out in the relevant Supplement. All Net Asset Value based fees and expenses payable out of the assets of any Fund to which swing pricing is applied are calculated by reference to the unadjusted Net Asset Value (see relevant Supplement).

Value added tax (if any) on fees payable by the Company will be borne by the Company.

Performance Fees

Details in respect of performance fees, where charged, will be set out in the Supplement for the relevant Fund.

Currency Managers' Fees

The Company shall pay each of the Currency Managers an annual fee in respect of those Funds to which each has been appointed as Currency Manager, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears, not in excess of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of each hedged Share class in issue in the relevant Funds, such fee to accrue solely to the hedged Share class in respect of which it is incurred. The foregoing fee is subject to the Currency Managers being jointly entitled to a minimum annual service fee, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears, of US\$75,000 charged pro rata to all relevant hedged Share classes in issue.

Management Fees

The fees which may be charged by the Manager to each class of each Fund are set out in the relevant Supplement. The Manager will be responsible for discharging the fees and expenses of the relevant Investment Manager, the Promoter and the Distributors out of its fee.

The Manager may, at its discretion, pay rebates of its Management Fee to the Shareholders (being the legal registered shareholder) and/or the beneficial owner. Rebates of the Management Fee, where granted, will be granted based upon objective criteria, including for example:

- 1. the volume subscribed for by the Shareholder and/or the beneficial owner, or the total volume they hold in the Company or, where applicable, in the product range of the Promoter;
- 2. the amount of the fees and/or revenue generated by the Shareholder and/or the beneficial owner;
- 3. the investment behaviour displayed by the Shareholder and/or the beneficial owner; and
- 4. the Shareholder's and/or beneficial owner's willingness to provide support in the launch phase of a Fund.

Where the Manager determines to pay rebates, the rebate will be calculated as a percentage of the Management Fees based on the value of the relevant holdings and will be paid either in cash or be reinvested.

For the avoidance of doubt, every Shareholder pays their proportion of costs, regardless of whether the Manager determines, at its own discretion, to pay a rebate or not.

Upon request of the Shareholder, the Manager, on behalf of the Company, shall disclose the respective extent of the rebates in connection with a holding of Shares, free of charge.

Other Expenses

Subject to such expense cap as may be applied and set out in the Supplement for the relevant Fund, the Company will also be responsible, in respect of each Fund, for the liabilities set out below:

Directors' Fees

The Directors shall be entitled to a fee and remuneration for their services at a rate to be determined from time to time by the Directors. Directors who are executives of the Lazard Group will not be paid such fees. The Directors may also be paid, inter alia, for travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them in attending meetings of the Directors or in connection with the business of the Company.

Operational Expenses

The Company will also pay out of the assets of each Fund:

- (a) administration and custodial fees and expenses;
- (b) any fees in respect of circulating details of the Net Asset Value (including publishing prices), Net Asset Value per Share and Net Asset Value per Share per class;
- (c) stamp duties;
- (d) the Central Bank's industry funding levy;
- (e) taxes;
- (f) company secretarial fees;
- (g) rating fees (if any);
- (h) brokerage or other expenses of acquiring and disposing of Investments;
- (i) fees and expenses of the auditors, tax, legal and other professional advisers of the Company;
- (j) fees connected with listing of Shares on any stock exchange;
- (k) fees and expenses in connection with the distribution of Shares and costs of registration and agency fees (which shall be at normal commercial rates) of the Company in jurisdictions outside Ireland;
- (I) costs of preparing, printing and distributing the Prospectus, any Supplements, any KIIDs/KIDs, reports, accounts and any explanatory memoranda;
- (m) any necessary translation fees;
- (n) any costs incurred as a result of periodic updates of the Prospectus, any Supplement and any KIID/KIDs, or of a change in law or the introduction of any new law (including any costs incurred as a result of compliance with any applicable code, whether or not having the force of law);
- (o) in respect of each financial year of the Company in which expenses are being determined, such proportion (if any) of any establishment expenses as are being amortised in that year;
- (p) fees connected with the winding-up of the Company and/or any Fund; and
- (q) any other fees and expenses relating to the management and administration of the Company or attributable to the Company's Investments.

The above expenses shall be charged as between each Fund and class thereof on such terms and in such manner as the Directors (with the consent of the Depositary) deem fair and equitable.

All fees and expenses, Duties and Charges will be charged to the Fund (and class or classes thereof, if appropriate) in respect of which they were incurred or, where an expense is not considered by the Directors to be attributable to any one Fund (or class thereof), the expense will normally be allocated to all Funds pro rata to the Net Asset Value of the relevant Funds. Expenses of the Company which are directly attributable to a specific class or classes of Shares are charged against the income available for distribution to the holders of such Shares unless otherwise stated in the Supplement for the relevant Fund.

In the case of any fees or expenses of a regular or recurring nature, such as audit fees, the Directors may calculate such fees and expenses on an estimated figure for yearly or other periods in advance and accrue the same in equal proportions over any period.

ALLOCATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Articles contain the following provisions regarding the operation of a Fund:

- (a) the records and accounts of each Fund shall be maintained separately in the base currency of the relevant Fund:
- (b) the liabilities of each Fund shall be attributable exclusively to that Fund;
- (c) the assets of each Fund shall belong exclusively to that Fund, shall be segregated in the records of the Depositary from the assets of other Funds, and shall not (save as provided in the Act) be used to discharge directly or indirectly the liabilities of or claims against any Fund and shall not be available for any such purpose;
- (d) the proceeds from the issue of each class of Shares shall be applied to the relevant Fund established for that class of Shares, and the assets and liabilities and income and expenditure attributable thereto shall be applied to such Fund subject to the provisions of the Articles;
- (e) where any asset is derived from another asset, the derived asset shall be applied to the same Fund as the assets from which it is derived, and on each revaluation of an asset the increase or diminution in value shall be applied to the relevant Fund;
- (f) in the case where an asset or a liability of the Company cannot be considered as being attributable to a particular Fund, the Directors shall have the discretion, subject to the approval of the Auditors, to determine the basis upon which such asset or liability shall be allocated between the Funds and the Directors shall have the power at any time and from time to time, subject to the approval of the Auditors, to vary such basis, provided that the approval of the Auditors shall not be required in any case where the asset or liability is allocated between the Funds pro rata to their Net Asset Value.

TAXATION

General

The information given is not exhaustive and does not constitute legal or tax advice. Prospective investors should consult their own professional advisers as to the implications of their subscribing for, purchasing, holding, switching or disposing of Shares under the laws of the jurisdictions in which they may be subject to tax.

The following is a brief summary of certain aspects of Irish and United Kingdom tax law and practice relevant to the transactions contemplated in this Prospectus. It is based on the law and practice and official interpretation currently in effect, all of which are subject to change.

Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) the Company receives with respect to its Investments (other than securities of Irish issuers) may be subject to taxes, including withholding taxes, in the countries in which the issuers of Investments are located. It is anticipated that the Company may not be able to benefit from reduced rates of withholding tax in double taxation agreements between Ireland and such countries. If this position changes in the future and the application of a lower rate results in a repayment to the Company, the Net Asset Value will not be re-stated and the benefit will be allocated to the existing Shareholders rateably at the time of the repayment.

Potential investors and Shareholders should note that the statements on taxation which are set out below are based on advice which has been received by the Directors regarding the law and practice in force in the relevant jurisdiction as at the date of this Prospectus. As is the case with any investment, there can be no guarantee that the tax position or proposed tax position prevailing at the time an investment is made in the Company will endure indefinitely.

Irish Taxation

The Directors have been advised that on the basis that the Company is resident in Ireland for taxation purposes, the taxation position of the Company and the Shareholders is as set out below.

Definitions

For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply.

"Courts Service"

is responsible for the administration of moneys under the control or subject to the order of the Courts.

"Equivalent Measures"

apply to an investment undertaking where the Irish Revenue Commissioners have given the investment undertaking notice of approval in accordance with Section 739D (7B) of the Taxes Act and the approval has not been withdrawn.

"Exempted Irish Investor"

means:

- an Intermediary within the meaning of Section 739B of the Taxes Act;
- a pension scheme which is an exempt approved scheme within the meaning of Section 774 of the Taxes Act or a retirement annuity contract or a trust scheme to which Section 784 or 785 of the Taxes Act applies;
- a company carrying on life business within the meaning of Section 706 of the Taxes Act;
- an investment undertaking within the meaning of Section 739B(1) of the Taxes Act;
- an investment limited partnership within the meaning of Section 739J of the Taxes Act;
- a special investment scheme within the meaning of Section 737 of the Taxes Act;
- a unit trust to which Section 731(5)(a) of the Taxes Act applies;

- a charity being a person referred to in Section 739D(6)(f)(i) of the Taxes Act;
- a qualifying management company within the meaning of Section 739D(6)(g) of the Taxes Act;
- a specified company within the meaning of Section 734(1) of the Taxes Act;
- a person who is entitled to exemption from income tax and capital gains tax by virtue of section 784A(2) TCA or section 848E TCA and the Shares held are assets of an approved retirement fund, an approved minimum retirement fund or a special savings incentive account;
- a person who is entitled to exemption from income tax and capital gains tax under Section 784A(2) of the Taxes Act where the Shares held are assets of an approved retirement fund or an approved minimum retirement fund;
- a person who is entitled to exemption from income tax and capital gains tax by virtue of Section 787I of the Taxes Act and the Shares are assets of a PRSA;
- a credit union within the meaning of Section 2 of the Credit Union Act, 1997;
- an Irish resident company investing in a money market fund being a person referred to in Section 739D(6)(k) of the Taxes Act;
- the National Treasury Management Agency or a Fund investment vehicle (within the meaning of section 37 of the National Treasury Management Agency (Amendment) Act 2014) of which the Minister for Finance is the sole beneficial owner, or the State acting through the National Treasury Management Agency;
- an Irish Resident company within the charge to corporate tax in accordance with Section 110 of the Taxes Act being a person referred to in Section 739D(6)(m) of the Taxes Act;
- any other person as may be approved by the Directors from time to time provided the holding of Shares by such person does not result in a potential liability to tax arising to the Company in respect of that Shareholder under Part 27, Chapter 1A TCA;
- a person who is entitled to exemption from income tax and capital gains tax by virtue of section 787AC TCA and the Shares held are assets of a PEEP, within the meaning of Part 30, Chapter 2D TCA:
- the National Asset Management Agency being a person referred to in Section 739D(6)(ka) of the Taxes Act;
- the Courts Service;
- the Motor Insurers' Bureau of Ireland in respect of an investment made by it of moneys paid to the Motor Insurers' Insolvency Compensation Fund; or
- any other Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident who may be permitted to own Shares under taxation legislation or by written practice or concession of the Irish Revenue Commissioners without giving rise to a charge to tax in the Company or jeopardising tax exemptions associated with the Company;

provided that a Relevant Declaration is in place.

"Foreign Person"

means a person who is neither an Irish Resident nor an Irish Ordinary Resident for tax purposes who has provided the Company with the Relevant Declaration under Schedule 2B of the Taxes Act and in respect of whom the Company is not in possession of any information that would reasonably suggest that the Relevant Declaration is incorrect or has at any time been incorrect.

"Intermediary"

means a person who:

- carries on a business which consists of, or includes, the receipt of payments from an investment undertaking on behalf of other persons; or
- holds shares in an investment undertaking on behalf of other persons.

"Ireland"

means the Republic of Ireland/the State.

"Irish Ordinary Resident"

- in the case of an individual, means an individual who is ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes.
- in the case of a trust, means a trust that is ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes.

The following definition has been issued by the Irish Revenue Commissioners in relation to the ordinary residence of individuals:

The term "ordinary residence" as distinct from "residence", relates to a person's normal pattern of life and denotes residence in a place with some degree of continuity.

An individual who has been resident in Ireland for three consecutive tax years becomes ordinarily resident with effect from the commencement of the fourth tax year.

"Irish Resident"

- in the case of an individual, means an individual who is resident in Ireland for tax purposes.
- in the case of a trust, means a trust that is resident in Ireland for tax purposes.
- in the case of a company, means a company that is resident in Ireland for tax purposes.

Residence - Individual

An individual will be regarded as being resident in Ireland for a particular twelve month tax year if s/he:

- spends 183 days or more in Ireland in that twelve month tax year; or
- has a combined presence of 280 days in Ireland, taking into account the number of days spent in Ireland in that twelve month tax year together with the number of days spent in Ireland in the preceding twelve month tax year. Presence in a twelve month tax year by an individual of not more than 30 days in Ireland will not be reckoned for the purpose of applying the two year test. Presence in Ireland for a day means the personal presence of an individual at any point during that day.

Residence - Trust

Determining the tax residence of a trust can be complex. A trust will generally be regarded as resident in Ireland for tax purposes if a majority of its trustees are resident for tax purposes in Ireland. Where some, but not all, of the trustees are resident in Ireland, the residency of the trust will depend on where the general administration of the trust is carried on. In addition, the provisions of any relevant double tax agreement would need to be considered. As a result, each trust must be assessed on a case by case basis.

Residence – Company

It should be noted that the determination of a company's residence for tax purposes can be complex in certain cases and declarants are referred to the specific legislative provisions that are contained in Section 23A of the Taxes Act.

A company incorporated in Ireland is automatically considered resident in Ireland for tax purposes, unless it is considered resident in a jurisdiction with which Ireland has a double tax agreement. A company incorporated in a foreign jurisdiction that is centrally managed and controlled in Ireland will be treated as resident in Ireland for tax purposes, unless otherwise resident by virtue of a double tax agreement.

"Personal portfolio investment undertaking" or "PPIU"

means an investment undertaking, under the terms of which some or all of the property of the undertaking, may be or was, selected by, or the selection of some or all of the property may be, or was, influenced by – the investor, a person acting on behalf of the investor, a person connected with

the investor, a person connected with a person acting on behalf of the investor, the investor and a person connected with the investor, or a person acting on behalf of both the investor and a person connected with the investor.

An investment undertaking is not a PPIU if the only property which may be or has been selected was available to the public at the time that the property is available for selection by an investor and is clearly identified in the investment undertaking's marketing or other promotional material. The investment undertaking must also deal with all investors on a non-discriminatory basis. In the case of investments deriving 50% or more of their value from land, any investment made by an individual is limited to 1% of the total capital required.

"Relevant Declaration"

means the declaration relevant to the Shareholder as set out in Schedule 2B of the Taxes Act. The Relevant Declaration for investors who are neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident (or Intermediaries acting for such investors) is set out in the Application Form accompanying the relevant Supplement to this Prospectus.

"Relevant Period"

means a period of 8 years beginning with the acquisition of a Share by a Shareholder and each subsequent period of 8 years beginning immediately after the preceding relevant period.

"Taxable Irish Person"

means any person, other than

- a Foreign Person; or
- an Exempted Irish Investor.

"Taxes Act"

means the Taxes Consolidation Act 1997 (of Ireland) as amended.

The Company

The Company will be regarded as resident in Ireland for tax purposes as it is incorporated in Ireland and where the Company is not regarded as resident elsewhere under a double tax agreement. It is the intention of the Directors that the business of the Company will be conducted in such a manner as to ensure that it is Irish Resident for tax purposes.

The Directors have been advised that the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes Act. Under current Irish law and practice, on that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income and gains.

However, a tax can arise on the happening of a "chargeable event" in the Company. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Shareholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of Shares or appropriation or cancellation of Shares of a Shareholder by the Company for the purposes of meeting the amount of tax payable on a gain arising on a transfer of an entitlement to a Share. A chargeable event also occurs on the ending of each Relevant Period. No tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Shareholder who is neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident at the time of the chargeable event provided that a Relevant Declaration is in place and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct. In the absence of a Relevant Declaration there is a presumption that the investor is Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident.

A chargeable event will not be deemed to arise if at the time of the chargeable event Equivalent Measures have been formally agreed with the Irish Revenue Commissioners, the approval has not been withdrawn and there are no indicia of Irish tax residence in respect of a particular investor. In the

absence of a Relevant Declaration or Equivalent Measures there is a presumption that the investor is Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident.

A chargeable event does not include:

- an exchange by a Shareholder, effected by way of any arm's length bargain of Shares in the Company for other Shares in the Company;
- any transactions (which might otherwise be a chargeable event) in relation to Shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Irish Revenue Commissioners;
- a transfer by a Shareholder of the entitlement to a Share where the transfer is between spouses, former spouses, civil partners or former civil partners, subject to certain conditions;
- an exchange of Shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the Company with another investment undertaking (within the meaning of Section 739H of the Taxes Act) of the Company with another investment undertaking;
- any transaction in relation to, or in respect of, relevant Shares (within the meaning of Section 739B(2A)(a)) in the Company which transaction arises only by virtue of a change of court funds manager for the Company.

If the Company becomes liable to account for tax if a chargeable event occurs, the Company shall be entitled to deduct from the payment arising on a chargeable event an amount equal to the appropriate tax and/or where applicable, to appropriate or cancel such number of Shares held by the Shareholder or such beneficial owner as are required to meet the amount of tax. The relevant Shareholder shall indemnify and keep the Company indemnified against loss arising to the Company by reason of the Company becoming liable to account for tax on the happening of a chargeable event if no such deduction, appropriation or cancellation has been made.

Where tax arises on the ending of a Relevant Period, the Company has the option of electing to value the Shares at bi-annual dates (meaning 30 June or 31 December) rather than at the date of the end of the Relevant Period itself. Therefore, the Company may make an irrevocable election to allow the Shares in the calculation of the gain on a deemed disposal for Taxable Irish Persons to be valued at the later of the previous 30 June or 31 December prior to the date of the deemed disposal rather than at the date of the deemed disposal itself.

Where less than 10% of the Net Asset Value of Shares in the Company is held by Taxable Irish Persons, the Company may elect not to apply a withholding tax to a deemed disposal of Shares in the Company and will advise the Irish Revenue Commissioners of this election. Shareholders who are Taxable Irish Persons will therefore be required to return any gain and account for appropriate tax on the deemed disposal directly to the Irish Revenue Commissioners on a self-assessment basis. Shareholders should contact the Company to ascertain whether the Company has made such an election in order to establish their responsibility to account to the Irish Revenue Commissioners for any relevant tax.

Where tax arises on the ending of a Relevant Period, such tax will be allowed as a credit against tax payable on the subsequent encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of the relevant Shares. However, where less than 15% of the Net Asset Value of the Shares in the Company is held by Taxable Irish Persons, the Company may elect not to repay Shareholders any overpaid tax and as such Shareholders must obtain a repayment of any overpaid tax directly from the Irish Revenue Commissioners. Shareholders should contact the Company to ascertain whether the Company has made such an election in order to establish whether they must seek a repayment of any overpaid tax directly form the Irish Revenue Commissioners.

Anti-avoidance measures apply in the case of certain investments by individuals in investment undertakings (such as the Company). If the investment undertaking is regarded as a PPIU then any payment to such a shareholder will be taxed at a rate of 60%. It is a matter of fact whether or not the shareholder or a connected person has a right of selection as envisaged in the anti avoidance

measures. Further penalties of tax can apply were tax returns in relation to distributions from a PPIU are incorrectly made by a shareholder.

Dividends received by the Company from investment in Irish equities may be subject to Irish dividend withholding tax at a rate of 25%. However, the Company can make a declaration to the payer that it is an investment undertaking (within the meaning of Section 739B of the Taxes Act) beneficially entitled to the dividends which will entitle the Company to receive such dividends without deduction of Irish dividend withholding tax.

Please see the "Shareholders" section below dealing with the tax consequences for the Company and the Shareholders of chargeable events in respect of: -

- Shareholders who are neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident;
- Shareholders who are either Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident; and
- Shares held by the Irish Court Service.

Shareholders

(i) Shareholders who are neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident

The Company will not have to deduct tax on the occasion of a chargeable event in respect of a Shareholder if (a) the Shareholder is neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident, (b) the Shareholder has made a Relevant Declaration and (c) the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct. Alternatively, no tax is required to be deducted if Equivalent Measures apply to the Company and there are no indicia of Irish tax residence in respect of the particular Shareholder. In the absence of a Relevant Declaration or the Irish Revenue Commissioners approval referred to above, tax will arise on the happening of a chargeable event in the Company regardless of the fact that a Shareholder is neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident. The appropriate tax that will be deducted is as described in paragraph (ii) below.

To the extent that a Shareholder is acting as an Intermediary on behalf of persons who are neither Irish Residents nor Irish Ordinary Residents, no tax will have to be deducted by the Company on the occasion of a chargeable event provided that the Intermediary has made a Relevant Declaration that they are acting on behalf of such persons and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct.

Shareholders who are neither Irish Residents nor Irish Ordinary Residents and who have made Relevant Declarations in respect of which the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is not, or is no longer materially correct, will not be liable to Irish tax in respect of income from their Shares and gains made on the disposal of their Shares. However, any corporate Shareholder which is not Irish Resident and which holds Shares directly or indirectly by or for a trading branch or agency in Ireland will be liable to Irish tax on income from the Shares or gains made on disposal of its Shares.

Where tax is withheld by the Company on the basis that no Relevant Declaration has been filed with the Company by the Shareholder, Irish legislation does not provide for a refund of tax except in the following limited circumstances:

- i. The appropriate tax has been correctly returned by the Company and within one year of making of the return the Company can prove to the satisfaction of the Irish Revenue Commissioners that it is just and reasonable for such tax which has been paid to be repaid to the Company.
- ii. Where a claim is made for a refund of Irish tax under Section 189, 189A, 192 and 205A of the Taxes Act (relieving provisions relating to incapacitated persons, trusts in relation thereto, persons incapacitated as a result of drugs containing thalidomide and Magdalen

Laundry payments) the income received will be treated as net income chargeable to tax under Case III of Schedule D from which tax has been deducted.

(ii) Shareholders who are Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident

Unless a Shareholder is an Exempted Irish Investor, makes a Relevant Declaration to that effect and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is not, or is no longer materially correct or unless the Shares are held by the Courts Service, tax at the rate of 41% will be required to be deducted by the Company from distributions and other chargeable events in relation to a Shareholder who is Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident. Tax at a rate of 25% will have to be deducted by the Company on distributions and other chargeable events in relation to Shareholders who are companies which have made the required declaration.

There are a number of Irish Residents and Irish Ordinary Residents who are exempted from the provisions of the above regime once Relevant Declarations are in place. These are Exempted Irish Investors.

Irish Resident corporate Shareholders who receive distributions from which tax has been deducted will be treated as having received an annual payment chargeable to tax under Case IV of Schedule D of the Taxes Act from which tax at a rate of 25% has been deducted. In general, such Shareholders will not be subject to further Irish tax on any other payments received in respect of their shareholding from which tax has been deducted. An Irish Resident corporate Shareholder whose Shares are held in connection with a trade will be taxable on any income or gains as part of that trade with a set-off against corporation tax payable for any tax deducted by the Company. In general, non-corporate Shareholders who are Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident will not be subject to further Irish tax on income from their Shares or gains made on disposal of the Shares where tax has been deducted by the Company on payments received. Where a currency gain is made by the Shareholder on the disposal of his/her Shares, such Shareholder may be liable to capital gains tax in the year of assessment in which the Shares are disposed of.

Any Shareholder who is Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident and receives a distribution or a gain on an encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer from which tax has not been deducted by the Company may be liable to income tax or corporation tax on the amount of the gain.

There is an obligation on the Company to provide an annual report to the Irish Revenue Commissioners in relation to certain Shareholders and the value of their investments in the Company. The obligation arises only in relation to Shareholders who are either Irish Resident or Irish Ordinary Resident (other than Exempted Irish Investors).

(iii) Irish Courts Service

Where Shares are held by the Courts Service no tax is deducted by the Company on payments made to the Courts Service. Where money under the control or subject to the order of the Court Service is applied to acquire Shares in the Company, the Courts Service assumes, in respect of those Shares acquired, the responsibilities of the Company with regard to, inter alia, deduction of tax in respect of chargeable events, filing returns and collection of the tax.

In addition, the Courts Service must make, in respect of each year of assessment, on or before 28 February in the year following the year of assessment, a return to the Irish Revenue Commissioners which:

- (a) specifies the total amount of gains arising to the investment undertaking in respect of the Shares acquired; and
- (b) specifies in respect of each person who is or was beneficially entitled to those Shares:
 - where available, the name and address of the person,

- the amount of total gains to which the person has beneficial entitlement, and
- such other information as the Irish Revenue Commissioners may require.

Capital Acquisitions Tax

The disposal of Shares will not be subject to Irish gift or inheritance tax (Capital Acquisitions Tax), provided that the Company falls within the definition of investment undertaking (within the meaning of Section 739B of the Taxes Act) and that: (a) at the date of the gift or inheritance, the donee or successor is neither domiciled nor ordinarily resident in Ireland; (b) at the date of the disposition, the Shareholder disposing of the Shares is neither domiciled nor ordinarily resident in Ireland; and (c) the Shares are comprised in the gift or inheritance at the date of such gift or inheritance and at the valuation date.

With regard to Irish tax residency for Capital Acquisitions Tax purposes, special rules apply for non-Irish domiciled persons. A non-Irish domiciled donee or disponer will not be deemed to be resident or ordinarily resident in Ireland at the relevant date unless;

- (i) that person has been resident in Ireland for the 5 consecutive years of assessment immediately preceding the year of assessments in which that date falls; and
- (ii) that person is either resident or ordinarily resident in Ireland on that date.

Stamp Duty

Generally, no stamp duty is payable in Ireland on the issue, transfer, repurchase or redemption of Shares in the Company. Where any subscription for or redemption of Shares is satisfied by the in specie transfer of Irish securities or other Irish property, Irish stamp duty might arise on the transfer of such securities or property.

No Irish stamp duty will be payable by the Company on the conveyance or transfer of stock or marketable securities provided that the stock or marketable securities in question have not been issued by a company registered in Ireland and provided that the conveyance or transfer does not relate to any immovable property situated in Ireland or any right over or interest in such property or to any stocks or marketable securities of a company (other than a company which is an investment undertaking within the meaning of Section 739B of the Taxes Act) which is registered in Ireland.

No stamp duty will arise on reconstructions or amalgamations of investment undertakings under Section 739H of the Taxes Act, provided the reconstructions or amalgamations are undertaken for bona fide commercial purposes and not for the avoidance of tax.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA")

The Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act was signed into US law on 18 March 2010 and includes foreign account tax compliance provisions generally known as "FATCA". The thrust of these provisions is that details of US investors holding assets outside the US will be reported by financial institutions to the US Internal Revenue Services ("IRS") as a safeguard against US tax evasion. To discourage non-US financial institutions from staying outside this regime, FATCA provides that US securities held by a financial institution that does not enter and comply with the regime will be subject to a US tax withholding of 30% on income. This regime is effective from 1 July 2014 and withholding may be imposed after 1 July 2014. The basic terms of FATCA appear to include the Company as a 'Financial Institution', such that, in order to comply, the Company may require all Shareholders to provide mandatory documentary evidence of their tax residence.

The US has developed an intergovernmental approach to the implementation of FATCA. In this regard the Irish and US governments signed an intergovernmental agreement ("Irish IGA") on 21 December 2012.

The Irish IGA is intended to reduce the FATCA compliance burden for Irish financial institutions by simplifying the compliance process and minimising the risk of withholding tax. Under the Irish IGA, information about relevant US investors will be provided on an annual basis by each Irish financial

institution (unless the financial institution is exempted from the FATCA requirements) directly to the Irish Revenue Commissioners, who will then provide such information to the IRS.

Accordingly, in order to comply with its FATCA obligations, the Company may require investors to provide the Company with information and documentation prescribed by applicable law and such additional documentation as reasonably requested by the Company. Each prospective investor should consult their own tax advisor regarding the requirements under FATCA with respect to their own particular circumstances.

Although the Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to comply with any requirements that are necessary to avoid the imposition of withholding taxes on payments to the Company pursuant to FATCA, no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to satisfy these obligations. If the Company suffers a withholding tax as a result of FATCA, the return of all investors may be materially affected.

Prospective investors should consult with their tax advisers regarding the possible implications of FATCA on their investment in the Company.

Each investor agrees to provide the Company with information and documentation prescribed by applicable law and such additional documentation reasonably requested by the Company as may be necessary for the Company to comply with its obligations under FATCA.

The Common Reporting Standards ("CRS")

The CRS is a single global standard on Automatic Exchange of Information ("AEOI"). It was approved by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD") in February 2014 and draws on earlier work of the OECD and the EU, global anti-money laundering standards and, in particular, the Model FATCA Intergovernmental Agreement. Under the CRS, participating jurisdictions will be required to exchange certain information held by financial institutions regarding their non resident investors. The CRS was effective in Ireland from 1 January 2016. The Company is required to provide certain information to the Irish Revenue Commissioners about non-Irish tax resident Shareholders (which information will in turn be provided to the relevant tax authorities). It should also be noted the CRS replaces the EU Taxation on Savings Directive.

Data protection notice - collection and exchange of information under the CRS

For the purposes of complying with its obligations under the CRS as implemented in Irish law and to avoid the imposition of financial penalties thereunder, the Company may be required to collect certain information in respect of each non-Irish resident Shareholder (and the direct and indirect individual beneficial owners of the Shares (if any)) and, to the extent required pursuant to the CRS, to annually report such information to the Irish Revenue Commissioners.

Such information includes the name, address, jurisdiction of residence, tax identification number (TIN), date and place of birth (as appropriate) of the non-Irish resident Shareholder and (if relevant) the direct or indirect beneficial owners of the Shares; the "account number" and the "account balance" or value at the end of each calendar year; and the gross amount paid or credited to the Shareholder during the calendar year (including aggregate redemption payments).

Such information in relation to all non-Irish resident Shareholders will in turn be exchanged, in a secure manner, by the Irish Revenue Commissioners with the tax authorities of other relevant participating jurisdictions under the CRS in accordance with the requirements of (and solely for the purposes of compliance with) the CRS.

Each investor agrees to provide the Company with information and documentation prescribed by applicable law and such additional documentation reasonably requested by the Company as may be necessary for the Company to comply with its obligations under CRS.

Further information in relation to the CRS can be found on the AEOI ("Automatic Exchange of Information") webpage on www.revenue.ie.

United Kingdom Taxation

THE COMPANY

General

The taxation of income and capital gains of the Company and Shareholders is subject to the fiscal law and practice of Ireland, any jurisdiction in which the Company makes investments and of the jurisdictions in which Shareholders are resident or otherwise subject to tax.

The below summary is only intended as a brief and general guide to the main aspects of current UK tax law and HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC") practice applicable to the holding and disposal of Shares in the Company (which may change in the future). It is not intended to provide specific advice and no action should be taken or omitted to be taken in reliance upon it. The summary is not exhaustive and does not generally consider tax reliefs or exemptions. Any prospective Shareholder who is in any doubt on the implications of making an investment in, holding or disposing of Shares and the receipt of distributions (whether or not on redemption) with respect to such Shares under the laws of the countries in which they are liable to taxation should consult his UK professional advisor.

It is addressed to ordinary investors who are absolute beneficial owners of Shares held as investments and not, therefore, to special classes of Shareholder such as financial institutions. Accordingly, its applicability will depend upon the particular circumstances of the relevant Shareholder. In particular certain classes of investors will be subject to specific rules in the UK and their position is not separately covered here and it does not cover UK Shareholders who are tax exempt or subject to special taxation regimes.

This summary is based on the taxation law in force and practice understood to be applicable at the date of this Prospectus but prospective investors should be aware that the relevant fiscal rules and practice or their interpretation may change.

Taxation of the Company

It is the intention of the Directors, so far as they are able, to conduct the affairs of the Company in such a way that it does not become resident in the UK for UK tax purposes. Accordingly and provided the Company's activities do not amount to trading through a permanent establishment for UK tax purposes, the Company will not be subject to UK corporation tax on its income and capital gains. However, no assurance can be given that this intention will be achieved. Neither the Company nor the Directors accept any responsibility for any taxes incurred by the Company or by any Shareholder as a result of the Company being UK resident or of its activities amounting to trading in the UK for whatever reason.

Income and gains received by the Company with respect to a Fund may be subject to withholding or similar taxes imposed by the country in which such return arises.

THE SHAREHOLDERS

Taxes on income

The Shares of the Company shall be widely available. The Directors confirm that the intended categories of investors are not "restricted" for the purposes of the Offshore Fund (Tax) Regulations 2009. It is intended that Shares shall be marketed and made available sufficiently widely to reach the intended categories of investors and in a manner appropriate to attract those categories of investors.

Subject to their personal circumstances, Shareholders resident in the UK for taxation purposes will be liable to UK income tax or corporation tax in respect of dividends or other distributions of income by the Company, whether or not such distributions are reinvested and also on amounts of reported income ("reported income" is explained in detail under the heading "Taxes on capital gains" below) to the extent this exceeds any dividends received. In addition, they may be liable to UK income tax or corporation tax on any equalisation payment received which represents accrued income forming part of the proceeds of redemption. The Company intends to operate equalisation arrangements.

Accordingly, the first distribution or accumulation of income after Shares are issued may include an amount reflecting accrued income included in the issue price. This amount is treated as a return of capital for UK tax purposes and would not generally be subject to tax as income. The amount of the equalisation payment must be deducted from the original purchase cost of the relevant Shares in computing the allowable cost of these Shares for UK capital gains purposes.

UK resident individuals currently receive a dividend tax allowance of £1,000 taxed at 0%. Any dividend income above £1,000 is subject to income tax on foreign dividends at rates of 8.75% for basic rate taxpayers, 33.75% for higher rate taxpayers and 39.35% for additional rate taxpayers. Modified rules, which are not discussed in this summary, apply to UK resident Shareholders who are individuals not domiciled within the UK.

When any UK corporate Shareholders which are within the charge to UK corporation tax receive dividends from the Company, the dividend is likely to fall within one of a number of exemptions from UK corporation tax. In addition, distributions to non- UK companies carrying on a trade in the UK through a permanent establishment in the UK should also fall within the exemption from UK corporation tax to the extent that the Shares held by that company are used by, or held for, that permanent establishment. Reported income will be treated in the same way as a dividend distribution for these purposes. If none of the exemptions apply, the dividends will be subject to the standard corporation tax rate, which is currently 25%.

Bond Funds - individual Shareholders

Where a Fund holds more than 60% of its assets (by market value) in interest bearing (or economically similar) form throughout a distribution period, any distribution or reported income will be treated as interest in the hands of the United Kingdom income tax payer Shareholder. Such a Fund is widely referred to as a Bond Fund (although the term does not feature in tax legislation). This means that the relevant tax rates will be those applying to interest. UK individual tax payers may therefore be eligible for a tax free allowance of £1,000 per year (basic rate tax payers) or £500 per year (higher rate tax payers). Additional rate tax payers are not entitled to any tax free allowance on interest income. Thereafter, interest received by UK tax resident individuals will be taxed at 20% for basic rate tax payers, 40% for higher rate tax payers and 45% for additional rate tax payers. Special rules apply to Bond Fund Shareholders within the charge to corporation tax, as discussed below

Bond Funds - corporate Shareholders

If at any time in an accounting period a person within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax holds an interest in an offshore fund within the meaning of the relevant United Kingdom legislation and there is a time in that period when that fund fails to satisfy the "qualifying investments test", the holding of shares in the fund will be treated as a loan relationship for United Kingdom Corporation Tax purposes. A Fund will be deemed to have failed the "qualifying investments test" if the Company invests more than 60% of (by market value) its assets in certain securities or as cash on deposit or in certain derivative contracts or in other non-qualifying collective investment schemes. The test is applied to the Company as a whole and not in respect of individual Funds. Where the Shares are treated as falling within the loan relationships regime all returns on the Shares in respect of a relevant Shareholder's accounting period (including gains, profits and losses) will be taxed or relieved as an income receipt or expense on a "fair value" basis. Accordingly, such a Shareholder may, depending on its own circumstances, incur a charge to corporation tax on an unrealised increase in the value of its holding of Shares (and, likewise, obtain relief against corporation tax for an unrealised reduction in the value of its holding of Shares).

Taxes on capital gains

The Company is expected to be a mutual fund constituted by a body corporate outside the UK for the purposes of the UK's "offshore funds" provisions. Each Fund and each class of Shares of the Company will be treated as a separate offshore fund for these purposes.

Gains on the disposal or deemed disposal (including a switch between sub-funds) and redemptions of an interest in a collective investment scheme that constitutes an offshore fund will generally be taxed as if they were income (rather than capital gains), unless the fund applies to be a "reporting fund" and

maintains its reporting fund status at all relevant times (that is the fund needs to be a reporting fund for all periods in which the UK Shareholders have any interests). Holdings of Shares in the Company are expected to constitute an interest in an offshore fund for the purposes of the offshore funds rules. Where the offshore fund has been certified as a "reporting fund", Shareholders who are resident in the UK for tax purposes (other than persons who are dealing in the Shares who are subject to different rules) will generally, unless otherwise exempt from tax be liable to UK capital gains tax on gains arising on the disposal or deemed disposal or redemption of their Shares unless the Company fails the "qualifying investments test".

In broad terms, a "reporting fund" is an offshore fund that meets certain upfront and annual reporting requirements to HMRC and its shareholders. Under the reporting rules, relevant classes of shares obtain reporting fund status using a "once off" up-front approval mechanism which includes an undertaking to provide annual reporting of fund income returns to relevant investors. Such annual duties will include calculating and reporting the income returns of the offshore fund for each reporting period (as defined for UK tax purposes) on a per-share basis to all relevant shareholders (as defined for these purposes). UK shareholders who hold their interests at the end of the reporting period, to which the reported income relates, will be subject to income tax or corporation tax on the higher of any cash distribution paid and the full reported amount. The reported income will be deemed to arise to UK shareholders on the date the report is issued by the directors of the offshore fund, provided the report is issued within 6 months of the end of the financial year of the fund. Once reporting fund status is obtained from HMRC for the relevant classes, it will remain in place permanently provided the annual requirements are satisfied.

The Directors intend to apply to HMRC in respect of certain but not all classes of Shares or Funds (as applicable) for recognition as a reporting fund. The current reporting fund status of existing Funds and classes of Shares can be viewed at www.lazardassetmanagement.com.

Further, even if the Directors choose to make an application for reporting fund status with respect to a particular class of Shares or Fund, there can be no guarantee that reporting fund status will be obtained or maintained for any Fund or class of Share in relation to which an application is made. Were such application to be unsuccessful or such status subsequently to be withdrawn, any gains arising to shareholders resident in the UK on a disposal or deemed disposal or redemption of Shares would be taxed as income rather than capital gains.

Where an offshore fund ceases to be a reporting fund and becomes a non-reporting fund while a UK shareholder is an investor in that particular offshore fund, an election can potentially be made by the relevant UK Shareholder. The impact of such a valid election made by the relevant UK Shareholder is that the UK Shareholder is deemed to be (a) disposing of an interest in the reporting Fund or class of Shares (as applicable) at the end of that Fund's or of that class of Shares' final period of account as a reporting fund and (b) acquiring an interest in the (now) non-reporting Fund or class of Shares at the beginning of that non-reporting Fund's or class of Shares first period of account.

Any gain or loss arising on the deemed disposal will be subject to the normal rules applying to UK capital gains tax (or UK corporation tax on chargeable gains). Any subsequent disposal of the interest in the now non-reporting Fund or class of Shares will be subject for that UK Shareholder to an income tax charge on any further gains accruing from the deemed date of disposal and reacquisition.. Such election must be made within specified time limits. Shareholders should refer to their tax advisors for further information. Chargeable gains arising on disposals of capital assets by UK resident individuals will be tax free if they fall within an individual's annual capital gains exemption. For the tax year 2023/24, the first £6,000 of an individual's chargeable gains (that is after deduction of allowable losses) from all sources will, therefore, be exempt from capital gains tax. Gains in excess of this amount will be subject to capital gains tax at the rate of 10% for basic rate taxpayers or 20% to the extent an individual taxpayer's total taxable income and gains exceeds the upper limit for the income tax basic rate band (currently £-37,700 for the tax year 2023/24).

Corporate Shareholders will be subject to corporation tax on chargeable gains. The main rate of corporation tax is currently 25%.

Inheritance tax

A gift of Shares or the death of a holder of Shares may give rise to a liability to UK inheritance tax. For these purposes, a transfer of assets at less than their full market value may be treated as a gift. However, an individual who is not domiciled in the UK and who is not deemed to be domiciled there under special rules relating to long residence or previous domicile in the UK, is not generally within the scope of inheritance tax as respects assets situated outside the UK. Shares in the Company should constitute assets situated outside the UK for inheritance tax purposes.

Stamp Duty Reserve Tax ("SDRT")

Stamp duty reserve tax (or stamp duty) at the rate of 0.5% (rounded up to the nearest £5) will be payable by the Company on the acquisition by the Company of shares in companies incorporated in the United Kingdom or which maintain a share register in the United Kingdom for the purpose of subsequent subscriptions for shares and may arise on the transfer of such Investments to Shareholders on a non-pro rata in specie redemption of Shares.

Because the Company is not incorporated in the United Kingdom and the register of holders of Shares will be kept outside the United Kingdom, no liability to stamp duty reserve tax will arise by reason of the transfer, subscription for or redemption of Shares except as stated above. Liability to stamp duty will not arise provided that any instrument in writing transferring Shares is executed and retained at all times outside the United Kingdom.

Anti-avoidance provisions

The attention of Shareholders who are individuals resident in the UK is drawn to the provisions contained in Chapter 2 (Transfer of assets abroad) of Part 13 of the Income Tax Act 2007. These provisions prevent avoidance of UK income tax by such individuals through transactions (which could include acquiring Shares in the Company) resulting in the transfer of assets or income to persons (including companies) resident or domiciled outside the United Kingdom. These provisions may render such individuals liable to UK income tax on an annual basis in respect of income and profits of the Company not distributed to them. This legislation is not directed towards the taxation of capital gains.

The attention of Shareholders who are resident in the UK is also drawn to section 3 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992. This section could be material to any such person whose proportionate interest in the Company (whether as a Shareholder or otherwise as a "participator" for United Kingdom taxation purposes) when aggregated with that of persons connected with that person is more than 25% if, at the same time, the Company is itself controlled in such manner that, were it to be resident in the United Kingdom for taxation purposes, it would be a "close" company for those purposes. The provisions of this section, if applied, will have the effect of making such individual Shareholders liable to UK capital gains tax (or, in the case of Shareholders that are companies, corporation tax on chargeable gains) on an apportioned part of any capital gains accruing to the Company as if it had accrued to that Shareholder directly. This rule should only apply where either the holding or disposal of the asset formed part of arrangements of which one of the main purposes was the avoidance of capital gains tax or corporation tax.

The provisions concerning controlled foreign companies ("CFCs"), set out in Part 9A of the Taxation (International and Other Provisions) Act 2010, impose a charge to tax on chargeable profits, affecting any UK resident company with an interest of 25% or more (including the interests of associated or connected persons) in the profits of a non-UK resident company provided no statutory exemptions apply. Where a CFC's profits fall within certain "gateway" provisions (and are not otherwise excluded by any exemption) they will be apportioned to UK participators. This charge may be reduced by a credit for any foreign tax attributable to the relevant profits and by the offset of UK reliefs. UK resident companies holding a right to 25% or more of the profits of the Company (directly or indirectly) are advised to seek their own specific professional taxation advice in relation to whether and how these rules might affect their proposed investment in the Company. The legislation is not directed towards the taxation of capital gains.

German Taxation

The information provided in this section is not exhaustive and does not constitute legal or tax advice. This information does not constitute a complete analysis of all tax considerations and is limited to certain aspects of current German tax law and practice, which may not apply to certain classes of Shareholders.

Investment fund taxation regime applicable since 1 January 2018

On 1 January 2018 the German Investment Tax Act (GITA) became effective. The tax regime distinguishes between "investment funds" as defined in section 1 paragraph 2 of the GITA and "special-investment funds" as defined in section 26 of the GITA (the latter meaning investment funds that have to fulfil additional requirements and that are not eligible for investment natural persons (subject to certain exceptions)).

All of the Funds will be treated as "investment funds" pursuant to the GITA and will therefore not be subject to the "special-investment funds" tax regime.

The following description of the investment taxation regime therefore relates exclusively to the rules applicable to "investment funds" as defined under the GITA.

The GITA prescribes the following taxation rules at fund level and shareholder level:

Funds

Since 1 January 2018 domestic German and non-German investment funds are taxed at fund level with respect to certain German source income, including, in particular, German dividend income and German real estate income.

In the case of German dividend income, a final German tax is withheld at source. For investment funds that are in possession of a valid fund status certificate the tax rate to be applied is 15.0% (including a 5.5% solidarity surcharge). Those Funds having exposure to German assets will apply for the fund status certificate.

For German source income that is not subject to a German withholding tax at source (in particular, German real estate income) the German tax rate is 15.825% (including a 5.5% solidarity surcharge). The German tax is levied in the course of an annual tax assessment with a tax filing obligation on the relevant Fund.

Investment funds are generally subject to German trade tax but can be exempt from trade taxation if the requirements pursuant to section 15 paragraph 2 GITA are fulfilled.

Shareholders

Transition rules

At the level of the German shareholders of an investment fund and for the purposes of the transition to the GITA as applicable since 1 January 2018, the GITA provides for a "fictitious" disposal of the shares in the investment fund on 31 December 2017 and for their reacquisition on 1 January 2018. The taxation of capital gains arising from this "fictitious" disposal will be deferred, free of interest, until the shares are ultimately redeemed or otherwise disposed of. These capital gains will be calculated based on the taxation principles applicable on 31 December 2017 but will be taxed with the tax rates and pursuant to the tax procedures applicable at the time of the actual disposal. Any appreciation in the value of the relevant fund shares from 1 January 2018 until the time of their actual disposal will also be subject to tax payable by German shareholders pursuant to the rules of the GITA as applicable from 1 January 2018.

Capital gains derived from the aforementioned "fictitious" disposal of fund shares that were acquired before 1 January 2009 and that were held by private investors (i.e. natural persons) since their acquisition ("Grandfathered Shares") will:

- not be subject to tax to the extent that the capital gains derive from appreciations in value of the Grandfathered Shares which occurred up until 31 December 2017; and
- only be subject to tax on the amount exceeding €100,000 to the extent the capital gains derive from appreciations in value of the fund shares occurred from 1 January 2018 on.

Taxable income

Under the GITA, German Shareholders of a Fund are, in principle, subject to an "opaque taxation". German Shareholders are taxable with the following income from a Fund (so-called "Investment Income"):

- distributions, including dividends and repayments of contributed capital from a Fund;
- the so-called "lump-sum taxation amount" (see below for further details); and
- capital gains from the disposal (i.e. redemption or sale) of Shares in a Fund.

The lump-sum taxation amount is attributed to German Shareholders as deemed taxable income on an annual basis on the first business day of the following calendar year with respect to the preceding calendar year. The lump-sum taxation amount is calculated as follows: redemption price (or alternatively stock exchange price or market price) per Fund Share at the beginning of the calendar year multiplied by 70% of the so-called "basic interest rate" (Basiszins) as published by the German Federal Ministry of Finance (for the lump-sum taxation amount with respect to the calendar year 2022 that is attributed on 2 January 2023: at the rate of -0.05% p.a.; since the basic interest rate was negative, no lump-sum taxation applied; the basic interest rate at the time of issue of this Prospectus is 3.12%, so application of a lump sum taxation on 2 January 2024 is expected). The lump sum taxation amount is reduced by the actual distributions of the respective calendar year. The lump sum taxation amount is further capped by reference to the sum of (i) the actual increase of the redemption price (or stock exchange price or market price, as applicable) of the Fund Share during the calendar year plus (ii) the actual annual distributions.

The Investment Income is as a rule subject to:

- (i) German income tax at a flat tax rate of 25% (plus solidarity surcharge and church tax, if applicable) in the case of German Shareholders holding Fund Shares as private assets ("Private Investors"):
- (ii) German income tax at the personal progressive income tax rate (up to 45% plus solidarity surcharge and church tax, if applicable) and German trade tax at the respective local trade tax rate in the case of German Shareholders holding Fund Shares as business assets ("Business Investors"); and
- (iii) German corporate income tax at a rate of 15% (plus solidarity surcharge) and trade tax at the respective local trade tax rate in the case of German Shareholders qualifying as corporate tax subjects ("Corporate Investors").

Partial tax exemptions

Shareholders of the Funds may benefit from a partial tax exemption on any Investment Income (i.e. distributions, the lump-sum taxation amount and capital gains from a disposal/redemption of Fund Shares) if the respective Fund qualifies as an "Equity Fund" or "Mixed Fund" pursuant to section 2 paragraph 6 and 7 GITA (see further below). The current partial tax exemption rates are set out in the following table:

	Private Investors	Business Investors	Corporate Investors
Equity Fund	30%	60%	80%
Mixed Fund	15%	30%	40%

The (increased) partial tax exemptions for Business Investors and Corporate Investors do not apply (i) to life and health insurance companies if Fund Shares are attributable to their capital investments (*Kapitalanlagen*), (ii) to credit or financial services institutions if Fund Shares are attributable to their trading assets (*Handelsbestand*) and (iii) to finance companies of which more than 50% is owned directly or indirectly by credit or financial services institutions if Fund Shares are at the time of the acquisition attributable to the short-term assets (*Umlaufvermögen*). In these cases, the partial tax exemption for Private Investors (i.e. 30%) applies.

For trade tax purposes, only half of the aforementioned partial tax exemptions apply. "Equity Fund" / "Mixed Fund"

The categorisation of a Fund as an "Equity Fund" or a "Mixed Fund" pursuant to the GITA depends on whether the Fund meets certain "Equity Participation" thresholds.

"Equity Funds" are defined as funds, which according to their investment conditions continuously invest more than 50% of their net asset value in "Equity Participations" within the meaning of section 2 paragraph 8 GITA. As stipulated in section 2 paragraph 9a sentence 3 GITA, in this case a proportion of the fund's credits – if any – is to be considered when complying with the 50% minimum.

"Mixed Funds" are defined as funds, which according to their investment conditions continuously invest at least 25% of their net assets in "Equity Participations" within the meaning of section 2 paragraph 8 GITA. As stipulated in section 2 paragraph 9a sentence 3 GITA, in this case a proportion of the fund's credits – if any – is to be considered when complying with the 25% minimum.

Currently no Funds of the Company qualify as "Equity Funds" pursuant to the GITA. Lazard European Alternative Fund is the only Fund that qualifies as a "Mixed Fund" on the basis of its investment conditions contained in its Supplement. Details on the minimum "Equity Participation" level of Lazard European Alternative Fund as well as its daily "Equity Participation" ratio will be provided to WM Datenservice.

In the event that any other Fund intends to qualify for "Equity Fund" or "Mixed Fund" status under the GITA in the future, the Supplement for that respective Fund will be updated accordingly and details of its minimum "Equity Participation" level (as contained in its Supplement) as well as its daily "Equity Participation" ratio will be provided to WM Datenservice.

In cases where the Supplement for a Fund does not include the specific disclosures required (in particular, the minimum "Equity Participation" thresholds) for a Fund to qualify as either an "Equity Fund" or a "Mixed Fund" for the purposes of the GITA, the German Shareholders can nevertheless – upon application – benefit from the partial tax exemptions if they can provide evidence to the German tax authorities, retroactively in the course of their annual tax assessment, that the respective Fund has in fact in its investment practice continuously throughout its fiscal year complied with the required minimum "Equity Participation" thresholds applicable to "Equity Funds" or "Mixed Funds", respectively (section 20 paragraph 4 GITA). For the purposes of providing this evidence, a retroactive confirmation of the respective Fund's categorisation as either an "Equity Fund" or a "Mixed Fund", as applicable, together with the realised "Equity Participation" ratios for each business day of the Fund's fiscal year will be provided on the website www.lazardassetmanagement.com following the Fund's fiscal year end. A fund categorisation confirmed retroactively in this manner cannot be relied upon as an indicator that the Fund will fulfil the requirements of an "Equity Fund" or "Mixed Fund" in the future.

The German custody bank of the respective Shareholder will be responsible for the correct withholding of taxes for which the Shareholder is liable. For the purpose of the Shareholder taxation, the Manager intends to make commercially reasonable efforts to provide all relevant information for the taxation of the Shareholders under the GITA via reporting to WM Datenservice. To facilitate the filing of relevant tax returns by Shareholders who do not hold their Shares in a German custody bank, the Manager intends to make commercially reasonable efforts to provide all relevant information for the purposes of the Shareholder taxation under the GITA via www.lazardassetmanagement.com.

Tax Risk

The legal and fiscal treatment of the Funds by the German tax authorities may change in ways that are unforeseeable and beyond the reasonable control of the Company.

For example, where the German tax authorities undertake field audits in respect of any of the Funds, this may give rise to a re-categorisation of the relevant Fund(s) for the purposes of the GITA, which could impact the historic and future taxation of Shareholders of any such Fund(s) in an unfavourable way. Additionally, changes to the investment policy of a Fund or substantial infringements of the minimum "Equity Participation" ratio in the investment practice of a Fund might lead to such a recategorisation.

Any such re-categorisation would result in a "fictitious" disposal of the Shares of the relevant Fund(s) and a reacquisition of the Shares in the Fund(s) on the following day. The "fictitious" disposal would take place on the day on which the investment policy of the Fund(s) is changed or the investments of the Fund(s) fell below the "Equity Participation" threshold applicable to "Equity Funds" or "Mixed Funds", as relevant, or, if the evidence pursuant to section 20 paragraph 4 GITA can be provided only for one fiscal year of a Fund but not for the following fiscal year, at the end of the Fund's preceding fiscal year (the "Breach Event"). The capital gains resulting from this "fictitious" disposal (if any) would however only be taxed at the point in time when the Shares in the Fund(s) are actually disposed of. The tax deferral would be free of interest. The capital gains from the "fictitious" disposal would be subject to the partial tax exemptions applicable to the respective Fund before the Breach Event occurred. Any capital gains from appreciations in value of the newly acquired Shares occurred after the "fictitious" disposal would be subject to the partial tax exemptions applicable to the Fund(s) after the re-categorisation (if any).

STATUTORY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Incorporation, Registered Office and Share Capital

- (a) The Company was incorporated in Ireland under its name Lazard Global Investment Funds plc on 3 February 2009 as an investment company with variable capital, segregated liability between its Funds and with limited liability under registration number 467074.
- (b) The registered office of the Company is currently at 6th Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, D02 A342 Ireland.
- (c) The authorised share capital of the Company is two Subscriber Shares of Stg £1.00 each and 5,000,000,000,000 Shares of no par value. The two Subscriber Shares are held by the Manager and the Promoter.
- (d) Neither the subscriber shares nor the Shares carry pre-emption rights.

2. Share Rights

The holders of Shares shall:

- (a) on a vote taken on a show of hands, be entitled to one vote per holder and, on a poll, be entitled to one vote per whole Share;
- (b) be entitled to such dividends as the Directors may from time to time declare;
- (c) in the event of a winding up or dissolution of the Company, have the entitlements referred to under "Distribution of Assets on a Liquidation" below; and

(d) the holders of Subscriber Shares shall not be entitled to any dividend whatsoever in respect of their holding of Subscriber Shares.

3. Voting Rights

This is dealt with under the rights attaching to the Shares referred to at 2 above. Shareholders who are individuals may attend and vote at general meetings in person or by proxy. Shareholders who are corporations may attend and vote at general meetings by appointing a representative or proxy.

Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any Shares may be issued or may for the time being be held, at any general meeting on a show of hands every Shareholder who (being an individual) is present in person or (being a corporation) is present by duly authorised representative shall have one vote. On a poll every such holder present as aforesaid or by proxy shall have one vote for every Share held.

To be passed, ordinary resolutions of the Company in a general meeting will require a simple majority of the votes validly cast by the Shareholders voting in person or by proxy at the meeting at which the resolution is proposed.

A majority of not less than 75% of the votes validly cast by Shareholders present in person or by proxy in general meetings is required in order to pass a special resolution including a resolution to (i) rescind, alter or amend an Article or make a new Article and (ii) wind up the Company.

4. Memorandum

The Memorandum of the Company provides that the sole object for which the Company is established is the collective investment in transferable securities and/or other liquid financial assets referred to in the Regulations, of capital raised from the public and which operates on the principle of spreading investment risk in accordance with the Regulations. The object of the Company is set out in full at Clause 3 of the Memorandum which is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company.

5. Articles

The following section is a summary of the principal provisions of the Articles of the Company not previously summarised in this Prospectus.

Alteration of share capital

The Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution increase its capital, consolidate and divide its Shares or any of them into Shares of a larger amount, sub-divide its shares or any of them into shares of a smaller amount, or cancel any Shares not taken or agreed to be taken by any person. The Company may also by special resolution from time to time reduce its share capital in any way permitted by law.

Issues of Shares

The Shares shall be at the disposal of the Directors and they may (subject to the provisions of the Act) allot, offer or otherwise deal with or dispose of them to such persons, at such times and on such terms as they may consider in the best interests of the Company.

Variation of rights

Whenever the share capital is divided into different classes of Shares, the rights of any class may be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of three quarters of the issued and outstanding Shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of that class of Shares and the necessary quorum shall be (other than an adjourned meeting) two persons holding shares issued in that class (and

at the adjourned meeting the necessary quorum shall be one person holding Shares of that class or his proxy).

The special rights attaching to any Shares of any class shall not (unless the conditions of issue of such class of Shares expressly provide otherwise) be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of other Shares ranking *pari passu* therewith.

Directors

- (a) Each Director shall be entitled to such remuneration for his services as the Directors shall from time to time resolve. The Directors may also be paid, inter alia, for travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them in attending meetings of the Directors or in connection with the business of the Company. Any Director who devotes special attention to the business of the Company may be paid such extra remuneration as the Directors may determine (see the section headed "Fees and Expenses" above in relation to Directors' fees).
- (b) A Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than the office of auditor) in conjunction with his office of Director, and may act in a professional capacity to the Company on such terms as the Directors may determine.
- (c) Subject to the provisions of the Act, and provided that he has disclosed to the Directors the nature and extent of any material interest of his, a Director notwithstanding his office:
 - (i) may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement with the Company or any subsidiary or associated company thereof;
 - (ii) may be a Director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested; and
 - (iii) shall not be accountable, by reason of his office, to the Company for any benefit which he derives from any such office or employment or from any such transaction or arrangement or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the ground of any such interest or benefit.
- (d) A Director shall not generally be permitted to vote at a meeting of the Directors or a committee of Directors on any resolution concerning a matter in which he has, directly or indirectly, an interest which is material or a duty which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Company. A Director shall not be counted in the quorum present at a meeting in relation to any such resolution on which he is not entitled to vote. A Director shall be entitled to vote (and be counted in the quorum) in respect of resolutions concerning certain matters in which he has an interest including any proposal concerning any other company in which he is interested, directly or indirectly provided that he is not the holder of or beneficially interested in 10% or more of the issued shares of any class of such company or of the voting rights available to members of such company (or of a third company through which his interest is derived).
- (e) There is no provision in the Articles requiring a Director to retire by rotation or by reason of any age limit and no share qualification for Directors.
- (f) The number of Directors shall not be less than two provided that a majority of Directors shall not be resident in the United Kingdom.
- (g) The quorum for meetings of Directors may be fixed by the Directors and unless so fixed shall be two provided that if a majority of the Directors present are resident in the United Kingdom the Directors present, irrespective of their number shall not constitute a quorum.
- (h) The office of a Director shall be vacated in any of the following circumstances, if:

- (i) he ceases to be a Director by virtue of any provisions of the Act or becomes prohibited by law from being a Director;
- (ii) the Central Bank has issued a prohibition notice in respect of such Director;
- (iii) he becomes a bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally;
- (iv) in the opinion of a majority of the Directors he becomes incapable by reason of mental disorder of discharging his duties as a Director;
- (v) he resigns from his office by notice to the Company;
- (vi) he is convicted of an indictable offence and the Directors determine that as a result of such conviction he should cease to be a Director;
- (vii) a majority of the Directors are satisfied on reasonable grounds that he no longer complies with any standards of fitness and probity in a code issued by the Central Bank from time to time;
- (viii) by a resolution of his co-Directors he is requested to vacate office;
- (ix) the Company by ordinary resolution so determines;
- (x) he shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without permission of the Directors from meetings of the Directors held during that period and the Directors pass a resolution that he has by reason of such absence vacated office; or
- (xi) subsequent to his appointment he becomes resident in the United Kingdom and as a result thereof a majority of the Directors are resident in the United Kingdom.

A Director shall comply immediately with any suspension notice issued by the Central Bank in respect of such Director and shall accordingly cease performing any or all of the functions of his office as may be specified in the notice. For so long as a suspension notice is in force, any Director, the subject of such notice, shall not attend any meetings of the Directors and shall not be counted in the quorum thereat.

The Company may also, as a separate power, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Act, by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders, remove any Director (including a Managing Director or other executive director) before the expiry of his period of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Articles or in any agreement between the Company and any such Director.

Borrowing powers

The Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow or raise money (including the power to borrow for the purpose of repurchasing Shares) and to hypothecate, mortgage, charge or pledge its undertaking, property and assets or any part thereof, but only in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations.

Dividends

No dividends are payable on the Subscriber Shares.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends on a class or classes of Shares, but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the Directors. If the Directors so resolve and, in any event, on the winding up of the Company or on the total redemption of Shares, any dividend which has remained unclaimed for six years shall be forfeited and become the property of the Company.

Distribution of assets on a liquidation

- (a) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator shall, subject to the provisions of the Act, apply the assets of the Company on the basis that any liability incurred or attributable to a Fund shall be discharged solely out of the assets of that Fund.
- (b) The assets available for distribution among the members shall then be applied in the following priority:
 - (i) firstly, in the payment to the Shareholders of each class of a sum in the currency in which that class is designated or in any other currency selected by the liquidator as nearly as possible equal of such class (at the prevailing rate of exchange) to the Net Asset Value of the Shares held by such Shareholders respectively as at the date of commencement to wind up provided that there are sufficient assets available in the relevant Fund to enable such payment to be made. In the event that, as regards any class of Shares, there are insufficient assets available in the relevant Fund to enable such payment to be made recourse shall be had to the assets of the Company (if any) not comprised within any of the Funds and not (save as provided in the Act) to the assets comprised within any of the Funds;
 - (ii) secondly, in the payment to the holders of the Subscriber Shares of sums up to the nominal amount paid thereon out of the assets of the Company not comprised within any Funds remaining after any recourse thereto under sub-paragraph (b)(i) above. In the event that there are insufficient assets aforesaid to enable such payment to be made, no recourse shall be had to the assets comprised within any of the Funds;
 - (iii) thirdly, in the payment to the holders of each class of Shares of any balance remaining in the relevant Fund, such payment being made in proportion to the numbers of Shares held;
 - (iv) fourthly, in the payment to the holders of the Shares of any balance then remaining and not comprised within any of the Funds such payment being made in proportion to the Net Asset Value of each Fund and within each Fund to the Net Asset Value of each class and in proportion to the number of Shares held in each class;

Indemnities

The Directors (including alternates), Secretary and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified by the Company against losses and expenses which any such person may become liable to by reason of any contract entered into or any act or thing done by him as such officer in the discharge of his duties (other than in the case of negligence or wilful misconduct).

The assets of the Company and the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Shares

- (a) The Net Asset Value of a Fund shall be determined (except in the case of suspension) as at each Valuation Point and shall be the value of all the assets comprised in a Fund less all the liabilities attributable to the Fund calculated in accordance with the Regulations.
- (b) The assets of the Company shall be deemed to include (i) all cash in hand, on deposit, or on call including any interest accrued thereon and all accounts receivable; (ii) all bills, demand notes, certificates of deposit and promissory notes; (iii) all bonds, forward currency transactions, shares, stock, units of or participation in collective investment schemes/mutual funds, debentures, debenture stock, subscription rights, warrants, futures contracts, options contracts, swap contracts, contracts for difference, fixed rate securities, floating rate securities, securities in respect of which the return and/or redemption amount is calculated by reference to any index, price or rate, financial instruments and other investments and securities owned or contracted for in respect of the Company; (iv) all stock and cash dividends and cash distributions to be received in respect of the Company and not yet received by the Company but declared to stockholders on record on a date on or before the day as of which the net asset value is being determined; (v) all subscription payments due but not yet received by the Company; (vi) all interest accrued on any interest-bearing securities attributed to the Company

except to the extent that the same is included or reflected in, the principal value of such security; (vii) all other Investments of the Company; (viii) the establishment costs attributable to the Company and the cost of issuing and distributing Shares of the Company in so far as the same have not been written off; and (ix) all other assets of the Company of every kind and nature including prepaid expenses as valued and defined from time to time by the Directors.

- (c) The valuation principles to be used in valuing the Company's assets are as follows:
 - (i) the Directors shall be entitled to use the amortised cost method of valuation, whereby Investments are valued at their cost of acquisition adjusted for amortisation of premium or accretion of discount on the Investments rather than at the current market value of the Investments. However, the amortised cost method of valuation may only be used in relation to funds which comply with Central Bank Requirements for money market funds and where a review of the amortised cost valuation vis-à-vis the market valuation is carried out in accordance with the Central Bank's guidelines. Money market instruments in a non-money market fund may be valued on an amortised basis, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements;
 - (ii) the value of any Investment which is quoted, listed or normally dealt in on a Regulated Market, including units or shares in exchange-traded funds, shall (save in the specific cases set out in paragraph (i) above or in the relevant paragraphs below) be based on the last traded price where the Investment in question is an equity security and, where the Investment in questions is not an equity security on the closing mid-market price on such Regulated Market as at the Valuation Point (or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is available), provided that:
 - A. if an Investment is quoted, listed or normally dealt in on more than one Regulated Market, the Directors may, in their absolute discretion select any one of such markets for the foregoing purposes (provided that the Directors have determined that such market constitutes the main market for such Investment or provides the fairest criteria for valuing such Investment) and once selected a market shall be used for future calculations of the Net Asset Value of that Investment unless the Directors otherwise determine:
 - B. in the case of any Investment which is quoted, listed or normally dealt in on a Regulated Market but in respect of which, for any reason, prices on that market may not be available at any relevant time, or, in the opinion of the Directors, may not be representative, the value therefor shall be the probable realisation value thereof estimated with care and in good faith by a competent person appointed by the Directors (and approved for the purpose by the Depositary); and
 - C. in the case of any Investment which is quoted, listed or normally dealt in or on a Regulated Market but acquired or traded at a premium or at a discount outside or off the relevant Regulated Market, the Investment may be valued taking into account the level of premium or discount at the date of the valuation. The Depositary must ensure that the adoption of such a procedure is justifiable in the context of establishing the probable realisation value of the Investment;
 - (iii) the value of any Investment which is not quoted, listed or normally dealt in on a Regulated Market shall be the probable realisable value therefor estimated with care and good faith by a competent person appointed by the Directors (and approved for the purpose by the Depositary);
 - (iv) the value of any Investment which is a share of, unit of or participation in an openended collective investment scheme shall be the latest available net asset value for the Investment as published by the collective investment scheme in question or, where such Investment is quoted, listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market, may be a value determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (c)(ii) above;

- (v) the value of any prepaid expenses, cash dividends and interest declared or accrued as aforesaid and not yet received shall be deemed to be the full amount thereof unless in any case the Directors are of the opinion that the same is unlikely to be paid or received in full in which case the value thereof shall be arrived at after making such discount as the Directors (with the approval of the Depositary) may consider appropriate in such case to reflect the true value thereof;
- (vi) deposits/cash in hand shall be valued at their principal/face/nominal amount plus accrued interest from the date on which the same were acquired or made;
- (vii) treasury bills shall be valued at the middle market dealing price on the market on which same are traded or admitted to trading as at the Valuation Point, provided that where such price is not available, same shall be valued at the probable realisable value therefor estimated with care and good faith by a competent person appointed by the Directors (and approved for the purpose by the Depositary);
- (viii) bonds, notes, debenture stocks, certificates of deposit, bank acceptances, trade bills and similar assets shall be valued at the last available mid- market dealing price on the market on which these assets are traded or admitted for trading (being the market which is the sole market or in the opinion of the Directors the principal market on which the assets in question are quoted or dealt in) plus any interest accrued thereon from the date on which same were acquired;
- the value of any futures contracts and options (including index futures) which are dealt in on a Regulated Market shall be the settlement price as determined by the market in question, provided that if such settlement price is not available for any reason or is unrepresentative, same shall be valued at the probable realisation value thereof estimated with care and good faith by a competent person appointed by the Directors (and approved for the purpose by the Depositary);
- (x) the value of any over-the-counter derivative contracts shall be:
 - 1. the quotation from the counterparty provided that such quotation is provided on at least a daily basis and verified at least weekly by a person independent of the counterparty and who is approved for the purpose by the Depositary; or
 - 2. an alternative valuation as the Directors may determine in accordance with Central Bank Requirements. This may be a valuation that is provided on at least a daily basis by a competent person (which may be the Company or an independent pricing vendor provided that the appointed party has adequate means to perform the valuation) appointed by the Directors and approved for that purpose by the Depositary (or a valuation by any other means provided that the value is approved by the Depositary). The valuation principles employed must follow best international practice established by bodies such as IOSCO (International Organisation of Securities Commission) and AIMA (the Alternative Investment Management Association) and any such alternative valuation must be reconciled to that of the counterparty on a monthly basis. Where significant differences arise on the monthly reconciliation, these must be promptly investigated and explained;
- (xii) forward foreign exchange and interest rate swaps contracts may be valued in accordance with the previous paragraph or by reference to freely available market quotations (in which case there is no requirement to have such prices independently verified or reconciled to the counterparty valuation);
- (xiii) notwithstanding any of the foregoing sub-paragraphs, the Directors with the approval of the Depositary may adjust the value of any Investment if, having regard to currency, applicable rate of interest, maturity, marketability and/or such other considerations as

they may deem relevant, they consider that such adjustment is required to reflect the fair value thereof;

- (xiv) if in any case a particular value is not ascertainable as above provided or if the Directors shall consider that some other method of valuation better reflects the fair value of the relevant Investment then in such case the method of valuation of the relevant Investment shall be such as the Directors shall decide with the approval of the Depositary;
- (xv) the Directors may, in order to comply with any applicable accounting standards, present the value of any assets of the Company in financial statements to Shareholders in a manner different to that set out in paragraphs (i) to (xiii) above.
- (d) Any certificate as to Net Asset Value of Shares given in good faith (and in the absence of negligence or manifest error) by or on behalf of the Directors shall be binding on all parties.

6. Money Laundering

The Directors of the Company, the Manager and the Administrator have a responsibility to regulators for compliance with anti-money laundering regulations around the world and, for that reason, existing Shareholders, potential subscribers for and transferees of Shares may be asked for proof of identity and/or to fulfil other requirements. Until satisfactory proof of identity is provided and/or those requirements are fulfilled, the Directors reserve the right to withhold issuance redemption and approval of transfers of Shares.

In case of delay or failure to provide satisfactory proof of identity, the Company and the Manager may take such action as they see fit including the right to redeem issued Shares compulsorily.

7. Material Contracts

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have been entered into by the Company and are, or may be, material:

- (a) The Management Agreement. The Management Agreement provides that the appointment of the Manager will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice, although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other. The Management Agreement contains provisions regarding the Manager's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of the Manager other than for matters arising by reason of its fraud, bad faith, wilful default, recklessness or negligence in the performance of its duties and obligations;
- (b) The Depositary Agreement. The Depositary Agreement provides that the appointment of the Depositary will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the Agreement may be terminated forthwith. The Depositary Agreement contains provisions regarding the Depositary's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of the Depositary excluding in respect of matters arising by reason of the negligence, fraud, bad faith, breach of contract, wilful default or recklessness in the performance of its duties.
- (c) The Administration Agreement. The Administration Agreement provides that the appointment of the Administrator will continue in force unless and until terminated by any party giving to the others the relevant period of advanced written notice, although in certain circumstances (e.g. the insolvency of any party, unremedied breach after notice, etc.) the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other. The Administration Agreement contains provisions regarding the Administrator's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of the Administrator other than for matters arising by reason of the negligence, fraud, bad faith, recklessness or wilful default of the Administrator or its permitted delegates, servants or agents in the performance or non-

- performance of the Administrator's duties or obligations under the Administration Agreement;
- (d) The Promoter and Distributor Agreement. The Promoter and Distributor Agreement provides that the appointment of the Promoter/Distributor will continue in force unless and until terminated by any party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice. The Promoter and Distributor Agreement contains provisions regarding the Promoter/Distributor's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of the Promoter/Distributor other than for matters arising by reason of its fraud, bad faith, wilful default or negligence in the performance of its duties and obligations;
- (e) The Lazard UK IMA. The Lazard UK IMA provides that the appointment of Lazard Asset Management Limited as investment manager to certain of the Funds will continue in force unless and until terminated by the Company and the Manager giving to the Lazard Asset Management Limited or vice versa not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the Lazard UK IMA may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing from the Company and the Manager to Lazard Asset Management Limited or vice versa. The Lazard UK IMA contains provisions regarding Lazard Asset Management Limited's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of Lazard Asset Management Limited other than in respect of matters arising by reason of its fraud, bad faith, wilful default, recklessness or negligence in the performance of its duties and obligations;
- (f) The Lazard US IMA. The Lazard US IMA provides that the appointment of Lazard Asset Management LLC will continue in force for an initial 12 months unless and thereafter until terminated by any of the parties giving to the others not less than 3 months' written notice (so as to expire at the end of any calendar month) or such lesser period as the parties may agree in writing although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by any of the parties to the others. The Lazard US IMA contains provisions regarding Lazard Asset Management LLC's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of Lazard Asset Management LLC other than in respect of matters arising by reason of its fraud, bad faith, wilful default or negligence in the performance of its duties and obligations;
- (g) The Lazard Deutschland IMA. The Lazard Deutschland IMA provides that the appointment of Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH will continue in force unless and until terminated by any of the parties giving to the others not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the Lazard Deutschland IMA may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing from any of the parties to the others.
 - The Lazard Deutschland IMA contains provisions regarding Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH's legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH other than in respect of matters arising by reason of the fraud, bad faith, wilful default, recklessness or negligence of Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH, its employees, officers, agents or subcontractors (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall not include brokers or dealers used by Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH).
- (h) Currency Management Agreements. The Currency Managers have been appointed by Lazard Asset Management LLC and Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH, respectively, pursuant to the Currency Management Agreements. The Company in consideration for the services to be provided by the Currency Managers to Lazard Asset Management LLC and Lazard Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH has joined the Currency Management Agreements for the sole purpose of paying the fees of the Currency Managers. Each of the Currency Management Agreements will continue in force until terminated by either party to that agreement giving to the other party not less than 60 days' written notice or such lesser period of notice as the parties may agree in writing although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by any of the parties to the others. The Currency Management Agreements contain provisions regarding the Currency Managers' legal responsibilities and indemnities in favour of the Currency Managers other than in respect of matters

arising by reason of its fraud, wilful default or negligence in the performance of its duties and obligations.

8. Inspection of Documents

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at any time during normal business hours on any day (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) free of charge at the registered office of the Company in Dublin:

- a. the Constitution of the Company;
- b. the Prospectus; and
- c. the latest annual and semi-annual reports of the Company.

The documents listed at (b) and (c) may be obtained, on request free of charge, from the Administrator. The documents listed at (a) may be obtained, on request free of charge, from the registered office of the Company in Dublin.

9. Facilities Agent in the United Kingdom

The Company has appointed Lazard Asset Management Limited as its facilities agent ("Facilities Agent") to maintain the facilities required of a recognised collective investment scheme pursuant to the rules contained in the part of the Financial Conduct Authority's Handbook of Rules and Guidance governing recognised collective investment schemes.

The facilities are located at the offices of Lazard Asset Management Limited at 50 Stratton Street, London, W1J 8LL, England. At these facilities, any person may:

- (a) inspect and obtain copies (in English) (free of charge) of:
 - (i) the Constitution of the Company;
 - (ii) the latest version of the Prospectus;
 - (iii) the latest version of the KIIDs/KIDs; and
 - (iv) the Company's latest annual and half-yearly reports;
- (b) obtain information (in English) about the price of Shares; and
- (c) make a complaint about the operation of the Company, which the Facilities Agent will transmit to the Manager.

Further, any Shareholder may redeem or arrange for the redemption of Shares and obtain payment at the offices of the Facilities Agent.

10. Complaints Handling Policy

Shareholders may file a complaint in relation to the Company with the Manager in the official language or one of the official languages of their member state of the European Union.

Shareholders may address written complaints to:

The Designated Person for Regulatory Compliance Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited 6th Floor 2 Grand Canal Square Dublin 2 Ireland

Shareholders may file their complaints with the Manager and obtain information regarding the complaints handling procedures free of charge and on request.

Shareholders have the right to refer any complaint to the Central Bank and the Financial Services Ombudsman. The contact details of the Financial Services Ombudsman are:

Address: $3^{\rm rd}$ Floor, Lincoln House, Lincoln Place, Dublin 2, D02 VH29 Telephone: 1890 88 20 90

Email: enquiries@financialombudsman.ie

APPENDIX I

Stock Exchanges and Regulated Markets

With the exception of permitted investment in unlisted securities, the Company will only invest in those securities and derivate instruments listed or traded on a stock exchange or market (including derivative markets) which meets with the regulatory criteria (regulated, operate regularly, be recognised and open to the public) and which is listed in the Prospectus or in any supplement thereto or revision thereof. These stock exchanges and markets are listed in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank, it being noted that the Central Bank does not issue a list of approved markets and exchanges:

1. All stock exchanges of the Member States (except Malta), Australia, Canada, Hong Kong, Iceland, Japan, New Zealand, Norway, Switzerland, the United Kingdom and the United States.

2. The following stock exchanges:

in Argentina Bolsa de Comercio de Buenos Aires

Mercado Abierto Electronico S.A.

in Bahrain Bourse

in Bangladesh the Dhaka Stock Exchange

Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

in Bermuda Stock Exchange

in Botswana Stock Exchange

in Brazil B3 S.A. – Brasil, Bolsa, Balcão

in Chile Bolsa de Santiago

Bolsa Electronica de Chile

in Colombia Bolsa de Valores de Colombia

In Costa Rica Bolsa Nacional de Valores

in Croatia the Zagreb Stock Exchange

in Egypt the Egyptian Exchange

in Ghana Stock Exchange

in India the National Stock Exchange of India (NSE)

BSE

in Indonesia Stock Exchange

in Israel the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange

in Ivory Coast Bourse Régionale des Valeurs Mobilières

in Jordan the Amman Stock Exchange

in Kazakhstan Stock Exchange

in Kenya the Nairobi Securities Exchange

in the Republic of Korea the Korea Exchange

in Kuwait the Boursa Kuwait

in Malaysia Bursa Malaysia

in Mauritius the Stock Exchange of Mauritius

in Mexico Bolsa Mexicana de Valores

in Morocco Bourse de Casablanca

in Nigeria the Nigerian Stock Exchange

In Oman The Muscat Securities Market

in Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

in the People's Republic of

China

Stock Connect

the Shanghai Stock Exchange the Shenzhen Stock Exchange

in Peru Bolsa de Valores de Lima

in Philippines Stock Exchange

in Qatar the Qatar Stock Exchange

in Russia Moscow Exchange

in Saudi Arabia the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul)

In Serbia The Belgrade Stock Exchange

in Singapore Singapore Exchange Limited

CATALIST

in South Africa JSE Limited

in Sri Lanka the Colombo Stock Exchange

in Thailand the Stock Exchange of Thailand

Market for Alternative Investments

in Taiwan Stock Exchange

the Taipei Exchange

in Tunisia Bourse de Tunis

in Turkey Borsa Istanbul

in the U.A.E. - Abu Dhabi the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange

in the U.A.E. - Dubai the Dubai Financial Market

the United Arab Emirates Dubai International Financial

Center

in Uruguay Bolsa de Valores de Montevideo

Bolsa Electrónica de Valores del Uruguay SA

in Vietnam the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange

the Hanoi Stock Exchange

Unlisted Public Companies Market (UPCOM)

in Zambia the Lusaka Stock Exchange

in Zimbabwe Stock Exchange

3. The following regulated markets:

- (a) derivative markets approved in a member state of the European Economic Area ("EEA") and any derivative markets approved in the United Kingdom;
- (b) the Alternative Investment Market regulated and operated by the London Stock Exchange Limited;
- (c) the market in the UK conducted by the "listed money market institutions" as described in the Bank of England publication "The Regulation of the Wholesale Cash and OTC Derivatives markets" "(The Grey Paper)";
- (d) the French market for "Titres de Creance Negotiable" (over-the-counter market in negotiable debt instruments);
- (e) NASDAQ (the electronic inter-dealer quotation system of America operated by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA");
- (f) the over-the-counter market in Japan regulated by the Securities Dealers Association of Japan;
- (g) the market in US government securities conducted by primary dealers regulated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York;
- (h) the market organised by the International Securities Markets Association;
- (i) the over-the-counter markets in the United States regulated by FINRA and the MSRB;
- (j) Moscow Exchange;
- (k) the over-the-counter market in Canadian Government Bonds, regulated by the Investment Dealers Association of Canada;
- (I) the ASX Trade24 (Australia/New Zealand);
- (m) the Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE) and the CBOE Futures Exchange;
- (n) the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME);
- (o) NASDAQ International Securities Exchange (USA);
- (p) ICE Futures U.S. (USA);
- (q) the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX);
- (r) the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx);

- (s) the Osaka Exchange;
- (t) the Tokyo Financial Exchange;
- (u) ICE Futures Singapore;
- (v) Bursa Malaysia;
- (w) Mercado Mexicano de Derivados;
- (x) South African Futures Exchange;
- (y) Thailand Futures Exchange;
- (z) Taiwan Futures Exchange;
- (aa) Borsa Istanbul Derivatives Market (VIOP); and
- (bb) the China Interbank Bond Market.
- 4. For the purposes of investment in FDI, a Fund will only invest in FDI dealt in Regulated Markets in the EEA referred to above or in any of the other non-EEA markets referred to above.
- 5. Investment in Russia, if any, will only be made in securities that are listed or traded on the Open Joint Stock Company Moscow Exchange MICEX-RTS (MICEX-RTS).

The above markets are listed in accordance with regulatory criteria as defined by Central Bank Requirements, it being noted the Central Bank does not issue a list of approved markets or stock exchanges.

APPENDIX II

Efficient Portfolio Management Techniques and Instruments and the use of FDI for Direct Investment Purposes

A. General

The Company may, on behalf of each Fund and subject to the Regulations and to conditions imposed by the Central Bank, employ techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities and money market instruments. The use of these techniques and instruments should be in line with the best interests of the Fund. The use of these techniques and instruments may be for hedging purposes (to protect an asset of a Fund against, or minimise liability from, fluctuations in market value or foreign currency exposures) or for efficient portfolio management purposes (with a view to achieving a reduction in risk, a reduction in costs or an increase in capital or income returns to the Fund provided such transactions are not speculative in nature).

Instruments used for efficient portfolio management may include investments in exchange-traded or OTC FDI, such as futures, currency forwards, index futures, swaps, warrants and rights. Further information in relation to the types, underlying reference assets and commercial purpose of the FDI in which a Fund may invest will be set out in the Supplement for the relevant Fund. A Fund may also invest in FDI for direct investment purposes as part of its investment strategy where such intention is disclosed in the Fund's investment policy. Investment in FDI, whether for direct investment purposes or for efficient portfolio management purposes, must comply with Central Bank Requirements, in addition to complying, where relevant, with the collateral policy set out below under the heading "Collateral Policy". Techniques used for efficient portfolio management include the use of repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending as detailed further below.

The Company shall employ a risk management process to enable it to accurately measure, monitor and manage on a continuous basis, the risk of all open derivative positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of a Fund's portfolio. The Company will, on request, provide supplemental information to Shareholders relating to the risk management methods employed, including the quantitative limits that are applied and any recent developments in the risk and yield characteristics of the main categories of investment.

The Company should only invest assets of the relevant fund in FDI if (a) the FDI do not expose the Fund to risks which the Fund could not otherwise assume; (b) the FDI do not cause the relevant Fund to diverge from its investment objectives as disclosed in this Prospectus and (c) the FDI are dealt in on a regulated market or alternatively the conditions in paragraph D. 1 below are satisfied.

Where the Company, on behalf of a relevant fund, enters into a total return swap or invests in other FDI with similar characteristics the assets held by the Company on behalf of the relevant Fund shall comply with Regulations 70 to 74 of the Regulations.

The conditions and limits for the use of FDI in relation to each Fund are as follows:

- 1. a Fund's global exposure relating to FDI must not exceed its total Net Asset Value;
- position exposure to the underlying assets of FDI, including embedded FDI in transferable securities or money market instruments, when combined where relevant with positions resulting from direct investments, may not exceed the investment limits set out in Central Bank Requirements (although this provision does not apply in the case of index based FDI provided the underlying index is one which meets with the criteria set out in Central Bank Requirements);
- 3. a Fund may invest in FDI dealt in OTC provided that the counterparties to OTC transactions are institutions subject to prudential supervision and belonging to categories approved by the Central Bank; and

4. investments in FDI are subject to the conditions and limits laid down by the Central Bank which include cover requirements, calculation of exposure requirements and stress-testing requirements.

B. Efficient Portfolio Management - Other Techniques and Instruments

- In addition to the investments in FDI noted above, the Company may employ other techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities and money market instruments subject to the conditions and limits set out in Central Bank Requirements. Techniques and instruments which relate to transferable securities or money market instruments and which are used for the purpose of efficient portfolio management, including FDI which are not used for direct investment purposes, shall be understood as a reference to techniques and instruments which fulfil the following criteria:
 - (a) they are economically appropriate in that they are realised in a cost-effective way;
 - (b) they are entered into for one or more of the following specific aims:
 - (i) reduction of risk;
 - (ii) reduction of cost;
 - (iii) generation of additional capital or income for a Fund with a level of risk which is consistent with the risk profile of the Fund and the risk diversification rules set out in the Regulations;
 - (c) their risks are adequately captured by the risk management process of the Company;
 - (d) they cannot result in a change to the Fund's declared investment objective or add substantial supplementary risks in comparison to the general risk policy as described in its sales documents.

Techniques and instruments (other than FDI) which may be used for efficient portfolio management purposes are set out below and are subject to the conditions set out below.

2. Use of Repurchase/Reverse Repurchase Agreements ("Repurchase Transactions") and Securities Lending ("efficient portfolio management techniques")

For the purposes of this section, "Relevant Institutions" refers to those institutions which are (i) credit institutions authorised in the EEA (i.e. European Union Member States, Norway, Iceland, Liechtenstein) or (ii) credit institutions authorised within a signatory state other than an EEA Member State) to the Basle Capital Convergence Agreement of July 1988; or (iii) credit institutions in a third country deemed equivalent pursuant to Article 107(4) of the Regulation (EU) No.575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No.648/2012 (i.e. as at the date of this Prospectus: a credit institution in Argentina, Australia, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brazil, Canada, China, Faroe Islands, Greenland, Guernsey, Hong Kong, India, Isle of Man, Japan, Jersey, Mexico, Monaco, New Zealand, North Macedonia, Saudi Arabia, Serbia, Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Switzerland, Turkey or the USA).

To the extent that the Company, on behalf of a Fund, engages in the use of efficient portfolio management techniques it will be subject to the following provisions:

- 1. Repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending may only be effected in accordance with normal market practice.
- 2. Any counterparty to a repurchase/reverse repurchase agreement or securities lending arrangement shall be subject to an appropriate internal credit assessment carried out by the Company (or its delegate). Where such counterparty (a) was subject to a credit rating

by an agency registered and supervised by the European Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA") that rating shall be taken into account in the credit assessment process; and (b) is downgraded to A-2 or below (or comparable rating) by the credit rating agency referred to in (a) this shall result in a new credit assessment being conducted of the counterparty without delay.

- 3. The Company, on behalf of a Fund, must ensure that it is able at all times to recall any security that has been lent out or terminate any securities lending agreement into which it has entered.
- 4. Where the Company, on behalf of a Fund, enters into a reverse repurchase agreement, it shall ensure that it is able at all times to recall the full amount of cash or to terminate the reverse repurchase agreement on either an accrued basis or a mark-to-market basis. When the cash is recallable at any time on a mark-to-market basis, the mark-to-market value of the reverse repurchase agreement shall be used for the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund.
- 5. Where the Company, on behalf of a Fund, enters into a repurchase agreement, it shall ensure that it is able at all times to recall any securities subject to the repurchase agreement or to terminate the repurchase agreement into which it has entered.
- 6. Fixed-term repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements that do not exceed seven days should be considered as arrangements on terms that allow the assets to be recalled at any time by the Company.
- 7. Repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements or securities lending do not constitute borrowing or lending for the purposes of Regulation 103 and Regulation 111 respectively of the Regulations.
- 8. To the extent that the Company, on behalf of a Fund, engages in efficient portfolio management techniques and to the extent that direct and indirect operational costs/fees arising from efficient portfolio management techniques are deducted from the revenue delivered to the Fund (which costs and fees should not include hidden revenue), the Company will disclose in its financial statements the identity of the entity or entities to which the direct and indirect costs and fees are paid, indicating whether or not these are related parties to the Manager or the Depositary.
- 9. All the revenues arising from efficient portfolio management techniques, net of direct or indirect operational costs, should be returned to the relevant Fund.
- 10. Any net exposure to a counterparty generated through a securities lending or repurchase agreement, where net exposure means the amount receivable by a Fund less any collateral provided by the relevant Fund, must be taken into account when calculating a Fund's compliance with relevant restrictions on issuer concentration.

Neither the Company, the Manager or any Investment Manager currently engage in or enter securities lending arrangements on behalf of any Fund.

However, Repurchase Transactions may be entered into on behalf of any Fund where disclosed in the relevant Supplement.

Repurchase transactions will only be entered into on behalf of a Fund for efficient portfolio management purposes and will only be entered into subject to the conditions and limits set out in the Central Bank UCITS Regulations and in accordance with the provisions set out in this Appendix II.

The Repurchase Transactions entered into on behalf of any Fund, unless otherwise specifically disclosed in the relevant Supplement, will constitute transactions pursuant to which the relevant Fund will acquire securities as collateral (in exchange for cash) from a counterparty who agrees, at the time of contracting, to repurchase the securities at a mutually agreed-upon date

and price, thereby determining the yield to the Fund during the term of the agreement underpinning the transaction. The price which the counterparty must pay to the Fund when repurchasing the securities will usually reflect the original purchase price plus an agreed upon market rate of interest, known as the "repo rate". In the event of default by the counterparty the relevant Fund will become entitled to the collateral, which collateral must comply with the regulatory requirements set out in *Part C: Collateral Policy* (below).

Apart from the Repurchase Transactions entered into on behalf of any relevant Fund, the Company does not otherwise engage, on behalf of any Fund, in Securities Financing Transactions ("SFT") (as such term is defined in this Prospectus and in the SFTR).

C. Collateral Policy

- 1. All assets received by the Company, on behalf of a Fund, in the context of efficient portfolio management techniques and/or OTC derivative transactions should be considered as collateral and should comply with the collateral policy set out below:
 - (a) Liquidity: collateral received other than cash should be highly liquid and traded on a regulated market or multilateral trading facility with transparent pricing in order that it can be sold quickly at a price that is close to pre-sale valuation. Collateral received should also comply with the provisions of Regulation 74 of the Regulations.
 - (b) Valuation: in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements, collateral received shall be valued on at least a daily basis and assets that exhibit high price volatility shall not be accepted as collateral unless suitably conservative haircuts are in place.
 - (c) Issuer credit quality: collateral received should be of high quality. The Company (or its delegate) shall ensure that:
 - i. where the issuer was subject to a credit rating by an agency registered and supervised by ESMA that rating shall be taken into account by the Manager (or its delegate) in the credit assessment process; and
 - ii. where an issuer is downgraded below the two highest short-term credit ratings by the credit rating agency referred to in subparagraph (i) immediately above this shall result in a new credit assessment being conducted of the issuer by the Manager (or its delegate) without delay;
 - (d) Correlation: collateral received should be issued by an entity that is independent from the counterparty. There should be a reasonable ground for the Investment Manager to expect that it would not display a high correlation with the performance of the counterparty; and
 - (e) Diversification (asset concentration):
 - i. subject to subparagraph (ii) immediately below, collateral should be sufficiently diversified in terms of country, markets and issuers with a maximum exposure to a given issuer of 20% of the relevant Fund's Net Asset Value. When a Fund is exposed to different counterparties, the different baskets of collateral should be aggregated to calculate the 20% limit of exposure to a single issuer;
 - ii. a Fund may be fully collateralised in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State, its local authorities, non-Member States or public international bodies of which one or more Member States are members provided such Fund receives securities from at least 6 different issues and securities from any single issue do not account for more than 30% of the relevant Fund's Net Asset Value. The

Member States, local authorities, non-Member States or public international bodies issuing or guaranteeing securities that may be accepted as collateral for more than 20% of a Fund's Net Asset Value are identified in paragraph 2.12 of Appendix III.

- (f) Immediately available: collateral received should be capable of being fully enforced by the Company at any time without reference to or approval from the counterparty.
- 2. Risks linked to the management of collateral, such as operational and legal risks, should be identified, managed and mitigated by the risk management process.
- 3. Collateral received on a title transfer basis should be held by the Depositary. For other types of collateral arrangement, the collateral may be held by a third party depositary/custodian provided that this depositary/custodian is subject to prudential supervision and is unrelated and unconnected to the provider of the collateral.
- 4. Non-cash collateral cannot be sold, pledged or re-invested.
- 5. Cash collateral received by a Fund may not be invested other than in one or more the following:
 - i. a deposit with Relevant Institutions (as defined above);
 - ii. a high-quality government bond;
 - iii. a reverse repurchase agreement provided the transaction is with Relevant Institutions and the Company on behalf of a Fund is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on an accrued basis; or
 - iv. a short-term MMF as defined in Article 2(14) of the Money Market Funds Regulation;
 - v. a Short-Term Money Market Fund as defined in Regulation 89 of the Central Bank's UCITS Regulations where such investment is made prior to 21 January 2019.

Invested cash collateral should be diversified in accordance with the diversification requirement applicable to non-cash collateral. Invested cash collateral may not be placed on deposit with the counterparty or with an entity that is related or connected to the counterparty. Exposures created through the reinvestment of collateral must be taken into account when calculating a Fund's compliance with UCITS restrictions on issuer concentration.

6. Permitted types of collateral

Where the Company, on behalf of a Fund, receives collateral as a result of trading in OTC derivatives or as a result of engaging in efficient portfolio management techniques, the Company intends, subject to the criteria set out at Section C. 1.(a)-(f), above, to accept collateral in the following form:

- (a) cash;
- (b) government and government agency bonds with fixed interest rate payments with a minimum rating of Aaa/AAA by Moody's, Fitch and Standard & Poor's and a maximum maturity, or remaining maturity, of 30 years.

7. Level of collateral required

The value of any collateral received by the Company, adjusted in light of the haircut policy, must be marked to market daily and must equal or exceed, in value, at all times, the value of the amount invested or securities loaned.

8. Haircut Policy

Non-cash collateral received by the Company, on behalf of a Fund, will be subject to a valuation percentage of between 90% to 99% of the value of such collateral in accordance with market standards and depending on the credit quality of the issuer, with the exception of US Treasury STRIPS which will be subject to a valuation percentage of 84%. No haircut will be applied to cash collateral.

Each decision to apply a specific haircut or to refrain from applying a haircut to any specific class of assets will be justified and documented.

- 9. A Fund receiving collateral for at least 30% of its Net Asset Value should have an appropriate stress testing policy in place to ensure regular stress tests are carried out under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions to enable the Manager, on behalf of the Fund, to assess the liquidity risk attached to the collateral. The liquidity stress testing policy should at least prescribe the following:
 - (a) design of stress test scenario analysis including calibration, certification and sensitivity analysis;
 - (b) empirical approach to impact assessment, including back-testing of liquidity risk estimates;
 - (c) reporting frequency and limit/loss tolerance threshold(s); and
 - (d) mitigation actions to reduce loss including haircut policy and gap risk protection.

10. Reinvested Cash Collateral Risks

Where the Company, on behalf of a Fund, reinvests cash collateral this will generate market exposure in the expectation of generating capital gain. Where the reinvestment does not achieve this aim, and, instead the reinvestment generates a loss, the Fund will bear this loss and will be obliged to return to the counterparty the full value of the cash collateral originally invested (rather than the then current value market value of the cash collateral post reinvestment).

D. Eligible Counterparties

- 1. The counterparty to an OTC derivative transaction or to a repurchase transaction must be one of the following:
 - (a) a credit institution authorised in the European Economic Area (EEA) (Member States, Norway, Iceland, Liechtenstein);
 - (b) a credit institution authorised within a signatory state, other than a member state of the EEA, to the Basle Capital Convergence Agreement of July 1988;
 - (c) a credit institution in a third country deemed equivalent pursuant to Article 107(4) of the Regulation (EU) No.575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No.648/2012 (i.e. as at the date of this Prospectus: a credit institution in Argentina, Australia, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brazil, Canada, China, Faroe Islands, Greenland, Guernsey, Hong Kong, India, Isle of Man, Japan, Jersey, Mexico, Monaco, New Zealand, North Macedonia,

- Saudi Arabia, Serbia, Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Switzerland, Turkey or the USA).
- (d) an investment firm, which is authorised in accordance with the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: or
- (e) a group company of an entity approved as a bank holding company by the Federal Reserve of the United States of America where that group company is subject to bank holding company consolidated supervision by the Federal Reserve.
- 2. Where a counterparty within the meaning of paragraph 1(d) or (e) above:
 - (a) was subject to a credit rating by an agency registered and supervised by ESMA that rating shall be taken into account in the credit assessment process: and
 - (b) is downgraded to A-2 or below (or comparable rating) by the credit rating agency referred to in subparagraph (a) immediately above, this shall result in a new credit assessment being conducted of the counterparty without delay.
- 3. Where an OTC derivative is subject to a novation, the counterparty after the novation must be:
 - (a) an entity that falls within any of the categories set out in paragraphs 1(a) (e) of this Section D; or
 - (b) a central counterparty that is:
 - (i) authorised or recognised under EMIR; or
 - (ii) pending recognition by ESMA under Article 25 of EMIR, an entity classified:
 - A. by the SEC as a clearing agency: or
 - B. by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission of the United States of America as a derivatives clearing organisation.
- 4.
- (a) Risk exposure to the counterparty shall not exceed the limits set out in Regulation 70(1)(c) of the Regulations, assessed in accordance with subparagraph (b) below.
- (b) In assessing risk exposure to the counterparty to an OTC derivative for the purpose of Regulation 70(1)(c) of the Regulations:
 - (i) the exposure to the counterparty shall be calculated using the positive markto-market value of the OTC derivative with the counterparty;
 - (ii) derivative positions with the same counterparty may be netted, provided that the Company, on behalf of the relevant Fund, is able to legally enforce netting arrangements with the counterparty. For this purpose netting is permissible only in respect of OTC derivatives with the same counterparty and not in relation to any other exposures the relevant Fund has with the same counterparty;
 - (iii) collateral received by the relevant Fund may be taken into account in order to reduce the exposure to the counterparty, provided that the collateral meets with relevant Central Bank Requirements (as set out at Section C. above).

E. When Issued, Delayed Delivery and Forward Commitment Securities

The Company may invest in securities on a when-issued, delayed delivery and forward commitment basis and such securities will be taken into consideration in calculating a Fund's investment restriction limits.

APPENDIX III

Investment and Borrowing Restrictions

Investment of the assets of the relevant Fund must comply with the Regulations. The Regulations provide:

1	Permitted Investments
	Investments of each Fund are confined to:
1.1	Transferable securities and money market instruments which are either admitted to official listing on a stock exchange in a Member State or non-Member State or which are dealt on a market which is regulated, operates regularly, is recognised and open to the public in a Member State or non-Member State.
1.2	Recently issued transferable securities which will be admitted to official listing on a stock exchange or other market (as described above) within a year.
1.3	Money market instruments, as defined in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, other than those dealt on a regulated market.
1.4	Units of UCITS.
1.5	Units of AIFs as set out in the Central Bank's guidance "UCITS Acceptable Investment in Other Investment Funds".
1.6	Deposits with credit institutions as prescribed by Central Bank Requirements.
1.7	FDI as prescribed by Central Bank Requirements.
2	Investment Restrictions
2.1	Each Fund may invest no more than 10% of its Net Asset Value in transferable securities and money market instruments other than those referred to in paragraph 1 and in accordance with Central Bank Requirements.
2.2	Each Fund may invest no more than 10% of its Net Asset Value in recently issued transferable securities which will be admitted to official listing on a stock exchange or other market (as described in paragraph 1.1) within a year. This restriction will not apply in relation to investment by a Fund in certain US securities known as Rule 144A securities provided that: - the securities are issued with an undertaking to register with the SEC within one year of issue; and - the securities are not illiquid securities i.e. they may be realised by the Fund within seven days at the price, or approximately at the price, at which they are valued by the Fund.
2.3	Each Fund may invest no more than 10% of its Net Asset Value in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same body provided that the total value of transferable securities and money market instruments held in the issuing bodies in each of which it invests more than 5% is less than 40%.
2.4	The limit of 10% (in 2.3) is raised to 25% in the case of bonds that are issued by a credit institution which has its registered office in a Member State and is subject by law to special public supervision designed to protect bond-holders. If a Fund invests more than 5% of its Net Asset Value in these bonds issued by one issuer, the total value of these investments may not exceed 80% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. To avail of this provision the prior approval of the Central Bank is required.

- 2.5 The limit of 10% (in 2.3) is raised to 35% if the transferable securities or money market instruments are issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities or by a non-Member State or public international body of which one or more Member States are members.
- The transferable securities and money market instruments referred to in 2.4 and 2.5 shall not be taken into account for the purpose of applying the limit of 40% referred to in 2.3.
- 2.7 Investment in deposits or cash booked in accounts and held as ancillary liquidity made with the same credit institution shall not exceed 20% of the Net Asset Value of a Fund.

Deposits, or cash booked in accounts and held as ancillary liquidity, shall only be made with a credit institution which is within at least one of the following categories:

- a credit institution authorised in the EEA (i.e. European Union Member States, Norway, Iceland, Liechtenstein);
- a credit institution authorised within a signatory state other than an EEA Member State)
 to the Basle Capital Convergence Agreement of July 1988; or
- a credit institution in a third country deemed equivalent pursuant to Article 107(4) of the Regulation (EU) No.575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No.648/2012 (i.e. as at the date of this Prospectus: a credit institution in Argentina, Australia, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brazil, Canada, China, Faroe Islands, Greenland, Guernsey, Hong Kong, India, Isle of Man, Japan, Jersey, Mexico, Monaco, New Zealand, North Macedonia, Saudi Arabia, Serbia, Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Switzerland, Turkey or the USA).
- 2.8 The risk exposure of a Fund to a counterparty to an OTC derivative may not exceed 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

This limit is raised to 10% in the case of a credit institution which is within at least one of the categories of credit institutions specified above in paragraph 2.7.

- 2.9 Notwithstanding paragraphs 2.3, 2.7 and 2.8 above, a combination of two or more of the following issued by, or made or undertaken with, the same body may not exceed 20% of its Net Asset Value:
 - investments in transferable securities or money market instruments;
 - deposits: and/or
 - counterparty risk exposures arising from OTC derivatives transactions.
- **2.10** The limits referred to in 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.7, 2.8 and 2.9 above may not be combined, so that exposure to a single body shall not exceed 35% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.
- Group companies are regarded as a single issuer for the purposes of 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.7, 2.8 and 2.9. However, a limit of 20% of its Net Asset Value may be applied to investment in transferable securities and money market instruments within the same group.
- Each Fund may invest more than 35% and up to 100% of its Net Asset Value in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by any Member State, its local authorities, non-Member States or public international body of which one or more Member States are members.

The individual issuers may be drawn from the following list:

OECD Governments (provided the relevant issues are investment grade), Government of the People's Republic of China, Government of Brazil (provided the issues are of investment grade), Government of India (provided the issues are of investment grade), Government of Singapore, European Investment Bank, European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, International Monetary Fund, Euratom, The Asian

Development Bank, European Central Bank, Council of Europe, Eurofima, African Development Bank, International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (The World Bank), The Inter American Development Bank, European Union, Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), Government National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae), Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae), Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Tennessee Valley Authority and Straight-A Funding LLC.

Each Fund must hold securities from at least 6 different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of the Fund's Net Asset Value.

3 Investment in Collective Investment Schemes ("CIS")

- 3.1 Subject to section 3.2, investments made by a Fund in units of a UCITS or other CIS may not exceed, in aggregate, 10% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.
- 3.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3.1, where the Supplement of a Fund states that it may invest more than 10% of its assets in other UCITS or CIS, the following restrictions shall apply instead of the restrictions set out at section 3.1 above:
 - a) a Fund may not invest more than 20% of its Net Asset Value in any one UCITS or other CIS;
 - b) a Fund's Investments in AIFs may not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of a Fund's Net Asset Value;
- A Fund may not invest in a UCITS or other CIS which is not itself prohibited from investing more than 10% of its net asset value in other open-ended CIS.
- When a Fund invests in the units of other CIS that are managed, directly or by delegation, by the Fund's management company or by any other company with which the Fund's management company is linked by common management or control, or by a substantial direct or indirect holding, that management company or other company may not charge subscription, conversion or redemption fees on account of the Fund's investment in the units of such other CIS.
- Where, by virtue of investment in the units of another investment fund, the Manager, an investment manager or an investment adviser receives a commission on behalf of the Fund (including a rebated commission), the Manager shall ensure that the relevant commission is paid into the property of the Fund.
- The following investment restrictions apply where a Fund invests in other Funds of the Company (it being noted that no Fund may invest in another Fund of the Company which is itself a "fund of funds"):
 - a Fund will not invest in a Fund of the Company which itself holds shares in other Funds within the Company;
 - a Fund investing in such other Fund of the Company will not be subject to subscription or redemption fees;
 - where investment is made by one Fund (the "Investing Fund") in another Fund of the Company (the "Receiving Fund"), the rate of the annual management fee which investors in the Investing Fund are charged in respect of that portion of the Investing Fund's assets invested in the Receiving Funds (whether such fee is paid directly at Investing Fund level, indirectly at the level of the Receiving Funds or a combination of both) shall not exceed the rate of the maximum annual management fee which investors in the Investing Fund may

be charged in respect of the balance of the Investing Fund's assets, such that there shall be no double charging of the annual management fee to the Investing Fund as a result of its investments in the Receiving Fund. This provision is also applicable to the annual fee charged by the Investment Manager where the fee is paid directly out of the assets of the Company; and

• investment by a Fund in another Fund of the Company will be subject to the limits set out in paragraph 3.1 above (where the investing Fund is not a fund of funds) and 3.2 above (where the investing Fund is a fund of funds).

4 Index Tracking UCITS

Intentionally left blank

5 General Provisions

The Company, or Manager acting in connection with all of the Funds it manages, may not acquire any shares carrying voting rights which would enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuing body.

5.2 A Fund may acquire no more than:

- (i) 10% of the non-voting shares of any single issuing body;
- (ii) 10% of the debt securities of any single issuing body;
- (iii) 25% of the units of any single CIS;
- (iv) 10% of the money market instruments of any single issuing body.

NOTE: The limits laid down in (ii), (iii) and (iv) above may be disregarded at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of the debt securities or of the money market instruments, or the net amount of the securities in issue cannot be calculated.

5.3 5.1 and 5.2 shall not be applicable to:

- (i) transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities;
- (ii) transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a non-Member State;
- (iii) transferable securities and money market instruments issued by public international bodies of which one or more Member States are members:
- (iv) shares held by a Fund in the capital of a company incorporated in a non-member State which invests its assets mainly in the securities of issuing bodies having their registered offices in that State, where under the legislation of that State such a holding represents the only way in which the Fund can invest in the securities of issuing bodies of that State. This waiver is applicable only if in its investment policies the company from the non-Member State complies with the limits laid down in 2.3 to 2.11, 3.2, 5.1, 5.2, 5.4, 5.5 and 5.6, and provided that where these limits are exceeded, paragraphs 5.5 and 5.6 below are observed;
- (v) shares held by the Company in the capital of subsidiary companies carrying on only the business of management, advice or marketing in the country where the subsidiary is located, in regard to the repurchase of shares at shareholders' request exclusively on their behalf.
- A Fund need not comply with the investment restrictions herein when exercising subscription rights attaching to transferable securities or money market instruments which form part of their assets.

5.5	The Central Bank may allow recently authorised Funds to derogate from the provisions of 2.3 to 2.12 and 3.2 for six (6) months following the date of their authorisation, provided they observe the principle of risk spreading.
5.6	If the limits laid down herein are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of a Fund, or as a result of the exercise of subscription rights, the Fund must adopt as a priority objective for its sales transactions the remedying of that situation, taking due account of the interests of its shareholders.
5.7	Neither the Company, nor the Manager may carry out uncovered sales of: - transferable securities; - money market instruments*; - units of CIS; or - FDI.
5.8	A Fund may hold ancillary liquid assets.
6	Borrowing Restrictions
6.1	The Company may not borrow, other than borrowings which in the aggregate do not exceed 10% of the Net Asset Value of a Fund and provided that this borrowing is on a temporary basis. The Depositary may give a charge over the assets of a Fund in order to secure the borrowings attributed to it. Credit balances (e.g. cash) may not be offset against borrowings when determining the percentage of borrowings outstanding;
6.2	The Company may acquire foreign currency by means of a back-to-back loan. Foreign currency obtained in this manner is not classed as borrowings for the purpose of the borrowing restriction in paragraph 6.1, provided that the offsetting deposit: (i) is denominated in the base currency of the Fund and (ii) equals or exceeds the value of the foreign currency loan outstanding. However, where foreign currency borrowings exceed the value of the back-to-back deposit, any excess is regarded as borrowing for the purposes of paragraph 6.1 above.
7	FDI
7.1	Each Fund's global exposure (as prescribed by Central Bank Requirements) relating to FDI must not exceed its total Net Asset Value, where relevant.
7.2	Position exposure to the underlying assets of FDI, including embedded FDI in transferable securities or money market instruments, when combined where relevant with positions resulting from direct investments, may not exceed the investment limits prescribed by Central Bank Requirements. (This provision does not apply in the case of index based FDI provided the underlying index is one which meets with the criteria specified by Central Bank Requirements).
7.3	Each Fund may invest in FDIs dealt in over-the-counter (OTC) provided that the counterparties to over-the-counter transactions (OTCs) are institutions subject to prudential supervision and belonging to categories approved by the Central Bank.
7.4	Investment in FDIs are subject to the conditions and limits laid down by the Central Bank.

 $^{^{\}ast}$ Any short selling of money market instruments by a UCITS is prohibited.

APPENDIX IV

List of entities to whom safekeeping duties of the Depositary may be delegated or sub-delegated

Market	Subcustodian
Albania	Raiffeisen Bank sh.a.
Argentina	Citibank, N.A.
Australia	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Austria	UniCredit Bank Austria AG
Bahrain	First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C.
Bangladesh	Standard Chartered Bank
Belgium	BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A.
Benin	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast
Bermuda	HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited
Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina	UniCredit Bank d.d.
Botswana	Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited
Brazil	Citibank N.A.
Bulgaria	Citibank Europe plc, Bulgaria Branch
	UniCredit Bulbank AD
Burkina Faso	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast
Canada	State Street Trust Company Canada
Chile	Banco de Chile
People's Republic of	HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
China	China Construction Bank Corporation
China Connect	Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Colombia	Cititrust Colombia, S.A. Sociedad Fiduciaria.
Costa Rica	Banco BCT S.A.
Croatia	Privredna Banka Zagreb d.d.
	Zagrebacka Banka d.d.
Cyprus	BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A., Greece (operating through its Athens branch)
Czech Republic	Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Market	Subcustodian	
	UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.	
Denmark	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), Sweden (operating through its Copenhagen branch)	
Egypt	Citibank, N.A.	
Estonia	AS SEB Pank	
Finland	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), Sweden (operating through its Helsinki branch)	
France	BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A.	
Republic of Georgia	JSC Bank of Georgia	
Germany	State Street Bank International GmbH	
	Deutsche Bank AG	
Ghana	Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Plc	
Greece	BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A.	
Guinea-Bissau	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast	
Hong Kong	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	
Hungary	Citibank Europe plc Magyarországi Fióktelepe	
	UniCredit Bank Hungary Zrt.	
Iceland	Landsbankinn hf.	
India	Deutsche Bank AG	
	Citibank, N.A.	
	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	
Indonesia	Standard Chartered Bank	
	Deutsche Bank AG	
Ireland	State Street Bank and Trust Company	
Israel	Bank Hapoalim B.M.	
Italy	Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.	
Ivory Coast	Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A.	
Japan	Mizuho Bank, Limited	
	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	
Jordan	Standard Chartered Bank	

Market	Subcustodian
Kazakhstan	JSC Citibank Kazakhstan
Kenya	Standard Chartered Bank Kenya Limited
Republic of Korea	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
	Deutsche Bank AG
Kuwait	HSBC Bank Middle East Limited
Latvia	AS SEB banka
Lithuania	AB SEB bankas
Malawi	Standard Bank PLC
Malaysia	Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad
Mali	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast
Mauritius	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Mexico	Banco Nacional de México, S.A.
Morocco	Citibank Maghreb S.A.
Namibia	Standard Bank Namibia Limited
Netherlands	BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A. (operating through its Paris branch with support from its Amsterdam branch)
New Zealand	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Niger	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast
Nigeria	Stanbic IBTC Bank Plc.
Norway	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), Sweden (operating through its Oslo branch)
Oman	First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C.
Pakistan	Deutsche Bank AG
	Citibank, N.A.
Panama	Citibank, N.A.
Peru	Citibank del Perú S.A.
Philippines	Standard Chartered Bank
Poland	Bank Handlowy w Warszawie S.A.
Portugal	Citibank Europe plc, Dublin, Ireland
Qatar	HSBC Bank Middle East Limited (as delegate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
Romania	Citibank Europe plc, Dublin – Romania Branch

Market	Subcustodian
Russia	AO Citibank
Saudi Arabia	HSBC Saudi Arabia Limited (as delegate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
	Saudi British Bank (as delegate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
	First Abu Dhabi Capital Financial Company J.S.C. (FAB Capital) (as delegate of First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C. to hold securities)
	First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C. (as delegate of FAB Capital to hold cash)
Senegal	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast
Serbia	UniCredit Bank Serbia JSC
Singapore	Citibank N.A.
Slovak Republic	UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.
Slovenia	UniCredit Banka Slovenija d.d.
South Africa	FirstRand Bank Limited
	Standard Chartered Bank
Spain	Citibank Europe plc, Dublin, Ireland
Sri Lanka	The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Republic of Srpska	UniCredit Bank d.d.
Sweden	Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ)
Switzerland	Credit Suisse (Switzerland) Limited
	UBS Switzerland AG
Taiwan	Standard Chartered Bank (Taiwan) Limited
Tanzania	Standard Chartered Bank (Tanzania) Limited
Thailand	Standard Chartered Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Togo	via Standard Chartered Bank Côte d'Ivoire S.A., Abidjan, Ivory Coast
Tunisia	Union Internationale de Banques
Turkey	Citibank A.Ş.
Uganda	Standard Chartered Bank Uganda Limited
Ukraine	JSC Citibank
United Arab Emirates - Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX)	First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C.

Market	Subcustodian
United Arab Emirates - DFM	First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C.
United Arab Emirates - Dubai International Financial Center (DIFC)	First Abu Dhabi Bank P.J.S.C.
United Kingdom	State Street Bank and Trust Company, United Kingdom branch
United States	State Street Bank and Trust Company
Uruguay	Banco Itaú Uruguay S.A.
Vietnam	HSBC Bank (Vietnam) Limited (as delegate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
Zambia	Standard Chartered Bank Zambia Plc.
Zimbabwe	Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe Limited (as delegate of Standard Bank of South Africa Limited)

APPENDIX V

Index Disclaimers

MSCI

Reference is made in this Prospectus to a number of MSCI indices. However, MSCI has not reviewed this Prospectus and does not endorse any information contained therein. MSCI makes no express or implied warranties or representations and shall have no liability whatsoever with respect to any information contained in this Prospectus.

FTSE International Limited ("FTSE") © FTSE 2023

Reference is made in this Prospectus to a number of FTSE indices (the "Indices"). All rights in the Indices and / or FSTE ratings vest in FTSE International Limited ("FTSE") or its licensors. "FTSE®" is a trademark of the London Stock Exchange Group companies and is used by FTSE under license. The Indices are calculated by FTSE or its agent. Neither FTSE nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE indices and / or FTSE ratings or underlying data. No further distribution of FTSE data is permitted without FTSE's express written consent. FTSE and its licensors are not connected to and do not sponsor, advise, recommend, endorse or promote the investment products referenced in this Prospectus and do not accept any liability whatsoever to any person arising out of (a) the use of, reliance on or any error in the Indices or (b) investment in or operation of the Lazard-promoted investment products referenced in this Prospectus. FTSE makes no claim, prediction, warranty or representation either as to the results to be obtained from the investment products referenced in this Prospectus or the suitability of the Indices for the purpose to which they are being used by Lazard-promoted investment products.

J.P. Morgan

Reference is made in this Prospectus to a number of J.P. Morgan indices (the "Indices"). However, J.P. Morgan has not reviewed this Prospectus and does not endorse any information contained therein. In addition, J.P Morgan has obtained information in relation to the Indices from sources believed to be reliable but does not warrant the completeness or accuracy of the Indices. The Indices may not be copied, used or distributed without J.P. Morgan's prior written approval. The Indices are being used by Lazard-promoted investment products with the permission of J.P. Morgan.

WF-71676361-v9

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Fund Schedule Supplement, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial adviser.

The Directors of Lazard Global Investment Funds plc (the "Company"), whose names appear under the heading "Management and Administration" in the prospectus of the Company dated 22 March 2024 (the "Prospectus") accept responsibility for the information contained in the Prospectus and this Fund Schedule Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in the Prospectus and this Fund Schedule Supplement is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of the information.

LAZARD GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS PLC

(An open-ended investment company with variable capital structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between Funds incorporated with limited liability in Ireland under registration number 467074)

FUND SCHEDULE SUPPLEMENT

The Company is authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland (the "Central Bank") as a UCITS for the purposes of the Regulations. The Company is structured as an umbrella fund in that the share capital of the Company may be divided into different classes of shares with one or more classes representing a separate sub-fund of the Company (each a "Fund") and each Fund may have more than one share class. This Fund Schedule Supplement contains, in the table set out below, a list of all Funds of the Company currently approved by the Central Bank together with details of how they are categorised for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of The European Parliament and of The Council of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosure in the financial services sector (the "SFDR"):

Fund	SFDR Categorisation
Lazard Global Quality Growth Fund	Article 8
Lazard Thematic Inflation Opportunities Fund	Article 8
Lazard Demographic Opportunities Fund	Article 8
Lazard Global Convertibles Investment Grade Fund	Article 8
Lazard Global Convertibles Recovery Fund	Article 8
Lazard Global Income Fund	Article 8
Lazard Emerging Markets Bond Fund*	N/A
Lazard Emerging Markets Local Debt Fund	Article 8
Lazard Emerging Markets Total Return Debt Fund	Article 8
Lazard Emerging Markets Debt Blend Fund*	Article 8
Lazard Emerging Markets Debt Unrestricted Blend Fund	Article 8
Lazard Emerging Markets Corporate Debt Fund	Article 8
Lazard Scandinavian High Quality Bond Fund	Article 8
Lazard Nordic High Yield Bond Fund	Article 8
Lazard Commodities Fund	Article 6
Lazard Diversified Return Fund*	Article 8
Lazard European Alternative Fund	Article 8
Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund	Article 8
Lazard Coherence Credit Alternative Fund*	Article 6
Lazard Opportunities Fund*	N/A
Lazard Global Hexagon Equity Fund*	N/A

*closed to further subscriptions pending submission of an application to the Central Bank for withdrawal of approval.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus.

This Fund Schedule Supplement replaces the Fund Schedule Supplement dated 1 December 2022.

The date of this Fund Schedule Supplement is 22 March 2024.

WF-71676360-v3

Si vous avez le moindre doute sur le contenu du présent Supplément, veuillez consulter votre courtier, banquier, conseiller juridique ou avocat, comptable ou autre conseiller financier indépendant.

Les Administrateurs de Lazard Global Investment Funds plc (la « Société »), dont les noms figurent dans le chapitre « *Gestion et administration* » dans le prospectus de la Société en date du 22 mars 2024 (le « Prospectus »), acceptent d'engager leur responsabilité quant aux informations contenues dans le Prospectus et le présent Supplément. Les Administrateurs (qui ont pris toutes les mesures raisonnables pour que tel soit le cas) estiment, à leur connaissance, que les informations contenues dans le Prospectus et le présent Supplément sont conformes à la réalité et n'omettent aucun élément susceptible d'affecter son contenu.

LAZARD RATHMORE ALTERNATIVE FUND

(un Compartiment de Lazard Global Investment Funds plc une société d'investissement à capital variable structurée sous forme de fonds à compartiments multiples à responsabilité séparée entre ses Compartiments)

SUPPLÉMENT

Le présent Supplément fait partie intégrante du Prospectus et doit être lu conjointement avec celui-ci.

Le présent Supplément remplace celui daté du 10 juin 2024.

Le présent Supplément est daté du 11 novembre 2024.

SOMMAIRE

INTRODUCTION		4
OBJECTIF ET P	POLITIQUE D'INVESTISSEMENT	4
RESTRICTIONS	S EN MATIERE D'INVESTISSEMENT ET D'EMPRUNT	13
FACTEURS DE	RISQUE	13
DURABILITE		20
Profil d'un in	NVESTISSEUR TYPE	21
GESTION ET AL	DMINISTRATION	21
COMMISSIONS ET FRAI	IS	21
COMMISSIONS	ET FRAIS DES CATEGORIES D'ACTIONS	21
	CATEGORIES D'ACTIONS	
ANNEXE II		33
	S SUR LES TRANSACTIONS	
ANNEXE III		37
CARACTERISTI	IQUES ENVIRONNEMENTALES ET/OU SOCIALES	37

DÉFINITIONS

- « Gestionnaire de devises », State Street Bank and Trust Company et/ou toute autre personne qui peut être nommée, conformément aux Exigences de la Banque centrale, pour fournir des services de gestion de devises au Compartiment.
- « *Titres à revenu fixe* » comprennent les obligations de qualité « Investment Grade », de qualité « Non-Investment Grade » et non notées, les titres convertibles, les effets de commerce, les certificats de dépôt, les billets et les obligations à court et moyen terme.
- « Compartiment », Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund.
- « Catégories d'Actions couvertes », ces catégories d'Actions sont spécifiées en Annexe I du présent Supplément comme étant des catégories d'Actions couvertes.
- « Période d'offre initiale », la période au cours de laquelle les Actions d'une ou de certaines catégories particulières du Compartiment sont initialement offertes telles qu'énoncées dans le présent Supplément ou au cours d'une période antérieure ou ultérieure que les Administrateurs peuvent à leur gré déterminer et signifier à la Banque centrale.
- « Prix d'offre initial », le prix par Action auquel les Actions d'une catégorie donnée peuvent être souscrites pendant la Période d'offre initiale considérée.
- « Investment Grade », une notation au moins équivalente à Baa3/BBB- octroyée par Moody's, Standard & Poor's ou toute autre agence de notation reconnue.
- « *Gestionnaire d'investissement* », Lazard Asset Management LLC et/ou toute autre personne qui peut être nommée, conformément aux Exigences de la Banque centrale, pour fournir des services de gestion d'investissement au Compartiment.
- « Non-Investment Grade », une notation de Ba1/BB+ ou inférieure, octroyée par Moody's, Standard & Poor's ou toute autre agence de notation reconnue.
- « Action(s) », Action(s) du Fonds.
- « Indice VIX », l'indice Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE) Volatility Index.
- « Catégorie d'Actions non couverte », une Catégorie d'Actions libellée dans une devise différente de la Devise de référence du Compartiment et qui n'est pas une Catégorie d'Actions couverte.
- « Non noté », un titre financier non noté par une agence de notation reconnue.

LAZARD RATHMORE ALTERNATIVE FUND

INTRODUCTION

La Société est autorisée en Irlande par la Banque centrale en tant qu'OPCVM aux fins de la Réglementation. Le Compartiment a été approuvé par la Banque centrale le 26 mars 2018.

Le présent Supplément fait partie du Prospectus et doit être lu conjointement avec la description générale de la Société contenue dans le Prospectus actuel (y compris avec les derniers rapports annuels et semestriels).

La Société est structurée comme un fonds à compartiments multiples dans la mesure où le capital social de la Société peut être divisé en différentes catégories d'actions avec une ou plusieurs catégorie(s) représentant un compartiment distinct de la Société. Chaque compartiment peut disposer de plus d'une catégorie d'actions.

Le détail des catégories d'Actions disponibles dans ce Compartiment est présenté en **Annexe I** du présent Supplément.

À la date du présent Supplément, il n'existe pas d'autres catégories d'Actions dans le Compartiment en dehors de celles énumérées en Annexe I, mais des catégories d'actions supplémentaires peuvent être ultérieurement ajoutées conformément aux Exigences de la Banque centrale.

La Devise de référence du Compartiment est le dollar US. Les catégories d'Actions libellées dans une devise différente de la Devise de référence du Compartiment (à l'exception des Catégories d'Actions couvertes) ne seront pas couvertes contre les fluctuations de la Devise de référence du Compartiment.

Les informations sur les transactions, y compris la description des procédures de souscription et de rachat d'Actions, les délais de règlement, la fréquence des transactions et la fixation des cours figurent en **Annexe II** du présent Supplément.

Le Compartiment promeut des caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales et est donc soumis aux règles de publication d'informations en matière de durabilité énoncées à l'article 8 du Règlement européen sur la publication d'informations en matière de durabilité dans le secteur des services financiers (le « **Règlement SFDR** »).

Des informations sur les caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales du Compartiment sont présentées à **l'Annexe III** du présent Supplément.

Un investissement dans le Compartiment doit être considéré comme un investissement à moyen et long terme, ne doit pas constituer une part substantielle d'un portefeuille d'investissement et est susceptible de ne pas convenir à tous les investisseurs.

Objectif et politique d'investissement

Objectif d'investissement

L'objectif d'investissement du Compartiment est de chercher à générer des rendements absolus en combinant l'appréciation du capital et les revenus sur un cycle de marché de trois ans.

Politique d'investissement

Un Compartiment à « rendement absolu » a pour objectif de générer des rendements non corrélés à des indices de référence diversifiés d'actions et de crédit, ce qui le distingue d'un compartiment ayant une stratégie de « rendement relatif », qui cherche le plus souvent à surperformer un indice de référence particulier.

Le Compartiment vise à atteindre son objectif d'investissement en générant des rendements en tirant avantage d'anomalies dans la structure de capital de différentes entités. Afin de générer des rendements selon cette approche, le Compartiment poursuivra deux sous-stratégies de valeur relative mises en

œuvre par le Gestionnaire d'investissement, à savoir : (i) l'arbitrage sur la structure du capital et sur les titres convertibles et (ii) l'investissement axé sur des situations spéciales/événements particuliers. Dans le cadre de ces sous-stratégies (et de l'objectif ultime consistant à générer des rendements absolus), le Gestionnaire d'investissement prendra généralement des positions longues et courtes, qui seront activement gérées afin de dégager des rendements chaque fois que possible. En conséquence, le Compartiment investira dans différents titres et instruments, tels qu'identifiés dans le chapitre du présent Supplément intitulé « *Investissements autorisés* » et investira principalement dans des instruments financiers dérivés (« IFD »), comme décrit plus en détail ci-dessous.

Arbitrage sur la structure du capital et sur les titres convertibles

Les opérations d'arbitrage sur la structure du capital et sur les titres convertibles consistent le plus souvent en une position longue et une position courte. La position longue porte généralement sur une obligation d'entreprise ou convertible ou sur une action préférentielle convertible, mais peut également inclure des warrants ou d'autres titres liés à des actions tels que des options, des contrats pour différence sur actions ou sur indices d'actions, des fonds négociés en bourse (« ETF ») et des billets négociés en Bourse (« ETN »). En cas d'arbitrage sur titres convertibles, la position courte est généralement prise sur l'action ordinaire sous-jacente, mais peut aussi inclure des options sur cette action ou d'autres titres liés à l'émetteur de l'action sous-jacente. Lors d'une opération classique d'arbitrage sur titres convertibles (qui suppose généralement que le Compartiment détienne une position longue sur un titre convertible et une position courte sur l'action ordinaire sous-jacente), lorsque l'action s'apprécie, la position courte est augmentée par la vente de l'action ordinaire. Lorsque la valeur de l'action baisse, la position courte est réduite par l'achat d'actions ordinaires. En conséquence, l'action peut être achetée à un prix bas et vendue à un prix élevé, ce qui augmente le rendement de la stratégie. Dans le cadre d'une opération sur la structure du capital, la position courte peut inclure d'autres Titres à revenu fixe émis par le même émetteur, des actions ou des options qui, sur la base de la valeur relative, isolent l'opportunité d'investissement et couvrent des risques ciblés. Il arrive occasionnellement que les positions longues et courtes soient inversées. Toutes les positions courtes seront réalisées au moyen de swaps ou d'autres IFD décrits ci-après au chapitre « Investissement en IFD ».

Ces opérations visent des rendements par 1) l'identification des inefficiences de prix, souvent en raison des variations de volatilité, des niveaux de financement, de la dynamique d'emprunt d'actions, des facteurs techniques et de crédit du marché, et 2) le positionnement optimal des transactions pour maximiser les opportunités d'investissement. Les principaux facteurs de la valorisation d'un titre convertible sont le plus souvent définis par le cours et les caractéristiques de crédit et de volatilité du titre convertible, mais ils peuvent également inclure : les taux d'intérêt, la politique de distribution des dividendes, les modalités et la structure d'une émission, des clauses de protection, des considérations structurelles et contractuelles, les fondamentaux de la société, les fondamentaux sectoriels, les fondamentaux de la devise ou du pays, la liquidité mondiale et la liquidité du marché mondial des titres convertibles dans son ensemble.

Investissement axé sur des situations spéciales/événements particuliers

En suivant une approche de la valeur relative, cette stratégie cherche à tirer parti des évolutions des entreprises ayant un impact sur les cours des titres, qui peuvent donner lieu à des anomalies de prix et générer des opportunités d'investissement, ou qui incitent les émetteurs à modifier leur structure de capital d'une manière avantageuse pour les investisseurs comme pour les émetteurs. Ces évolutions/événements comprennent, sans s'y limiter, les éléments suivants : les rachats ; les modifications des modalités de remboursement de titres rachetables ; les modifications de la politique en matière de dividendes ; l'exécution d'offres d'échange (à savoir, l'échange d'un titre contre un autre, notamment l'échange d'une obligation contre une autre assortie de conditions différentes) ; les fusions et acquisitions ; l'offre de « sweeteners » (à savoir, des incitations qu'une société peut offrir ponctuellement aux détenteurs de ses titres, le plus souvent pour bénéficier de certains avantages fiscaux ou comptables liés au titre concerné) ; des événements de défaut/titres en difficulté et d'autres changements apportés à la structure de capital d'une société.

Pour obtenir une exposition à valeur relative à des situations spéciales et événements particuliers, les investissements seront principalement réalisés dans une gamme de titres de sociétés, notamment des titres convertibles, des titres de créance et des actions ordinaires, ainsi que dans des dérivés d'actions et de crédit. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut utiliser certaines techniques de couverture et

d'autres techniques d'investissement, y compris la prise de positions courtes synthétiques ou l'achat ou la vente d'options ou d'autres IFD, pour conserver une exposition à certains aspects des situations spéciales ou des opportunités liées à des événements, ou pour diminuer l'exposition au risque de baisse et aux pertes. Toutes les positions courtes seront obtenues au moyen de swaps ou d'autres IFD énumérés ci-après au chapitre « *Investissement en IFD* ».

Dans des conditions normales de marché, l'exposition courte maximale doit être inférieure à 250 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment et l'exposition longue maximale doit être inférieure à 400 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment. Ces fourchettes pourront toutefois être modifiées en fonction des conditions du marché. L'exposition longue peut être portée jusqu'à un maximum de 700 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment tandis que l'exposition courte peut être portée jusqu'à un maximum de 500 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment.

Investissements autorisés

Dans le cadre de la mise en œuvre des stratégies d'investissement précitées, le Compartiment peut (à la seule discrétion du Gestionnaire d'investissement) investir indirectement par le biais de Swaps non financés (comme décrit plus en détail ci-après au chapitre intitulé « *Investissement en IFD* ») et/ou directement (selon le cas) dans des titres de créance mondiaux convertibles et de sociétés (y compris des Titres à revenu fixe, à taux fixe et/ou variable, de qualité « Investment grade », à haut rendement ou d'entreprises en difficulté), des actions préférentielles convertibles, des ETF, des actions mondiales, des titres d'État (à savoir des obligations souveraines provenant principalement des pays du G7, tels que des bons du Trésor américain, des Bunds allemands et les Gilts britanniques) et des contrats à terme normalisés connexes (tels que les contrats à terme normalisés sur les bons du Trésor américain à 5 ans et à 10 ans et les contrats à terme normalisés sur les Bunds allemands), des ETN, des swaps de taux d'intérêt et contrats à terme normalisés sur taux d'intérêt, des swaps sur défaut de crédit, des devises mondiales, des contrats de change à terme normalisés, des titres 144A et des titres relevant de la Réglementation S (à savoir des titres exemptés de l'exigence d'enregistrement prévu par l'article 5 de la Loi de 1933), des contrats pour différence sur actions et indices d'actions et d'autres IFD (comme décrit plus en détail ci-après au chapitre intitulé « *Investissement en IFD* »).

Bien qu'il soit prévu que les sous-stratégies de valeur relative décrites ci-dessus soient poursuivies indirectement au moyen de swaps non financés, le Gestionnaire d'investissement n'est pas limité à cette seule approche et peut, comme indiqué ci-dessus, poursuivre également ou alternativement ces stratégies par le biais d'un investissement direct dans les titres énumérés ci-dessus (il est prévu qu'un tel investissement direct représente à tout moment entre 10 % et 50 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment).

L'investissement global du Compartiment dans des sociétés d'investissement à capital variable (y compris dans des ETF) ne saurait dépasser 10 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment.

Le Compartiment peut également détenir ponctuellement une part importante de sa Valeur liquidative en trésorerie, laquelle peut être investie conformément à la politique de gestion de la trésorerie du Gestionnaire d'investissement, comme décrit plus en détail ci-après dans le chapitre intitulé « *Trésorerie et gestion de trésorerie* ».

À l'exception des investissements autorisés dans des titres non cotés et des instruments dérivés négociés de gré à gré, le Compartiment acquerra uniquement des instruments cotés et/ou négociés sur l'un des marchés réglementés visés à l'Annexe I du Prospectus. L'investissement dans des titres cotés ou négociés sur les Marchés réglementés de Russie ne peut excéder 5 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment à tout moment. Dans la mesure où le Compartiment est axé sur l'international, les investisseurs sont invités à noter que plus de 20 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment peut être exposée aux marchés émergents.

Investissement en IFD

Le Compartiment investira dans tout ou partie des IFD suivants :

(i) Swaps non financés (« Swaps non financés ») avec une ou plusieurs contreparties de négociation (chacune étant une « Contrepartie de négociation ») (voir le chapitre « *Utilisation*

de Swaps non financés » ci-après). Lorsque le Compartiment conclut des Swaps non financés, ceux-ci lui confèrent une exposition à un portefeuille notionnel d'actifs qui permet au Compartiment de tirer un avantage économique de ces actifs sans avoir à les acquérir directement. Le Compartiment obtient ainsi une exposition au portefeuille notionnel plus efficace du point de vue des coûts et des délais et un accès plus facile à certains marchés qu'en achetant directement les actifs sous-jacents. Le portefeuille notionnel d'actifs constituant le portefeuille sous-jacent du Swap non financé visera à fournir au Compartiment une exposition aux sous-stratégies de valeur relative mises en œuvre par le Gestionnaire d'investissement déjà mentionnées et inclura généralement des titres mondiaux convertibles et de sociétés (y compris des Titres à revenu fixe, à taux fixe et/ou variable, de qualité « Investment grade », à haut rendement ou d'entreprises en difficulté), des actions préférentielles, des titres 144A et des titres relevant de la Réglementation S, des contrats pour différence sur actions et indices d'actions et des IFD (comme décrit dans le présent document). Les Swaps non financés seront valorisés quotidiennement au cours du marché et reflétés dans la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment.

- (ii) Le Compartiment peut investir directement dans des contrats à terme normalisés dans le cadre de sa stratégie de gestion de portefeuille et de couverture. Le Compartiment peut investir dans des contrats à terme normalisés sur différents produits financiers, notamment des taux d'intérêt, des devises, des actions mondiales, des indices d'actions mondiales et des indices de volatilité (à savoir des indices construits à partir des prévisions de volatilité du marché des options en utilisant une large gamme d'options sur un indice tel que l'indice S&P 500), tel que l'Indice VIX.
- (iii) Le Compartiment peut investir directement dans des options cotées/négociées en bourse dans le cadre de certaines stratégies de négociation d'options, conformément à l'arbitrage sur titres convertibles et à l'investissement axé sur des situations spéciales/événements particuliers, ainsi que dans le cadre de sa stratégie de gestion de portefeuille et de couverture. Le Compartiment peut investir dans des contrats d'options sur des produits financiers, y compris des taux d'intérêt, des devises, des actions mondiales, des indices d'actions mondiales, des billets et bons du Trésor émis par des États, des obligations d'État et d'entreprises (qui peuvent être assorties de taux fixes ou variables et peuvent être de qualité « Investment grade » ou « Noninvestment grade »), des indices de crédit et l'Indice VIX. Le Compartiment peut également investir directement dans des options non cotées/de gré à gré, y compris des options sur des actions mondiales, des indices d'actions mondiales, des ETF, des ETN, des taux d'intérêt, des devises, des instruments de crédit, des indices de crédit et des indices de volatilité tels que l'Indice VIX.
- (iv) Le Compartiment peut investir directement dans des contrats à terme de gré à gré afin d'inclure des contrats de change à terme de gré à gré (notamment pour modifier l'exposition au risque de change des titres détenus par le Compartiment, obtenir une couverture contre les risques de change, renforcer l'exposition à une devise, transférer d'une devise vers une autre l'exposition aux variations de change et couvrir certaines catégories libellées dans une devise de catégorie d'actions par rapport à la Devise de référence du Compartiment. Des contrats à terme de gré à gré peuvent également être utilisés sur les actions mondiales.
- (v) Le Compartiment peut investir directement dans des swaps, y compris des swaps sur actions, des options de swap, des swaps de taux d'intérêt, des swaps sur défaut de crédit, des swaps de rendement total (sur des titres tels que des actions, des options, des taux d'intérêt et des contrats de défaut de crédit) et des swaps de devises. Les swaps sont utilisés conformément aux stratégies d'arbitrage sur titres convertibles et de situations spéciales pour augmenter ou diminuer l'exposition du Compartiment aux actions mondiales, aux taux d'intérêt, aux devises et aux spreads de crédit. Le spread de crédit correspond à la différence de rendement entre deux obligations d'échéance similaire, généralement la différence de rendement entre un titre de créance et une obligation d'État, telle qu'une obligation du Trésor américain, ayant une échéance comparable.
- (vi) Le Compartiment peut investir jusqu'à 5 % de sa Valeur liquidative directement dans des warrants et des droits.

Utilisation de Swaps non financés

Chaque Contrepartie de négociation et la Société agissant pour le compte du Compartiment ont conclu ou concluront un contrat-cadre (comportant une annexe de soutien au crédit) ainsi que des confirmations des opérations pertinentes régissant les Swaps non financés, en incluant des dispositions relatives à la résiliation. Des confirmations supplémentaires peuvent être conclues lors de rachats et de souscriptions d'Actions de manière à ajuster la valeur nominale de l'exposition sous-jacente.

Aucune Contrepartie de négociation ne dispose d'un pouvoir discrétionnaire sur la composition du portefeuille du Compartiment ni sur celle du portefeuille notionnel d'actifs constituant le portefeuille sousjacent des Swaps non financés.

Le Gestionnaire d'investissement veillera, sur une base quotidienne, à ce qu'une marge soit enregistrée entre le compte de trésorerie du Compartiment et la Contrepartie de négociation concernée pour s'assurer que l'exposition au risque du Compartiment vis-à-vis de la Contrepartie de négociation (découlant de tout profit ou toute perte sur le Swap non financé) soit réduite dans la mesure requise par la Banque centrale ou la Réglementation.

Les Swaps non financés peuvent être résiliés en cas de survenance de certains événements relatifs au Compartiment ou à la Contrepartie de négociation concernée, y compris, sans s'y limiter, un cas de défaut (tel qu'un défaut de paiement, un manquement à un contrat ou une faillite) ou un cas de résiliation qui n'est imputable à aucune des parties (par exemple, un changement de législation échappant au contrôle des parties qui rendrait illégale l'exécution du contrat, ou une évolution du droit fiscal telle que l'exécution du contrat supposerait l'application d'une retenue à la source).

En cas de résiliation de Swaps non financés, des cotations de marché seront obtenues pour les swaps concernés. Un montant égal à la cotation de marché concernée sera réglé entre la Contrepartie de négociation concernée et le Compartiment conformément aux dispositions des Swaps non financés. Le Compartiment peut conclure par la suite de nouveaux IFD sous la forme de swaps non financés avec d'autres contreparties de négociation. Veuillez consulter les informations fournies à la rubrique « Swaps non financés » du chapitre « Facteurs de risque » du Prospectus.

La proportion attendue et maximale des actifs du Compartiment pouvant être assujettie à des swaps de rendement total est indiquée ci-dessous (la valeur de marché étant exprimée, dans chaque cas, en pourcentage de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment) :

	Proportion attendue	Proportion maximale
Swaps de rendement total	0-2 %	15 %

Processus de sélection du Gestionnaire d'investissement

Le Gestionnaire d'investissement respecte certains principes directeurs lors de la sélection des investissements pour le Compartiment. Le processus de sélection des titres est systématisé à l'aide de la base de données exclusive du Gestionnaire d'investissement. Cette base de données exclusive permet d'assurer en continu la sélection et l'analyse des investissements, l'analyse des conditions régissant les titres concernés (telles que les limitations de la capacité de l'émetteur à souscrire de nouvelles dettes, toute obligation de l'émetteur de fournir des états financiers audités aux détenteurs d'obligations, et les limitations de la capacité de l'émetteur à effectuer de nouveaux investissements en capital) ainsi que la négociation et le suivi des titres. Ce processus comprend cinq étapes principales : (i) modélisation ; (ii) utilisation d'analyses et de systèmes exclusifs ; (iii) analyse des titres ; (iv) construction du portefeuille ; et (v) gestion des risques. Le processus d'investissement, qui est appliqué en continu, est conçu pour être flexible, pour s'assurer que les modifications et améliorations du processus de construction du portefeuille puissent y être intégrées à la discrétion du Gestionnaire d'investissement. Le processus d'investissement comprend les étapes suivantes :

Modélisation – Chaque titre de l'univers d'investissement du Compartiment est modélisé. Les données de départ de la modélisation recouvrent tous les facteurs pouvant influer sur la valorisation de ce titre,

tels que la volatilité, le spread de crédit, les dividendes, les taux d'intérêt, la devise et/ou (dans le cas de titres convertibles) le cours de l'action sous-jacente. Chaque titre de l'univers est modélisé en utilisant un processus de valorisation homogène pour faciliter une analyse de valorisation relative. La modélisation constitue la première étape dans la formulation des attentes en matière de rendement.

Elle est rendue possible par une plateforme d'investissement exclusive prise en charge par plusieurs systèmes, y compris, sans s'y limiter, le système de gestion des titres KYNEX. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement a amélioré ce système pour y inclure une personnalisation des données, notamment des informations historiques, des programmes d'analyse personnalisés, des modules de reporting prédéfinis, des capacités de modélisation universelles et une approche différenciée de gestion des profits et des pertes utilisant le logiciel exclusif du Gestionnaire d'investissement (conçu pour détecter les faibles variations des bénéfices et pertes au niveau de chaque position et alerter le Gestionnaire d'investissement en conséquence).

Rendement sur le capital-risque : les positions sont initiées et dimensionnées en fonction du rendement sur le capital-risque (RORC), qui est une mesure de rendement attendu compte tenu des dollars nets en jeu d'une position. Le RORC est évalué en permanence en parallèle avec l'évolution des fondamentaux de crédit. D'autres facteurs incluent la liquidité des titres, le type d'investissement ou de transaction et la diversification par structure, échéance, secteur et zone géographique.

Analyses et systèmes exclusifs – À l'issue de la modélisation, chaque titre est caractérisé principalement par son profil de volatilité ou de crédit, selon le cas. L'analyse de niveau secondaire se concentre sur la définition des niveaux d'achat, de vente ou de recherche d'une exposition à découvert à des émissions pour l'ensemble des variables d'évaluation, y compris la volatilité, les spreads de crédit, les taux d'intérêt, le niveau des dividendes, le cours des actions et des obligations. En parallèle, pour définir les opportunités liées à des situations spéciales et des événements, les investissements potentiels sont évalués par rapport à des éléments comparables de la base de données.

Analyse des titres – Les informations de marché en temps réel fournissent des mises à jour en direct concernant les titres. Lorsque des mouvements du marché déclenchent des « alertes » dans le système, les titres mis en avant sont analysés pour établir s'il existe une opportunité d'investissement potentielle ou si les niveaux de déclenchement des « alertes » doivent être ajustés. Chaque titre mis en avant fait l'objet d'une analyse comparative avec d'autres titres pour étayer l'évaluation des transactions potentielles. Par exemple, si les actions d'une société font l'objet d'un mouvement de vente, il est possible que les titres de créance de cette société se déprécient davantage sur une base relative, auquel cas ils seront « mis en avant » comme offrant une opportunité d'opération de valeur relative. De plus, tous les titres du portefeuille sont soumis à des analyses de scénario et de sensibilité. Enfin, dans l'objectif d'identifier d'autres opportunités liées à des situations spéciales et des événements, les investissements potentiels sont examinés à l'aune de différentes caractéristiques par rapport à des éléments comparables. Ces caractéristiques comprennent le rendement, la duration, la volatilité, le secteur de l'investissement et d'autres données uniques issues du bilan ou de la structure de capital de la société.

Construction du portefeuille – Une thèse d'investissement est élaborée pour chaque opération ou investissement notionnel(le) examiné(e) par le Gestionnaire d'investissement, incluant les attentes en matière de rendement, la probabilité d'atteinte du résultat et les sources d'attribution. Les positions sont dimensionnées en fonction des attentes en matière de risque et de rendement, en prenant en compte la liquidité du marché et des titres, la diversification par structures, échéances, secteurs, géographies et d'autres facteurs pertinents.

Prise en compte des facteurs ESG (environnementaux, sociaux et de gouvernance)

Le Compartiment intègre des considérations environnementales, sociales et de gouvernance dans le cadre plus large de la diligence raisonnable des investissements et du suivi continu des placements du portefeuille. Il applique également à son processus de sélection des émetteurs des critères d'exclusion globaux fondés sur des normes et sur les activités. Les informations relatives à ces critères d'exclusion

et aux caractéristiques de durabilité des investissements du Compartiment sont présentées à **l'Annexe III** du présent Supplément, qui détaille ses caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales.

Gestion des risques

La Société, agissant pour le compte du Compartiment, a déposé auprès de la Banque centrale sa politique de gestion des risques qui lui permet de mesurer, surveiller et gérer les différents risques associés à l'utilisation d'IFD. La Société fournira aux Actionnaires qui en font la demande des informations supplémentaires sur les méthodes de gestion du risque utilisées, dont les limites chiffrées en vigueur et les évolutions récentes des caractéristiques de risque et de rendement des principales catégories d'investissements.

La gestion des risques est une caractéristique constante et dynamique du processus de construction de portefeuille du Compartiment. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement supervise la gestion des risques du Compartiment et met en œuvre les processus de gestion des risques tant au niveau des titres individuels que du portefeuille dans son ensemble pour faire en sorte que chaque opération effectuée au titre du Compartiment soit conforme aux restrictions des OPCVM auxquelles le Compartiment est soumis. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement établit un rapport pré-négociation quotidien qui fournit à l'équipe d'investissement des orientations sur les limites de concentration des OPCVM qui s'appliquent et sur la disponibilité de la capacité d'investissement dans les émetteurs autorisée par la Réglementation.

Méthode de la valeur à risque (« VaR »)

Le Gestionnaire d'investissement utilise une méthode de gestion des risques connue sous le nom de VaR absolue pour évaluer quotidiennement le risque de marché du Compartiment, afin de s'assurer que l'utilisation de l'IFD par le Compartiment soit conforme aux limites fixées par la réglementation. Sur la base d'un niveau de confiance unilatéral de 99 % pour une période de détention d'un jour, la valeur exposée au risque du portefeuille du Compartiment ne doit pas dépasser 4,47 % de la Valeur Liquidative du Compartiment au cours d'une même journée. Le modèle de la VaR utilisera les données historiques sur un an au moins au regard des fluctuations quotidiennes du marché.

Effet de levier

Dans la mesure où le Compartiment peut être exposé à un effet de levier à des fins d'investissement, cet effet de levier sera conforme aux Exigences de la Banque Centrale et à la Réglementation. L'utilisation de la VaR pour mesurer l'exposition ne limite pas nécessairement les niveaux d'effet de levier. Cependant, le Compartiment sera exposé à un effet de levier par l'intermédiaire de ses investissements en IFD. En calculant l'effet de levier découlant de l'utilisation de produits dérivés, conformément aux Exigences de la Banque centrale, comme la somme des notionnels sous-jacents à toutes les positions en IFD du Compartiment exprimée en pourcentage de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment, l'effet de levier du Compartiment devrait atteindre 200-800 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment. Des effets de levier plus élevés sont possibles, mais leur valeur ne dépassera pas 1200 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment à tout moment. Les investissements du Compartiment en IFD contribueront de manière significative aux niveaux d'effet de levier précités. L'exposition globale du Compartiment mesurée selon l'approche par les engagements ne peut excéder 200 % de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment.

Trésorerie et gestion de trésorerie

En complément de la trésorerie détenue par le Compartiment en tant que liquidité auxiliaire pour le règlement des transactions, le Compartiment peut détenir une part importante de sa Valeur liquidative en trésorerie suite au recours à des IFD et/ou si le Gestionnaire financier le juge approprié. Le cas échéant, le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut chercher à employer une politique de gestion de trésorerie efficace en investissant dans des bons du Trésor et d'autres instruments du marché monétaire qui répondent aux Exigences de la Banque centrale en matière d'investissement par un OPCVM et/ou peut chercher à gérer ces liquidités en utilisant des opérations de mise en pension (voir ci-dessous).

Les opérations de mise en pension seront conclues pour le compte du Compartiment exclusivement à des fins de gestion efficace du portefeuille et uniquement sous réserve des conditions et limites énoncées dans le Règlement OPCVM de la Banque centrale et conformément aux dispositions énoncées dans l'Annexe II du Prospectus.

La proportion attendue et maximale des actifs du Compartiment pouvant être assujettie à des Opérations de financement sur titres (en particulier des opérations de mise en pension) est indiquée cidessous (la valeur de marché étant exprimée, dans chaque cas, en pourcentage de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment) :

	Proportion	Proportion
	attendue	maximale
Opérations de mise en pension	0-20 %	50 %

Indices de référence

Dans les supports de commercialisation du Compartiment, la performance du Compartiment peut être présentée par rapport à un ou plusieurs des indices de référence suivants, à des fins de comparaison uniquement :

- Indice HFRX Relative Value Fixed Income Convertible Arbitrage Index (ticker: HFRXCA);
- Indice S&P 500 (ticker: SPTR);
- Indice Russell 2000 (ticker: RU20INTR);
- Indice Bloomberg US Agg Total Return Value Unhedged USD (ticker: LBUSTRUU);
- Indice ICE BofA Global 300 Convertible Index (ticker: VG00);
- Indice ICE BofA US High Yield Index (ticker: H0A0); et
- Indice MSCI World (ticker : NDDUWI)

(les « Indices de référence »).

Description de chacun des Indices de référence

L'indice HFRX Convertible Arbitrage Index suit une stratégie consistant à prendre des positions longues sur des titres convertibles et à couvrir ces positions en vendant à découvert les actions ordinaires sous-jacentes.

L'indice S&P 500 Index est un indice pondéré en fonction de la capitalisation boursière comprenant des actions des 500 premières sociétés des principales industries de l'économie américaine.

L'indice Russell 2000 Index, conçu pour représenter le marché des actions américaines « à petite capitalisation », est composé d'environ 2 000 des plus petites valeurs de l'indice Russell 3000. (L'indice Russell 3000 Index mesure la performance des 3 000 plus grandes sociétés américaines, qui représentent l'essentiel du marché investissable des actions américaines.)

L'indice Bloomberg US Agg Total Return Value Unhedged USD couvre le marché des obligations imposables à taux fixe de qualité « Investment grade » et libellées en dollars US, incluant les bons du Trésor, les titres d'État et d'entreprises, les MBS, les ABS et les CMBS dont l'échéance est d'au moins un an.

L'indice ICE BofA Global 300 Convertible Index couvre un échantillon représentatif de 300 composantes sélectionnées pour refléter globalement la performance des titres convertibles émis publiquement sur les principaux marchés nationaux et sur les marchés des euro-obligations.

L'indice ICE BofA US High Yield Index est un indice large composé de toutes les obligations d'entreprises à haut rendement libellées en dollars américains ayant un encours minimum de 250 millions de dollars US et dont l'échéance est d'au moins un an.

L'indice MSCI World Index est un indice pondéré en fonction de la capitalisation boursière ajustée par le flottant, conçu pour mesurer la performance du marché des actions des pays développés.

Utilisation des Indices de référence

La performance du Compartiment peut être présentée par rapport à un ou plusieurs des Indices de référence, à des fins de comparaison uniquement.

Le Compartiment étant géré activement (ce qui signifie que le Gestionnaire d'investissement choisit librement la composition du portefeuille du Compartiment dans le respect de son objectif d'investissement indiqué et de la politique d'investissement définie ci-dessus), la sélection des titres n'est pas limitée par la composition des Indices de référence. La stratégie poursuivie par le Compartiment n'impose pas de limite à la mesure dans laquelle les participations et/ou pondérations du portefeuille doivent respecter la composition des Indices de référence ou peuvent en diverger. Le Compartiment peut être exposé à un nombre limité, mais variable, de titres composant un ou plusieurs des Indices de référence. Cependant, il n'est pas tenu d'investir dans des titres composant les Indices de référence. Le Compartiment peut tout à fait investir dans des titres non représentés dans l'un quelconque des Indices de référence.

Les Administrateurs se réservent le droit, s'ils considèrent qu'il en va de l'intérêt du Compartiment et avec le consentement du Dépositaire, de remplacer les Indices de référence par un autre indice, dans les circonstances stipulées dans le chapitre du Prospectus intitulé « *Indices de référence* ».

Politique de couverture de change

Le Compartiment peut effectuer des opérations de couverture de change, y compris des investissements en IFD, afin de fournir une protection contre l'exposition au risque de change, tant au niveau de ses titres en portefeuille qu'au niveau des catégories d'Actions. Toutefois, rien ne garantit la réussite ou l'efficacité de ces opérations de couverture de change pour atteindre leur objectif.

Les IFD que le Compartiment est susceptible d'utiliser à des fins de couverture du risque de change sont présentés dans le chapitre du présent Supplément intitulé « *Investissements en IFD* ».

Couverture au niveau du portefeuille

Le Compartiment peut effectuer des opérations de couverture de change afin de protéger la valeur des positions spécifiques du portefeuille ou en prévision des variations des valeurs relatives des devises dans lesquelles les positions actuelles ou futures du portefeuille du Compartiment sont libellées ou cotées. Par exemple, le Compartiment peut effectuer des opérations de couverture de change afin de compenser l'exposition au risque de change découlant des Investissements dans son portefeuille libellés dans des devises différentes de la Devise de référence du Compartiment ou de se protéger contre les variations des taux de change entre la date à laquelle le Gestionnaire d'investissement conclut un contrat d'achat ou de vente d'un titre et la date de règlement pour l'achat ou la vente de ce titre, ou pour « fixer » l'équivalent d'un dividende ou d'un paiement d'intérêts dans une autre devise.

Couverture au niveau de la Catégorie d'Actions

Le Compartiment peut également effectuer des opérations de couverture de change afin de fournir une protection contre les fluctuations de la devise dans laquelle une catégorie d'Actions est libellée par rapport à la Devise de référence du Compartiment, si elle diffère. Dans la mesure où ces opérations de couverture sont efficaces, le rendement de la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée est susceptible de se rapprocher du rendement des Investissements du Compartiment et les Actionnaires de la Catégorie d'Actions couverte ne bénéficieront pas d'une baisse de la valeur de la devise dans laquelle la catégorie est libellée par rapport à la Devise de référence du Compartiment ou par rapport aux devises dans lesquelles les actifs du Compartiment sont libellés. Dans la mesure où le Compartiment utilise des stratégies visant à couvrir certaines catégories d'Actions, rien ne garantit que lesdites stratégies soient efficaces.

Le Gestionnaire de devises a été nommé pour fournir des services de couverture de change non discrétionnaires à l'égard des Catégories d'Actions couvertes du Compartiment.

Les coûts et les dettes/avantages liés aux instruments conclus aux fins de couverture de l'exposition au risque de change au profit d'une Catégorie spécifique d'Actions couverte du Compartiment sont attribuables exclusivement à la catégorie d'Actions concernée.

L'exposition au risque de change ne dépassera pas 105 % de la Valeur liquidative de la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée. Toutes les transactions seront clairement attribuables à la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée et les expositions au risque de change des différentes catégories d'Actions ne seront ni combinées ni compensées. La Société mettra en place des procédures pour surveiller les positions couvertes et pour s'assurer que les positions surcouvertes n'excèdent pas 105 % de la Valeur liquidative de la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée et que les positions souscouvertes ne représentent pas moins de 95 % de la part de la Valeur liquidative de la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée à couvrir contre le risque de change. Dans le cadre de cette procédure, la Société examinera les positions couvertes au-delà de 100 % de la Valeur liquidative de la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée et chaque position insuffisamment couverte au moins une fois par mois afin de s'assurer qu'elles ne sont pas reportées d'un mois sur l'autre. Bien que n'étant pas l'intention de la Société, des positions surcouvertes ou insuffisamment couvertes pourraient découler de facteurs indépendants de la volonté de la Société.

Restrictions en matière d'investissement et d'emprunt

La Société est un OPCVM et, par conséquent, le Compartiment est assujetti aux restrictions en matière d'investissement et d'emprunt énoncées dans la Réglementation et les Exigences de la Banque centrale. Ces restrictions sont détaillées en Annexe III du Prospectus.

Facteurs de risque

Les actionnaires et les investisseurs potentiels doivent tenir compte des facteurs de risque énoncés dans le Prospectus (en particulier les risques qui figurent aux chapitres « Fluctuations de marché », « Risque de crédit et de contrepartie », « Risque lié à la gestion active », « Risques relatifs aux plus petites entreprises », « Risque lié à l'effet de levier », « Risque lié à l'inflation », « Risque lié aux matières premières », « Risque politique », « Facteurs de risque des marchés émergents », « Risques associés aux titres de créance et aux autres titres à revenu fixe » et « Facteurs de risque liés aux IFD ») en complément de ceux énoncés ci-dessous.

Commissions et frais non soumis au Plafond des frais et approuvés par le Conseil d'administration

Certains frais et commissions pour services juridiques et de conseil peuvent être supportés par le Compartiment en cas de litige, de procédure de faillite ou d'insolvabilité d'un émetteur, ou au titre d'échanges ou de négociations avec un émetteur. Moyennant l'approbation du Conseil d'administration, le montant total de ces commissions et frais sera imputé au Compartiment, sans être soumis ni rattaché au plafond des frais décrit dans le chapitre du présent Supplément intitulé « *Autre plafond des frais* ». Si le Conseil d'administration n'approuve pas l'imputation de la totalité de ces commissions et frais sur les actifs du Compartiment, la capacité du Compartiment à participer à certains efforts de recouvrement peut en être limitée et le Compartiment peut, par conséquent, être pénalisé.

Investissement dans le Compartiment non équivalent à un dépôt

Le Compartiment peut investir une part importante de sa Valeur liquidative dans des dépôts et/ou des instruments du marché monétaire, mais un investissement dans le Compartiment ne saurait être considéré par des investisseurs comme une alternative à un compte de dépôt conventionnel. Nous rappelons aux investisseurs qu'investir dans le Compartiment peut les exposer aux risques associés à tout investissement dans un organisme de placement collectif, notamment le fait que la somme principale investie puisse fluctuer au gré des variations de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment.

Arbitrage sur titres convertibles

Les stratégies d'arbitrage sur titres convertibles impliquent généralement des écarts de prix entre le titre convertible et le titre de participation sous-jacent. Dans la mesure où les relations de prix entre ces positions demeurent constantes, aucun gain ou perte sur les positions ne devrait se produire. Toutefois, de telles positions comportent un risque non négligeable que le différentiel de prix puisse évoluer de manière défavorable, provoquant une perte sur la position basée sur l'écart de prix. Des risques importants sont également associés aux opérations d'emprunt et de prêt adossés à de tels investissements. Les prix de ces investissements peuvent être volatils, les mouvements de marché sont difficilement prévisibles, et les sources de financement et les taux d'intérêt et de change associés sont

sujets à des fluctuations rapides. Certains titres de sociétés peuvent être subordonnés (et donc exposés au premier niveau de risque de défaut) ou exposés pour une autre raison à des risques de crédit importants. Les politiques gouvernementales, notamment celles du Conseil de la Réserve fédérale et des banques centrales étrangères, exercent des effets importants sur les taux d'intérêt et de change qui, à leur tour, affectent les cours dans les domaines des activités d'investissement et de négociation des stratégies d'arbitrage sur titres convertibles. De nombreux autres événements imprévisibles, y compris l'action de différents organismes gouvernementaux et des événements politiques nationaux et internationaux, peuvent entraîner d'importantes fluctuations du marché.

Arbitrage sur la structure du capital

Le succès de cette stratégie dépendra de la capacité du Gestionnaire d'investissement à identifier et à exploiter les relations et les écarts de prix entre les fluctuations des différents titres et instruments constituant la structure de capital d'une société (par exemple, les titres de créance de premier rang ou subordonnés convertibles et non convertibles et les actions préférentielles et ordinaires). L'identification et l'exploitation de ces opportunités supposent des incertitudes. Si les inefficiences de prix perçues sous-jacentes aux titres et instruments d'une société ne se concrétisent pas comme prévu par le Gestionnaire d'investissement, le Compartiment pourrait subir une perte.

Investissement axé sur une situation spéciale/un événement particulier

L'investissement axé sur une situation spéciale/un événement particulier suppose que Gestionnaire d'investissement fasse des prévisions concernant : (i) la probabilité qu'une situation spéciale/un événement particulier se produise ; et (ii) l'impact d'un tel événement sur la valeur des instruments financiers d'une société. Si la situation spéciale/l'événement particulier n'a pas lieu ou ne produit pas l'effet prévu, des pertes peuvent en résulter. Par exemple, il est possible que l'adoption de nouvelles stratégies commerciales ou la réalisation de cessions d'actifs ou de programmes de réduction de la dette par une société ne soient pas être évalués par le marché à la valeur prévue par le Gestionnaire d'investissement, entraînant des pertes. En outre, une société peut annoncer un plan de restructuration avec la promesse d'accroître la valeur, sans pour autant l'appliquer, ce qui peut entraîner des pertes pour les investisseurs. Les liquidations et autres formes de réorganisation d'entreprise sont assorties d'un risque que la réorganisation échoue, soit retardée ou donne lieu à la distribution de liquidités ou à l'émission d'un nouveau titre d'une valeur inférieure au prix d'achat du titre pour lequel cette distribution a été effectuée. Plusieurs facteurs peuvent empêcher ou repousser la réalisation effective de fusions, d'offres publiques d'achat et d'offres de conversion, notamment : (i) l'opposition de la direction ou des actionnaires de la société cible, ce qui conduira le plus souvent à l'ouverture d'une procédure judiciaire visant à ordonner l'exécution de l'opération envisagée ; (ii) l'intervention d'un organisme chargé de la réglementation au niveau fédéral ou d'un état ; (iii) les efforts de la société cible pour mettre en œuvre une stratégie « défensive », y compris la fusion avec une société autre que le sollicitant ou l'acceptation de l'offre publique d'achat amicale de celle-ci ; (iv) dans le cas d'une fusion, l'impossibilité d'obtenir l'aval des actionnaires; (v) des variations sensibles du cours des titres provoquées par les conditions du marché ; (vi) le respect des lois en vigueur concernant les titres boursiers ; et (vii) l'incapacité à réunir le financement nécessaire. (v) les conditions de marché entraînant des variations importantes des cours des titres; (vi) le respect des lois fédérales ou étatiques applicables sur les valeurs mobilières; et (vii) l'incapacité d'obtenir le financement approprié. En raison de la nature intrinsèquement spéculative de l'investissement axé sur des situations spéciales/événements particuliers, les résultats des opérations du Compartiment peuvent fluctuer d'une période à l'autre. Par conséquent, les actionnaires doivent comprendre que les résultats d'une période donnée ne sont pas nécessairement indicatifs des résultats pouvant être attendus sur des périodes futures.

Actions

Le Compartiment peut investir dans des actions et des titres assimilés à des actions. La valeur des actions fluctue sous l'effet de nombreux facteurs, y compris les activités, le résultat d'exploitation et la situation financière des émetteurs, le marché dans lequel les sociétés se font concurrence, les conditions de marché d'un secteur d'activité, les taux d'intérêt et le contexte économique général (PIB, inflation, politique budgétaire et monétaire). Les événements tels que l'instabilité politique intérieure et internationale, le terrorisme et les catastrophes naturelles peuvent être de surcroît imprévisibles et

accroître la volatilité des marchés au point d'avoir une incidence négative sur les investissements réalisés par le Compartiment.

Opérations de couverture

Le Compartiment peut, sans y être tenu, utiliser des instruments financiers tels que des contrats de change à terme de gré à gré, des options sur devises, des contrats à terme normalisés et des options sur indices d'actions, des swaps de taux d'intérêt, des taux plafond et plancher tant à des fins d'investissement que pour se couvrir contre les fluctuations des valeurs relatives des titres ou des positions détenus dans le portefeuille du Compartiment en raison de variations des taux de change, des taux d'intérêt du marché et des cours des titres. La couverture contre une baisse de la valeur d'une position du portefeuille n'élimine pas les fluctuations des valeurs des positions du portefeuille ni n'évite les pertes si les valeurs de ces positions baissent, mais elle ouvre d'autres positions qui visent à tirer parti de ces évolutions, limitant ainsi la baisse de la valeur des positions du portefeuille. Ces transactions de couverture limitent également les possibilités de réaliser une plus-value en cas d'augmentation de la valeur de la position du portefeuille. Il se peut par ailleurs que le Compartiment ne puisse pas se couvrir contre une fluctuation du taux de change, taux d'intérêt ou prix des actions généralement prévue par le marché au point de ne pas pouvoir réaliser une opération de couverture à un prix suffisant pour se protéger contre une baisse de la valeur de la position du portefeuille prévue en conséquence de cette fluctuation.

Même si la couverture a pour but de réduire les fluctuations de la valeur du portefeuille, la couverture peut accroître la volatilité du portefeuille, dans certains cas, notamment lorsque des événements extrêmes se produisent. Cela peut se produire lorsque les corrélations observées précédemment sur les marchés s'inversent. De plus, pour de nombreuses raisons, le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut ne pas chercher à établir une corrélation parfaite entre ces instruments de couverture et les positions du portefeuille qui sont couvertes. Ces corrélations imparfaites peuvent empêcher le Compartiment d'obtenir la couverture visée ou l'exposer à un risque de perte. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut ne pas se couvrir contre certains risques dans le cadre de sa stratégie d'investissement ou en raison de son incapacité à anticiper de tels risques ou parce qu'il juge ces risques trop peu probables pour justifier le coût de la couverture. Pour que ces instruments de gestion des risques et de couverture soient efficaces, des compétences qui s'ajoutent à celles nécessaires pour sélectionner les titres du portefeuille du Compartiment sont nécessaires.

Restitution de profits sur transactions à court terme et autres limitations

Le Compartiment, agissant en tant que membre d'un groupe, peut acquérir ponctuellement la propriété effective de plus de 10 % d'une certaine catégorie de titres d'une société cotée, ou placer un administrateur au conseil d'administration d'une telle société. En conséquence, en vertu de la Section 16 de la Loi américaine sur les bourses de valeurs mobilières (Securities Exchange Act) de 1934, telle que modifiée, le Compartiment peut être soumis à certaines exigences de déclaration supplémentaires et peut être tenu de restituer certains profits à court terme obtenus lors de l'achat et de la vente de ces titres. En outre, dans ce cas de figure, le Compartiment ne sera pas autorisé à prendre une position courte sur les titres de l'émetteur concerné, et sa capacité à couvrir ces investissements s'en trouvera limitée. D'autres juridictions dans lesquelles le Compartiment opère peuvent avoir des lois similaires dont les dispositions peuvent s'appliquer à partir de différents niveaux de participation.

ETF

Le Compartiment peut investir dans des ETF et dans des IFD qui fournissent une exposition à des ETF. Les ETF visent à répliquer la performance et le dividende de certains indices ou sociétés appartenant à des secteurs apparentés. Ces indices peuvent être diversifiés, sectoriels ou internationaux. Les actionnaires d'ETF sont généralement exposés au même risque que les détenteurs des titres sous-jacents qu'ils sont censés suivre. Les ETF sont également exposés à d'autres risques, y compris, sans toutefois s'y limiter, le risque que leurs prix ne soient pas parfaitement corrélés avec les variations des prix des titres sous-jacents qu'ils sont censés suivre, et le risque de suspension de la négociation des parts d'un ETF en raison des conditions de marché ou pour d'autres raisons, en vertu des règles de la Bourse sur laquelle l'ETF s'échange. Le Compartiment peut en outre acquitter sa part calculée au prorata des frais de l'ETF, y compris les frais de gestion, au même titre que les autres détenteurs directs dudit ETF.

Ventes à découvert

Le Compartiment n'est pas autorisé à conclure des « ventes à découvert physiques ». Le Compartiment peut toutefois prendre des positions à découvert au moyen d'instruments dérivés à l'égard d'actifs sous-jacents afin d'atteindre son objectif d'investissement et conformément à la Réglementation et à la Politique d'investissement du Compartiment. En général, la vente à découvert consiste à vendre des titres que le vendeur ne possède pas en prévision d'une baisse de leur valeur de marché et à emprunter les mêmes titres pour livraison à l'acheteur, avec l'obligation de remettre ultérieurement des titres équivalents aux titres empruntés. La vente à découvert permet à l'investisseur de profiter d'une baisse du cours des titres dans la mesure où cette baisse excède les coûts de transaction et les coûts d'emprunt des titres. Une vente à découvert crée le risque d'une perte illimitée dans la mesure où le prix des titres sous-jacents pourrait théoriquement augmenter sans limites, augmentant ainsi le coût pour le Compartiment de l'achat de ces titres afin de couvrir la position vendeuse.

Rien ne permet de garantir que les titres nécessaires pour couvrir une position vendeuse seront disponibles à l'achat. L'achat de titres pour fermer une position vendeuse peut en soi entraîner une hausse du prix des titres, ce qui a pour effet d'accroître les pertes.

Dans le cadre d'une prise de positions vendeuses par le biais de produits dérivés, le Compartiment cherchera le même bénéfice financier et sera exposé aux mêmes risques de marché que s'il entamait des ventes à découvert physiques. La prise de positions vendeuses par le biais de produits dérivés implique une négociation sur marge et, par conséquent, l'effet de levier fourni par les positions sur marge implique un risque plus élevé que les placements fondés sur des ventes à découvert physiques.

En raison des mesures législatives ou réglementaires prises par les régulateurs et les gouvernements dans le monde entier, les positions vendeuses sur certains actifs ont été restreintes. Les niveaux de restriction varient d'un territoire à l'autre et peuvent changer à court ou à moyen terme. Suite à ces restrictions, il est devenu difficile et, dans certains cas, impossible pour certains acteurs du marché de continuer à mettre en œuvre leurs stratégies d'investissement ou de contrôler le risque de leurs positions ouvertes. En conséquence, le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut ne pas être en mesure de tirer pleinement profit de ses opinions négatives à l'égard de certains actifs, sociétés ou secteurs et la capacité du Gestionnaire d'investissement à réaliser l'objectif d'investissement du Compartiment peut donc s'en trouver réduite.

Risque de volatilité

Le programme d'investissement du Compartiment peut comporter l'achat et la vente d'instruments relativement volatils tels que des IFD qui sont fréquemment évalués à partir des volatilités implicites de ces IFD par rapport à la volatilité historique des instruments financiers sous-jacents. Les fluctuations ou les variations prolongées de la volatilité de ces instruments peuvent avoir une incidence négative sur la valeur des investissements détenus par le Compartiment. De nombreux marchés financiers dans lesquels le Compartiment investit ou opère ne sont en outre pas aussi développés ou efficaces que, par exemple, les marchés financiers des États-Unis, et la volatilité des prix des investissements du Compartiment négociés sur ces marchés peut être élevée.

Risque d'« élargissement » des spreads

Certaines raisons (par exemple, des déséquilibres entre l'offre et la demande ou d'autres forces de marché) peuvent entraîner des baisses importantes du prix des titres auxquels le Compartiment peut être exposé. En particulier, l'achat d'actifs à des niveaux considérés comme « sous-évalués » ne garantit pas que ces actifs ne se négocieront pas à des niveaux encore plus « sous-évalués » à la date de valorisation ou de cession. Il pourrait s'avérer impossible de prévoir un tel risque d'« élargissement des spreads » ou de couvrir le Compartiment contre ce risque.

Obligations en difficulté

Le Compartiment peut investir dans des obligations de sociétés connaissant des difficultés financières, qui enregistrent de mauvais résultats d'exploitation, qui ont des besoins de capitaux importants ou une

valeur nette négative, qui font face à des problèmes particuliers de concurrence ou d'obsolescence de produits, notamment les sociétés en faillite ou en cours de procédure de réorganisation ou de liquidation. Les risques inhérents à ces obligations sont particulièrement importants, néanmoins, en contrepartie, les rendements potentiels sont très élevés. Parmi les risques liés aux investissements dans des entités en difficulté figure le fait qu'il est souvent difficile d'obtenir des informations sur la véritable situation de ces entreprises. Ces investissements peuvent en outre être affectés par des lois relatives, notamment, aux détournements de fonds ou autres transferts ou paiements résiliables, à la responsabilité des prêteurs et au pouvoir du tribunal des faillites d'annuler, de réduire ou de subordonner une dette, de la convertir en capitaux propres ou de révoquer des droits y afférents. Les obligations de ces sociétés peuvent être considérées comme des titres spéculatifs, et la capacité de ces sociétés à rembourser leurs dettes aux échéances convenues pourrait être affectée par une fluctuation défavorable des taux d'intérêt, une évolution du climat économique général, des facteurs économiques touchant un secteur particulier ou des événements internes propres à ces sociétés. De plus, aucune norme de crédit minimale ne s'applique aux investissements du Compartiment dans un quelconque instrument financier, et une part des obligations dans lesquelles celui-ci investit peut concerner des actifs de qualité inférieure à Investment Grade. Le niveau de complexité des analyses nécessaires, tant sur le plan financier que juridique, à la réussite des investissements dans des sociétés confrontées à des difficultés financières et commerciales importantes, est singulièrement élevé. Rien ne garantit que la valeur des actifs qui garantissent les investissements du Compartiment sera suffisante ni que les perspectives permettant une réorganisation réussie ou une action similaire seront offertes. Lorsqu'il investit dans des sociétés en cours de réorganisation ou de liquidation, le Compartiment peut perdre la totalité de son investissement, être contraint d'accepter des liquidités ou des titres d'une valeur inférieure à celle de son investissement initial et/ou se voir dans l'obligation d'accepter des délais de paiement à longue échéance. Dans ces circonstances, il est possible que les rendements générés par les investissements du Compartiment ne compensent pas suffisamment les risques assumés par les actionnaires. En outre, dans certaines circonstances, la restitution de paiements et de distributions perçus peut être ordonnée par une autorité judiciaire si le paiement concerné est ultérieurement considéré comme un transfert frauduleux ou un paiement préférentiel.

En cas de liquidation (qu'il y ait faillite ou non) et d'autres formes de réorganisation de sociétés, il existe un risque que la réorganisation soit infructueuse (à cause, par exemple, de la non-obtention des approbations requises), qu'elle soit reportée (par exemple, jusqu'à ce que des passifs, en cours ou éventuels, soient réglés) ou qu'elle donne lieu à la distribution de liquidités ou à l'émission d'un nouveau titre d'une valeur inférieure au prix d'achat du titre pour lequel cette distribution a été effectuée.

ETN

Les ETN sont des titres de créance de premier rang non garantis et non subordonnés émis par des banques de souscription. Ces instruments financiers offrent à leurs détenteurs ou aux personnes exposées à des ETN un accès ou des rendements basés sur la performance d'un produit, d'un instrument ou d'un indice financier sous-jacent. Les ETN ne sont pas des fonds d'actions ni des fonds indiciels ; ce sont des produits négociés en bourse offrant une exposition à un instrument sous-jacent assorti de caractéristiques de transférabilité et qui sont cotés en bourse. Les ETN ne versent pas de paiements d'intérêts ni de dividendes et ne sont pas pourvus de droits de vote. En outre, la performance de ces produits repose uniquement sur le rendement de l'instrument ou de l'indice sous-jacent, déduction faite des frais. Par conséquent, si la valeur de l'actif sous-jacent à l'ETN diminue ou n'augmente pas suffisamment pour compenser les commissions (y compris les commissions de rachat), le Compartiment peut recevoir un montant inférieur à l'investissement initial dans l'ETN à la date d'échéance ou de rachat. Outre le risque de marché basé sur la performance de l'actif sous-jacent à l'ETN, le porteur est également soumis au risque de crédit de contrepartie du souscripteur.

Contrats pour différence (CFD)

Le Compartiment peut conclure des contrats pour différence. Dans ces transactions, le Compartiment et une autre partie prennent des positions de prix par rapport à un titre sous-jacent ou à un autre instrument financier. La « différence » est déterminée en comparant la position initiale de chaque partie

avec le cours de ces titres ou instruments financiers à une date de clôture prédéterminée. Chaque partie recevra ou versera alors la différence, en fonction de la réussite de son investissement.

Les marchés financiers des titres ou instruments faisant l'objet d'un contrat pour différence peuvent fluctuer de manière significative. Les parties à un contrat pour différence assument le risque que les marchés des titres sous-jacents évoluent dans une direction défavorable à leurs positions initiales. En outre, ces contrats impliquent souvent un effet de levier économique considérable. Par conséquent, ces contrats peuvent entraîner des pertes ou des gains disproportionnés et des mouvements de marché relativement faibles peuvent avoir un impact important sur la valeur de l'investissement.

Marchés/instruments hautement volatils

Les cours des IFD sont très volatils. Les fluctuations des cours des contrats à terme de gré à gré et d'autres IFD dans lesquels le Compartiment peut investir sont influencées, entre autres, par les taux d'intérêt, l'évolution des relations entre l'offre et la demande, les programmes et politiques des gouvernements en matière commerciale, fiscale, monétaire et de contrôle des changes, ainsi que par les événements et politiques économiques nationaux et internationaux. De plus, les gouvernements interviennent sur certains marchés, en tant que de besoin, directement et par voie réglementaire, sur certains marchés, en particulier sur les marchés des changes et des options sur instruments financiers. Ces interventions ont souvent pour objectif d'influer directement sur les prix et peuvent, conjuguées à d'autres facteurs, entraîner une évolution rapide des marchés concernés dans le même sens, notamment en raison des fluctuations des taux d'intérêt. Le Compartiment est également exposé au risque de défaillance des bourses sur lesquelles ses positions sont négociées ou de leurs chambres de compensation.

Perturbation du marché

Le Compartiment peut subir des pertes importantes en cas de perturbation des marchés et d'autres événements extraordinaires susceptibles d'avoir une incidence sur les marchés qui est anormale au regard des corrélations historiques entre les prix. Le risque de perte lié à une décorrélation avec les prix historiques est amplifié par le fait qu'en cas de perturbations, de nombreuses positions puissent devenir illiquides, rendant difficile ou impossible la fermeture de positions lorsque le marché prend une direction défavorable. En 1994, 1998 et au cours de la période du « credit crunch » de 2007-2008, le resserrement soudain du crédit par les courtiers et les intermédiaires a donné lieu à des liquidations forcées et à de lourdes pertes pour un certain nombre de sociétés d'investissement. Le « credit crunch » de 2007-2008 a tout particulièrement pesé sur les sociétés d'investissement qui ciblaient les placements liés au crédit. En raison des retombées des perturbations des marchés et des pertes subies par un secteur sur les autres secteurs, de nombreux fonds d'investissement ont toutefois enregistré de lourdes pertes pendant le « credit crunch » de 2007-2008, y compris ceux qui n'avaient pas investi massivement dans des crédits. Les perturbations des marchés causées par des événements politiques, militaires et terroristes extraordinaires peuvent par ailleurs donner lieu à des pertes pour le Compartiment. Ces événements sont susceptibles d'accroître la volatilité et le risque des stratégies historiquement peu risquées jusqu'à atteindre des niveaux sans précédent. Une Bourse de valeurs peut ponctuellement suspendre ou limiter les transactions. Une telle suspension peut compliquer voire empêcher le Compartiment de liquider des positions affectées et l'exposer à des pertes. Rien ne permet de garantir que les marchés hors-cote resteront suffisamment liquides pour permettre au Compartiment de liquider des positions.

Risques commerciaux et réglementaires

Des modifications d'ordre juridique, fiscal et réglementaire peuvent survenir pendant la durée du Compartiment et avoir une incidence négative sur celui-ci. L'environnement réglementaire des compartiments évolue, et tout changement dans les réglementations applicables peut avoir des répercussions négatives sur la valeur des investissements détenus par le Compartiment et sur la capacité de celui-ci à obtenir l'effet de levier qu'il pourrait autrement obtenir ou à déployer ses stratégies de négociation. En outre, les marchés des titres et des contrats à terme normalisés sont soumis à un ensemble de lois, de réglementations et d'exigences de marge. Les organismes de réglementation et d'autoréglementation et les bourses des valeurs sont autorisés à adopter des mesures extraordinaires face à une situation d'urgence sur les marchés. La réglementation des opérations sur instruments dérivés et des compartiments qui conduisent de telles opérations est un domaine du droit en pleine évolution et peut être modifiée par l'action des autorités gouvernementales ou judiciaires. Toute intervention réglementaire future pourrait avoir des incidences importantes et défavorables pour le Compartiment.

Risques systémiques

Un risque lié aux contreparties multiples peut également survenir en cas de défaillance de l'une des grandes institutions qui sont interdépendantes pour répondre à leurs besoins de liquidité ou d'exploitation, si bien que la défaillance d'une institution provoque une série de défaillances parmi les autres institutions. Ce risque est parfois appelé « risque systémique » et peut exercer un effet négatif sur les intermédiaires financiers, tels que des agences de compensation, des chambres de compensation, des banques, des sociétés de valeurs mobilières et des bourses, avec lesquels le Compartiment interagit quotidiennement.

Dépendance à l'égard du personnel clé

La performance du Compartiment dépend en grande partie des services des professionnels seniors du Gestionnaire d'investissement. En cas de décès, d'incapacité, de départ, d'insolvabilité ou de retrait de ces professionnels, la performance du Compartiment peut être affectée défavorablement.

Faute Professionnelle des Employés ou des Prestataires de Services

Une faute professionnelle de la part d'un employé ou d'un prestataire de services tiers peut entraîner des pertes considérables pour le Compartiment. Une faute professionnelle de la part d'un employé peut notamment engager le Compartiment dans des transactions dépassant les limites autorisées ou présentant des risques inacceptables, l'engager dans des négociations non agréées ou dissimuler des transactions infructueuses (ce qui, dans tous les cas, peut entraîner des risques ou des pertes non identifié(e)s et non contrôlé(e)s). Des pertes peuvent également résulter d'actions de la part de prestataires de services tiers, comprenant, sans s'y limiter, la non-comptabilisation de certaines transactions et le détournement d'actifs. En outre, les employés et les prestataires de service tiers peuvent utiliser incorrectement ou divulguer des informations confidentielles, ouvrant la voie à des litiges ou à d'importants préjudices financiers, notamment une limitation des perspectives opérationnelles du Compartiment ou de ses activités commerciales futures. Bien que le Gestionnaire d'investissement adopte des mesures visant à prévenir et détecter les fautes professionnelles des employés et à sélectionner des prestataires fiables, ces mesures peuvent ne pas s'avérer efficaces.

Conflits d'intérêts

Les activités du Compartiment peuvent être ponctuellement restreintes du fait d'obligations réglementaires applicables à Lazard et/ou en raison des politiques internes de Lazard conçues pour se conformer à ces exigences ou en limiter la portée (c'est-à-dire en imposant des règles plus restrictives). À titre d'exemple, il est possible qu'au cours de certaines périodes le Gestionnaire d'investissement ne conclue pas, ni ne recommande, certaines catégories de transactions portant sur des titres ou instruments pour lesquels lui-même ou ses sociétés affiliées fournissent d'autres services, ou lorsque les limites d'une position ont été atteintes. De plus, le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut acquérir des informations confidentielles ou être limité de toute autre manière dans l'exécution de transactions liées à certaines opportunités d'investissement. Dans ce cas, il ne sera pas libre de divulguer ces informations confidentielles ni d'agir sur leur fondement dans le cadre de sa gestion du Compartiment. En outre, comme suite à l'acquisition de telles informations confidentielles ou sous l'effet d'autres restrictions, le

Gestionnaire d'investissement peut ne pas être en mesure d'initier ou de liquider des investissements pour le Compartiment comme il souhaiterait le faire.

Différentes équipes d'investissement au sein de Lazard, y compris le Gestionnaire d'investissement, peuvent investir les actifs de leurs clients dans différents titres ou dans des titres d'un même émetteur assortis de rangs de priorité différents. Par exemple, une équipe d'investissement de Lazard qui utilise une stratégie d'investissement en actions peut investir dans des actions ordinaires émises par une société cependant que le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut investir ses actifs dans des obligations émises par la même société. L'investissement dans différentes parties de la structure de capital d'un émetteur ou dans des titres ayant des rangs de priorité différents pour le compte de plusieurs clients peut créer un conflit dans la représentation des intérêts de ces clients si l'émetteur n'est pas en mesure de remplir les obligations qui lui incombent conformément aux termes des titres. À titre d'exemple, lorsqu'un émetteur demande à être placé sous la protection d'une procédure de faillite, les intérêts de ses détenteurs d'obligations (garanties et non garanties) et de ses actionnaires entrent souvent en conflit. D'un côté, les détenteurs d'obligations garanties de l'émetteur peuvent soutenir un plan de réorganisation dans lequel la majeure partie de la valeur des actifs de l'émetteur leur serait distribuée, tandis que les actionnaires et les porteurs d'obligations non garanties ne recevraient qu'une valeur limitée, voire nulle, en contrepartie des actions qu'ils détiennent. Dans le même temps, les actionnaires de l'émetteur ou les détenteurs d'obligations non garanties peuvent soutenir un plan de réorganisation alternatif allouant une plus grande partie de la valeur des actifs de l'émetteur aux actionnaires et créanciers non garantis, et une valeur moindre aux créanciers garantis, y compris aux détenteurs d'obligations garanties. Si de tels conflits surviennent, Lazard prendra des mesures pour les atténuer, y compris en affectant, si nécessaire, des gestionnaires de portefeuille supplémentaires aux clients concernés, y compris le Compartiment, pour faire en sorte que les décisions d'investissement prises relatives au titre d'un émetteur soient dans l'intérêt des porteurs de ce titre, sans tenir compte de l'intérêt de tout autre client de Lazard dont les intérêts peuvent être affectés défavorablement. La résolution des conflits peut avoir pour effet que le Compartiment reçoive une contrepartie financière inférieure à celle qu'il n'aurait pu percevoir en l'absence de conflit.

Risque de taux de change

La Devise de référence du Compartiment est le dollar US. Les catégories d'actions libellées dans une devise différente de la Devise de référence du Compartiment (à l'exception des Catégories d'Actions couvertes) ne seront pas couvertes par la Devise de référence du Compartiment et seront donc soumises au risque de change par rapport à la Devise de référence.

Durabilité

Risques en matière de durabilité

La politique d'intégration du Gestionnaire d'investissement en matière d'investissement durable et ESG (environnemental, social et de gouvernance) (la « Politique ») décrit son approche et son engagement à intégrer des considérations environnementales, sociales et de gouvernance d'entreprise dans les processus d'investissement afin de protéger les intérêts de ses clients et d'autres parties prenantes concernées, y compris le Compartiment. En particulier, la Politique exige que le Gestionnaire d'investissement intègre la prise en compte des Risques en matière de durabilité dans sa gestion du portefeuille du Compartiment conformément au Règlement SFDR ou à des règlements locaux similaires.

Le Gestionnaire d'investissement a accès aux données ESG à partir de ressources internes et externes, ce qui lui permet d'évaluer les Risques en matière de durabilité associés aux investissements potentiels ou existants du Compartiment. Ces données comprennent :

 Des informations internes, dont des rapports de recherche exclusifs contenant les impacts ou les attributs ESG des sociétés, l'analyse de la Matrice de matérialité¹ qui évalue les problèmes auxquels certains groupes sectoriels sont exposés en matière d'ESG, un rapport de la liste de surveillance ESG qui signale les sociétés mal notées sur une sélection de facteurs de risque ESG, ainsi que des

¹ L'analyse de la Matrice de matérialité exclusive du Gestionnaire d'investissement se base sur la matrice de matérialité du Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) (Materiality Map™).

informations sur l'activité de gestion (engagement, vote par procuration, résolutions des actionnaires) concernant les questions ESG.

 Des données et des informations de tiers, notamment : des notations et des scores de risque ESG permettant une comparaison systématique de la performance ESG des sociétés, des informations et des analyses concernant les controverses, des filtres de conformité aux normes mondiales et un ensemble plus large d'indicateurs ESG pour les émetteurs (entreprises et États) de l'univers de placement.

Afin de sélectionner les titres dans lesquels il investira, le Gestionnaire d'investissement utilisera certaines des données susmentionnées, ainsi que d'autres données pour identifier et évaluer les Risques en matière de durabilité. L'analyse par le Gestionnaire d'investissement des Risques en matière de durabilité, ainsi que des facteurs permettant de minimiser ces risques peut donner lieu à diverses mesures, y compris, sans s'y limiter, l'ajustement de son évaluation des titres d'un émetteur, la décision de surpondérer ou de sous-pondérer l'exposition du portefeuille du Compartiment à ces titres, ou la décision d'éviter tout investissement dans ces titres. L'évaluation par le Gestionnaire d'investissement des Risques en matière de durabilité liés à un investissement pour le Compartiment évoluera au fur et à mesure qu'il poursuivra ses analyses fondamentales concernant cet émetteur, son industrie/secteur et d'autres entités et parties prenantes intéressées.

Bien que le Gestionnaire d'investissement estime que les Risques en matière de durabilité peuvent avoir des impacts négatifs sur les activités commerciales et la performance financière de certains émetteurs de l'univers d'investissement du Compartiment au fil du temps, le Gestionnaire d'investissement ne pense pas que ces Risques en matière de durabilité auront un impact unique sur les rendements futurs du Compartiment. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement estime actuellement que son processus d'investissement, lorsqu'il est appliqué dans des conditions de marché normales à l'univers des titres éligibles par le Compartiment, devrait l'aider à éviter les investissements présentant des Risques inacceptables en matière de durabilité et les investissements dont les valorisations ne reflètent pas exactement ces Risques en matière de durabilité.

Profil d'un investisseur type

Convient aux investisseurs ayant un horizon d'investissement à moyen ou à long terme, qui visent à obtenir des rendements absolus en combinant l'appréciation du capital et les revenus, pour lesquels cet investissement ne représente pas une part importante de leur portefeuille, et qui sont enclins à tolérer un niveau moyen de volatilité.

Gestion et administration

Les descriptions détaillées des Administrateurs et des prestataires de services de la Société sont présentées dans le Prospectus.

COMMISSIONS ET FRAIS

Commissions et frais des Catégories d'Actions

Les détails de certain(e)s commissions et frais applicables à chaque catégorie d'Actions (y compris les Frais de gestion annuels et les pourcentages maximums payables lors de la souscription, du rachat et de la conversion) sont indiqués dans les tableaux figurant en Annexe I du présent Supplément.

Outre les commissions et frais indiqués dans les tableaux figurant en Annexe I du présent Supplément, une Commission de gestion de change et/ou une Commission de performance peuvent également être exigibles pour une catégorie d'Actions dans la mesure prévue dans les sous-chapitres intitulés « Commission de gestion de Change » et « Commission de performance ».

Commission de gestion de change

Chacune des Catégories d'Actions couvertes supportera la part attribuable des frais payables au Gestionnaire de devises. Le Gestionnaire de devises a été engagé pour faciliter l'exécution d'opérations

de change afin de couvrir l'exposition de chaque Catégorie d'Actions couverte aux variations du taux de change entre la devise dans laquelle cette Catégorie d'Actions couverte est libellée et la Devise de référence du Compartiment. Les frais payables au Gestionnaire de devises sont indiqués dans le Prospectus.

Commission de performance

Le Gestionnaire a également le droit (en plus des autres commissions dont il peut bénéficier selon les modalités du présent Supplément) de percevoir une commission de performance (la « *Commission de Performance* »), cumulée quotidiennement et payable une fois par an (ou autrement dans le cadre d'un rachat des Actions concernées), pour chacune des catégories d'Actions du Compartiment (à l'exclusion des Catégories EA, M et X). Cela équivaut à 20 % du Bénéfice Net, le cas échéant, au cours de la Période de Performance concernée.

Le Gestionnaire a également le droit de percevoir une Commission de performance, cumulée quotidiennement et payable une fois par an (ou autrement dans le cadre d'un rachat des Actions concernées), pour chacune des Catégories EA, égale à 15 % du Bénéfice net, le cas échéant, au cours de la Période de Performance concernée.

Aucune Commission de performance n'est imputée aux actifs des Catégories M et X.

Sous réserve du paragraphe immédiatement suivant, toute Commission de performance due (autrement que dans le cadre d'un rachat des Actions concernées) se cristallisera et sera créditée au Gestionnaire une fois par an le dernier Jour ouvrable de chaque année civile et sera versée au Gestionnaire au plus tard le 20e Jour ouvrable suivant la date de cristallisation.

Pour les catégories d'Actions nouvellement lancées, toute Commission de performance due (autrement que dans le cadre d'un rachat des Actions concernées) se cristallisera au plus tôt 12 mois après la clôture de la Période d'offre initiale pour la catégorie concernée au dernier Point d'évaluation de l'année civile en cours.

Une Commission de performance s'accumulera et sera due et payable à l'égard des Actions de toute catégorie concernée, seulement si les deux conditions suivantes sont remplies :

- La Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action pour toute Période de performance dépasse la Valeur liquidative butoir (Hurdle) par Action; et
- la Valeur Liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action pour la Période de Performance applicable (ou à la date de rachat des Actions concernées) dépasse le Seuil Plafond (High Water Mark).

Définitions

Chaque terme identifié ci-dessous aura la définition qui suit, uniquement aux fins de calcul de la Commission de performance.

Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action

En ce qui concerne chaque catégorie d'Actions, à l'exception des Catégories d'Actions non couvertes, la Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action correspond à la Valeur liquidative par Action de la catégorie concernée, à la dernière Date ou heure d'arrêté comptable avant le cumul de toute Commission de performance applicable.

Pour chaque Catégorie d'Actions non couverte, la Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action correspond à la Valeur liquidative par Action de la catégorie concernée telle que décrite au paragraphe précédent, mais exprimée dans la Devise de référence du Compartiment calculée selon le Taux de change en vigueur à la date concernée.

Valeur liquidative butoir par Action

La Valeur Liquidative Butoir par Action est calculée en appliquant le taux Euribor à 3 mois (code ticker : EUR003M) en vigueur (à condition que ce taux ne soit pas négatif et sous réserve d'un plafond de 5 %) à la date de cumul de la Commission de Performance (le « Taux Butoir ») à :

- (i) la Valeur Liquidative d'ouverture par Action de la catégorie concernée pour la Période de Performance alors en vigueur ou, si la catégorie concernée est une Catégorie d'Actions Non Couverte, à la Valeur Liquidative d'ouverture par Action de la catégorie concernée pour la Période de Performance indiquée dans la Devise de Référence du Compartiment (en utilisant le Taux de Change en Vigueur au cours de la période concernée) (la « Valeur Liquidative d'Ouverture par Action »), ou
- (ii) lorsque la Période de performance actuelle est la première Période de performance pour la catégorie concernée, au Prix d'offre initial par Action pour les Actions concernées ou, si la catégorie concernée est une Catégorie d'Actions non couverte, au Prix d'offre initial par Action pour les Actions concernées indiqué dans la Devise de référence du Compartiment (en utilisant le Taux de change en vigueur au cours de la période concernée).

Lorsque le taux Euribor à 3 mois en vigueur sur la période concernée est négatif, la Valeur Liquidative Butoir par Action correspond, selon le cas, à la Valeur Liquidative d'ouverture par Action ou au Prix de l'Offre Initiale par Action pour la catégorie concernée (ce prix étant, dans le cas où la catégorie concernée est une Catégorie d'Actions Non Couverte, le Prix d'Offre Initiale par Action de la catégorie concernée indiqué dans la Devise de Référence du Compartiment en utilisant le Taux de Change en vigueur au cours de la période concernée).

Le Taux butoir sera calculé au prorata pour les Périodes de performance inférieures à un an.

La Valeur Liquidative Butoir (Hurdle) par Action sera ajustée pour tout dividende approprié versé.

Seuil plafond (High Water Mark)

En ce qui concerne chaque catégorie d'Actions, à l'exception des Catégories d'Actions non couvertes, le Seuil plafond est le plus élevé des montants suivants :

- (i) la précédente Valeur liquidative la plus élevée par Action de la Catégorie d'Actions concernée (après déduction de toute Commission de performance et de tout dividende applicables) au dernier Point d'évaluation pour toute Période de Performance antérieure pour laquelle une Commission de performance était payée ou cumulée ; ou
- (ii) le Prix d'offre initial par Action de la catégorie d'Actions concernée.

En ce qui concerne chaque Catégorie d'Actions non couverte, le Seuil plafond est le plus élevé entre (i) ou (ii) ci-dessus, exprimé dans la Devise de référence du Compartiment selon le Taux de change en vigueur au cours de la période concernée.

Le Seuil plafond sera ajusté pour tout dividende approprié versé.

Une Commission de performance n'est payable ou payée que sur la hausse de la Valeur liquidative des catégories d'Actions concernées par rapport au Seuil plafond (High Water Mark) ou à la Valeur liquidative butoir (Hurdle) par Action correspondante, selon la valeur la plus élevée.

La performance excédentaire est calculée nette de tous les coûts avant le cumul de toute Commission de performance.

Bénéfice net

En ce qui concerne les Actions de chaque catégorie concernée, le Bénéfice net par Action correspond à la différence entre la Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action et la valeur la plus élevée entre (i) la Valeur liquidative butoir par Action et (ii) le Seuil plafond. Le « Bénéfice Net » correspond au Bénéfice Net par Action multiplié par le nombre moyen d'Actions de la catégorie concernée en circulation au

cours de la période commençant à la date à laquelle la Période de Performance alors en cours a commencé et s'est terminée à la date de cumul. Le nombre moyen d'Actions sera ajusté pour tenir compte des rachats au cours de la période considérée.

Période de performance

La première « Période de Performance » pour chaque catégorie d'Actions concernée commencera le premier Jour ouvrable suivant la clôture de la Période d'offre initiale pour cette catégorie et se terminera au plus tôt 12 mois plus tard au dernier Point d'évaluation de l'année civile en cours. Chaque Période de performance subséquente commencera immédiatement à la fin de la Période de performance antérieure et se terminera au dernier Point d'évaluation de l'année civile suivante (ou autrement à la date de référence à laquelle la dernière Valeur liquidative de la catégorie d'Actions concernée est calculée).

Taux de change en vigueur

Le « Taux de Change en Vigueur » désigne le taux de change en vigueur entre la devise dans laquelle la Catégorie d'Actions Non Couverte concernée est libellée et la Devise de Référence du Compartiment.

Informations générales

Pour chaque catégorie d'Actions (à l'exclusion des Catégories EA, M et X), la Commission de performance sera calculée en prenant le Bénéfice net de la catégorie d'Actions concernée pour la Période de performance applicable et en multipliant le résultat par 20 %.

Pour chacune des catégories EA, la Commission de performance sera calculée en prenant le Bénéfice net pour la catégorie EA concernée pour la Période de performance applicable et en multipliant le résultat par 15 %.

Chaque Action supportera sa quote-part de la Commission de performance, le cas échéant, payable à l'égard de la catégorie concernée.

La Commission de performance sera cumulée quotidiennement et, pourvu que les Actions concernées n'aient pas été rachetées, se cristallisera et sera créditée au Gestionnaire une fois par an le dernier Jour ouvrable de chaque année civile et sera versée au Gestionnaire au plus tard le 20e Jour ouvrable suivant la date de cristallisation. Toute Commission de performance cumulée à l'égard d'Actions rachetées au cours d'une Période de Performance se cristallisera dans les proportions voulues et deviendra payable au moment du rachat.

La Commission de performance sera calculée indépendamment par l'Administrateur et vérifiée par le Dépositaire et n'est pas ouverte à la possibilité de manipulation.

Exemple pratique de calcul de la commission de performance

1. En supposant une Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action de 110 \$, en supposant un Seuil plafond (High Water Mark) de 100 \$ et une Valeur liquidative butoir (Hurdle) par Action de 101,50 \$, le Bénéfice net serait de 8,50 \$. En supposant un nombre moyen d'actions sur la période de performance de 10 000 actions, la commission de performance serait calculée comme suit :

Calcul du Jour 1 : 8,50 × 20 % * 10 000 = 17 000 \$ (où 20 % est le taux de commission de performance à payer).

2. En supposant que 10 % des actions rachetées à la fin du Jour 1, 1 700 \$ de la commission de performance seraient cristallisées. Dans cet exemple, les actions moyennes supposées seraient réduites à 9 000. En supposant que la Valeur liquidative de fin d'exercice par Action ait augmenté à 115 \$ (soit un Bénéfice net de 13,50 \$), la commission de performance serait calculée comme suit :

Calcul du Jour 2 : 13,50 \$ * 20 % * 9 000 = 24 300 \$.

L'exemple pratique présenté ci-dessus s'applique à toutes les catégories d'Actions du Compartiment, à l'exclusion des Catégories EA, M et X.

Pour les Catégories EA, l'exemple pratique ci-dessus s'appliquera de la même manière, sauf que le taux de pourcentage de la commission de performance utilisé dans le calcul doit être de 15 % (au lieu de 20 % comme ci-dessus).

Aucune Commission de performance n'est imputée aux actifs des Catégories M et X.

Risques inhérents aux Commissions de performance

La Commission de performance est une Valeur liquidative basée sur une commission calculée par référence au nombre moyen d'Actions de la catégorie concernée en circulation au cours de la Période de performance et, par conséquent, la péréquation ne s'appliquera pas. Il en résulte que, dans les circonstances où une Commission de performance est payable à l'égard d'une Période de performance particulière, les Actionnaires qui ont acquis des Actions de la catégorie concernée après le début de cette Période de performance seront tenus de payer une Commission de performance fondée sur le rendement de cette catégorie d'Actions au cours de la Période de performance plutôt que sur la performance des Actions réelles qu'ils ont acquises au cours de la période lors de laquelle ces Actions ont été détenues. Par conséquent, les Actionnaires qui acquièrent des Actions après le début d'une Période de performance peuvent être redevables d'une Commission de performance, même s'il n'y a pas eu d'appréciation de la performance de la catégorie d'Actions concernée au cours de la période où les Actions ont effectivement été détenues.

Le calcul de la Commission de performance comprend les bénéfices et pertes nets réalisés et non réalisés à la fin de chaque Période de performance et, par conséquent, des frais incitatifs peuvent être payés sur les bénéfices non réalisés qui pourraient ne jamais être réalisés ultérieurement.

Il est à noter qu'il n'y aura pas de remboursement des Commissions de performance déjà payées si la Valeur liquidative par Action de la catégorie concernée (telle qu'exprimée dans la devise concernée) tombe par la suite en dessous du Seuil plafond (High Water Mark), même si un Actionnaire rachète sa participation.

Plafond des frais

Chaque catégorie d'Actions du Compartiment supportera également sa part attribuable aux autres dépenses de la Société (comme indiqué en détail à la rubrique « *Autres dépenses* » du chapitre du Prospectus intitulé « *Commissions et frais* »). Le paiement de tous ces frais sur les actifs du Compartiment, à l'exception des frais d'acquisition et de cession des Investissements (y compris les frais de garde dus aux dépositaires et aux sous-dépositaires, [qui devront, le cas échéant, être aux tarifs commerciaux normaux], les frais de courtage, les droits de timbre et autres taxes applicables), est soumis à un plafond de 0,30 % par an de la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment (le « **Plafond des frais** »). Le Gestionnaire sera responsable de l'acquittement de tous les frais concernés comme décrit ci-dessus dépassant le Plafond des frais. Afin d'éviter toute ambiguïté, les frais d'acquisition et de cession des Investissements (y compris les frais de garde dus aux dépositaires et aux sous-dépositaires [le cas échéant], les frais de courtage, les droits de timbre et autres taxes applicables) ne sont pas soumis au Plafond des frais et seront entièrement prélevés sur les actifs du Compartiment.

En outre, le Gestionnaire ne sera pas tenu responsable des coûts de couverture de l'exposition au risque de change pour le bénéfice d'une Catégorie d'Actions couverte particulière du Compartiment, coûts qui seront attribuables exclusivement à la Catégorie d'Actions couverte concernée.

Le Plafond des frais est un plafond qui s'applique aux dépenses concernées tel que décrit ci-dessus et ne constitue pas un montant minimum de dépenses pour les actifs du Compartiment. Cela signifie que, dans l'éventualité où les dépenses concernées (telles que décrites ci-dessus) réellement engagées par le Compartiment au cours d'un exercice donné s'avéraient être inférieures au montant du Plafond des frais, seules les dépenses concernées réellement engagées par le Compartiment seraient imputées aux actifs du Compartiment et non le montant total du Plafond des frais.

ANNEXE I

Détails des Catégories d'Actions

Catégories d'Actions de distribution

Les dividendes relatifs aux Catégories de distribution, lorsqu'ils sont payés, seront normalement versés en avril et en octobre de chaque année. Si un Actionnaire demande le versement de dividendes en espèces, ces dividendes seront payés par virement télégraphique sur le compte bancaire spécifié dans le Bulletin de souscription ou indiqué ultérieurement à l'Agent administratif par notification initiale écrite. Veuillez vous reporter également au chapitre « *Politique en matière de dividendes* » du Prospectus.

Devise de la catégorie (Note 1)	Type (Note 2)	Souscription initiale minimum et Participation minimum (Note 3)	Montant minimum de souscription ultérieure (Note 3)	Montant de rachat minimum (Note 3)	Frais de gestion annuels (Note 4)	Commissio n préliminair e maximum (Note 5)	Commission de rachat maximum (Note 6)	Commissi on de conversio n maximum (Note 7)	Période d'offre initiale et Prix d'offre initial
CHF	А	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
CHF	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
CHF (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
EUR	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	X	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
		. 555 566 565	. 333 335		, 1434110	,		. 70	21000
EUR (Couverte)	А	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8

EUR (Couverte)	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
EUR (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	N	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	Z	200 000 000 US	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
		D							
GBP	А	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	Z	200 000 000 US	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
		D							
GBP (Couverte)	А	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP (Couverte)	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP (Couverte)	х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	Z	200 000 000 US D	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY									
JPY	Δ	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10.USD	1 25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf Note 8
01 1	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
IDV	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	AP B	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 %	3 % 5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	AP B BP	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD	10 USD 10 USD 10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 %	3 % 5 % 5 %	2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY	AP B BP C	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD	10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 %	3 % 5 % 5 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9
JPY JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C E EA	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C E EA S	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % 3 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C E EA	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD 10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C E EA S	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % 3 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C E EA S X	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 % Aucune	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % Aucune	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY	AP B BP C E EA S X	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 % Aucune	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % Aucune	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Lancée
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY (Couverte)	AP B BP C E EA S X A AP	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 % Aucune 1,25 % 1,75 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % Aucune	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY (Couverte) JPY (Couverte)	AP B BP C E EA S X A AP B	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 500 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 % Aucune 1,25 % 1,75 % 2,25 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % Aucune 3 % 5 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY (Couverte) JPY (Couverte) JPY (Couverte)	AP B BP C E EA S X A AP B BP	1 000 000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 1000 USD 50 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD 20 000 000 USD 1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD 500 USD 1 000 USD 500 USD 500 USD	10 USD	1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 % 1,25 % Jusqu'à 1,00 % 0,75 % 1,00 % Aucune 1,25 % 1,75 % 2,25 % 2,50 %	3 % 5 % 5 % 3 % 3 % 3 % Aucune 3 % 5 % 5 %	2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 % 2 %	1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %	Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 9 Cf. Note 8 Cf. Note 8

JPY (Couverte)	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	Α	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
USD	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	М	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	Aucune	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8

Catégories d'Actions de capitalisation

Les dividendes ne seront pas versés au regard des Catégories d'Actions de capitalisation.

Les revenus et les bénéfices éventuels attribuables à une Catégorie de capitalisation donnée seront accumulés dans le Compartiment pour le compte des Actionnaires de la Catégorie de capitalisation concernée et seront intégrés dans la Valeur liquidative de cette Catégorie de capitalisation.

Devise de la catégorie (Note 1)	Type (Note 2)	Souscription initiale minimum et Participation minimum (Note 3)	Montant minimum de souscription ultérieure (Note 3)	Montant de rachat minimum (Note 3)	Frais de gestion annuels (Note 4)	Commissio n préliminair e maximum (Note 5)	Commission de rachat maximum (Note 6)	Commissi on de conversio n maximum (Note 7)	Période d'offre initiale et Prix d'offre initial
CHF	Α	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	А	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
CHF (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
CHF (Couverte)	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
CHF (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
CHF (Couverte)	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8

EUR									
	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
EUR	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	N	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	U	25 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	jusqu'à 1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
EUR (Couverte)	x	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
EUR (Couverte)	Z	200 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP	Z	200 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	E	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP (Couverte)	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
GBP (Couverte)	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
GBP (Couverte)	Z	200 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
1	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	ь			1	1		i e	1	i e
	ВР	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8

JPY	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 9
JPY	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	A	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
JPY (Couverte)	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	S	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
JPY (Couverte)	Х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	Α	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	AP	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	В	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,25 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	BP	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	2,50 %	5 %	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	С	1000 USD	500 USD	10 USD	1,25 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	Е	50 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	EA	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	0,75 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	М	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	Aucune	1 %	Lancée
USD	s	20 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	1,00 %	3 %	2 %	1 %	Lancée
USD	х	1 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Aucune	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Cf. Note 8
USD	z	200 000 000 USD	1 000 USD	10 USD	Jusqu'à 1,00 %	Aucune	2 %	1 %	Lancée

Notes :

(1) sauf dans des circonstances exceptionnelles, la transaction et le règlement n'auront lieu que dans la devise dans laquelle les Actions concernées sont libellées. Les investisseurs qui souhaitent négocier ou régler dans une devise différente de la devise dans laquelle les Actions concernées sont libellées doivent se reporter à la partie « Devise de transaction/de règlement » du tableau « Informations sur les transactions » de l'Annexe II.

Les Catégories d'Actions couvertes sont indiquées dans ce tableau par l'inclusion de « (Couverte) » immédiatement après la devise de la Catégorie d'Actions concernée. Veuillez vous reporter au chapitre du présent Supplément intitulé « Politique de couverture de change » pour de plus amples renseignements sur les Catégories d'Actions couvertes.

- (2) les actionnaires et investisseurs sont renvoyés au tableau ci-dessous intitulé « Types de Catégorie d'Actions » pour des informations spécifiques (le cas échéant) relatives à des types de catégories particulières.
- (3) ou le montant équivalent dans la devise dans laquelle la catégorie d'Actions concernée est libellée (ou moins à la discrétion du Gestionnaire).
- (4) étant un pourcentage annuel de la Valeur liquidative attribuable à la catégorie d'Actions concernée. Les Frais de gestion annuels sont cumulés quotidiennement en fonction de la Valeur liquidative quotidienne attribuable à la catégorie d'Actions concernée et sont versés au Gestionnaire mensuellement à terme échu. Le Gestionnaire a également le droit d'être remboursé par le Compartiment pour ses dépenses raisonnables. Le Gestionnaire est responsable de l'acquittement des commissions et frais du Gestionnaire d'investissement, du Promoteur et des Distributeurs sur les commissions qu'il reçoit du Compartiment.
- (5) les Administrateurs peuvent, à leur entière discrétion et à l'égard de chaque souscription d'Actions, facturer une commission préliminaire jusqu'à concurrence du montant indiqué, soit un pourcentage de la Valeur liquidative des Actions souscrites. Cette commission préliminaire est versée au Gestionnaire. Le Gestionnaire peut payer tout ou partie de la commission préliminaire aux intermédiaires financiers qui participent à la vente d'Actions du Compartiment.
- (6) les Administrateurs peuvent, à leur entière discrétion et pour tout rachat d'Actions, facturer une commission de rachat d'un montant jusqu'à concurrence du montant indiqué, représentant un pourcentage de la Valeur liquidative des Actions rachetées.

Une commission de rachat ne sera perçue que si les Administrateurs estiment que l'Actionnaire demandant le rachat : (i) exerce une activité à court terme d'une manière jugée par les Administrateurs, à leur entière discrétion, inappropriée et/ou comme n'étant pas dans l'intérêt supérieur des Actionnaires du Compartiment ou (ii) exerce une quelconque forme d'arbitrage sur le rendement des Actions.

(7) les Administrateurs peuvent, à leur entière discrétion, facturer une commission de conversion pouvant atteindre 1 % de la Valeur liquidative des Actions à convertir.

(8)

la Période d'offre initiale continue pour cette catégorie d'Actions se terminera à 17 h 00 (heure de Dublin) le 12 mai 2025, à moins que cette période ne soit écourtée ou prolongée par les Administrateurs et qu'il en soit notifié à la Banque centrale.

Cf. le tableau ci-dessous intitulé « Prix d'offre initial de la Catégorie d'Actions » pour obtenir les détails du prix par Action auquel les Actions peuvent être souscrites pendant la Période d'offre initiale.

Les souscriptions d'Actions pendant la Période d'offre initiale doivent être reçues (avec les fonds compensés et tous les documents requis concernant la lutte contre le blanchiment des capitaux) pendant la Période d'offre initiale. Tous les souscripteurs d'Actions au cours de la Période d'offre initiale doivent remplir (ou prendre des dispositions pour remplir selon les conditions approuvées par les Administrateurs) le Bulletin de souscription.

La Période d'offre initiale pour cette Catégorie d'Actions commencera à 9 h 00 (heure irlandaise) le 12 novembre 2024 et se terminera à 17 h 00 (heure irlandaise) le 12 mai 2025, à moins que cette période ne soit écourtée ou prolongée par les Administrateurs et qu'il en soit notifié à la Banque centrale.

Cf. le tableau ci-dessous intitulé « Prix d'offre initial de la Catégorie d'Actions » pour les détails du prix par Action auquel les Actions peuvent être souscrites pendant la Période d'offre initiale.

Les souscriptions d'Actions pendant la Période d'offre initiale doivent être reçues (avec les fonds compensés et tous les documents requis concernant la lutte

contre le blanchiment des capitaux)
pendant la Période d'offre initiale. Tous les souscripteurs d'Actions au cours de la Période d'offre initiale doivent remplir (ou prendre des dispositions pour remplir selon les conditions approuvées

par les Administrateurs) le Bulletin de souscription.

Prix d'offre initial de la Catégorie d'Actions							
Catégories d'Actions	Prix d'offre initial						
Toutes les catégories libellées en CHF	100 CHF						
Toutes les catégories libellées en EUR	100 EUR						
Toutes les catégories libellées en GBP	100 GBP						
Toutes les Catégories libellées en JPY	10 000 JPY						
Toutes les catégories libellées en USD (à l'exception des catégories M libellées en USD)	100 USD						
Catégories M libellées en USD	1 000 USD						

	Types de Catégorie d'Actions
Catégories C Catégories E Catégories S	Les Frais de gestion annuels facturés à l'égard des Actions des Catégories C, des Catégories E et des Catégories S sont, dans chaque cas, des « frais nets » dans la mesure où ils n'incluent aucune provision pour couvrir le remboursement des détenteurs de ces Actions ou le paiement de rétrocessions, de commissions ou d'autres avantages pécuniaires à des tiers intervenant dans la distribution de ces Actions.
Catégories EA	Les Frais de gestion annuels exigibles à l'égard des Actions des Catégories EA ont été établis à un taux destiné à attirer des actifs dans le Compartiment. Il est donc prévu que les Catégories EA ne seront disponibles que pour des investissements, conformément aux dispositions ci-après, pour une période limitée suivant la publication du présent Supplément. Sous réserve de ce qui est exposé ci-dessous, les Catégories EA seront fermées à toute souscription supplémentaire une fois que la Valeur liquidative du Compartiment aura atteint 100 millions de dollars US (ou tout autre montant que les Administrateurs peuvent, à leur discrétion, déterminer). Après la clôture des Catégories EA conformément au paragraphe précédent, les Actionnaires de la Catégorie EA existants (tels que définis ci-dessous) peuvent continuer à souscrire des Actions de l'une des Catégories EA, à condition que le montant total investi par un Actionnaire de la Catégorie EA existant ne puisse excéder le triple de la Valeur liquidative de la détention totale d'Actions de cet Actionnaire dans les Catégories EA calculée au moment où les Catégories EA ont été fermées à d'autres souscriptions. Une fois que les Administrateurs auront exercé leur pouvoir discrétionnaire de fermer les Catégories EA à d'autres souscriptions conformément aux paragraphes précédents, un avis à cet effet sera publié sur le site Internet du Promoteur à l'adresse www.lazardassetmanagement.com. Les Actions des Catégories EA peuvent être rachetées à tout moment conformément aux procédures habituelles de rachat énoncées dans le chapitre du présent Supplément intitulé « <i>Procédure de Rachat</i> ».
	Aux fins du présent chapitre : Le terme « Actionnaires de la Catégorie EA existants » désigne les détenteurs d'Actions inscrits d'une Catégorie EA au moment où les Catégories EA sont fermées à d'autres souscriptions conformément aux paragraphes précédents.

Catégories M	
	Les Actions des Catégories M ne peuvent faire l'objet d'investissement que par d'autres compartiments gérés ou conseillés par une Société affiliée de Lazard ou par toute autre personne que le Gestionnaire peut déterminer à tout moment (c'est-à-dire le personnel de Lazard ou des Sociétés affiliées de Lazard pour le lancement ou autre). Aux fins du présent chapitre : « Société affiliée de Lazard », désigne une société dont la société mère ultime est la société mère ultime du Gestionnaire d'investissement, ou une société dans laquelle une telle société détient directement ou indirectement au moins 50 % de ses droits de propriété.
Catégories X	Les Actions des Catégories X ne peuvent être acquises ou détenues que par un investisseur qui est partie à un Accord d'investisseur en cours (tel que défini ci-dessous).
	Aucun transfert d'Actions des Catégories X ne peut être effectué, à moins que le cessionnaire proposé ne soit partie à un Accord d'investisseur en cours.
	Aucuns Frais de gestion annuels ne sont imputés aux actifs attribuables aux Catégories X. Les Actionnaires de la Catégorie X devront plutôt s'acquitter des frais de gestion imputables à leur investissement dans la Catégorie X concernée tel que précisé dans l'Accord d'investisseur auquel ils sont liés, et seront directement facturés à ces fins. Les Actionnaires concernés devront par ailleurs s'acquitter de l'ensemble des autres commissions/frais applicables à un investissement dans une Catégorie X au titre de leur investissement dans une Catégorie X, conformément à ce qui est stipulé dans le Prospectus.
	La Société se réserve le droit, à la demande du Gestionnaire, de racheter la totalité de la détention d'actions de tout Actionnaire de Catégorie X, si l'Accord d'investisseur auquel l'Actionnaire concerné est partie est résilié pour quelque raison que ce soit.
	Aux fins du présent chapitre :
	« Accord d'investisseur » désigne un accord conclu entre une Société affiliée de Lazard et un investisseur en vertu duquel ce dernier s'engage à investir dans une Catégorie X et à s'acquitter des commissions associées à cet investissement tel que stipulé dans l'accord.
	« Société affiliée de Lazard », désigne une société dont la société mère ultime est la société mère ultime du Gestionnaire d'investissement, ou une société dans laquelle une telle société détient directement ou indirectement au moins 50 % de ses droits de propriété.
Catégorie Z	Les Actions de la Catégorie Z ne peuvent être acquises ou détenues que par un investisseur qui est partie à un Accord d'investisseur pour la Catégorie Z en vigueur (tel que défini ci-dessous).
	Aucun transfert d'Actions la Catégorie Z ne peut être effectué, à moins que le cessionnaire proposé ne soit partie à un Accord d'investisseur pour la Catégorie Z en cours.
	La Société se réserve le droit, à la demande du Gestionnaire, de racheter la totalité de la détention d'actions de tout Actionnaire de la Catégorie Z, si l'Accord d'investisseur pour la Catégorie Z auquel l'Actionnaire concerné est partie est résilié pour quelque raison que ce soit.
	Aux fins du présent chapitre :
	« Accord d'investisseur pour la Catégorie Z » désigne un accord entre une Société affiliée de Lazard et un investisseur en vertu duquel ce dernier s'engage à investir dans la Catégorie Z.
	« Société affiliée de Lazard », désigne une société dont la société mère ultime est la société mère ultime du Gestionnaire d'investissement, ou une société dans laquelle une telle société détient directement ou indirectement au moins 50 % de ses droits de propriété.

ANNEXE II

Informations sur les transactions		
Jour ouvrable	un jour où la bourse de New York est ouverte.	
Heure limite (pour la réception des demandes de souscriptions et de transferts)	12 h 00 (heure irlandaise) le Jour de transaction concerné* * soit le moment au cours d'un Jour ouvrable jusqu'où les demandes de souscriptions et de transferts seront acceptées.	
Heure limite (pour la réception des demandes de conversions et de rachats)	12 h 00 (heure de Dublin) le cinquième Jour ouvrable précédant le Jour de transaction concerné** ** soit le moment au cours d'un Jour ouvrable jusqu'où les demandes de conversions et de rachats seront acceptées.	
Coordonnées de transaction	Adresse: Lazard Global Investment Funds plc Compartiment: Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited c/o State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited Transfer Agency Department 78 Sir John Rogersons Quay Dublin 2 D02 HD32 Irlande Tél: +353 1 242 5421 Fax: +353 1 523 3720 E-mail: LazardTA@statestreet.com	
Jour de transaction	chaque Jour ouvrable.	
Devise de transaction/de règlement	Sauf dans des circonstances exceptionnelles, la transaction et le règlement n'auront lieu que dans la devise de dénomination de la catégorie d'Actions concernée. Toutefois, lorsque les paiements relatifs à l'achat ou au rachat d'Actions sont présentés ou demandés dans une monnaie autre que la devise de dénomination de la catégorie d'Actions concernée, les opérations de change nécessaires seront effectuées, sous réserve de l'accord du Gestionnaire, par l'Agent administratif pour le compte de l'investisseur concerné, à ses risques et à ses frais sur la base du taux de change en vigueur le Jour de transaction si disponible. Le versement de dividendes ne sera effectué que dans la devise dans laquelle la catégorie d'Actions concernée est libellée.	
Devise de référence du Compartiment	Dollar US (USD)	
Date limite de règlement (pour la réception des fonds de souscription)	dans les trois (3) Jours ouvrables à compter du Jour de transaction à l'égard duquel la demande de souscription a été soumise.** ** Les paiements de souscription nets de tous frais bancaires doivent être effectués dans la devise dans laquelle l'ordre a été placé et doivent être payés par virement télégraphique sur le compte bancaire spécifié au moment de la transaction.	
Date limite de règlement (pour le paiement du produit du rachat)	dans les trois (3) Jours ouvrables à compter du Jour de transaction où le rachat est effectué*** *** à condition que tous les documents requis aient été fournis à l'Agent administratif et que toutes les opérations nécessitant une vérification (par exemple les détails du compte) aient été dûment effectuées. En cas de rachat partiel de la participation d'un Actionnaire, l'Agent administratif informera l'Actionnaire des Actions restantes détenues.	

	Les paiements de rachat seront envoyés par virement télégraphique au compte bancaire indiqué sur le Bulletin de souscription ou notifié ultérieurement à l'Agent administratif dans le format éventuellement exigé par l'Agent administratif.
Prix d'une Action	Les Actions peuvent être achetées et vendues lors d'un Jour de transaction à la Valeur liquidative par Action appropriée.
	En outre, une commission préliminaire peut être perçue sur la souscription et une commission de rachat lors du rachat, mais uniquement dans les conditions spécifiées en Annexe I du présent Supplément.
Publication du Prix d'une Action	la Valeur liquidative par Action la plus récente, exprimée dans la devise de dénomination de la catégorie d'Actions concernée, sera disponible pendant les heures normales de bureau tous les Jours ouvrables aux bureaux de l'Agent administratif et du Promoteur et sera publiée sur le site Internet du Promoteur à www.lazardassetmanagement.com (qui doit être tenu à jour).
Point d'évaluation	16 h 00 (heure de New York) chaque Jour de transaction.

ÉVALUATION DES ACTIFS

La Valeur liquidative du Compartiment et de chaque catégorie d'Actions sera calculée par l'Agent administratif à chaque Point d'évaluation, conformément aux dispositions des Statuts et les détails complets sont présentés au chapitre « *Informations légales et générales »* du Prospectus.

PRIX D'UNE ACTION

Les Actions sont émises et rachetées à un prix unique, à savoir la Valeur liquidative par Action de la Catégorie d'Actions concernée.

Les Administrateurs ont la possibilité, conformément aux statuts de la Société, d'appliquer une méthode de fixation des prix, appelée « swing pricing », lors du calcul du prix des Actions du Compartiment. Toutefois, à la date du présent Supplément, les Administrateurs ont déterminé que les Actions du Compartiment seront émises et rachetées à leur Valeur liquidative et que le swing pricing ne sera pas appliqué.

Si les Administrateurs décident à l'avenir d'exercer leur pouvoir discrétionnaire pour commencer à établir le prix des Actions à l'aide de la méthode du swing pricing, les Actionnaires du Compartiment en seront informés à l'avance et pourront demander le rachat de leur participation dans le Compartiment avant l'application du swing pricing. Dans ce cas, le présent Supplément sera également mis à jour avant la prise d'effet du swing pricing.

PROCÉDURE DE SOUSCRIPTION

Tous les demandeurs qui souscrivent des Actions doivent remplir le bulletin de souscription fixé par les Administrateurs à l'égard du Compartiment (le « Bulletin de souscription ») et se conformer rapidement à toutes les exigences nécessaires en matière de formalités liées à la lutte contre le blanchiment des capitaux.

Un Bulletin de souscription accompagne le présent Supplément et énonce les méthodes selon lesquelles et le destinataire auquel les sommes de souscription doivent être envoyées. Les Bulletins de souscription seront irrévocables (à l'exception de ceux déterminés par le Gestionnaire) et peuvent être envoyés par fax à l'Agent administratif aux risques et périls du souscripteur.

Le Bulletin de souscription original devra être envoyé à l'Agent administratif sous quatre Jours ouvrables suivant la date à laquelle la demande d'Actions a été faite. Toute la documentation requise relative à la lutte contre le blanchiment des capitaux (y compris la documentation originale telle que susceptible d'être requise) doit être jointe au Bulletin de souscription original.

L'absence de Bulletin de souscription original et des documents requis relatif à la lutte contre le blanchiment des capitaux dans le délai visé au paragraphe précédent peuvent, à la discrétion du Gestionnaire, entraîner le rachat forcé des Actions concernées.

Les souscripteurs ne pourront pas procéder au rachat des Actions sur demande jusqu'à ce que le Bulletin de souscription original et tous les documents requis contre le blanchiment des capitaux aient été dûment reçus par l'Agent administratif et soient conformes et acceptés.

Les Actionnaires peuvent souscrire d'autres Actions (c'est-à-dire après leur souscription initiale) auprès de l'Agent administratif en le contactant par téléphone ou par télécopie, par des moyens électroniques ou par tout autre moyen que la Société peut autoriser conformément aux Exigences de la Banque centrale. Les transactions par téléphone seront enregistrées par l'Agent administratif.

Toutes les demandes de souscription reçues après la clôture de la Période d'offre initiale pour les Actions concernées seront traitées selon une méthode de tarification à terme (c'est-à-dire en fonction de la Valeur liquidative des Actions souscrites calculée au Point d'évaluation pour le Jour de transaction auquel la souscription doit être effectuée).

Les demandes d'Actions reçues après la clôture de la Période d'offre initiale pour ces Actions doivent être reçues et acceptées avant l'Heure limite du Jour de transaction lors duquel la souscription doit être effectuée. Aucune demande ne sera considérée comme reçue et acceptée par l'Agent administratif jusqu'à ce que (a) un Bulletin de souscription dûment rempli et que (b) tous les documents requis contre le blanchiment des capitaux soient reçus par l'Agent administratif et que (a) et (b) satisfassent les exigences de l'Agent administratif.

Toutes ces demandes (visées au paragraphe précédent) reçues après l'Heure limite du Jour de transaction concerné seront normalement reportées jusqu'au Jour de transaction suivant. Toutefois, dans des circonstances exceptionnelles, les demandes reçues après l'Heure limite, mais avant le Point d'évaluation pour un Jour de transaction donné, peuvent être acceptées pour être traitées au cours dudit Jour de transaction à la discrétion du Gestionnaire. Toute demande de souscription lors d'un Jour de transaction donné reçue après le Point d'évaluation pour ce Jour de transaction sera reportée jusqu'au Jour de transaction suivant.

Si le paiement intégral des fonds compensés à l'égard d'une souscription n'a pas été reçu à la Date limite de règlement spécifiée dans le tableau ci-dessus intitulé « *Informations sur les transactions* », la Société peut (et en cas de non-compensation de fonds, doit) annuler l'attribution et/ou facturer au souscripteur toute perte subie par le Compartiment en raison du retard ou de la non-compensation. En outre, la Société aura le droit de vendre ou de racheter la totalité ou une partie du portefeuille d'Actions du demandeur dans le Compartiment ou dans tout autre compartiment de la Société afin de faire face à ces frais.

PROCÉDURE DE RACHAT

Tout Actionnaire aura le droit d'exiger que la Société rachète ses Actions au cours d'un Jour de transaction (sauf pendant la période où le calcul de la Valeur liquidative est suspendu dans les circonstances énoncées au chapitre « *Suspensions temporaires* » du Prospectus) en fournissant à l'Agent administratif une demande de rachat. Les Actions ne peuvent être rachetées que sur demande auprès de l'Agent administratif.

Toutes les demandes de rachat sont traitées selon une méthode de tarification à terme (c'est-à-dire en fonction de la Valeur liquidative des Actions à racheter calculée au Point d'évaluation le Jour de transaction au cours duquel le rachat est effectué).

Les demandes de rachat ne seront acceptées que si les fonds sont compensés et les documents sont en ordre à partir des souscriptions originales. Aucun paiement de rachat ne sera effectué jusqu'à ce que (a) le Bulletin de souscription original et (b) l'ensemble des documents requis sur la lutte contre le blanchiment des capitaux (y compris les documents originaux requis) aient été reçus par l'Agent administratif et que (a) et (b) satisfassent aux exigences de l'Agent administratif.

Les demandes de rachat doivent être reçues et acceptées avant l'Heure limite du Jour de transaction auquel le rachat doit être effectué. Les Actions seront rachetées à la Valeur liquidative concernée du Jour de transaction concerné (moins les frais de rachat, le cas échéant, qui pourront être appliqués). Si la demande de rachat est reçue après l'Heure limite, elle sera normalement traitée comme une demande de rachat le Jour de transaction suivant cette réception et les Actions seront rachetées à la Valeur liquidative concernée de ce jour (moins les frais de rachat éventuels qui peuvent être appliqués). Toutefois, dans des circonstances exceptionnelles, les demandes de rachat reçues après l'Heure limite, mais avant le Point d'évaluation pour le Jour de transaction concerné, peuvent être acceptées afin d'être traitées ledit Jour de transaction à la discrétion

du Gestionnaire. Toute demande de rachat lors d'un Jour de transaction donné reçue après le Point d'évaluation pour ce Jour de transaction sera reportée jusqu'au Jour de transaction suivant.

Les demandes de rachat seront irrévocables (à l'exception de celles déterminées par le Gestionnaire) et peuvent, aux risques et périls de l'Actionnaire concerné, être envoyées par téléphone, par télécopie, par courrier, par voie électronique ou par tout autre moyen que la Société peut autoriser conformément aux Exigences de la Banque centrale.

Rachat forcé

Le Gestionnaire aura le droit de procéder au rachat forcé de toute Action ou d'exiger le transfert d'une Action à un Détenteur qualifié s'il estime que : (i) cette Action est détenue par une personne autre qu'un Détenteur qualifié ; ou (ii) que le rachat ou le transfert (selon le cas) éliminerait ou réduirait l'exposition de la Société ou des Actionnaires à des conséquences fiscales ou réglementaires défavorables.

Conversion

Les détails relatifs à la conversion sont précisés au chapitre « Conversion entre différentes catégories d'Actions et différents Compartiments » du Prospectus.

Transferts

Les conditions relatives aux transferts d'Actions sont présentées dans le Prospectus.

ANNEXE III

Caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales

Informations précontractuelles pour les produits financiers visés à l'article 8, paragraphes 1, 2 et 2 bis du règlement (UE) 2019/2088 et à l'article 6, premier alinéa, du règlement (UE) 2020/852

		omination produit :	Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund	d'e	ntifiant ntité idique :	2549000BM63Q5YC1MW54		
		Caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales						
durable, on entend un	Ce produit financier a-t-il un objectif d'investissement durable ?							
activité économique qui	•	□ Oui			⊠ No	on		
environnemental ou social, pour autant qu'il ne cause de préjudice important à aucun de ces objectifs et que les sociétés dans lesquelles le produit financier investit appliquent des pratiques de bonne gouvernance. La taxinomie de l'UE est un système de			minimum ments durables ayant un ronnemental : %		enviror (E/S) et objectif contiend	eut des caractéristiques nnementales et sociales s, bien qu'il n'ait pas pour l'investissement durable, il dra une proportion minimale 6 d'investissements durables		
		dans des activités économiques qui sont considérées comme durables sur le plan environnemental au titre de la taxinomie de l'UE			ayant un objectif environnemental et réalisés dans des activités économiques qui sont considérées comme durables sur le plan environnemental au titre de la taxinomie de l'UE			
d'activités économiques durables sur le plan environnemental. Ce règlement ne comprend		dans des activités économiques qui ne sont pas considérées comme durables sur le plan environnemental au titre de la taxinomie de l'UE			ayant un objectif environnemental dans des activités économiques qui ne sont pas considérées comme durables sur le plan environnemental au titre de la taxinomie de l'UE			
investissement dans une activité économique qui contribue à un objectif environnemental ou social, pour autant qu'il ne cause de préjudice important à aucun de ces objectifs et que les sociétés dans lesquelles le produit financier investit appliquent des pratiques de bonne gouvernance. La taxinomie de l'UE est un système de classification institué par le règlement (UE) 2020/852, qui dresse une liste d'activités économiques durables sur le plan environnemental.					ayant un objectif social			
investissements durables ayant un objectif environnemental ne sont pas nécessairement		Il réalisera un d'investisse objectif soci	ments durables ayant un		mais ne	eut des caractéristiques E/S, e réalisera pas stissements durables		
		elles caractéri duit financier	stiques environnementales ?	et/o	u sociale	es sont promues par ce		
	Les	S'assurer réalisé dar du risque correspon	qu'au moins 90 % des invo ns des obligations convertible ESG inférieure à 40 (un sco dant à un risque ESG grave	estiss s émi ore de e »). I	sements ises par c e 40 ou p _a métho	directs du Compartiment soit des sociétés ayant une Notation plus constituant une « Notation pologie de Notation du risque peur de notation ESG tiers de		

l'exposition des sociétés aux questions ESG importantes et de leur gestion de cellesci. Pour chaque émetteur privé, les questions ESG importantes prises en compte incluent les émissions de carbone, l'intensité en ressources, les facteurs de capital humain, la santé et la sécurité, la gouvernance d'entreprise et l'éthique commerciale. 2. Éviter d'investir dans des émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises qui enfreignent les normes environnementales et sociales mondiales. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement évalue les émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises à l'aune d'une liste de surveillance générée en interne (fondée sur les informations de fournisseurs tiers). En outre, le Compartiment applique une politique d'exclusion qui interdit d'investir dans des émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises dont le Gestionnaire d'investissement considère qu'ils enfreignent les principes du Pacte mondial des Nations unies (UNGC), ou de s'exposer à de tels émetteurs. Ainsi, le Compartiment évite les placements qui, au minimum, ne respectent pas les normes sociales et environnementales en matière de droits de l'homme, de droit du travail, de lutte contre la corruption, ou de protection de l'environnement. 3. Promouvoir certaines mesures minimales de protection environnementale et sociale en excluant les émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises impliqués dans la production d'armes controversées, la production d'armes militaires, l'exploitation ou la production de charbon thermique, ou la production de tabac. Les indicateurs de Quels sont les indicateurs de durabilité utilisés pour mesurer la réalisation de durabilité servent à vérifier chacune des caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales promues par le si les caractéristiques produit financier? environnementales ou sociales promues par le Le Compartiment utilise les indicateurs de durabilité suivants pour mesurer comment les produit financier sont caractéristiques environnementales et sociales du Compartiment sont respectées : atteintes. 1. Au moins 90 % des investissements en obligations convertibles du Compartiment sont émis par des entreprises dont la notation du risque ESG est meilleure qu'une Notation correspondant à un risque ESG grave. 2. Le Compartiment n'est pas exposé à des émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises considérés par le Gestionnaire d'investissement comme enfreignant les principes de I'UNGC. 3. Le Compartiment n'est pas exposé à des émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises exclus par les critères d'exclusion liés à la production d'armes controversées, à la production d'armes militaires, à l'exploitation ou à la production de charbon thermique, ou à la production de tabac. Quels sont les objectifs des investissements durables que le produit financier entend notamment poursuivre et comment les investissements effectués contribuent-ils à ces objectifs ? Sans objet – Le Compartiment ne s'engage pas à réaliser des investissements durables. Dans quelle mesure les investissements durables que le produit financier entend notamment poursuivre ne causent-ils pas de préjudice important à un objectif d'investissement durable sur le plan environnemental ou social ? Les principales Non applicable. incidences négatives correspondent aux

incidences négatives les plus significatives des décisions d'investissement	 Comment les indicateurs concernant les incidences négatives ont-ils été pris en considération ?
sur les facteurs de durabilité en matière d'environnement, de questions sociales et de personnel, de respect des	Non applicable.
droits de l'homme et de lutte contre la corruption et les actes de corruption.	Dans quelle mesure les investissements durables sont-ils conformes aux principes directeurs de l'OCDE à l'intention des entreprises multinationales et aux principes directeurs des Nations unies relatifs aux entreprises et aux droits de l'homme ? Description détaillée :
	Non applicable.
	La taxinomie de l'UE établit un principe consistant à « ne pas causer de préjudice important » en vertu duquel les investissements alignés sur la taxinomie ne devraient pas causer de préjudice important aux objectifs de la taxinomie de l'UE. Elle s'accompagne de critères propres à l'UE.
	Le principe consistant à « ne pas causer de préjudice important » s'applique uniquement aux investissements sous-jacents au produit financier qui prennent en compte les critères de l'Union européenne en matière d'activités économiques durables sur le plan environnemental. Les investissements sous-jacents à la portion restante de ce produit financier ne prennent pas en compte les critères de l'Union européenne en matière d'activités économiques durables sur le plan environnemental.
	Tout autre investissement durable ne doit pas non plus causer de préjudice important aux objectifs environnementaux ou sociaux.
	Ce produit financier prend-il en considération les principales incidences négatives sur les facteurs de durabilité ?
	⊠Oui, le Compartiment tient compte des principales incidences négatives (PIN) sur les facteurs de durabilité.
	L'application de normes mondiales en amont des investissements et d'exclusions fondées sur les activités, permet de tenir compte des PIN suivantes :
	 Exposition à des sociétés actives dans le secteur des combustibles fossiles (PIN 4, Tableau 1)

- Violations des principes du Pacte mondial des Nations unies et des principes directeurs de l'Organisation de coopération et de développement économiques (OCDE) à l'intention entreprises multinationales (PIN 10, Tableau 1)
- Exposition à des armes controversées (PIN 14, Tableau 1)

L'intégration ESG et les processus de diligence raisonnable en matière d'investissement permettent de tenir compte des PIN suivantes, selon le cas :

- Indicateurs relatifs aux émissions de GES et à l'exposition aux combustibles fossiles (PIN 1-4, Tableau 1)
- Mixité au sein des organes de gouvernance (PIN 13, Tableau 1)

Les activités de gestion post-investissement permettent de tenir compte des PIN suivantes, selon le cas :

- Indicateurs relatifs aux émissions de GES et à l'exposition aux combustibles fossiles (PIN 1-4, Tableau 1)
- Violations des principes du Pacte mondial des Nations unies et des principes directeurs de l'Organisation de coopération et de développement économiques (OCDE) à l'intention entreprises multinationales (PIN 10, Tableau 1)
- Mixité au sein des organes de gouvernance (PIN 13, Tableau 1)

Les questions environnementales et sociales importantes comme celles indiquées dans les PIN sont régulièrement identifiées par les professionnels de l'investissement et font l'objet de discussions dans le cadre des processus de recherche exclusifs du Gestionnaire d'investissement. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement fait également appel à des recherches et données ESG tierces pour compléter ses informations et connaître le positionnement relatif dans le secteur. Compte tenu de la disponibilité limitée de certains points de données, le Gestionnaire d'investissement peut utiliser des évaluations qualitatives tout en y ajoutant d'autres points de données pertinents concernant les PIN, à mesure que la publication d'informations par les entreprises et la qualité des données s'améliorent au fil du temps.

Les informations relatives aux PIN seront mises à disposition dans les rapports financiers annuels du Compartiment.

□Non



Quelle est la stratégie d'investissement suivie par ce produit financier ?

La stratégie d'investissement guide les décisions d'investissement selon des facteurs tels que les objectifs d'investissement et la tolérance au risque. Le Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund est un portefeuille de titres convertibles couverts, à savoir qu'une position longue sur des obligations convertibles est couverte par une position courte sur les actions de la même société. Les placements sont sélectionnés pour le Compartiment selon le processus d'investissement fondamental décrit dans le chapitre du présent Supplément intitulé « Politique d'investissement » et selon la stratégie de sélection des investissements décrite ci-dessous en vue de respecter les caractéristiques environnementales et sociales du Compartiment.

Quelles sont les contraintes définies dans la stratégie d'investissement pour sélectionner les investissements afin d'atteindre chacune des caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales promues par ce produit financier?

Le Compartiment utilise les contraintes suivantes :

- 1. Le Compartiment limite à un maximum de 10 % de ses actifs l'investissement direct dans des obligations convertibles émises par des sociétés ayant une Notation correspondant à un risque ESG grave. Il vise ainsi à atteindre ses caractéristiques environnementales et sociales prévoyant qu'au moins 90 % des obligations convertibles dans lesquelles il investit directement soient émises par des entreprises ayant une Notation du risque ESG inférieure ou égale à 40 (sur une échelle où un score inférieur à 10 correspond à un risque ESG négligeable/à la meilleure notation, tandis qu'un score supérieur à 40 équivaut à une Notation correspondant à un risque ESG grave).
- 2. Le Gestionnaire d'investissement évalue les violations des principes de l'UNGC sur la base de données tierces et de recherches internes. Tout émetteur d'obligations d'entreprises considéré par le Gestionnaire d'investissement comme enfreignant les principes de l'UNGC sera exclu de l'univers d'investissement du Compartiment, lequel sera exposé à ces émetteurs à hauteur de 0 %.
- 3. Le Compartiment applique des critères d'exclusion basés sur les activités liées à certains produits et services et sera exposé à hauteur de 0 % aux titres exclus en vertu de la présente politique. Les critères d'exclusion du Compartiment comprennent les émetteurs privés impliqués dans :
 - la fabrication ou la production d'armes controversées (tout revenu provenant d'armes controversées telles que les mines antipersonnel, les armes à sousmunitions, les armes nucléaires dans des pays non adhérents au traité de nonprolifération (NPT), les armes biologiques, les armes chimiques ou les armes à l'uranium appauvri);
 - la production d'armes militaires à hauteur de 10 % ou plus du chiffre d'affaires;
 - la production de tabac à hauteur de 5 % ou plus du chiffre d'affaires ;
 - l'exploitation ou la production de charbon thermique à hauteur de 30 % ou plus du chiffre d'affaires.

Les pratiques de bonne gouvernance concernent des structures de gestion saines, les relations avec le personnel, la rémunération du personnel et le respect des obligations fiscales. Dans quelle proportion minimale le produit financier s'engage-t-il à réduire son périmètre d'investissement avant l'application de cette stratégie d'investissement ?

Le Compartiment ne prévoit pas de proportion minimale d'engagement à réduire la portée des investissements envisagés.

Quelle est la politique mise en œuvre pour évaluer les pratiques de bonne gouvernance des sociétés dans lesquelles le produit financier investit ?

L'évaluation des pratiques de bonne de gouvernance des sociétés en portefeuille ne s'appliquera qu'aux positions longues sur des émetteurs d'obligations d'entreprises du Compartiment. Elle s'appuie sur un large éventail d'informations de gouvernance issues d'ensembles de données ESG tierces. Ces sources de données fournissent également des informations sur les controverses liées à la gouvernance, qui peuvent servir à signaler les problèmes de gouvernance dans les sociétés dans lesquelles le produit financier investit. Les évaluations et les informations de gouvernance sont prises en compte par leur intégration aux processus de diligence raisonnable appliqués aux placements, au suivi continu des émetteurs du portefeuille et aux activités de gestion.



L'allocation des actifs décrit la proportion d'investissements dans des actifs spécifiques.

Quelle est l'allocation des actifs prévue pour ce produit financier?

Au moins 20 % de la VL du Compartiment sera placée dans des investissements alignés sur une ou plusieurs des caractéristiques E/S du Compartiment. Le Compartiment ne s'engage pas à réaliser des investissements durables. Les investissements et autres instruments du Compartiment ne pouvant être alignés sur ses caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales seront classés dans la catégorie « #2 Autres ». Il peut s'agir, par exemple, de produits dérivés, de trésorerie et d'équivalents de trésorerie. Le Compartiment ne prend pas d'engagement minimum d'investir dans des placements relevant de la catégorie « #2 Autres ». De ce fait, cette catégorie indique 0 % dans le graphique ci-dessous. Cela signifie qu'entre 0 % et 80 % de la VL du Compartiment peut à tout moment être investie dans la catégorie d'investissement « #2 Autres ». L'allocation des actifs prévue sera revue chaque année.

Les activités alignées sur la taxinomie sont exprimées en pourcentage :

- du chiffre d'affaires
 pour refléter la
 proportion des
 revenus provenant
 des activités vertes
 des sociétés dans
 lesquelles le produit
 financier investit;
- des dépenses
 d'investissement
 (CapEx) pour montrer
 les investissements
 verts réalisés par les
 sociétés dans
 lesquelles le produit
 financier investit, pour
 une transition vers
 une économie verte
 par exemple;
- des dépenses d'exploitation (OpEx) pour refléter les activités opérationnelles vertes des sociétés dans lesquelles le produit financier investit.

#1 Alignés sur les caractéristiques E/S
20 %

Investissements

#2 Autres
0 %

La catégorie **#1 Alignés sur les caractéristiques E/S** inclut les investissements du produit financier utilisés pour atteindre les caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales promues par le produit financier.

La catégorie **#2 Autres** inclut les investissements restants du produit financier qui ne sont ni alignés sur les caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales ni considérés comme des investissements durables.

Comment l'utilisation de produits dérivés permet-elle d'atteindre les caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales promues par le produit financier ?

Le Compartiment n'utilise pas de produits dérivés pour respecter les caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales qu'il promeut.

Pour être conformes à la taxinomie de l'UE, les critères applicables au **gaz**



Dans quelle proportion minimale les investissements durables ayant un objectif environnemental sont-ils alignés sur la taxinomie de l'UE ?

fossile comprennent des limitations des émissions et le passage à l'électricité d'origine renouvelable ou à des carburants à faible teneur en carbone d'ici à la fin de 2035. En ce qui concerne l'énergie nucléaire, les critères comprennent des règles complètes en matière de sûreté nucléaire et de gestion des déchets.

Les activités habilitantes permettent directement à d'autres activités de contribuer de manière substantielle à la réalisation d'un objectif environnemental. Les activités transitoires sont des activités pour lesquelles il n'existe pas encore de solutions de remplacement sobres en carbone et, entre autres, dont les niveaux d'émission de gaz à effet de serre correspondent aux meilleures performances réalisables.

Le Compartiment ne s'engage pas à réaliser des investissements durables, ni à réaliser des investissements alignés sur la taxinomie. Il est toutefois prévu que, dans le cadre de la poursuite de ses caractéristiques environnementales, le Compartiment contribue aux objectifs environnementaux suivants, tels que définis dans le Règlement européen sur la taxinomie : atténuation du changement climatique et/ou adaptation au changement climatique.

Le produit financier investit-il dans des activités liées au gaz fossile et/ou à l'énergie nucléaire qui sont conformes à la taxinomie de l'UE² ?

∐Oui :

☐ Dans le gaz fossile ☐ Dans l'énergie nucléaire

 $\boxtimes \mathsf{Non}$

Les deux graphiques ci-dessous font apparaître en vert le pourcentage minimal d'investissements alignés sur la taxinomie de l'UE. Étant donné qu'il n'existe pas de méthodologie appropriée pour déterminer l'alignement des obligations souveraines* sur la taxinomie, le premier graphique montre l'alignement sur la taxinomie par rapport à tous les investissements du produit financier, y compris les obligations souveraines, tandis que le deuxième graphique représente l'alignement sur la taxinomie uniquement par rapport aux investissements du produit financier autres que les obligations souveraines.

1. Alignement des investissements sur la taxinomie, dont obligations souveraines*

 Taxonomyaligned (no fossil gas & nuclear fuel)
 Non Taxonomy aligned



* Aux fins de ces graphiques, les « obligations souveraines » comprennent toutes les expositions souveraines.

Quelle est la proportion minimale d'investissements dans des activités transitoires et habilitantes ?

100%

Le Compartiment ne prévoit pas de proportion minimale d'investissements dans des activités transitoires et habilitantes.

Quelle est la proportion minimale d'investissements durables ayant un objectif environnemental qui ne sont pas alignés sur la taxinomie de l'UE ?

Le Compartiment ne prévoit pas de proportion minimale d'investissements durables ayant un objectif environnemental qui ne sont pas alignés sur la taxinomie de l'UE.

Le symbole représente des investissements durables ayant un objectif environnemental qui ne tiennent pas compte des critères applicables aux activités économiques durables sur le plan environnemental au titre de la taxinomie de l'UE.

² Les activités liées au gaz fossile et/ou au nucléaire ne seront conformes à la taxinomie de l'UE que si elles contribuent à limiter le changement climatique (« atténuation du changement climatique ») et ne causent de préjudice important à aucun objectif de la taxinomie de l'UE — voir la note explicative dans la marge de gauche. L'ensemble des critères applicables aux activités économiques dans les secteurs du gaz fossile et de l'énergie nucléaire qui sont conformes à la taxinomie de l'UE sont définis dans le règlement délégué (UE) 2022/1214 de la Commission.

	Quelle est la proportion minimale d'investissements durables sur le plan social ?
	Le Compartiment ne prévoit pas de proportion minimale d'investissements durables sur le plan social.
	pian social.
	Quels sont les investissements inclus dans la catégorie « #2 Autres », quelle est leur finalité et des garanties environnementales ou sociales minimales s'appliquent-elles à eux ?
	La catégorie « #2 Autres » peut inclure d'autres investissements et instruments du Compartiment qui ne peuvent pas être alignés sur les caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales du Compartiment. Il peut s'agir, par exemple, de produits dérivés, de trésorerie et d'équivalents de trésorerie. Le Compartiment ne prend pas d'engagement minimum à investir dans des placements relevant de la catégorie « #2 Autres ». De ce fait, le chapitre « Quelle est l'allocation des actifs prévue pour ce produit financier ? » ci-dessus indique 0 %.
	Les garanties environnementales et sociales minimales définies dans les critères d'exclusion concernant les normes mondiales et le filtrage basé sur l'activité restent applicables aux titres sous-jacents.
?	Un indice spécifique est-il désigné comme indice de référence pour déterminer si ce produit financier est aligné sur les caractéristiques environnementales et/ou sociales qu'il promeut ?
Les indices de référence sont des indices permettant de mesurer si le produit financier atteint les	Le Compartiment n'a pas désigné d'indice de référence pour atteindre les caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales qu'il promeut.
caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales qu'il promeut.	Comment l'indice de référence est-il aligné en permanence sur chacune des caractéristiques environnementales ou sociales promues par le produit financier ?
	Non applicable.
	Comment l'alignement de la stratégie d'investissement sur la méthodologie de l'indice est-il à tout moment garanti ?
	Non applicable.
	En quoi l'indice désigné diffère-t-il d'un indice de marché large pertinent ?
	Non applicable.
	Où trouver la méthode utilisée pour le calcul de l'indice désigné ?
	Non applicable.

Où puis-je trouver en ligne davantage d'informations spécifiques au produit ? De plus amples informations sur le produit sont accessibles sur le site Internet :
https://www.lazardassetmanagement.com/ie/en_uk/funds/ucits-funds/lazard-rathmore-alternative-fund/f2441/s86/?shareClass=6325

WF-74049802-v3

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Supplement, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial adviser.

The Directors of Lazard Global Investment Funds plc (the "Company"), whose names appear under the heading "Management and Administration" in the prospectus of the Company dated 22 March 2024 (the "Prospectus") accept responsibility for the information contained in the Prospectus and this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in the Prospectus and this Supplement is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of the information.

LAZARD RATHMORE ALTERNATIVE FUND

(a Fund of Lazard Global Investment Funds plc an open-ended investment company with variable capital structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between Funds)

SUPPLEMENT

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus.

This Supplement replaces the Supplement dated 10 June 2024.

The date of this Supplement is 11 November 2024.

WF-74049802-v3

CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS	
INTRODUCTION	
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICY	4
INVESTMENT AND BORROWING RESTRICTIONS	12
RISK FACTORS	12
Sustainability	
Profile of a Typical Investor	19
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION	
FEES AND EXPENSES	
Share Class Fees and Charges	19
APPENDIX I	
Share Class Details	24
APPENDIX II	
Dealing Information	
APPENDIX III	35
ENVIRONMENTAL AND/OR SOCIAL CHARACTERISTICS	35

DEFINITIONS

"Currency Manager", State Street Bank and Trust Company and/or such other person as may be appointed, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, to provide currency management services to the Fund.

"Fixed Income Securities", include Investment Grade, Non-Investment Grade and Unrated bonds, convertible securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, notes and short and medium term obligations.

"Fund". Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund.

"Hedged Share Classes", those classes of Shares specified in Appendix I of this Supplement as being hedged Share classes.

"Initial Offer Period", the period during which Shares of a particular class or classes in the Fund are initially on offer as set out in this Supplement or such earlier or later period as the Directors, at their discretion, may determine and notify to the Central Bank.

"Initial Offer Price", the price per Share at which Shares of a particular class may be subscribed for during the relevant Initial Offer Period.

"Investment Grade", a rating of at least Baa3/BBB- by Moody's, Standard & Poor's or another recognised credit rating agency.

"Investment Manager", Lazard Asset Management LLC and/or such other person as may be appointed, in accordance with Central Bank Requirements, to provide investment management services to the Fund.

"Non-Investment Grade", a rating of Ba1/BB+ or below by Moody's, Standard & Poor's or another recognised credit rating agency.

"Share(s)", share(s) of the Fund.

"VIX Index", the Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE) Volatility Index.

Unhedged Share Class", a class of Shares denominated in a currency different to the Fund Base Currency and which is not a Hedged Share Class.

"Unrated", having no rating assigned by a recognised rating agency.

LAZARD RATHMORE ALTERNATIVE FUND

INTRODUCTION

The Company is authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank as a UCITS for the purposes of the Regulations. The Fund was approved by the Central Bank on 26 March 2018.

This Supplement forms part of the Prospectus and should be read in conjunction with the general description of the Company contained in the current Prospectus (together with the most recent annual and semi-annual reports).

The Company is structured as an umbrella fund in that the share capital of the Company may be divided into different classes of shares with one or more classes representing a separate fund of the Company. Each fund may have more than one share class.

Details of the available classes of Shares in this Fund are set out in **Appendix I** to this Supplement.

As at the date of this Supplement, there are no other Share classes in the Fund, apart from those listed in Appendix I, but additional share classes may be added in the future in accordance with Central Bank Requirements.

The Fund Base Currency is the US Dollar. Share classes denominated in a currency different to the Fund Base Currency (with the exception of the Hedged Share Classes) will not be hedged against movements in the Fund Base Currency.

Dealing information, including a description of the procedures for subscribing and redeeming Shares, settlement deadlines, dealing frequency and pricing is set out in **Appendix II** to this Supplement.

The Fund promotes environmental and/or social characteristics and is therefore subject to the sustainability-related disclosure rules set out in Article 8 of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

Information about the environmental and/or social characteristics of the Fund is set out in **Appendix III** to this Supplement.

An investment in the Fund should be viewed as medium to long term and should not constitute a substantial portion of an investment portfolio and may not be suitable for all investors.

Investment Objective and Policy

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to achieve absolute returns through a combination of capital appreciation and income over a three year market cycle.

Investment Policy

An "absolute return" fund differs from a fund that pursues a "relative return" strategy, which typically seeks to outperform a particular benchmark, in that its objective is to generate returns uncorrelated to broad-based equity and credit benchmarks.

The Fund aims to achieve its investment objective by generating returns through the exploitation of anomalies across the capital structure of various entities. In order to generate returns in this way, the Fund will pursue two relative value sub-strategies run by the Investment Manager, namely (i) capital structure and convertible arbitrage and (ii) special situations/event driven investing. In pursuit of these sub-strategies (and the ultimate objective of achieving absolute returns), the Investment Manager will typically take both long and short positions, which will be actively managed in order to extract returns at every opportunity. Accordingly, the Fund will invest in a variety of securities and instruments, as identified

in the section of this Supplement entitled "Permitted Investments" and will invest principally in financial derivative instruments ("FDI"), as described further below.

Capital Structure and Convertible Arbitrage

Capital structure and convertible arbitrage trades typically consist of a long position and a short position. The long position is generally a corporate or convertible bond or convertible preferred stock, but may also include warrants or other equity-linked securities such as options, contracts for differences on equity securities or on equity indices, exchange traded funds ("ETFs") and exchange traded notes ("ETNs"). In the event of convertible arbitrage, the short position is typically taken with respect to the underlying common stock, but may also include options on the stock, or other securities related to the issuer of the underlying stock. In a typical convertible arbitrage trade (usually involving the Fund in taking a long position in a convertible security and a short position in the underlying common stock), when the stock goes up in value the short position is increased by selling the common stock. When the stock goes down in value the short position is reduced by buying common stock. Therefore the stock can be purchased at a low price and sold at a high price and this adds to the return of the strategy. Within a capital structure trade, the short position may include other Fixed Income Securities issued by the same issuer, equity, or options, which, on a relative value basis, isolate the investment opportunity and hedge targeted risks. Occasionally, the long and short positions may be reversed. All short positions will be achieved through the use of swaps or other FDI described below under the heading "Investment in FDI".

These trades seek returns through 1) the identification of price inefficiencies, often due to changes in volatility, funding levels, stock borrow dynamics, market technicals and credit factors, and 2) optimal trade positioning to maximize the investment opportunity. The primary drivers of a convertible's valuation are most often defined by the convertible's stock price, credit and volatility characteristics, but may also include: interest rates, dividend policy, issue terms and structure, covenant protections, and structural and contractual considerations, company fundamentals, sector fundamentals, currency or country fundamentals, global liquidity, and the liquidity of the global convertible securities market broadly.

Special Situations/Events Driven Investing

Through a relative value approach, this strategy seeks to take advantage of corporate developments that impact security prices, which may result in pricing anomalies that create investment opportunities or which influence issuers to change their capital structure in a manner which benefits investors and issuers alike. These developments/events include, but are not limited to, the following: buybacks, changes to the terms upon which callable paper may be called, dividend policy changes, the execution of exchange offers (meaning the exchange of one security for another, e.g. an exchange of one bond for another bond which is offered on different terms than the former), mergers and acquisitions, the offering of "sweeteners" (being incentives that are sometimes offered by companies to holders of their securities, typically to allow the company in question to take advantage of certain tax or accounting benefits associated with the relevant security), default/distress events and other changes to a company's capital structure.

In order to gain relative value exposure to special situations and events, investment will predominantly be made in a variety of corporate securities, including convertible securities, debt and common stocks, as well as investments in equity and credit derivatives. The Investment Manager may utilise certain hedging and other investment techniques, including taking synthetic short positions or buying or selling options or other FDI to either maintain exposure to certain aspects of the special situations or event driven opportunities or to decrease exposure to downside risk and losses. All short positions will be achieved through the use of swaps or other FDI listed below under the heading "Investment in FDI".

Under normal market conditions, maximum short exposure is anticipated to be less than 250% of the Fund's Net Asset Value and the maximum long exposure is anticipated to be less than 400% of the Fund's Net Asset Value. These ranges are, however, subject to change depending upon market conditions. The long exposure may increase to a maximum of 700% of the Fund's Net Asset Value and the short exposure may increase to a maximum of 500% of the Fund's Net Asset Value.

Permitted Investments

In pursuing the foregoing investment strategies, the Fund may (at the sole discretion of the Investment Manager) invest indirectly through the use of Unfunded Swaps (as described further below in the section entitled "Investment in FDI") and/or directly (as relevant) in global convertible and corporate debt securities (including fixed and/or floating rate investment grade, high-yield and distressed corporate Fixed Income Securities), convertible preferred stocks, ETFs, global equities, government securities (i.e. sovereign obligations primarily from G7 countries, such as US Treasury Bonds, German Bunds and UK Gilts) and related futures contracts (such as futures on US 5 Year and 10 Year Treasury Notes and German Bund Futures), ETNs, interest rate swaps and futures, credit default swaps, global foreign currencies, foreign exchange futures, 144A securities and Regulation S securities (being securities that are not subject to the registration requirement under section 5 of the 1933 Act), contracts for differences on equity securities and equity indices and other FDI (as described further below in the section entitled "Investment in FDI").

While it is expected that the relative value sub-strategies described above will be pursued indirectly through the use of Unfunded Swaps, the Investment Manager is not restricted to this approach and may, as indicated above, also or alternatively pursue these strategies through direct investment in the securities identified above (with such direct investment anticipated to represent between 10% and 50% of the Fund's Net Asset Value at any given time).

Aggregate investment by the Fund in open-ended collective investment schemes (including in ETFs) shall not exceed 10% of the Fund's Net Asset Value.

The Fund may also at times hold a significant portion of its Net Asset Value in cash which may be invested in accordance with the Investment Manager's cash management policy, as further detailed below in the section entitled "Cash and Cash Management".

With the exception of permitted investments in unlisted securities and over-the-counter derivative instruments, the Fund will only acquire instruments, which are listed on and/or traded in any of the Regulated Markets which are set out in Appendix I of the Prospectus. Investment in securities listed or traded on the Regulated Markets of Russia shall not exceed 5% of the Fund's Net Asset Value at any time. As the Fund has a global focus, investors should note that in excess of 20% of the Fund's Net Asset Value may be exposed to emerging markets.

Investment in FDI

The Fund will invest in some or all of the following FDI:

- Unfunded swaps ("Unfunded Swaps") with one or more trading counterparties (each a "Trading (i) Counterparty") (see section "Use of Unfunded Swaps" below). Where the Fund enters into Unfunded Swaps, such Unfunded Swaps will provide the Fund with exposure to a notional portfolio of assets whereby the Fund is able to derive the economic benefit of those assets without having to acquire the assets directly. This enables the Fund to gain exposure to the notional portfolio more efficiently from a cost and timing perspective and to access certain markets more easily than acquiring the underlying assets directly. The notional portfolio of assets forming the underlying portfolio of the Unfunded Swap will seek to provide the Fund with exposure to the relative value sub-strategies run by the Investment Manager referred to above and shall typically include global convertible and corporate securities (including fixed and/or floating rate investment grade, high-yield and distressed corporate Fixed Income Securities), preferred stocks, ETFs, global equities, government securities, ETNs, global foreign currencies, 144A securities and Regulation S securities, contracts for differences on equity securities and equity indices and FDI (as described herein). The Unfunded Swaps will be marked-to-market daily and that will be reflected in the Fund's Net Asset Value.
- (ii) The Fund may invest directly in futures as part of its portfolio management and hedging strategy. The Fund may invest in futures contracts on a variety of financial products including interest rates, foreign currencies, global equities, global equity indices and volatility indices (being indices constructed using the options market's expectation of volatility using a wide range of options on an index like the S&P 500 Index) such as the VIX Index.

- (iii) The Fund may invest directly in listed/exchange-traded options as part of certain option trading strategies in line with convertible arbitrage and special situation/event driven investment and as part of its portfolio management and hedging strategy. The Fund may invest in option contracts on financial products including interest rates, foreign currencies, global equities, global equity indices, government issued notes and treasury bills, government and corporate bonds (which may be issued at fixed or floating rates and which may be investment grade or non-investment grade), credit indices and the VIX Index. The Fund may also invest directly in unlisted/over-the-counter options, including options on global equities, global equity indices, ETFs, ETNs, interest rates, foreign exchange, credit instruments, credit indices and volatility indices such as the VIX Index.
- (iv) The Fund may invest directly in forward contracts to include forward foreign exchange contracts (for purposes which may include altering the currency exposure of securities held by the Fund, hedging against exchange risks, increasing exposure to a currency, shifting exposure to currency fluctuations from one currency to another and hedging classes denominated in a class currency to the Fund Base Currency. Forwards may also be used on global equities.
- (v) The Fund may invest directly in swaps including equity swaps, swaptions, interest rate swaps, credit default swaps, total return swaps (on securities such as equities, options, interest rates and credit default contracts) and currency swaps. Swaps are used in line with convertible arbitrage and special situation strategies to increase or decrease the Fund's exposure to global equity securities, interest rates, foreign currencies and credit spreads. Credit spread is the difference in yield between two bonds of similar maturity, typically the difference in yield between a debt security and a government bond, such as a US Treasury bond, with comparable maturity.
- (vi) The Fund may invest up to 5% of its Net Asset Value directly in warrants and rights.

Use of Unfunded Swaps

Each Trading Counterparty and the Company on behalf of the Fund have entered or will enter into a master agreement (and credit support annex) and will enter into relevant trade confirmations which will govern the Unfunded Swaps, including provisions relating to termination. Additional confirmations may be entered into in relation to repurchases of and subscriptions for Shares to adjust the nominal value of the underlying exposure.

No Trading Counterparty has discretion over the composition of the Fund's portfolio or of the notional portfolio of assets forming the underlying portfolio on the Unfunded Swaps.

On a daily basis the Investment Manager will ensure that margin is posted between the Fund's cash account and the relevant Trading Counterparty to ensure that the Fund's risk exposure to the Trading Counterparty (caused by any profit and loss on the Unfunded Swap) is reduced to the extent required by the Central Bank or the Regulations.

The Unfunded Swaps may be terminated on the occurrence of certain events with respect to either the Fund or the relevant Trading Counterparty including, but not limited to, an event of default (such as a failure to pay, breach of agreement or bankruptcy) or a termination event which is not due to the fault of either party (for example, a change in legislation beyond the control of the parties which renders performance of the contract illegal, or a change in tax law meaning that performance of the contract would lead to the imposition of a withholding tax).

If the Unfunded Swaps are terminated, market quotations will be obtained with respect to the Unfunded Swaps. An amount equal to the relevant market quotation will be settled between the relevant Trading Counterparty and the Fund in accordance with the terms of the Unfunded Swaps. The Fund may then enter into new FDI in the form of unfunded swaps with other trading counterparties. Please see disclosures under the heading "Unfunded Swaps" of the "Risk Factors" section of the Prospectus.

The likely expected and the maximum proportion of Fund assets that may be subject to total return swaps is as set out below (the market value expressed, in each case, as a percentage of the Fund's Net Asset Value):

	Expected	Maximum
Total Return Swaps	0-2 %	15 %

Selection Process of the Investment Manager

The Investment Manager follows certain guidelines for selecting investments for the Fund. The process for security selection is systematised with the assistance of the Investment Manager's proprietary database. This proprietary database allows for ongoing screening, investment analysis, analysis of the terms governing relevant securities (such as limitations on the issuer's ability to take on additional debt, any obligation on the issuer to provide audited financial statements to bond holders and restrictions on the issuer's ability to make new capital investments) and trading and monitoring of securities. The process incorporates five primary steps: (i) modelling, (ii) use of proprietary systems and screening systems, (iii) security analysis, (iv) portfolio construction and (v) risk management. The investment process is continuous and is designed to be flexible, to ensure that changes and enhancements in the portfolio construction process can be incorporated at the Investment Manager's discretion. The investment process includes the following steps:

Modelling – Each security in the Fund's investment universe is modelled. Inputs for modelling include all of the factors that can influence the valuation of such security, such as volatility, credit spread, dividends, interest rates, currency and/or (in the case of convertible securities) the underlying stock price. Each security in the universe is modelled by employing a consistent valuation process to facilitate a relative valuation analysis. Modelling serves as the first step in formulating return expectations.

Modelling is enabled by a proprietary investment platform supported by several systems including, but not limited to, the KYNEX securities system. The Investment Manager has enhanced this system to include: data customisation including historical information, tailored analysis programs, pre-defined reporting modules, universal modelling capabilities and a differentiated approach to profit and loss management using the Investment Manager's proprietary software (which is designed to identify and alert the Investment Manager to subtle inflections in position level profit and losses).

Return-on-Risk Capital: Positions are initiated and sized based on return on risk capital (RORC), which is an expected return measure given the net dollars at risk of a position. RORC is continually assessed in conjunction with the evolution of credit fundamentals. Other factors include security liquidity, investment or trade type, diversification by structure, term, sector, and geography.

Proprietary Systems and Analysis – Once modelled, each security is primarily characterised by its volatility or credit profile, as appropriate. Secondary level analysis focuses on defining levels to buy, to sell or to seek short exposure to issues across the valuation variables, including volatility, credit spread, interest rates, dividend level, stock price and bond price. In addition, to define special situation and event opportunities, potential investments are screened against database comparables.

Security Analysis – Real-time market information provides live updates to securities. As market movements trigger "flags" in the system, such flagged securities are analysed to determine whether there is a potential investment opportunity or if the parameter levels of the "flags" need to be updated. Comparable analysis of a flagged security with other securities serves as the basis for evaluating potential trades. As an example, if a company's stock sells off, it is possible that the debt securities of the same entity may depreciate more on a relative basis, in which case this will be "flagged" as an opportunity to enter into a relative value trade. Furthermore, scenario and sensitivity analyses are performed for all portfolio securities. In addition, in seeking alternative special situation and event-driven opportunities, potential investments are screened for various characteristics against comparables. These characteristics include yield, duration, volatility, investment sector and other unique elements of a company's balance sheet or capital structure.

Portfolio Construction – An investment thesis is established for each notional trade or investment considered by the Investment Manager, which includes expectations for return, probability of outcome, and sources of attribution. Positions are sized based on risk-return expectations taking into account market and security liquidity, diversification by structure, term, sector, geography and other relevant factors.

Consideration of ESG (environmental, social and governance) factors

The Fund incorporates environmental, social, and governance considerations as part of broader investment due diligence and ongoing monitoring of investments in the portfolio. The Fund also applies global norms-based and activity-based exclusion criteria in the issuer selection process. Information in relation to the foregoing exclusion criteria and in relation to the sustainability-related features of the Fund's investments is set out in **Appendix III** to this Supplement, which Appendix details the environmental and/or social characteristics of the Fund.

Risk Management

The Company on behalf of the Fund has filed with the Central Bank its risk management policy which enables it to measure, monitor and manage the various risks associated with the use of FDI. The Company will, on request, provide supplementary information to Shareholders relating to the risk management methods employed, including the quantitative limits that are applied and any recent developments in the risk and yield characteristics of the main categories of investments.

Risk management is a continuous and dynamic feature of the Fund's portfolio construction process. The Investment Manager has oversight of the risk management of the Fund and implements the risk management processes both at individual security and overall portfolio level to ensure that each trade placed in respect of the Fund is compliant with the UCITS restrictions applicable to the Fund. The Investment Manager produces a daily pre-trade report that provides the investment team with guidance on applicable UCITS concentration limits and as to the availability of capacity for investment in issuers in accordance with the Regulations.

Value-at-Risk ("VaR") Methodology

The Investment Manager uses a risk management technique known as absolute VaR to assess the Fund's market risk on a daily basis to seek to ensure that the use of FDI by the Fund is within regulatory limits. The one-tailed 99% confidence level, one day holding period, value-at-risk on the portfolio of the Fund shall not exceed 4.47% of the Fund's Net Asset Value in any one day. The VaR model will use at least one year of historical data of daily market moves.

Leverage

Insofar as the Fund may be leveraged for investment purposes the leverage used will be in accordance with the Central Bank Requirements and the Regulations. Using VaR for exposure measurement does not necessarily limit leverage levels. However, the Fund through its investments in FDI will be leveraged. Calculating leverage resulting from derivative usage, in accordance with the Central Bank Requirements, as the sum of notionals underlying all the FDI positions in the Fund expressed as a percentage of the Fund's Net Asset Value the expected level of the Fund's leverage will be 200-800% of the Fund's Net Asset Value. Higher leverage levels are possible, but leverage will not exceed 1200% of the Fund's Net Asset Value at any time. Investment by the Fund in FDI will contribute significantly to the foregoing leverage levels. The Fund's global exposure measured on a commitment approach basis shall not exceed 200% of the Fund's Net Asset Value.

Cash and Cash Management

In addition to cash held by the Fund as ancillary liquidity for the settlement of transactions, the Fund may hold a significant portion of its Net Asset Value in cash due either to the Fund's use of FDI and/or because the Investment Manager otherwise deems it to be appropriate to do so. In such circumstances, the Investment Manager may seek to employ an effective cash management policy by investing in treasuries and other money market instruments which satisfy Central Bank Requirements for investment by a UCITS and/or may seek to manage such cash using repurchase transactions (see further below).

Repurchase transactions will only be entered into on behalf of the Fund for efficient portfolio management purposes and will only be entered into subject to the conditions and limits set out in the

Central Bank UCITS Regulations and in accordance with the provisions set out in Appendix II of the Prospectus.

The likely expected and the maximum proportion of Fund assets that may be subject to Securities Financing Transactions (specifically repurchase transactions) is as set out below (the market value expressed, in each case, as a percentage of the Fund's Net Asset Value):

	Expected	Maximum
Repurchase Transactions	0-20%	50%

Benchmarks

In the Fund's marketing materials, performance of the Fund may be shown against any one or more of the following benchmark indices for comparative purposes only:

- HFRX Relative Value Fixed Income Convertible Arbitrage Index (Ticker: HFRXCA);
- S&P 500 (Ticker: SPTR);
- Russell 2000 (Ticker: RU20INTR);
- Bloomberg US Agg Total Return Value Unhedged USD (Ticker: LBUSTRUU);
- ICE BofA Global 300 Convertible Index (Ticker: VG00);
- ICE BofA US High Yield Index (Ticker: H0A0); and
- MSCI World (Ticker: NDDUWI).

(the "Benchmark Indices").

Description of each of the Benchmark Indices

The HFRX Convertible Arbitrage Index tracks a strategy that involves taking long positions in convertible securities and hedging those positions by selling short the underlying common stock.

The S&P 500 Index is a capitalisation-weighted index consisting of stocks of 500 of the top companies in leading industries of the US economy.

The Russell 2000 Index is designed to represent the "small cap" market of US equity securities, composed of approximately 2,000 of the smallest securities in the Russell 3000 Index. (The Russell 3000 Index measures the performance of the 3,000 largest US companies, representing most of the investible US equity market.)

The Bloomberg US Agg Total Return Value Unhedged USD covers the investment-grade, US dollar–denominated, fixed-rate taxable bond market, including Treasuries, government-related and corporate securities, MBS, ABS, and CMBS, with maturities of not less than one year.

ICE BofA Global 300 Convertible Index captures a representative sample of 300 constituents selected to broadly reflect the performance of convertible securities publicly issued in the major domestic and eurobond markets.

The ICE BofA US High Yield Index is a broad-based index consisting of all US dollar–denominated high-yield corporate bonds with a minimum outstanding amount of \$250 million and maturity of not less than one year.

The MSCI World Index is a free float-adjusted market capitalisation weighted index that is designed to measure the equity market performance of developed markets.

Use of the Benchmark Indices

Performance of the Fund may be shown against any one or more of the Benchmark Indices for comparative purposes only.

As the Fund is actively managed (meaning that the Investment Manager has discretion over the composition of the Fund's portfolio subject to its stated investment objective and policy as set out above), securities selection is not constrained by reference to any of the Benchmark Indices. The strategy pursued by the Fund does not impose limits on the extent to which portfolio holdings and/or weights must adhere to or may diverge from the composition of any of the Benchmark Indices. The Fund may have exposure to a limited, but fluctuating number of the constituent securities of any one or more of the Benchmark Indices, but is not required to invest in constituent securities of the Benchmark Indices. The Fund has full flexibility to invest in securities not represented in any one or other of the Benchmark Indices.

The Directors reserve the right, if they consider it in the interests of the Fund to do so and with the consent of the Depositary, to substitute another index for the Benchmark Indices, in the circumstances set out in the section of the Prospectus entitled "Benchmark Indices".

Currency Hedging Policy

The Fund may engage in currency hedging transactions, including investment in FDI, in order to provide protection against exposure to currency risk arising both at the level of its portfolio holdings and at Share class level. There can be no guarantee however that such currency hedging transactions will be successful or effective in achieving their objective.

The FDI which the Fund may use for currency hedging purposes are set out in the section of this Supplement entitled "Investment in FDI".

Hedging at Portfolio Level

The Fund may engage in currency hedging transactions in order to protect the value of specific portfolio positions or in anticipation of changes in the relative values of the currencies in which current or future Fund portfolio holdings are denominated or quoted. For example, the Fund may engage in currency hedging transactions in order to offset the currency exposure arising as a result of Investments in its portfolio being denominated in currencies different from the Fund Base Currency, or to protect against movements in currency exchange rates between the date on which the Investment Manager contracts to purchase or sell a security and the settlement date for the purchase or sale of that security, or to "lock in" the equivalent of a dividend or interest payment in another currency.

Hedging at Share Class Level

The Fund may also engage in currency hedging transactions in order to provide protection against movements of the currency in which a Share class is denominated relative to the Fund Base Currency, where different. To the extent that such hedging transactions are successful, the performance of the relevant Hedged Share Class is likely to move in line with the performance of the Fund's Investments and Shareholders of the Hedged Share Class will not benefit as a result of a decline in the value of the currency in which the class is denominated relative to the Fund Base Currency or relative to the currencies in which the assets of the Fund are denominated. To the extent that the Fund employs strategies aimed at hedging certain Share classes, there can be no assurance that such strategies will be effective.

The Currency Manager has been appointed to provide non-discretionary currency hedging services in respect of the Hedged Share Classes of the Fund.

The costs and related liabilities/benefits arising from instruments entered into for the purposes of hedging currency exposure for the benefit of any particular Hedged Share Class of the Fund shall be attributable exclusively to the relevant Share class.

Currency exposure will not exceed 105% of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Hedged Share Class. All transactions will be clearly attributable to the relevant Hedged Share Class and currency exposures of different Share classes will not be combined or offset. The Company has procedures in place to monitor hedged positions and to ensure that over-hedged positions do not exceed 105% of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Hedged Share Class and that under-hedged positions do not fall short of

95% of that portion of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Hedged Share Class that is to be hedged against currency risk. As part of this procedure, the Company will review hedged positions in excess of 100% of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Hedged Share Class and any under-hedged positions on at least a monthly basis to ensure they are not carried forward from month to month. While not the intention of the Company, overhedged or underhedged positions may arise due to factors outside the control of the Company.

Investment and Borrowing Restrictions

The Company is a UCITS and accordingly the Fund is subject to the investment and borrowing restrictions set out in the Regulations and Central Bank Requirements. These restrictions are set out in detail in Appendix III to the Prospectus.

Risk Factors

Shareholders and potential investors should consider and take account of the risk factors set out in the Prospectus (in particular the risks under the headings "Market Fluctuations", "Credit and Counterparty Risk", "Active Management Risk", "Smaller Companies Risk", "Leverage Risk", "Inflation Risk", "Leverage Risk", "Commodity Risk", "Political Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk Factors", "Risks Associated with Debt and Other Fixed Income Securities" and "FDI Risk Factors") in addition to those set out below.

Certain Fees and Expenses Not Covered by the Expense Cap and Approved by the Board of Directors

Certain legal and professional fees and expenses may be incurred by the Fund in relation to litigation, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings of an issuer or to workouts or negotiations with an issuer. If approved by the Board of Directors, the full amount of such fees and expenses will be charged to the Fund and will not be covered by or come within the expense cap described under the section of this Supplement entitled "Other Expenses Cap". Where the Board of Directors does not approve the full discharge of such fees and expenses out of the assets of the Fund, the Fund's ability to participate in certain recovery efforts may be limited and the Fund may, as a result, be adversely affected.

Investment in the Fund not equivalent to a Deposit

The Fund may invest a significant amount of its Net Asset Value in deposits and/or money market instruments but an investment in the Fund should not be considered by investors as an alternative to investing in a regular deposit account. Investors should note that a holding in the Fund is subject to the risks associated with investing in a collective investment undertaking, in particular the fact that the principal sum invested is capable of fluctuation as the Net Asset Value of the Fund fluctuates.

Convertible Arbitrage

Convertible arbitrage strategies generally involve price spreads between the convertible security and the underlying equity security. To the extent the price relationships between such positions remain constant, no gain or loss on the position is likely to occur. Such positions do, however, entail a substantial risk that the price differential could change unfavourably, causing a loss to the spread position. Substantial risks also are involved in borrowing and lending against such investments. The prices of these investments can be volatile, market movements are difficult to predict, and financing sources and related interest and exchange rates are subject to rapid change. Certain corporate securities may be subordinated (and thus exposed to the first level of default risk) or otherwise subject to substantial credit risks. Government policies, especially those of the Federal Reserve Board and foreign central banks, have profound effects on interest and exchange rates that, in turn, affect prices in areas of the investment and trading activities of convertible arbitrage strategies. Many other unforeseeable events, including actions by various government agencies and domestic and international political events, may cause sharp market fluctuations.

Capital Structure Arbitrage

The success of this strategy will depend on the ability of the Investment Manager to identify and exploit the relationships and discrepancies in price between movements in different securities and instruments within a company's capital structure (e.g. convertible and non-convertible senior and subordinated debt and preferred and common shares). Identification and exploitation of these opportunities involves uncertainty. In the event that the perceived pricing inefficiencies underlying a company's securities and instruments were to fail to materialise as expected by the Investment Manager, the Fund could incur a loss.

Special Situation/Event-Driven Investing

Special situation/event-driven investing requires the Investment Manager to make predictions about (i) the likelihood that a special situation/event will occur and (ii) the impact such event will have on the value of a company's financial instruments. If the special situation/event fails to occur or it does not have the effect foreseen, losses can result. For example, the adoption of new business strategies or completion of asset dispositions or debt reduction programs by a company may not be valued as highly by the market as the Investment Manager had anticipated, resulting in losses. In addition, a company may announce a plan of restructuring which promises to enhance value, but fail to implement it, which can result in losses to investors. In liquidations and other forms of corporate reorganisation, the risk exists that the reorganisation will be unsuccessful, will be delayed or will result in a distribution of cash or a new security, the value of which will be less than the purchase price of the security in respect of which such distribution was made. The consummation of mergers and tender and exchange offers can be prevented or delayed by a variety of factors, including: (i) opposition of the management or stockholders of the target company, which will often result in litigation to enjoin the proposed transaction; (ii) intervention of a federal or state regulatory agency; (iii) efforts by the target company to pursue a "defensive" strategy, including a merger with, or a friendly tender offer by, a company other than the offeror; (iv) in the case of a merger, failure to obtain the necessary stockholder approvals; (v) market conditions resulting in material changes in securities prices; (vi) compliance with any applicable federal or state securities laws; and (vii) inability to obtain adequate financing. Because of the inherently speculative nature of special situation/event-driven investing, the results of the Fund's operations may be expected to fluctuate from period to period. Accordingly, shareholders should understand that the results of a particular period would not necessarily be indicative of results that may be expected in future periods.

Equity Securities

The Fund may invest in equity and equity-related securities. Equity securities fluctuate in value in response to many factors, including the activities, results of operations and financial condition of individual issuers, the business market in which individual companies compete, industry market conditions, interest rates and general economic environments (GDP, inflation, fiscal and monetary policy). In addition, events such as domestic and international political instability, terrorism and natural disasters may be unforeseeable and contribute to market volatility in ways that may adversely affect investments made by the Fund.

Hedging Transactions

The Fund may, but is not required, to utilise financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, currency options, stock index futures and options and interest rate swaps, caps and floors both for investment purposes and to seek to hedge against fluctuations in the relative values of securities or positions held within the Fund's portfolio as a result of changes in currency exchange rates, market interest rates and security prices. Hedging against a decline in the value of a portfolio position does not eliminate fluctuations in the values of portfolio positions or prevent losses if the values of such positions decline, but establishes other positions designed to gain from those same developments, thus moderating the decline in the portfolio positions' value. Such hedging transactions also limit the opportunity for gain if the value of the portfolio position should increase. Moreover, it may not be possible for the Fund to hedge against an exchange rate, interest rate or equity price fluctuation that is generally anticipated by the market such that the Fund is not able to enter into a hedging transaction at a price sufficient to protect the Fund from the decline in value of the portfolio position anticipated as a result of such a fluctuation.

Although the intent of hedging is to reduce fluctuations in the value of the portfolio as a whole, in certain circumstances, particularly when markets are subject to extreme events, hedging activity may add to the volatility of the portfolio. This may occur when previously observed correlations in the markets break down. Moreover, for a variety of reasons, the Investment Manager may not seek to establish a perfect

correlation between such hedging instruments and the portfolio holdings being hedged. Such imperfect correlation may prevent the Fund from achieving the intended hedge or expose the Fund to risk of loss. Furthermore, the Investment Manager may not hedge against certain risks as part of its investment strategy or because it fails to anticipate the occurrence of such risk or believes that the occurrence is too unlikely to justify the cost of the hedge. The successful utilisation of hedging and risk management transactions requires skills complementary to those needed in the selection of the Fund's portfolio holdings.

Short-Swing Liability and Other Limitations

From time to time, the Fund, acting as part of a group, may acquire beneficial ownership of more than 10% of a certain class of securities of a public company, or may place a director on the board of directors of such a company. As a result, under Section 16 of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Fund may be subject to certain additional reporting requirements and may be required to disgorge certain short-swing profits arising from purchases and sales of such securities. In addition, in such circumstances the Fund will be prohibited from entering into a short position in such issuer's securities, and therefore limited in its ability to hedge such investments. Other jurisdictions in which the Fund trades may have similar laws that may be triggered at different levels of holdings.

ETFs

The Fund may invest in ETFs and in FDI which provide exposure to ETFs. ETFs seek to track the performance and dividend yield of specific indexes or companies in related industries. These indexes may be either broad-based, sector, or international. ETF shareholders are generally subject to the same risk as holders of the underlying securities they are designed to track. ETFs are also subject to certain additional risks, including, without limitation, the risk that their prices may not correlate perfectly with changes in the prices of the underlying securities they are designed to track, and the risk of trading in an ETF halting due to market conditions or other reasons, based on the policies of the exchange upon which the ETF trades. In addition, the Fund may bear, along with other direct holders of an ETF, its pro rata portion of the ETF's expenses, including management fees.

Short Sales

The Fund is not permitted to enter into "physical short sales". The Fund may however take short positions through derivatives in respect of underlying assets in pursuit of its investment objective and in accordance with Regulations and the Fund's investment policy. In general, short selling involves selling securities the seller does not own in anticipation of a decline in their market value and borrowing the same securities for delivery to the purchaser, with an obligation to redeliver securities equivalent to the borrowed securities at a later date. Short selling allows the investor to profit from a decline in market price of securities to the extent such decline exceeds the transaction costs and the costs of borrowing the securities. A short sale creates the risk of an unlimited loss, in that the price of the underlying securities could theoretically increase without limit, thus increasing the cost to the Fund of buying those securities to cover the short position.

There can be no assurance that the securities necessary to cover a short position will be available for purchase. Purchasing securities to close out a short position can itself cause the price of the securities to rise further, thereby exacerbating the loss.

In taking short positions through derivatives, the Fund will be seeking the same financial reward, and will be exposed to the same market risks, as if it were entering into physical short sales. Taking short positions through derivatives involves trading on margin and, accordingly, the leverage provided through margined positions involves greater risk than investments based on physical short sales.

Due to legislative or regulatory action taken by regulators and governments around the world taking short positions on certain assets has been restricted. The levels of restriction vary across different jurisdictions and are subject to change in the short to medium term. These restrictions have made it difficult and in some cases impossible for certain market participants to either continue to implement their investment strategies or to control the risk of their open positions. Accordingly, the Investment Manager may not be in a position to trade in a way to fully benefit from its negative views in relation to

certain assets, companies or sectors, and the ability of the Investment Manager to fulfil the investment objective of the Fund may therefore be constrained.

Volatility Risk

The Fund's investment program may involve the purchase and sale of relatively volatile instruments such as FDI which are frequently valued based on the implied volatilities of such FDI compared to the historical volatility of the underlying financial instruments. Fluctuations or prolonged changes in the volatility of such instruments can adversely affect the value of investments held by the Fund. In addition, many financial markets in which the Fund invests or trades are not as developed or as efficient as, for example, the U.S. financial markets and, as a result, the price volatility of the Fund's investments traded in such markets may he high.

"Widening" Risk

For certain reasons (for example, supply/demand imbalances or other market forces) the prices of the securities to which the Fund may be exposed may decline substantially. In particular, purchasing assets at what may appear to be "undervalued" levels is no guarantee that these assets will not be trading at even more "undervalued" levels at a time of valuation or at the time of sale. It may not be possible to predict, or to hedge against, such "spread widening" risk.

Distressed Obligations

The Fund may invest in obligations of companies in weak financial condition, experiencing poor operating results, having substantial capital needs or negative net worth, facing special competitive or product obsolescence problems, including companies involved in bankruptcy or other reorganisation and liquidation proceedings. These obligations are likely to be particularly risky investments although they may also offer the potential for correspondingly high returns. Among the risks inherent in investments in troubled entities is the fact that it frequently may be difficult to obtain information as to the true condition of such companies. Such investments may also be adversely affected by laws relating to, among other things, fraudulent transfers and other voidable transfers or payments, lender liability and the bankruptcy court's power to disallow, reduce, subordinate, recharacterise debt as equity or disenfranchise particular claims. Such companies' obligations may be considered speculative, and the ability of such companies to pay their debts on schedule could be affected by adverse interest rate movements, changes in the general economic climate, economic factors affecting a particular industry or specific developments within such companies. In addition, there is no minimum credit standard that is a prerequisite to the Fund's investments in any financial instrument, and a portion of the obligations in which the Fund invests may be less than investment grade. The level of analytical sophistication, both financial and legal, necessary for successful investment in companies experiencing significant business and financial difficulties is unusually high. There is no assurance that the value of the assets collateralising the Fund's investments will be sufficient or that prospects for a successful reorganisation or similar action will become available. In any reorganisation or liquidation proceeding relating to a company in which the Fund invests, the Fund may lose its entire investment, may be required to accept cash or securities with a value less than its original investment and/or may be required to accept payment over an extended period of time. Under such circumstances, the returns generated from the Fund's investments may not compensate its shareholders adequately for the risks assumed. In addition, under certain circumstances, payments and distributions may be disgorged if any such payment is later determined to have been a fraudulent conveyance or a preferential payment.

In liquidation (both in and out of bankruptcy) and other forms of corporate reorganisation, there exists the risk that the reorganisation either will be unsuccessful (due, for example, to the failure to obtain requisite approvals), will be delayed (for example, until various liabilities, actual or contingent, have been satisfied) or will result in a distribution of cash or a new security the value of which will be less than the purchase price of the security in respect to which such distribution was made.

ETNs

ETNs are senior unsecured, unsubordinated debt securities issued by underwriting banks. These financial instruments provide holders or those with exposure to ETNs with access or returns based on the performance of an underlying financial product, instrument, or index. ETNs are not equities or index

funds but are exchange-traded products that provide exposure to an underlying instrument with certain transferability and are listed on an exchange. ETNs do no not make interest payments, do not have dividend distributions and do not have voting rights. In addition, the performance of these products is based solely on the return of the underlying instrument or index, less fees. Therefore, if the asset underlying the ETN decreases or does not sufficiently increase in value in order to offset fees (including redemption fees), the Fund may receive less than the original investment in the ETNs upon maturity or redemption. In addition to the market risk based on performance of asset underlying the ETN, the holder is also subject to the counterparty credit risk of the underwriter.

Contracts for Differences (CFDs)

The Fund may enter into contracts for differences. In these transactions, the Fund and another party assume price positions in reference to an underlying security or other financial instrument. The "difference" is determined by comparing each party's original position with the market price of such securities or financial instruments at a pre-determined closing date. Each party will then either receive or pay the difference, depending on the success of its investment.

Financial markets for the securities or instruments which form the subject of a contract for differences can fluctuate significantly. Parties to a contract for differences assume the risk that the markets for the underlying securities will move in a direction unfavourable to their original positions. In addition, these contracts often involve considerable economic leverage. As a result, such contracts can lead to disproportionately large losses as well as gains and relatively small market movements can have large impacts on the value of the investment.

Highly Volatile Markets/Instruments

The prices of FDI are highly volatile. Price movements of forward contracts and other FDI in which the Fund may invest are influenced by, among other things, interest rates, changing supply and demand relationships, trade, fiscal, monetary and exchange control programs and policies of governments, and national and international political and economic events and policies. In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain markets, particularly those in currencies and financial instrument options. Such intervention often is intended directly to influence prices and may, together with other factors, cause all of such markets to move rapidly in the same direction because of, among other things, interest rate fluctuations. The Fund is also subject to the risk of the failure of any of the exchanges on which its positions trade or of their clearinghouses.

Market Disruption

The Fund may incur major losses in the event of disrupted markets and other extraordinary events which may affect markets in a way that is not consistent with historical pricing relationships. The risk of loss from a disconnect from historical prices is compounded by the fact that in disrupted markets many positions become illiquid, making it difficult or impossible to close out positions against which the markets are moving. In 1994, in 1998 and again in the so-called "credit crunch" of 2007-2008 a sudden restriction of credit by the dealer community resulted in forced liquidations and major losses for a number of investment vehicles. The "credit crunch" of 2007-2008 particularly affected investment vehicles focused on credit-related investments. However, because market disruptions and losses in one sector can cause ripple effects in other sectors, during the "credit crunch" of 2007-2008 many investment vehicles suffered heavy losses even though they were not necessarily heavily invested in credit-related investments. In addition, market disruptions caused by unexpected political, military and terrorist events may from time to time cause dramatic losses for the Fund and such events can result in otherwise historically low-risk strategies performing with unprecedented volatility and risk. A financial exchange may from time to time suspend or limit trading. Such a suspension could render it difficult or impossible for the Fund to liquidate affected positions and thereby expose it to losses. There is also no assurance that off-exchange markets will remain liquid enough for the Fund to close out positions.

Business and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the term of the Fund that may adversely affect the Fund. The regulatory environment for funds is evolving, and changes in the regulation of funds may adversely affect the value of investments held by the Fund and the ability of the Fund to obtain the leverage it might otherwise obtain or to pursue its trading strategies. In addition, the securities and futures markets are subject to comprehensive statutes, regulations and margin requirements. Regulators and self-regulatory organisations and exchanges are authorised to take extraordinary actions in the event of market emergencies. The regulation of derivatives transactions and funds that engage in such transactions is an evolving area of law and is subject to modification by government and judicial action. The effect of any future regulatory change on the Fund could be substantial and adverse.

Systemic Risk

Multiple counterparty risk may also arise through a default by one of several large institutions that are dependent on one another to meet their liquidity or operational needs, so that a default by one institution causes a series of defaults by the other institutions. This is sometimes referred to as a "systemic risk" and may adversely affect financial intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, clearing houses, banks, securities firms and exchanges, with which the Fund interacts on a daily basis.

Dependence on key personnel

The performance of the Fund is substantially dependent on the services of senior professionals of the Investment Manager. In the event of the death, incapacity, departure, insolvency or withdrawal of such professionals the performance of the Fund may be adversely affected.

Misconduct of Employees and of Third Party Service Providers

Misconduct by employees or by third party service providers could cause significant losses to the Fund. Employee misconduct may include binding the Fund to transactions that exceed authorised limits or present unacceptable risks and unauthorised trading activities or concealing unsuccessful trading activities (which, in either case, may result in unknown and unmanaged risks or losses). Losses could also result from actions by third party service providers, including, without limitation, failing to recognise trades and misappropriating assets. In addition, employees and third party service providers may improperly use or disclose confidential information, which could result in litigation or serious financial harm, including limiting the Fund's business prospects or future marketing activities. Although the Investment Manager will adopt measures to prevent and detect employee misconduct and to select reliable third party providers, such measures may not be effective in all cases.

Conflicts of Interest

From time to time, the Fund's activities may be restricted because of regulatory requirements applicable to Lazard and/or because of internal Lazard policies which are designed to comply with, or limit the applicability of, such requirements (i.e. by imposing more restrictive rules). For example, there may be periods when the Investment Manager will not initiate or recommend certain types of transactions in certain securities or instruments in respect of which the Investment Manager or any of its affiliates is performing other services, or when position limits have been reached. In addition, the Investment Manager may acquire confidential information or otherwise be restricted from initiating transactions in certain investment opportunities and, in any such event, it will not be free to divulge, or act upon, any such confidential information with respect to its management of the Fund. Moreover, due to having acquired such confidential information or being otherwise so restricted, the Investment Manager may not be in a position to initiate or liquidate investments for the Fund in the manner in which it might otherwise wish.

Different investment teams within Lazard, including the Investment Manager, may invest client assets in different securities or in securities with different levels of seniority issued by the same issuer. For example, a Lazard investment team employing an equity investment strategy may invest in common stock issued by a company, while the Investment Manager may invest its assets in bonds issued by the same company. Investing in different parts of an issuer's capital structure or in securities with different levels of seniority on behalf of multiple clients could create a conflict in representing the interests of such clients when the issuer is not going to perform its obligations in accordance with the terms of the

securities. For example, when an issuer files for bankruptcy protection, the interests of its bondholders (secured and unsecured) and shareholders frequently conflict. On the one hand, the issuer's secured bondholders may support a plan of reorganisation in which the majority of the value of the issuer's assets are distributed to them and the shareholders and unsecured bondholders get little, if any, value for the shares they hold whereas, on the other hand, the issuer's shareholders or unsecured bondholders may support an alternative plan of reorganization that allocates more of the value of the issuer's assets to shareholders and unsecured creditors and less to other secured creditors, including secured bondholders. In instances in which such conflicts arise, Lazard will take steps to mitigate any such conflicts, including the assignment, if necessary, of additional portfolio managers to affected clients, including the Fund, to ensure that investment decisions made with respect to an issuer's security are in the best interests of the holder of such security without regard to the interest of any other Lazard client whose interests may be adversely affected. Conflict resolution may result in the Fund receiving less consideration than it may have received in the absence of such conflict.

Exchange Rate Risk

The Fund Base Currency is the US Dollar. Share classes denominated in a currency different to the Fund Base Currency (with the exception of the Hedged Share Classes) will not be hedged against the Fund Base Currency and will, accordingly be subject to exchange rate risk in relation to the Fund Base Currency.

Sustainability

Sustainability Risks

The Investment Manager's Sustainable Investment and ESG (environmental, social and governance) Integration Policy (the "Policy") outlines its approach and commitment to incorporating environmental, social, and corporate governance considerations in investment processes to safeguard the interests of its clients and other relevant stakeholders, including the Fund. In particular, the Policy requires the Investment Manager to integrate the consideration of Sustainability Risks in its management of the Fund's portfolio pursuant to the SFDR or similar local regulations.

The Investment Manager has access to ESG data from both internal and external resources, which allows it to assess the Sustainability Risks associated with prospective or existing investments for the Fund. This data includes:

- Internal information, including: proprietary research reports containing ESG impacts/attributes of
 companies, Materiality Mapping¹ analysis which evaluates ESG issues facing specific industry
 groups, an ESG Watchlist report that flags companies scoring poorly on a selection of ESG risk
 factors, and stewardship activity (engagement, proxy voting, shareholder resolution) information on
 ESG issues.
- Third-party data and information, including: ESG ratings and risk scores for systematic comparison
 of ESG performance across companies, controversies analysis and information, global norms
 compliance screens, and a wider set of ESG metrics for corporates and sovereign issuers in the
 investible universe.

When selecting investments for the Fund, the Investment Manager will employ some combination of the above-referenced data as well as other data to identify and assess the relevant Sustainability Risks. The Investment Manager's analysis of the Sustainability Risks and factors mitigating those Sustainability Risks may result in various outcomes, including without limitation an adjustment to its valuation of an issuer's securities, a decision to overweight or underweight exposure to those securities in the Fund's portfolio, or a decision to avoid investment in the securities. The Investment Manager's assessment of the Sustainability Risks relating to an investment for the Fund will evolve as it continues to conduct

_

¹ The Investment Manager's proprietary Materiality Mapping analysis uses as its foundation the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB)'s Materiality Map™.

fundamental research concerning that issuer, its industry/sector, and other interested entities and stakeholders.

While the Investment Manager believes that Sustainability Risks likely may have negative impacts on the business activities and financial performance of certain issuers in the Fund's investment universe over time, the Investment Manager does not believe that those Sustainability Risks will have unique impacts on the future returns of the Fund. The Investment Manager currently believes that its investment process, when applied in normal market conditions to the universe of securities eligible for investment by the Fund, should help the Fund avoid investments that present unacceptably high Sustainability Risks and investments whose valuations do not accurately reflect such Sustainability Risks.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Suitable for investors with a medium to long-term investment horizon seeking to achieve absolute returns through a combination of capital appreciation and income where their investment does not form a substantial part of their portfolio and who are willing to tolerate a medium level of volatility.

Management and Administration

Detailed descriptions of the Directors and service providers to the Company are set out in the Prospectus.

FEES AND EXPENSES

Share Class Fees and Charges

Details of certain fees and charges applicable to each class of Shares (including the Annual Management Fee and the maximum percentage fees payable on subscription, redemption and conversion) are set out in the tables included in Appendix I to this Supplement.

In addition to those fees and charges set out in the tables included in Appendix I to this Supplement, a Currency Management Fee and/or a Performance Fee may also be chargeable in respect of a class of Shares to the extent provided for in the sub-sections below entitled "Currency Management Fee" and "Performance Fee".

Currency Management Fee

Each of the Hedged Share Classes shall bear its attributable portion of the fees payable to the Currency Manager. The Currency Manager has been engaged to facilitate the carrying out of foreign exchange transactions for the purpose of hedging the exposure of each Hedged Share Class to changes in the rate of exchange between the currency in which that Hedged Share Class is denominated and the Fund Base Currency. The fees payable to the Currency Manager are as set out in the Prospectus.

Performance Fee

The Manager is also entitled (in addition to any other fee to which it is entitled in accordance with the terms of this Supplement) to receive a performance fee (the "Performance Fee"), accrued daily and payable once annually (or otherwise on redemption of the relevant Shares), in respect of each of the Share classes in the Fund (excluding the EA Classes, the M Classes and the X Classes). This is equal to 20% of the Net Gain, if any, during the relevant Performance Period.

The Manager is also entitled to receive a Performance Fee, accrued daily and payable once annually (or otherwise on redemption of the relevant Shares), in respect of each of the EA Classes equal to 15% of the Net Gain, if any, during the relevant Performance Period.

No Performance Fee shall be charged to the assets of the M Classes and the X Classes.

Subject to the immediately following paragraph, any Performance Fee due (otherwise than on redemption of relevant Shares) will crystallise and be credited to the Manager once annually on the last

Business Day of each calendar year and will be paid to the Manager by the 20th Business Day following the crystallisation date.

For newly launched Share classes, any Performance Fee due (otherwise than on redemption of the relevant Shares) will crystallise not earlier than 12 months following closure of the Initial Offer Period for the relevant class on the last Valuation Point for the then current calendar year.

A Performance Fee shall accrue and become due and payable in respect of Shares of any relevant class only in the event that both of the conditions below are met:

- the Ending NAV per Share for any Performance Period has exceeded the Hurdle NAV per Share; and
- the Ending NAV per Share for the applicable Performance Period (or as at the date the relevant Shares are redeemed) exceeds the High Water Mark.

Definitions

Each term identified below will have the definition set out following it, solely for the purposes of the Performance Fee calculation.

Ending NAV per Share

With respect to each class of Shares apart from the Unhedged Share Classes, the Ending NAV per Share is the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class as at the Valuation Point immediately prior to the accrual of any applicable Performance Fee.

With respect to each Unhedged Share Class, the Ending NAV per Share is the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class as described in the preceding paragraph, but expressed in the Fund Base Currency as calculated using the Prevailing Exchange Rate on the relevant date.

Hurdle NAV per Share

The Hurdle NAV per Share is calculated by applying the prevailing 3 month Euribor rate (ticker code: EUR003M) (provided such rate is not a negative number and subject to a cap of 5%) as at the date of accrual of the Performance Fee (the "Hurdle Rate") to:

- (i) the opening Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class for the then current Performance Period or, where the relevant class is an Unhedged Share Class, to the opening Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class for the then current Performance Period as expressed in the Fund Base Currency (using the Prevailing Exchange Rate on the relevant date) (the "Opening NAV per Share"), or
- (ii) where the current Performance Period is the first Performance Period for the relevant class, to the Initial Offer Price per Share for the relevant Shares or, where the relevant class is an Unhedged Share Class, to the Initial Offer Price per Share for the relevant Shares as expressed in the Fund Base Currency (using the Prevailing Exchange Rate on the relevant date).

Where the 3 month Euribor rate prevailing at the relevant time is a negative number, the Hurdle NAV per Share shall, as the case may be, be the Opening NAV per Share or the Initial Offer Price per Share for the relevant class (such price being, where the class in question is an Unhedged Share Class, the Initial Offer Price per Share of the relevant class as expressed in the Fund Base Currency using the Prevailing Exchange Rate on the relevant date).

The Hurdle Rate will be prorated for Performance Periods less than one year.

The Hurdle NAV per Share will be adjusted for any appropriate dividend paid.

High Water Mark

With respect to each class of Shares apart from the Unhedged Share Classes, the High Water Mark is the greater of:

- (i) the previous highest Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share class (after deduction of any applicable Performance Fee and any applicable dividend) on the last Valuation Point for any previous Performance Period for which a Performance Fee was paid or accrued; or
- (ii) the Initial Offer Price per Share of the relevant Share class.

With respect to each Unhedged Share Class, the High Water Mark is the greater of (i) or (ii) above each as expressed in the Fund Base Currency using the Prevailing Exchange Rate on the relevant date.

The High Water Mark will be adjusted for any appropriate dividend paid.

A Performance Fee is only ever payable or paid on the increase of the relevant Share classes' Net Asset Value over the relevant High Water Mark or the relevant Hurdle NAV per Share, whichever is higher.

Excess performance is calculated net of all costs before any performance fee accrual.

Net Gain

With respect to the Shares of each relevant class, the Net Gain per Share is the difference between the Ending NAV per Share and the higher of (i) the Hurdle NAV per Share and (ii) the High Water Mark. "Net Gain" is the Net Gain per Share multiplied by the average number of Shares of the relevant class in issue during the period commencing on the date on which the then current Performance Period began and ending on the accrual date. The average number of Shares will be adjusted to take account of redemptions during the relevant period.

Performance Period

The first "Performance Period" for each relevant Share class shall commence as of the first Business Day following the closure of the Initial Offer Period for that class and end not earlier than 12 months later on the last Valuation Point of the then current calendar year. Each subsequent Performance Period shall commence immediately on the end of the prior Performance Period and end on the last Valuation Point of the next following calendar year (or otherwise on the date by reference to which the last Net Asset Value for the relevant Share class is calculated).

Prevailing Exchange Rate

"Prevailing Exchange Rate" means the exchange rate prevailing as between the currency in which the relevant Unhedged Share Class is denominated and the Fund Base Currency.

General

For each Share class (excluding the EA Classes, the M Classes and the X Classes) the Performance Fee will be calculated by taking the Net Gain for the relevant Share class for the applicable Performance Period and multiplying the resultant figure by 20%.

For each of the EA Classes the Performance Fee will be calculated by taking the Net Gain for the relevant EA Class for the applicable Performance Period and multiplying the resultant figure by 15%.

Each Share shall bear its pro-rata share of the Performance Fee, if any, payable in respect of the relevant class.

The Performance Fee will be accrued daily and, provided the relevant Shares have not been redeemed, will crystallise and be credited to the Manager once annually on the last Business Day of each calendar year and will be paid to the Manager by the 20th Business Day following the crystallisation date. Any Performance Fee accrued in respect of Shares redeemed during a Performance Period shall crystallise in due proportions and become payable at the point of redemption.

The Performance Fee shall be calculated independently by the Administrator and verified by the Depositary and is not open to the possibility of manipulation.

Worked example of how the performance fee is calculated

 Assuming an Ending NAV per Share of \$110, assuming a High Water Mark of \$100 and a Hurdle NAV per Share of \$101.50 the Net gain would be \$8.50. Assuming an average number of shares over the performance period of 10,000 shares, the performance fee would be calculated as follows:

Day 1 calculation: $\$8.50 \times 20\% *10,000 = \$17,000$ (where 20% is the performance fee percentage rate payable).

2. Assuming 10% of the shares redeemed at the end of Day 1, \$1,700 of the performance fee would be crystalised. In this example the assumed average shares would be reduced to 9,000. Assuming the Ending NAV per Share increased to \$115 (i.e. a Net Gain of \$13.50), the performance fee calculation would be calculated as follows:

Day 2 calculation: \$13.50 * 20% * 9,000 = \$24,300.

The worked example set out immediately above applies for all Share Classes in the Fund, but for the EA Classes, the M Classes and the X Classes.

For the EA classes, the foregoing worked example will apply in identical fashion except that the performance fee percentage rate used in the calculation should be 15% (rather than 20% as above).

No Performance Fee is chargeable to the assets of the M Classes and the X Classes.

Performance Fee Risks

The Performance Fee is a Net Asset Value based fee calculated by reference to the average number of Shares of the relevant class in issue over the Performance Period and, as a result, equalisation will not apply. Therefore, in circumstances where a Performance Fee is payable in respect of a particular Performance Period, Shareholders who acquired Shares of the relevant class after commencement of that Performance Period will be liable to pay a Performance Fee based on the performance of that Share class over the entire Performance Period rather than on the performance of the actual Shares they acquired over the period during which those Shares were held. Therefore, Shareholders who acquire Shares after commencement of a Performance Period may be liable for a Performance Fee even where there has not been an appreciation of performance of the relevant Share class during the period in which the Shares were actually held.

The calculation of the Performance Fee includes net realised and net unrealised gains and losses as at the end of each Performance Period and as a result, incentive fees may be paid on unrealised gains which may subsequently never be realised.

It should be noted that there is no repayment of any Performance Fee already paid if the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class (as expressed in the relevant currency) subsequently falls back below the High Water Mark, even if a Shareholder redeems his holding.

Expense Cap

Each class of Shares of the Fund shall also bear its attributable portion of the other expenses of the Company (as are set out in detail under the heading "Other Expenses" in the section of the Prospectus entitled "Fees and Expenses"). The payment of all such expenses out of Fund assets, with the exception of the expenses of acquiring and disposing of Investments (including custodial and sub-custodial transaction charges – which, if any, shall be at normal commercial rates - brokerage expenses, stamp duties and other relevant taxes) is subject to a cap of 0.30% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund (the "Expense Cap"). The Manager will be responsible for discharging any relevant expenses as described above in excess of the Expense Cap. For the avoidance of doubt, the expenses of acquiring

and disposing of Investments (including custodial and sub-custodial transaction charges (if any), brokerage expenses, stamp duties and other relevant taxes) are not subject to the Expense Cap and shall be borne in full out of the assets of the Fund.

Additionally, the Manager will not be responsible for the costs of hedging currency exposure for the benefit of any particular Hedged Share Class of the Fund, which costs shall be attributable exclusively to the relevant Hedged Share Class.

The Expense Cap is a cap on relevant expenses as described above and does not constitute a minimum expense charge to Fund assets – this means that in the event that the relevant expenses (as described above) actually incurred by the Fund in any particular financial year fall short of the amount represented by the Expense Cap, only the relevant expenses actually incurred by the Fund will be charged to the Fund's assets and not the full amount represented by the Expense Cap.

APPENDIX I

Share Class Details

Distributing Share Classes

Dividends in respect of the Distributing Classes, where paid, will normally be paid in April and October of each year.

Where requested by a Shareholder to be remitted in cash, dividends will be paid by telegraphic transfer to the bank account detailed in the Application Form or as subsequently notified to the Administrator by original written notification.

Please also refer to the heading "Dividend Policy" in the Prospectus.

Class Currency (Note 1)	Type (Note 2)	Minimum Initial Subscription & Minimum Holding (Note 3)	Minimum Subsequent Subscription Amount (Note 3)	Minimum Redemption Amount (Note 3)	Annual Management Fee (Note 4)	Maximum Preliminary Fee (Note 5)	Maximum Redemption Fee (Note 6)	Maximum Switching Fee (Note 7)	Initial Offer Period & Price
CHF	А	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
CHF	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	E	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
CHF (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
EUR	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	s	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8

EUR (Hedged)	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
EUR (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	N	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	X	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	Z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	А	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	s	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	Z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP (Hedged)	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP (Hedged)	х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
JPY	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
JPY (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8

JPY (Hedged)	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	А	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	E	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
USD	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	М	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	None	1%	See Note 8
USD	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8

Accumulating Share Classes

Dividends will not be paid in respect of the Accumulating Classes.

Income and profits, if any, attributable to a particular Accumulating Class will be accumulated in the Fund on behalf of Shareholders of the relevant Accumulating Class and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value of that Accumulating Class.

Class Currency (Note 1)	Type (Note 2)	Minimum Initial Subscription & Minimum Holding (Note 3)	Minimum Subsequent Subscription Amount (Note 3)	Minimum Redemption Amount (Note 3)	Annual Management Fee (Note 4)	Maximum Preliminary Fee (Note 5)	Maximum Redemption Fee (Note 6)	Maximum Switching Fee (Note 7)	Initial Offer Period & Price
CHF	А	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	Α	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
CHF (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
CHF (Hedged)	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
CHF (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	s	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
CHF (Hedged)	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
ELID	_	115\$1,000,000	11864 000	116610	1.250/	20/	20/	10/	Soo Noto 9
EUR	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8

						I		ı	
EUR	E	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9
EUR	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	E	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	N	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	U	US\$25,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	up to 1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
EUR (Hedged)	X	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
EUR (Hedged)	Z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
Lort (Heagea)	2	034200,000,000	03\$1,000	03\$10	Op to 1.00%	None	2.70	1 76	See Note 8
GBP	А	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	E	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP	X	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP	Z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP (Hedged)	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
GBP (Hedged)	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
GBP (Hedged)	z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 9

JPY	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY	S			*			2%		
		US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%		1%	See Note 8
JPY	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	A	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	Е	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
JPY (Hedged)	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	s	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
JPY (Hedged)	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	Α	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	AP	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.75%	3%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	В	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.25%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	BP	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	2.50%	5%	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	С	US\$1000	US\$500	US\$10	1.25%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	E	US\$50,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	EA	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	0.75%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	М	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	None	1%	Seeded
USD	S	US\$20,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	1.00%	3%	2%	1%	Seeded
USD	Х	US\$1,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	None	None	2%	1%	See Note 8
USD	Z	US\$200,000,000	US\$1,000	US\$10	Up to 1.00%	None	2%	1%	Seeded

Notes:

- (1) other than in exceptional circumstances, dealing and settlement will only take place in the currency in which the relevant Shares are denominated. Investors who wish to deal or settle in a currency different to the currency in which the relevant Shares are denominated should refer to the "Dealing/Settlement Currency" section of the 'Dealing Information' table in Appendix II.
 - Hedged Share Classes are denoted in this table by the inclusion of '(Hedged)' immediately following the relevant Share class currency. Please refer to the section of this Supplement entitled "Currency Hedging Policy" for further information in respect of Hedged Share Classes.
- (2) shareholders and investors are referred to the table below entitled "Share Class Types" for specific information (if any) pertaining to particular class types.
- (3) or the equivalent amount in the currency in which the relevant class of Shares is denominated (or less at the discretion of the Manager).
- (4) being a percentage per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to the relevant class of Shares. The Annual Management Fee is accrued daily based on the daily Net Asset Value attributable to the relevant class of Shares and is paid to the Manager monthly in arrears. The Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed by the Fund for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. The Manager is responsible for discharging the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager, the Promoter and the Distributors out of the fees it receives from the Fund.
- (5) the Directors may, in their absolute discretion and in respect of each subscription for Shares, charge a preliminary fee of up to the amount specified, being a percentage of the Net Asset Value of the Shares subscribed. This preliminary fee shall be paid to the Manager. The Manager may pay all or any part of the preliminary fee to financial intermediaries assisting with the sale of Shares in the Fund.
- (6) the Directors may, in their absolute discretion and in respect of each redemption of Shares, charge a redemption fee of up to the amount specified, being a percentage of the Net Asset Value of the redeemed Shares.
 - A redemption fee will only be charged if the Directors believe that the redeeming Shareholder: (i) is engaged in short term trading in a manner which is considered by the Directors, in their absolute discretion, to be inappropriate and/or not in the best interests of the Fund's Shareholders or (ii) is attempting any form of arbitrage on the yield of the Shares.
- (7) the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, charge a switching fee of up to 1% of the Net Asset Value of the Shares to be switched.
- (8) the continuing Initial Offer Period for this Share class shall end at 5.00 pm (Irish time) on 12 May 2025 unless such period is shortened or extended by the Directors and notified to the Central Bank.
 - See the table below entitled "Share Class Initial Offer Price" for details of the price per Share at which Shares may be subscribed during the Initial Offer Period.

Applications for Shares during the Initial Offer Period must be received (together with cleared funds and all required anti-money laundering documentation) during the Initial Offer Period. All applicants for Shares during the Initial Offer Period must complete (or arrange to have completed under conditions approved by the Directors) the Application Form.

(9) the Initial Offer Period for this Share class shall commence at 9.00 am (Irish time) on 12 November 2024 and shall end at 5.00 pm (Irish time) on 12 May 2025 unless such period is shortened or extended by the Directors and notified to the Central Bank.

See the table below entitled "Share Class Initial Offer Price" for details of the price per Share at which Shares may be subscribed during the Initial Offer Period.

Applications for Shares during the Initial Offer Period must be received (together with cleared funds and all required anti-money laundering documentation) during the Initial Offer Period. All applicants for Shares during the Initial Offer Period must complete (or arrange to have completed under conditions approved by the Directors) the Application Form.

Share Class Initial Offer Price						
Share Classes	Initial Offer Price					
All CHF denominated classes	CHF100					
All EUR denominated classes	EUR100					
All GBP denominated classes	GBP100					
All JPY denominated classes	JPY10,000					
All USD denominated classes (with the exception of USD denominated M classes)	USD100					
USD denominated M classes	USD1,000					

	Share Class Types
C Classes E Classes S Classes	The Annual Management Fee charged in respect of Shares of the C Classes, E Classes and the S Classes is, in each case, a "clean fee" insofar as it does not include any provision to cover the payment of rebates to the holders of such Shares or the payment of retrocessions, commissions or other monetary benefits to third parties involved in the distribution of such Shares.
EA Classes	The Annual Management Fee chargeable in respect of Shares of the EA Classes has been set at a rate intended to attract assets into the Fund. It is therefore intended that the EA Classes will only be available for investment, in accordance with the provisions set out below, for a limited period following publication of this Supplement. Subject as set out below, the EA Classes shall be closed to all further subscriptions once the Net Asset Value of the Fund has reached \$100 million (or such other amount as the Directors may at their discretion determine). Following the closure of the EA Classes in accordance with the preceding paragraph, Existing EA Class Shareholders (as such term is defined below) may continue to subscribe for Shares of any of the EA Classes provided that the total amount invested by an Existing EA Class Shareholder shall not exceed three times the Net Asset Value of that Shareholder's total holding of Shares in the EA Classes calculated as at the time the EA Classes were closed to further subscriptions. Once the Directors have exercised their discretion to close the EA Classes to further subscriptions in accordance with the preceding paragraphs, a notice to that effect will be published on the Promoter's website at www.lazardassetmanagement.com . Shares of the EA Classes can be redeemed at any time in accordance with the normal redemption procedures set out in the section of this Supplement entitled "Redemption Procedure". For the purpose of this section: "Existing EA Class Shareholders" means the registered holders of Shares in any EA Class as at the time the EA Classes are closed to further subscriptions in accordance with the preceding paragraphs.
M Classes	Shares in the M Classes are available for investment only to other funds managed or advised by a Lazard Affiliate or to such other persons as the Manager may determine from time to time (i.e. to Lazard personnel or to Lazard Affiliates for seeding or other purposes).

	For the purposes of this section:
	"Lazard Affiliate", means a company which has the ultimate parent of the Investment Manager as its ultimate parent, or a company in which that company has at least 50% direct or indirect ownership.
X Classes	Shares in the X Classes may only be acquired or held by an investor who is party to a current Investor Agreement (as such term is defined below).
	No transfer of Shares of the X Classes may be made unless the proposed transferee is party to a current Investor Agreement.
	No Annual Management Fees are charged to the assets attributable to the X Classes. Instead, Shareholders in an X Class will be subject to such management fees in respect of their investment in the relevant X Class as are set out in the Investor Agreement to which they are party, and for which they will be charged directly. In addition, and with respect to their investment in an X Class, relevant Shareholders will be subject to all other fees/charges applicable to an investment in an X Class as are specified in accordance with the terms of this Prospectus.
	The Company reserves the right, at the request of the Manager, to repurchase the entire holding of shares of any X Class Shareholder, if the Investor Agreement to which the relevant Shareholder is party is terminated for any reason whatsoever.
	For the purpose of this section:
	"Investor Agreement" means an agreement between a Lazard Affiliate and an investor in accordance with which the investor has agreed to invest in an X Class and to pay the fees associated with such investment as are specified in the agreement.
	"Lazard Affiliate", means a company which has the ultimate parent of the Investment Manager as its ultimate parent, or a company in which that company has at least 50% direct or indirect ownership.
Z Class	Shares in the Z Class may only be acquired or held by an investor who is party to a current Z Class Investor Agreement (as such term is defined below).
	No transfer of Shares of the Z Class may be made unless the proposed transferee is party to a current Z Class Investor Agreement.
	The Company reserves the right, at the request of the Manager, to repurchase the entire holding of shares of any Z Class Shareholder, if the Z Class Investor Agreement to which the relevant Shareholder is party is terminated for any reason whatsoever.
	For the purpose of this section:
	"Z Class Investor Agreement" means an agreement between a Lazard Affiliate and an investor in accordance with which the investor has agreed to invest in the Z Class.
	"Lazard Affiliate", means a company which has the ultimate parent of the Investment Manager as its ultimate parent, or a company in which that company has at least 50% direct or indirect ownership.

APPENDIX II

	Dealing Information
Business Day	a day on which the stock exchange in New York is open for business.
Cut-Off Time (for receipt of applications for subscriptions and transfers)	12.00 noon (Irish time) on the relevant Dealing Day* * being the point in time on a Business Day up until which applications for subscriptions and transfers will be accepted.
Cut-Off Time (for receipt of applications for switches and redemptions)	12.00 noon (Irish time) on the fifth Business Day prior to relevant Dealing Day** ** being the point in time on a Business Day up until which applications for switches and redemptions will be accepted.
Dealing Contact Details	Address: Lazard Global Investment Funds plc Sub-Fund: Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund Lazard Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited c/o State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited Transfer Agency Department 78 Sir John Rogersons Quay Dublin 2 D02 HD32 Ireland Tel: +353 1 242 5421 Fax: +353 1 523 3720 Email: LazardTA@statestreet.com
Dealing Day	each Business Day.
Dealing/Settlement Currency	Other than in exceptional circumstances, dealing and settlement will only take place in the currency of denomination of the relevant Share class. However, where payments in respect of the purchase or redemption of Shares are tendered or requested in a currency other than the currency of denomination of the relevant Share class, any necessary foreign exchange transactions will be arranged, subject to the agreement of the Manager, by the Administrator for the account of and at the risk and expense of the relevant investor on the basis of the exchange rate applicable as at the Dealing Day where available. Dividend payments will only be made in the currency of the denomination of the relevant Share class.
Fund Base Currency	US Dollar (USD)
Settlement Deadline (for receipt of subscription monies)	within three (3) Business Days of the Dealing Day in respect of which the subscription request was submitted.** ** Subscription payments net of all bank charges must be made in the currency in which the order was placed and should be paid by telegraphic transfer to the bank account specified at the time of dealing.
Settlement Deadline (for payment of redemption proceeds)	within three (3) Business Days of the Dealing Day on which the redemption is effected*** *** provided that all required documentation has been furnished to the Administrator and any matters requiring verification (e.g. account details) have been duly verified. In the case of a partial redemption of a Shareholder's holding, the Administrator will advise the Shareholder of the remaining Shares held. Redemption payments will be sent by telegraphic transfer to the bank account detailed on the Application Form or as subsequently notified to the Administrator in such format as may be requested by the Administrator.

Share Price	Shares can be bought and sold on any Dealing Day at the relevant Net Asset Value per Share.					
	Additionally, a preliminary fee may be charged on subscription and a redemption fee on redemption, but only in accordance with the terms specified in Appendix I of this Supplement.					
Share Price Publication	the latest Net Asset Value per Share, expressed in the currency of denomination of the relevant Share class, will be available during normal business hours every Business Day at the offices of the Administrator and the Promoter and will be published on the Promoter's website at www.lazardassetmanagement.com (which must be kept up-to-date).					
Valuation Point	4.00 pm (New York time) on each Dealing Day.					

VALUATION OF ASSETS

The Net Asset Value of the Fund and of each Share class will be calculated by the Administrator as at each Valuation Point in accordance with the requirements of the Articles and full details are set out under the heading *"Statutory and General Information"* in the Prospectus.

SHARE PRICE

Shares are issued and redeemed at a single price, being the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share class.

The Directors have the flexibility in accordance with the Company's constitution to apply a pricing methodology, known as 'swing pricing', when calculating the price for Shares of the Fund. However, as at the date of this Supplement, the Directors have determined that Shares in the Fund shall be issued and redeemed at their Net Asset Value and that swing pricing shall not be applied.

In the event that the Directors determine in the future to exercise their discretion to commence pricing the Shares using the swing pricing methodology, Shareholders in the Fund will be notified of this intention in advance and afforded a sufficient opportunity to redeem from the Fund prior to the application of swing pricing. In such circumstances, this Supplement will also be updated in advance of swing pricing taking effect.

SUBSCRIPTION PROCEDURE

All applicants subscribing for Shares must complete the application form prescribed by the Directors in relation to the Fund ("Application Form") and comply promptly with all necessary money laundering clearance requirements.

An Application Form accompanies this Supplement and sets out the methods by which and to whom the subscription monies should be sent. Application Forms shall (save as determined by the Manager) be irrevocable and may be sent by facsimile to the Administrator at the risk of the applicant.

The original Application Form should be sent to arrive with the Administrator within four Business Days of the date on which the application for Shares was made. All required anti-money laundering documentation (including such original documentation as may be required) should accompany the original Application Form.

Failure to provide the original Application Form and all required anti-money laundering documentation within the time period referred to in the previous paragraph may, at the discretion of the Manager, result in the compulsory redemption of the relevant Shares.

Applicants will be unable to redeem Shares on request until the original Application Form and all required antimoney laundering documentation has been received by the Administrator in a form satisfactory to it, and accepted.

Shareholders may subscribe for further Shares (i.e. post their initial subscription) by telephoning or sending a fax to the Administrator or by electronic means or by such other means as the Company may permit in accordance with Central Bank Requirements. Telephone dealing will be recorded by the Administrator.

All subscription requests received after the Initial Offer Period for the relevant Shares has closed will be dealt with on a forward pricing basis (i.e. by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Shares subscribed calculated as at the Valuation Point for the Dealing Day on which the subscription is effected).

Applications for Shares received after the Initial Offer Period for such Shares has closed must be received and accepted before the Cut-Off Time for the Dealing Day on which the subscription is to be effected. No application will be considered received and accepted by the Administrator until (a) a completed Application Form and (b) all required anti-money laundering documentation, have been received by the Administrator and both (a) and (b) satisfy the requirements of the Administrator.

Any such applications (as referred to in the previous paragraph) received after the Cut-Off Time for the relevant Dealing Day will normally be held over until the next following Dealing Day. However, in exceptional circumstances, applications received after the Cut-Off Time but prior to the Valuation Point for a particular Dealing Day may be accepted for dealing on that Dealing Day at the discretion of the Manager. Any request for subscription on a particular Dealing Day received after the Valuation Point for that Dealing Day will be held over until the next Dealing Day.

If payment in full in cleared funds in respect of a subscription has not been received by the Settlement Deadline specified in the "Dealing Information" table above, the Company may (and in the event of non-clearance of funds, shall) cancel the allotment and/or charge the applicant for any loss suffered by the Fund as a result of the delay or non-clearance. In addition, the Company will have the right to sell or redeem all or part of the applicant's holding of Shares in the Fund or in any other sub-fund of the Company in order to meet those charges.

REDEMPTION PROCEDURE

Every Shareholder will have the right to require the Company to redeem his Shares on any Dealing Day (save during any period when the calculation of the Net Asset Value is suspended in the circumstances set out under the heading "*Temporary Suspensions*" in the Prospectus) on furnishing to the Administrator a redemption request. Shares may be redeemed only by application through the Administrator.

All redemption requests are dealt with on a forward pricing basis (i.e. by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Shares to be redeemed calculated as at the Valuation Point for the Dealing Day on which the redemption is effected).

Redemption requests will only be accepted where cleared funds and completed documents are in place from original subscriptions. No redemption payment will be made until (a) the original Application Form and (b) all required anti-money laundering documentation (including such original documentation as may be required), have been received by the Administrator and both (a) and (b) satisfy the requirements of the Administrator.

Redemption requests must be received and accepted before the Cut-Off Time for the Dealing Day on which the redemption is to be effected. Shares will be redeemed at the relevant Net Asset Value on the relevant Dealing Day (less such redemption fee, if any, as may be applied). If the redemption request is received after the relevant Cut-Off Time it shall normally be treated as a request for redemption on the Dealing Day following such receipt and Shares will be redeemed at the relevant Net Asset Value for that day (less such redemption fee, if any, as may be applied). However, in exceptional circumstances, redemption requests received after the Cut-Off Time, but prior to the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day may be accepted for dealing on that Dealing Day at the discretion of the Manager. Any request for redemption on a particular Dealing Day received after the Valuation Point for that Dealing Day will be held over until the next following Dealing Day.

Redemption requests shall (save as determined by the Manager) be irrevocable and may, at the risk of the relevant Shareholder, be given by telephone, fax, by post, by electronic means or by such other means as the Company may permit in accordance with Central Bank Requirements.

Compulsory Redemption

The Manager shall have the right to redeem compulsorily any Share or to require the transfer of any Share to a Qualified Holder if in its opinion (i) such Share is held by a person other than a Qualified Holder; or (ii) the redemption or transfer (as the case may be) would eliminate or reduce the exposure of the Company or the Shareholders to adverse tax or regulatory consequences.

Switching

Details in respect of switching are set out in detail under the heading "Switching Between Share Classes and Funds" in the Prospectus.

Transfers

The conditions relating to transfers of Shares are set out in the Prospectus.

APPENDIX III

Environmental and/or Social Characteristics

Pre-contractual disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and 2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

	Proc	luct name:	Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund	er	egal ntity entifier:	2549000BM63Q5YC1MW54		
		Env	rironmental and	l/or so	cial cha	aracteristics		
Sustainable investment means an investment in an economic activity that	Does this financial product have a sustainable investment objective?							
contributes to an environmental or social	••	□ Yes		•	⊠ No	,		
objective, provided that the investment does not significantly harm any environmental or social objective and that the investee companies follow good governance practices.			minimum of sustainak with an environment _%		(E/S) ch does no sustaina minimul	otes Environmental/Social naracteristics and while it of have as its objective a lable investment, it will have a m proportion of% of lable investments		
The EU Taxonomy is a classification system laid down in Regulation (EU) 2020/852, establishing a list of environmentally			ctivities that qualify as ly sustainable under the EU	under the EU activi		environmental objective in economic ss that qualify as environmentally able under the EU Taxonomy		
sustainable economic activities. That Regulation does not lay down a list of socially sustainable economic			ctivities that do not qualify as ly sustainable under the EU		activitie	environmental objective in economic es that do not qualify as imentally sustainable under the EU imy		
activities. Sustainable investments with an						social objective		
environmental objective might be aligned with the Taxonomy or not.			minimum of sustainal with a social objective		-	otes E/S characteristics, but make any sustainable ments		
		t environmer luct?	ntal and/or social cha	racteristic	cs are pro	moted by this financial		
	The Fund's environmental and social characteristics are:							
	 To ensure that at least 90% of the Fund's direct investments in convertible bonds are issued by corporates with an ESG Risk Rating of no higher than 40 (a score of 40 and above constituting a "Severe ESG Risk Rating"). The ESG Risk Rating methodology is based on a third-party ESG rating provider's assessment of companies' exposure to, and management of, material ESG issues. Material ESG issues considered include a corporate issuer's carbon emissions, resource intensity, human capital factors, health and safety, corporate governance and business ethics. To avoid investing in corporate bond issuers that violate global environmental and social norms. The Investment Manager assesses corporate bond issuers against an 							

	internally generated watchlist, which leverages third-party vendor information, and an exclusion policy is applied by the Fund that prohibits investing in or obtaining exposure to corporate bond issuers that the Investment Manager deems to violate United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) principles. This helps to avoid investments that, at a minimum, do not meet social and environmental norms with regards to human rights, labour, and anti-corruption, as well as environmental degradation. 3. To promote certain minimum environmental and social safeguards by excluding corporate bond issuers that are involved in controversial weapons production, military weapons production, thermal coal mining or production, or tobacco production.
Sustainability indicators measure how the environmental or social characteristics promoted by	What sustainability indicators are used to measure the attainment of each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product? The Fund uses the following sustainability indicators to measure how the environmental and
the financial product are attained.	 At least 90% of the Fund's convertible bond investments are issued by corporates with a better than Severe ESG Risk Rating. The Fund has no exposure to corporate bond issuers deemed by the Investment Manager to be breaching the UNGC principles. The Fund has no exposure to corporate bond issuers excluded by the exclusion criteria relating to controversial weapons production, military weapons production, thermal coal mining or production, or tobacco production.
	What are the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make and how does the sustainable investment contribute to such objectives?
	Not applicable – the Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments.
	How do the sustainable investments that the financial product partially intends to make, not cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment objective?
Principal adverse impacts are the most significant negative impacts of	Not applicable.
investment decisions on sustainability factors relating to environmental, social and employee	— How have the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors been taken into account?
matters, respect for human rights, anti- corruption and anti- bribery matters.	Not applicable.

— How are the sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:
Not applicable.
The EU Taxonomy sets out a "do not significant harm" principle by which Taxonomy- aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is accompanied by specific EU criteria.
The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion of this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.
Any other sustainable investments must also not significantly harm any environmental or social objectives.
Does this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors?
⊠Yes, the Fund considers principal adverse impacts (PAIs) on sustainability factors.
Through pre-investment global norms and activity-based exclusions, the following PAIs are considered:
 Exposure to companies active in the fossil fuel sector (PAI 4, Table 1) Violations of the UN Global Compact Principles and Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises (PAI 10, Table 1) Exposure to controversial weapons (PAI 14, Table 1)
Through ESG integration and investment due diligence processes, the following PAIs are considered, where relevant:
 Indicators related to GHG emissions and fossil fuel exposure (PAI 1-4, Table 1) Board gender diversity (PAI 13, Table 1)
Through post-investment stewardship activities, the following PAIs are considered, where relevant:

- Indicators related to GHG emissions and fossil fuel exposure (PAI 1-4, Table 1)
- Violations of the UN Global Compact Principles and Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises (PAI 10, Table 1)
- Board gender diversity (PAI 13, Table 1)

Material environmental and social issues such as those listed in the PAIs are regularly identified by investment professionals and are discussed as part of the Investment Manager's proprietary research processes. The Investment Manager also references third-party ESG research and data for additional information and relative industry positioning. Given limited availability of certain data points, the Investment Manager may use qualitative assessments while also adding further relevant data points in relation to the PAIs as corporate disclosure and data quality improve over time.

Information relating to PAIs will be made available in the Fund's annual financial reports.

□No



What investment strategy does this financial product follow?

The investment strategy guides investment decisions based on factors such as investment objectives and risk tolerance Lazard Rathmore Alternative Fund is a hedged convertibles portfolio, where a long convertible bond position is hedged with a short stock position in the same company. Investments are selected for the Fund using a fundamental investment process as described in the section of this Supplement entitled "Investment Policy" and the strategy described below for selecting investments to attain the environmental and social characteristics of the Fund.

What are the binding elements of the investment strategy used to select the investments to attain each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by this financial product?

The Fund has the following binding elements:

- 1. The Fund limits direct investment in convertible bonds issued by corporates with a Severe ESG Risk Rating to a maximum of 10% of the Fund's assets in order to achieve the environmental and social characteristic of ensuring that at least 90% of the convertible bonds in which the Fund invests directly are issued by corporates with an ESG Risk Rating of 40 or below (on a scale where a score below 10 represents the most negligible/best ESG Risk Rating and a score in excess of 40 represents a Severe ESG Risk Rating).
- The Investment Manager assess violations of UNGC principles based on third-party data and internal research. Any corporate bond issuer deemed by the Investment Manager to be breaching UNGC principles will be excluded from the Fund's investment universe and the Fund will have 0% exposure to such issuers.
- 3. The Fund applies activity-based exclusion criteria for certain products and services and will have 0% exposure to securities excluded under this policy. The exclusion criteria for the Fund includes corporates which are involved in:

- the manufacture or production of controversial weapons (any revenue from anti-personnel mines, cluster munitions, nuclear weapons in countries not party to the Non-Proliferation Treaty (NPT), biological weapons, chemical weapons, depleted uranium weapons).
- military weapons production which represents 10% of revenue or greater.
- tobacco production which represents 5% of revenue or greater.
- thermal coal mining or production which represents 30% of revenue or greater.

Good governance practices include sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff and tax compliance.

What is the committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investments considered prior to the application of that investment strategy?

There is no committed minimum rate to reduce the scope of the investment considered.

What is the policy to assess good governance practices of the investee companies?

The assessment of good governance practices at investee companies will only apply for long positions in corporate issuers in the Fund. The assessment is supported by a broad range of governance information from third-party ESG data sets. These data sources also provide governance-related controversy information, which can be used to flag governance issues at investee companies. Governance assessments and information are taken into consideration as part of due diligence processes, ongoing monitoring of issuers in the portfolio, and stewardship activities.



What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?

At least 20% of the Fund's NAV will be in investments aligned with any one or more of the E/S characteristics of the Fund. The Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments. Any investments in the "#2 Other" category will include investments and other instruments of the Fund that cannot be aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics of the Fund. These can include, for example, derivatives, cash and cash/equivalents. The Fund does not make a minimum commitment to making investments that fall within the "#2 Other" category and therefore 0% is included for that category in the graphic below. This means that between 0% and 80% of the Fund's NAV might at any point in time be in investments that qualify as "#2 Other" investments. The planned asset allocation will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Asset allocation describes the share of investments in specific assets.

Taxonomy-aligned activities are expressed as a share of:

- turnover reflecting the share of revenue from green activities of investee companies
- capital expenditure
 (CapEx) showing the
 green investments
 made by investee
 companies, e.g. for a
 transition to a green
 economy.

#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics
20%

Investments

#2 Other
0%

 operational expenditure (OpEx) reflecting green operational activities of investee companies. 	
	#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.
	#2Other includes the remaining investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.
	How does the use of derivatives attain the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?
	The Fund does not use derivatives for attaining the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the Fund.
To comply with the EU Taxonomy, the criteria for fossil gas include limitations on emissions and switching to renewable power or low-carbon fuels by the end of 2035. For nuclear energy, the criteria include comprehensive safety and waste management rules.	To what minimum extent are sustainable investments with an environmental objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy?
	The Fund does not commit to making sustainable investments or to making Taxonomy-aligned investments. It is expected, however, that in pursuing its environmental characteristics, the Fund will contribute to one or more of the following environmental objectives as set out in the Taxonomy Regulation: climate change mitigation and/or climate change adaptation.
Enabling activities directly enable other activities to make a substantial contribution to an environmental objective.	 Does the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy²? □ Yes: □ In fossil gas □ In nuclear energy ☑ No
Transitional activities are activities for which low-carbon alternatives are not yet available and among others have greenhouse gas emission levels	The two graphs below show in green the minimum percentage of investments that are aligned with the EU Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the Taxonomy-alignment of sovereign bonds*, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.

² Fossil gas and/or nuclear related activities will only comply with the EU Taxonomy where they contribute to limiting climate change ("climate change mitigation") and do not significantly harm any EU Taxonomy objective - see explanatory note in the left hand margin. The full criteria for fossil gas and nuclear energy economic activities that comply with the EU Taxonomy are laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1214.

corresponding to the best	1. Taxonomy-alignment of 2. Taxonomy-alignment of
performance.	investments including sovereign investments excluding sovereign
	bonds* = 0% bonds*
	■ Taxonomy- aligned (no fossil
	aligned (no fossil gas & nuclear) aligned (no fossil
	= Non Taxonomy- aligned = 100% = Non Taxonomy- aligned = 100%
	This graph represents 100% of the total investments.
	 For the purpose of these graphs, 'sovereign bonds' consist of all sovereign exposures
	What is the minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities?
are sustainable investments with an environmental objective that do not take into account the criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities under the EU Taxonomy.	There is no committed minimum share of investments in transitional and enabling activities.
	What is the minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy?
	There is no minimum share of sustainable investments with an environmental objective that are not aligned with the EU Taxonomy.
	What is the minimum share of socially sustainable investments?
	There is no committed minimum share of socially sustainable investments.
	What investments are included under "#2 Other", what is their purpose and are there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?
	"#2 Other" may include other investments and instruments of the Fund that cannot be aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics of the Fund. These can include, for example, derivatives, cash, and cash equivalents. The Fund does not commit to a minimum share in "#2 Other" investments and therefore 0% is included in the 'What is the asset allocation planned for this financial product?' above.
	Minimum environmental and social safeguards set in exclusion criteria relating to global norms and activity-based screening still apply to the underlying securities.
2	Is a specific index designated as a reference benchmark to determine whether this financial product is aligned with the environmental and/or social characteristics that it promotes?
Reference benchmarks are indexes to measure whether the financial	The Fund has not designated an index as a reference benchmark to attain the environmental or social characteristics it promotes.
product attains the	
environmental or social	How is the reference benchmark continuously aligned with each of the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product?

characteristics that they promote.	Not applicable.
	How is the alignment of the investment strategy with the methodology of the index ensured on a continuous basis?
	Not applicable.
	How does the designated index differ from a relevant broad market index?
	Not applicable.
	Where can the methodology used for the calculation of the designated index be found?
	Not applicable.
	Where can I find more product specific information online? More product-specific information can be found on the website:
	https://www.lazardassetmanagement.com/ie/en_uk/funds/ucits-funds/lazard-rathmore-alternative-fund/f2441/s86/?shareClass=6325